-

Dictre Cogenceicnn St —m—

| SO7299 €
Mitie Group plc & ; ‘
Annual Report and Accounts 2019 " {

*ABINTTPV*

A16 05/12/2019 #40Q7
COMPANIES HOUSE

*S8BGDSFF*
scT 00/08/2049 #320

COMPANIES HOUSE

The

Exceptional,
~very Day




Welcome to Mitie
Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We are the UK leading
facilities management and
professional services company,
providing a range of services

to a large, diverse, blue-chip
client base. Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.
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Exceptional,
every day
for our

customers

Our customers range
from banks and retailers,
to hospitals, schools and
government entities.

We have an order book
of £4.1bn and a pipeline
of opportunities of
£10.2bn.

@ Raad more on PG 12

Exceptional,
every day
for our

environment

In 2010, we committed
to reduce our emissions
intensity by 35% by
2020. We are proud to
have achieved this target

a year early. We did so by
rationalising our estate,
restricting business
travel and improving
fleet efficiency.

(®) Read maore on PG 32-33

Exceptional,
every day
for our

employees

Our 52,500 employees

go the extra mile for our
colleagues and clients

to deliver basics brilliantly.
We are driven by our vision
of 'The Exceptional,
Every Day' and our values.
We are One Mitie.

@ Read more on PG 34-37
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Financial highlights

Fl nancial hlgh | ightS {for the year ended 31 March 2019)

£2.2bn

Revenue!
{FY 1718: £2.0bn)

16.8;

Basic earnings before other

(FY 17/18: £83.2m)

4.0p

£88.2m

Operating profit before other items'?

Dividends per share

items per share'? (FY (7/18: 40p)

(FY 17/18: 15.2¢)

£140.7m £302.0m
Net debt {at periad and)? Net debt (daily average)

FY 17/18: £193.5m) (FY 12/18. £286.im)

£4| bn

£10.2bn

* Revenue up 94% to £2.2bn (FY 17/18: £2.0bn)
with organic growih at 5.5% reflecting strong
performance from top strategic accounts

« Operating profit before other items up
6.0% vo £88.2m (FY 1719: £33.2m)

+ Operating prafit up to £50.2m

(FY 17/18: £1.lm)

Final dividend recommendation of 2.67p,

making the total full-year dividend of

4.0p per share {FY |7/18: 4.0p)

Leverage multipl reduced to §.33x net debt/

ERITDA {FY 17/18; 1.98x. covenant <3x) with

penod end net debt further improved to

L£140.7m (FY 17118, £193.5m)

Core businesses performing strongty

Project Helix largely complete with exit

run-rate savirgs of c.£45m: Project Forte

{Phase Il of Mriie’s transformation)

now lunched with primary focus on

Engineering Services

« Order book fram continuing operations
stable at £4.lbn with pipeline growing to
£10 2bn on the back of inciusion onto the

»

.

Secured order book' Pipeline of opportunities Crown Commercial Services Framework
{FY (718: £4.2bn) (FY 17/18: N/A) ¢ Net Promoter Score up 22 points to.
+[2 (FY (718 -10)
= Employee engagement up 12 ppts to 45%
* Paying our suppliers faster (50 supplier
down from 58 days in FY (7718
Financial summary payment deys " v )
FY /19 FY 1718
Before Before
£m unless otherwise specified athar kamy® Total  other items? Total
Revenue' 2,221.4 2,221.4 10304 20306
Operating profit! [T¥] 50.1 832 L.t
Operating profit margin' 0% 0% L% 0i%
Profit/(loss) before tax' 744 364 667 (154)
Profivi(loss) for the year 8.7 309 612 QR60) Reconciation of the Group's performance
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 14.8p' [XT) 1520’ TEp measures to s tory results i provided i the
Full-year total divdend per share 4.0p a0p Appendix - Aermative Performance Meaures.
A . FY 1819 FY 1718 1. From continung operations.
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 4715 9 2. Other items are a5 described i Mote 4 to the
Period end net debt® 140.7 1935 consoRdated finandl satemerts.
Srder book 34,1473 3,860 Y e e ervatdated fnandal
Delivering the exceptional through a range of services
Revenue' FY 18/19
Cleaning &
Engineering Professional Environmental Care &
Services Security Services Services Custody Catering

£131.4m

(FY 17/18: £131.2m)

£536.5m

(FY 17118 €432.0m)

£205.7m

(FY 17/18. £886.3m)
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£404.4m

(FY 17118; £384.1r)

£136.1m

(FY 1718: £137.lm)

£107.3m

(FY 17/18: £599m)
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every day g
for our
customers |

technology to enable us to offer added value
1o our customers, improve operational
efficiency and reduce reliance on manual
labour. Gur open scurce platform allows

us to integrate multiple systerns and data
sources. perform advanced data analytics
and deliver solutions through easy-to-use
customer interfaces.

Qur nationwide flexible offering combined
with the smart use of technology remains
attractive. With a focus on key drivers —
customer, peaple, cost and technology —
we are helping to shape next generation
facilities management.

(®) Read more on PG 13

5 6m

Integrated facilities daily data readings
- T~ management

contracts with

Connected Workspace

component won in

FY 1819

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 03



At a glance

Group

information

Our vision

Our purpose

What we do

The Exceptional, Every Day.

Qur expertise, care, technology and insight create amazing work
environments, helping our customers be exceptional, every day.

We are the UK’s leading facilities management (FM) and professional services
company employing 52,500 people. VWe manage and maintain some of the
nation’s most recognised kandmarks and work with a wide range of blue-chip
private and public sector dients. We have scale and nationwide reach as well
as breadth and depth of facilities management services, which we deliver in
a flexible, tailored proposition through self-delivery or strategic partnerships.

We work in partnership with our dients to grow customer lifetime value
by offering technology-backed solutions where our Connected Workspace
technology is a true differentiator. We are ambitious for the future of the
FM industry, our customers and our employees.

We deliver the exceptional through a range of services

Engineering
Services (ES)

Mitie Engineering Services
delivers technical and bulding
maintenance services and
specialist services in heating,
cooling, kghting, water
treatment, and building
controls. The division carries
out project works, including
roofing and painting works.

@ Read more on PG 15-17

@ Read maore on PG 17-18

Security Professional Cleaning &
Services (PS) Environmental

The Security division comprises Professional Services is Mitie's ;

Security Management, Frant of consuttancy services ;Nggm_ Serv:cgs (CES)

House, Document Management. which includes Connected The Cleaning & Emvronmental

and the employee vetting Workspace solutions, Servites division offers

business, Procius. International, Sustainability, commercial and technical
Waste Management, dleaning, as well as specialist
Risk Management and services such as landscaping
Occupier Services, and healthcare services.

@ Read more on PG 18-19 (D Readmoreon PG 19
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Customer type

FY 18719

Revenue
from continuing
operations

Fr 1718
Revenue
from continuing
opergtions

Care &
Custody

The Care & Custody division
provides a range of services

to vulnerable adults in secure
environments, including
rmanaging immigration removal
centres and detention and
escorting services on behatf
of the Home Office, as well as
forensic medical examiner and
custody support services for
police forces across England
and Wates.

@ Read more on PG 20

im FY 18119
@ Govenment 700.3
@ Non-government 1,521.1
£m FY 17718
@ Government 6204
@ Non-government 14102

Catering

The Catering division

our specialist indoor
and cutdoor event
catering business.

comprises. Gather & Gather,
our workplace catening
brand: and Creativevents,

(—D Read more on PG 20-21

Forward order book

1) FY 13/19
@ Lessthan 1 year 1,250.9
FY 18119 @ More than | year 20954
Total secured
revenue for
continuing
oparations
£m FY 1218
@ Less than | year 1,121.6
FY I7/18 @ More than | year 30644
Total secured
revenue for
continuing -
operaLons
]}
£m FY 18/19
@ Engineering Services 905.7
FY 18/19 @ Security . 53658
Revenue @ Professional Services 1304
from continuing
operations @ CeS 4044
by division @ Care & Custody 1073
@ Catering 136.1
fm Fy 1718
@ Engineering Services B8B63
FY 1718 @ Security 4320
; Reverue @ Professional Services 1312
rom continuing
operations @ CES 384.1
by division @ Care & Custody 599
@ Catering 137 |
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Chairman’s statement

Shaping Mitie
for the future

£2.2n

Revenue from continuing
operations
{FY 17/18: £2.0bn)

88.2

Operating profit before other
items from continuing operations’
{FY 17/18: £832m)

4.0,

Dividends per share
(FY 17/18: 4.0p)
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We want to drive a

change from today’s mostly
reactive approach to a
preventive approach using
data and technology.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Dear Mitie shareholder,

| am pleased to report on the progress of Mitie's second year

of transformation. it has been a year of delivery and change —
operational, finandial and cultural — in a competitive facilities managernent
rmarket with a challenging industry backdrop.

FM industry overview and changing customer demands
Last year | referenced the demuse of Carilfion, ane of our major
competitors. The outsourcing sector has remaned in the spotlight

with Interserve - another majar compettor - going into pre-pack
administration, foligwing which Intersarve’s fenders acquired its
operating subsidiaries. Despite the ongong challenges for the industry,

| still believe that the medium-term outlook for your company &
positive. On the one hand, there is significant opportunity for increased
outsourcing penetration of the fadilities management industry. On the
other hand, we expect consolidation in the market 10 continue over the
next couple of years, as the industry addresses some of its fundamental
strategic and financal chaflenges.

Outsourcing remains a low-margin industry. In this ervironment,
technology and scale remain two of Mitie's most significant differentiators.
Creating a technology-enabled business can fundamentally change the
economics of the industry. We will continue 10 focus our technology
programme on three key areas: transforming our internal technology
infrastrutture 10 build a more cost-efficient orgamsation; investing in
service delivery technologies to improve the customer experience and
cost-to-serve; and finally, creating new services and products which add
significant new value for our customers.

As a consequence, we believe that the economics of facilities
management is shifting from a idw-margin, labour-based model to a
more sustainable technology-driven approach. Customer pricrities

are beginning to evalve as a result of the challenges facing the industry,
the impact of technology and new employee workplace expectations.
While cost efficiency and the quality of service delivery remain front

and centre for our customers, they are increasingly also focusing on
employee weilbeing, sustainability and better use of their buildings.
These softer benefits are becoming innportant in attracting and retaining



the best people and enabling them to be as productive as possible
At Mitie, we therefore continue to drive adoption of cur Connected
Workspace offering, which is focused on products and services that
improve the performance of buildings, and the wellbeing of their
occupants, for the benefit of our custorners.

Strategy

Our strategy 15 based on four pillars — customer, people, cost and
technology — and is designed to grow customer lifetime value through
technology-based solutions. We are focusing on those business lines
where we can secure market-leading positions to ensure long-term
sustainable growth. Cur vision is to deliver The Exceptional, Every Day.
It is clear to me that by the end of year two in our transformation
journey, we have rmade progress

During FY 18/19 we simpiified and strengthened the Mtie portfolic

by selling our Pest Control and Social Housing businesses and acquiring
a security business, Vision Security Group (V5G). The acquisition of
VSG boosts our already strong position in the UK security market.

We have embedded technology into the heart of our offering. Examples
indude our Connected Workspace technology. our MiTec centre in
Belfast, our global security operations centre (GSOC) in Northamgpton
and our service operations centre (SCC) in Bracknell. We are
showcasing our technology solutions in our Shard headquarters.

We want to drive a change in the facilties management industry from
today's mostly reactive approach to a prevertive approach using data
and technology 1o optimise the perfermance of a customer’s estate

and enhance the wellbeing of their people.

During the year, we continued to prioritise customer service, which

is reflected in a very encouraging 22-point increase in Net Promoter
Score ((NPS) to +12 points. This is testament to all the hard work from
the teams on the ground and at account management level However,
we will not be complacent about the result: we have more to do. so
we will continue to listen to our custorners and act on their feedback.

Qur people are our most critical asset. Without their commitment
and hard work, the Group would not have progressed as far in its
transformation journey during the first two challenging years.

‘We are committed 1o creating a ‘Great Place to Work'. During the
year, employee engagement improved 1o 45% from 33% last year —

a remarkable achievernent given the ongoing transformation and scale
of change within the Group. Along with my fellow Board members,

| personally participated in our ‘back to the floor’ initiative to meet
more of our colleagues, listen to their experiences and celebrate
excepticnal performance.

We have continued to focus on ngorous cost control under our

Project Helix programme. By the end of March 2019, we had reached
our target exit run-rate savings — annualised reductions to the cost

base = of ¢.£45m per annum, through various cost saving initiatives across
HR, Procurement, Property, Finance, IT and Engineering Services. We
now expect to launch a new cost saving initiative programme in FY 19/20.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board has reviewed governance n readiness for the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018, whuch applies to accounting periods beginning
on or after | January 2019, Given the extent of change at Mitie over

the last two years, we as a Board wish to engage proactively with our
stakeholders. in FY 18/19, the Board established a format for regular
engagement with shareholders and for supportng Mitie's workforce
during transformation. Through regular updates from the Executive
Leadership Team, the Board also remains abreast of developments

with customers, suppliers, banks, noteholders and other stakeholders.

We will continue to develop dialogue between the Board and

all stakeholders to ensure a mutual understanding of views on
governance and 1o promete discussion of the Group's performance.
Along with a number of Non-Executive Directors, | have directly
engaged wrth insttutional shareholders with a cumulative holding
of 69% of Mitie's issued share capital. Discussion covered a range

of gaverpance matters including Mrtie's cutture and cultural
transformation, as well as Board support for the executive team.

tn line with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 and the Fnancial
Reporting Council's guidance on board effectiveness, Mitie appointed
Jennifer Duvalier as the Group's designated Non-Executive Director to
oversee Board engagement with our workforce. Jennifer champions the
voice of Mitie employees at Board discussions and participates directly in
our employee engagement initiatives.

Board composition

The Nomination Committee repularly reviews Board composrion
and considers matters such as skills and diversity. During the year,
the Beard adopted an inclusion policy, setting objectives in terms of
diversity and inclusion,

In July 2018, Larry Hirst retired from the Board and Roger Yates
succeeded him as Senior Independent Director Mark Reckitt also
stood down from the Board, with Mary Reilly assuming the rote of
Chair of the Audit Committee.

Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August
2018. Jennifer Duvaher succeeded him as Chair of the Remuneration
Commrttee,

| would like to thank Larry, Mark and Jack for their service to Mrie

Results and dividends

| am pleased to report that revenue from continuing operations
during the year was strong at 94% to £2.2bn (FY 17/18' £2.0bn),
boosted by the acquisition of the security firm VSG. Operating profit
from continuing operations before other tems also grew by 6.0% to
£88.2m (FY 17/18: £83.2m) with Engineering Services, Security and
Care & Custody all delivering good growth.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 2.67p, taking total
dividends for the year to 4.0p. We expect to hold the dividend flat
at least until transformation is complete. when we will review the
divdend policy.

Outlook

While change can be unsettling. it can also be rewarding, and these

are exciting times for your Company. The strength of our strategy.
management, scale, technology offering and, of course, the dedication of
our pecple. really set us apart. We will continue to build upon the progress
achieved over the first two years of transformation, strengthening our
position as the UK's leading fadlities management organisation.

On behalf of the Board, | would ke to thank our many stakeholders, and
all Mrtie employees, Including the VSG colleagues who joined us recently,
for ther dedication and comeitient to the Company, and for going the
extra mile. And finally, | would also like to thank you, our shareholders,
for your continued support.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 o7
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Business model

Creating value
for all our stakeholders

Our vision
The Exceptional, Every Day.

(® Readmore on PG 11

Our purpose

Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.

@) Read more on PG 11

Our values
* We are One Mitie.

* We are built on
integrity and trust.

* We go the extra mile.

* Our diversity makes
us stronger.

* QOur customers business,
is our business,

@ Read more on PG 35

o L
Diligence Mobilisation
and design and running

operations
What we do  We start by engaging with a new We look to mobilise our
or existing client to understand contracts in the most
its needs or any changes to efficient way. Once in
requirements. We design a bespoke operation, we are continually
solution using our expertise, lacking for opportunities
knowledge and Connected to remove cost, expand
Workspace technology. our offering where it would
be of benefit to customers
and become a valued
strategic parwner.
The Mitie We have created a One Mitie Scale
approach  approach in everything we do to The scala of our operations
deliver a seamless, unrivalied service. allows us to sell-deliver
mast services, including
some specialist services,
‘We also partner with
third partres to deliver
additional specialist services
Delivered  We offer a breadith of services
through our underpinned by broad expertise,
business a flexible bespoke approach
and proprietary market-leading Engineering  Security
technology. Services
Guided by Our four stratepc pillars — customer,
our strategy people, cost and technology —
underpin our strategy of focusing on
our brger businesses and strategy Customer: putting
accounts where our technokogy offer customers at the
s a true differentiator o ensure heart of what we do
long-term sustainable growth, delvery Building market-leading
of our vision of “The Exceptional, postions in higher growth
Every Day’ and creation of value for segments and increasing
all our stakeholders. customer NPS.

o8 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Insights to
drive value

> >

Using our proprietary technology, data analysis and open scurce data
lake, as well as cradidonal methods, we collace information on customers'
buildings and assets and the wellbeing of their employees. We convert
data and feedback into actionable recommendations for our clients.

Recognising that every customer is different, our approach is tailored
to customers’ unique needs and is designed ta deliver continual
improvements throughout the life of the contract.

— >

Nationwide Expertise Technology
reach We are a partner Our technology suite
Our nationwide reach trusted for cur inchedes Connected
allowws us to service expertise and Workplace, MiTec,
large clients with for putting our service operations
presence all over customers at the centre (SOC) and
the UK. heart of our business, global security
operations centre
(GS0C).
Professional  Cleaning & Care & Catering
Services Environmental Custody
Services
People: our Cost: strong Technology:
single most balance sheet technology
important and cost control solutions and
resource Strengthening Connected
Creating a ‘Great our balancing sheey Workspace
Plate to Work' for and maintaining Embedding technology
our employees. cost disdpline to into the heart of
remain competrrve, our offering .

port

o

bt
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o
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Creating value for
all our stakeholders

Customers

We am to move from being just another service provider
to being a trusted partrer for our customers, helping
them create hgh-performance work envronments by
optimsing utilisation of thesr bulldings and improving the
wedbeing and performance of their people

+12

Net Promoter Score (an improvement
of 22 paints from -[Qin FY 17/18)

ce

Shareholders

VWe are a business in turnaround with strong
management, an excellent customer base and a
dear strategy. We are commitied to strong financal
management and the creation of sharehokler value,

8.6p

Basic earnings per share
{improved from loss of 7.6p in FY 17/18)

Financial statements

Employees

We are creating a great working ervironment and
learmng and development opportuniies for our
employees. We empower our people and recognise
great work.

52,500

employees

Social value: communities, environment,
people, innovation and regional business
Through the Mitie Foundation we preavide apportuntties
for learning and employment: Ready2vWork scheme;
employer engagement days; Think Differently
programme; and school, academy and college events,

I51 Mitie colleagues

volunteered 1o assist In a range of
educational and community events

Suppliers

‘We are committed to ensuring & responsible supply
chain. We work with all suppliers to ensure adherence
1o our Code of Conduct, including Modern Slavery and
Human Trafficking, Safety and Sustanabibity objectives,
and our Mitie vetting standards,

We procurad from

7,500

suppliers in FY 18/19

Mitie Group ple | Anrwal Report and Accourts 2019 09



Market review

A world of
opportunity

We are focused on improving our customers’
experience and embedding technology-driven
solutions in our offering.

Koy market drivers How we are responding

Facilities
management
industry

®®
@®

The UK has a large and established outsourced
facifties management (FM) market. Overall ntis
forecast to grow at maderate levels (c.2%) as the
market continues to move siowly from insourcing to
ounisourcng. Desprie recent industry turbulence, we
are not seeing any marked trends for insourcing, FM
ouisourcing penetration ranges from c.55% for
catering to ¢.90% for cleaning. The relatve share of
contract types (singk service ¢.55%, Lundlefimegrated
FM c45%) has remained refatively stable. Customers’
primary focus continues to be on cost, efficency and
service qualtty. but with an increasing focus on
technology and employee welibeing. Turbulence in the
sector has highkghted the need for a more informed
approach to pricing and risk transfer, Scrutiny into
public sector outsourting has remained high,

We are the UK's largest FM company and we are
transforming the industry by continuing to focus on
delivering an outstanding service and customer
experience, generating cost efliency, creating an
environment where our people can thrive and investing

in technology. Our Connected Workspace technology
differentiates us from our competition. Ve are generating
data-driven insights and enabling dedsions that improve
efficency and our cost-to-serve, as well as create new
services and products for our customers,

Read more in the CEQ's strategic review on pages |1 to I3
Read about principal risks and uncertainties on pages 38 to 46

UK

economy

®®

According to the Office for Nationa) Statistics (ONS),
in 2018 UK GDP grew | 4%, siower than |.8%in 2017,
ONS reported that the Consumer Prices Index {CPH)
12-month rate was 2.1% in December 2018. ONS
revised down real GDP growth in 2019 from LE% to
1.2%, against the backdrop of considerable uncertainty
over the next steps in the Brexit process. As Brexit
uncertainty subsides, and productvity growth
gradually improves, ONS expects GOP growth to pick
up to 4% in 2020 and to | 6% a year thereafter as the
small margin of spare capadity is absorbed. The
unemployment rate is expected to rise margnally to
4.1% in 2019 as output falls below potential.

Outsourdng s typically shielded from economic cycles,
benefiting from an increased customer cost-cutting

focus during economic siowdowns, and from contract
expansion in economic upturns. Our national footprint,
scale of operations and flexible proposition remain
compelling, while our Connected Workspace technology
serves as a clear differentiator.

‘We have assessed potential Brexit impacts under a range of
scenarios. YWe expect the man impacts in wage and food
price inflation and labour and parts shortages, all of which
we are addressing through contingency planning and
working dosely with our supply chain,

Read about prindpal nsks and uncertainties on pages 38 w0 46

Customer
expectations

BLO)

Although cost, eflicency and service quality continue
1o be priorities for customers, employee wellbeing and
technology are’ gaining further traction. Customers
are increasingly looking to improve the working
emvwronment, employee satisfaction and wellbeing of
their employees. Flexable workspace soluticns, effioent
use of their estate and operational insights supported
by real-time data provide an opportunity for
customers to improve the performance and wellbsing
of their people and functioning of their buildings

We are nvesting in Connected Workspace technology
10 reduce our ¢ost-to-serve and create new products
and services that add significant value lor our customers.
Our open source technology platform allows us to

integrate muttiple systems and data sources, perform
advanced data analytics and deliver better servces for

our customers, We will continue reshaping our business
10 be the leader in next generation FM.

Read more in the CEQ's strategic review on pages 11 to 13
Read about prindpal risks and uncertamties on pages 38 to 46

Legislation
@
®

UK employers must comply with legal and regulztory
requirements in areas such as taxation, the National
Minimum Wage (NMW) and the National Living
Wage (NLW). the Apprenticeship Levy, workplace
pensions and the Modern Slavery Act.

The magority of Mitie front-ine employees are within
the NLW category. The NLW for workers aged

25 and over increased by 4.9% from £7.83 1o £8.21
from April 2019.

The Apprenticeship Levy is required from UK
employers to fund new apprenticeships and is
charged at a rate of 0.5% of an emplayer's payroll,

By law all employers must offer a workplace pension
scheme 1o cligible employees.

10 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

The majority of our existing contracts already contain

a change-of-law clause which allows us to pass on related
cost increases, helping us to pratect our margins. We
are utilising the Apprenticeship Levy for front-line staff
training and development. We are also moving beyond a
Tabour-plus’ model towards more value-added services
and embedding more technology in our operations.

Fressure on margins is kely to continue a5 labour costs
increase driven by legistation and CPlinflation.

We paid £4.7mn into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY
18/19 and utilised £1.2m

Read about principal risks and uncartainbes on pages 38 to 46



Chief Executive’s strategic review

Strengthening the business,

in a challenging market

Our vision

The Exceptional, Every Day! Its a combination of expertise, care and
insights, backed by the iatest technology and data, to create an offering
that goes beyond traditional FM. To our people we promise a place to
work where they can thrive and be the best every day. To our customers
we promise 10 be a trusted partner, creating exceptional environments for
clients and colleagues, as well as adding value. Everything we do is backed
by cur core values, which oversee how we behave as a responsible
corporate citizen, and as individuals.

Our purpose

Achieving The Exceptional, Every Day' doesn't happen by chance.

And we want our custormners 1o be exceptional too. We start by doing the
basics brilliantly, tailoring solutions that anticipate and meet our custormers’
needs. W are aware that technology is changing our world, and we are
using it to change FM. Through Connected Workspace we provide
data-drven solutions, embedding technology seamiessly into everything we
do. The insights gained allow us to offer custorners a new level of flexdbility
and control, helping them become exceptional at what they do best.

Our strategic pillars

Customer: build market-leading positions in higher
growth segments and intrease customer NPS

People: create a ‘Great Place to Work' for
our employees

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain
<ost discipline to remain competritive

Technolegy: embed technology into the heart of
our offering

@

G

Our vision is to deliver

‘The Exceptional, Every Day’
for our customers, people
and other stakeholders.

Phil Bentley
Chief Executrve Officer

Dear Mitie shareholder,

| am pleased to report on our progress in my second full year as

CEO of Mitie Group plc. Two years into our transformation journey

we are already seeing the benefits of our strategy to focus on our larger
businesses and strategic accounts where our technology offer is a true
differentiator to ensure long-term sustainable growth, delivery of our
vision of The Exceptional, Every Day’ and creation of value for all our
stakeholders through our four strategic pillars of customer, people. cost
and technology.

Owver FY 1819 we sharpened the focus by continuing to invest in
customer service and technology and by changes to our portfolic
of businesses. This has enabled us to grow revenue and profits.

We see our larger businesses and strategic ckents as offering the best
opportunities for growth and margin expansion as we deepen our
capabilities and relationships. These are also areas where we are best
able to deploy technology.

Project Helix has provided solid foundations for Mitie's future

growth, enabling investments in our people, custorer and technology.
With the foundations now built, we are now moving to Project Forte,
which s focused primarily on driving simplicity and efficiency in
Engineering Services. Together with our focus on strategic accounts

and larger businesses, we should see improvernent in the Group's profits.

At the same time, we are making good progress in strengthening our
balance sheet.
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Chief Executive’s strategic review continued

Business performance

It has been another challenging year with the FM sector remaining firmly
in the spotlight. Despite this, we grew our revenues and top strategic
accounts, reduced our pericd end net debt and qualified for Phases | and
Il of the Crown Commercial Services (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework
thereby positioning ourselves to win imore government work,

Revenue from continuing operations was 9.4% up on the previous year,
at £2.2bn. with organic growth at 5.5%. Operating profit before other
tems from contnuing eperations increased 1o £.88.2m from £83.2min
FY 17/18. Operating profit for FY 18/19 was up to £50.2m from £L.Im 2
year earher and basic earmings per share were 8.6p, from a foss of 7.6p in
FY 17/18. Basic earnings per share before other iterns from continuing

operations were 16.8p (F 17/18: 15.2p).

The fixed-term order book from continuing operations was broadly flat
at £4,1bn, benefiting from VSG's order book and significant contract wins
towards the end of the year. Following the successfuf reorganisation of
our sales team and the introduction of strategic account managers, we
have seer a steady flow of wins and retentions. The pipeline of £10.2bn
includes significant opportunities on the CCS Framework.

Our balance sheet health remains a key focus. We are committed to
further reducing customer invoice discourting, normaiising credrtor days,
asking clients for fairer payment terms, streamiining our billing processes
and delivering faster cash collection. Our efforts have seen a decline in
average daily net debt in H2 18/19 to £286.5m from £3174m in HI 18/(9
as we resolved working capital impacts following the outsourcing of
transactional processing to India in early FY 18/19, Overall, average daily
net debt for FY 18/19 was £159m higher than prior year at £302.0m.
Our medium-term objective i 10 continue to reduce the average daily
net debt. The period end net debt was £140.7m versus £193.5m a year
earlier as we make continuing improvements to the cash collection
cycle: the net debt paosition also indudes proceeds from twa disposal
transactions eflected during FY 18/19. We are operating comfoartably
within debt covenants with period end net debt to EBITDA of 1.33x.

Focusing our business

In FY 18/19, we also focused our business by selling our Pest Control and
Social Housing businesses and acquiring the Vision Security Group (VSG).
The first two transactions simplified our operations; they also provided
funds to strengthen the balance sheet and accelerate partial repayment
of the deficit under the Group's defined benefit pension scheme, The
VSG acquisition strengthens our position as one of the UK's largest
providers of security services 1o businesses,

Customer focus

Listening to dients is essential as we focus on delivering services that our
custorners need. By taking on board feedback from last year's customer
survey and continuing to irwest in customer service, we have secured

an impressive i ent in our NPS score, which increased from
-10to +12in FY 18/19. A follow-up programme for account directors
will ensure we improve our score further still, helping us to win and
retain more business.

Mitie's success rests on growing our largest strategsc accounts and
deepening our relationship with them, it was pleasing 10 see that
these accounts grew revenues by B% in FY 18/15, which demonstrates
that our biggest clients are trusting us with more of their business.

We have recently secured a place on several key government

frameworks, giving us an opportunity to become a strategic partner for
the UK government in outsourced FM, defence, security and custody.

&

A great place to work

Supporting our pecple to be the best they can be 1s one of our core
objectives. We do more than just provide the took required for the job;
we are making Mitie a great place to work through various initiatives.

Qur online People Hub, supported by SAP SuccessFactors. is a single
point of access for anything HR-related. The recently launcived Learning
Hub offers a doud-based pool of 2,500 instructor-led courses.

Mitie Exceptionals is a diverse employee consulting group which liaises
with our Non-Exeautive Director, jennifer Duvalier, on the interests
of the wider workforce. In April 2018, we launched Ugload, a people
survey providing the opportunity 1o feedback on working with Mitie.
‘We launched a "You Said, We Did' campaign to address employees’
feedback throughout the year. it was therefore very encouraging to
see that the employee engagement score went up to 45% from 33%
in the prior year.

In addition, we were the only FM company to be sed by two
prestigious awarding bodies. We were certified a 2019 Top Employer
by the Top Employer Institute Certification Programme. And we came
|7th on the Inctusive Top 50 UK Employers list for promoting diversity
and inclusion .

Our strategy
in action

)

Our strategy is to focus on

Customer: build market-leading
positions in higher growth segments
and increase customer NPS

our larger businesses and Achievements
strategic accounts where our '?‘;Si"““f:dnpﬂimtoﬁz oo
technology offer is a true « Mitie qualffied as a supplier on Crown
differentiator to ensure Commercial Servces Framework for FiY

. e seCuwrity services
Iong—term susta:r'\qble growth, KPis: Organ revenue growth, operating profit
delivery of our vision of mmargin before other items, order book, NPS
The Exceptional, Every Day’
and creation of value for

all our stakeholders.

3 |0.2bn

pipeline of opportunities
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People: create a ‘Great Place

to Work’ for our employees

Achievements

* We bunched People Hub and Learning
Hub platforms

= Employee engagement increased to 45%

* jennifer Duvalier oversees Board
engagement with the workiorce

KPls: Staff turmover, smployee engagement,

allinjury frequency rate

454

employee engagement




Cost discipline

In June 2017 our cost programme, Project Helix, was launched to
kickstart Mitie's transformation. Two years on, we have largely
achieved our aims, exdting FY 18/1% with run-rate cost savings of
€.£45m, We started by delayering and removing central management
heads both at Group level and within the divisions. We standardised
and centralised our IT, HR and Finance functions. For IT and Finance
we also offshored the majority of back-office processes. In HR, we
imroduced SAP SuccessFactors to manage all people-related matters,
as well as tamporary and permanent hiring solutions.

The final elements of this project will continue throughout FY [9/20,
with expected run-rate cost benefits — these are annual cost savings to
the cost base following the finalisation of currently running programmes
at the end of Project Hefix — of ¢.£50m by March 2020.

The next phase of transformation 1s Project Forte, ammed at changing
the processes and technology underpinning our largest division,
Engineering Services.

Project Forte will indude a full roll-out of the ‘Click’ dynamic
scheduling and deployment system and implementing a new case
management and billing application. it will result in improved engineer
productivity and back-office efficiencies. Project Forte will also include
further Group-wide organsational consolidation and additional cost
reductions by automating manual and paper-based processes and
migration of our accounting system to a Meie-wide SAP solution.

It s a two-year programme with estimated gross run-rate cost
benefits of ¢.£30m by March 2021 and associated one-off cost of
change of ¢.£30m.

Technology at our care

Mitie's use of technology sets us apart from the competrtion and is at
the core of austomer satisfaction and retention success. Our dients
need and expect high-per formance facilities that not only provide

the right work environment but operate efficiently and support their
sustainability agenda. Our skilled resources, natiorwide reach and
experience of managing different types of faciities give us unparalieled
capabilities to help chents achieve these objectives.

For example, our Connected Workspace solutions include a
sophisticated service operations centre {SOC) that provides remote
monitormg of buikdings and facilities. SOC uses advanced algorithms
to detect anomalies and trigger corrective actions prior 10 an asset
failing. We are also able 10 reduce energy consumption for buldings.
plant and equipment. We call this '"Monitoring as a Serwice' and it is the
core of our predictive maintenance offering,

Other fast-growing technology apphcations include our MiTec centre,
Fire & Security systerns and our global security operations centre.
Our approadh isn't just transforming chents' organisations, it 1s
transforming Mitie and consolidating our position as the UK's leader
in Ft4,

Outlook

We expect to continue to grow revenue orgarically at 3%-4% in the
rmedium term. For FY 19720 we expect operating profit to grow at
mid-single digits — with revenue growth and cost savings partially offset
by the dilutive effect of the FY 18/19 contract renewals and continued
reinvestment in our business. Project Forte and focus on strategic
accounts and larger businesses should drive operating profit margin

in the medium term to our target of 4.5%-5.5%.

Looking ahead

Mitie’s transformation continues at pace. QOur strength is supported

by great custormers and loyal stafl. Through our use of technology and
expertise, we are leading the field, transforming our operations and

how we interact with our dients, Change has been challenging at times,
but our progress and performance to date are encouraging. Revenue

is growing, Project Helix has allowed us to lay sobd foundations for the
business and in addition to wins across the business, the CCS Framework
presenits a considerable opportunity. Mitie is in a strong posrtion for
future growth and we look forward to the year ahead,
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Cost: strengthen our balance
sheet and maintain cost discipline
to remain competitive

Achievements

* Project Helx krgely complete in HR, 1T,
finance, Procurement and other (CES and
property estate)

* FY |18/19 inyear benefits of c.£38m, with exit
run-rate benefits of ¢, £45m

KPls: operating profit margin before other tems,
et debt/EBITDA ratio and average daily net debt

£45m

gross FY 18/19 exit run-race benefits

]
=
Phil Bentley §
Chief Executive Officer ﬁ
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Technology: embed technology
into the heart of our offering

Achievements

* Growing revenue stream in Securty

* Technology sofutions through MiTec, GSQC,
Fire & Securty systems in Security

» Connected Workspace embedded in five
new large IFM contracts

* Ml dashboards kve in Healthcare chents (CES)

KPIs: Organic revenue growth, order book, NPS

12

new CW projects in FY 18/19

Mitie Group plc |

Focusing our business

Achievements

*+ Pest Controf business' sold 1o leverage
subcontractor expertise

* Social Housing business' sold to exit
a low-growth low-margin sector

* V5G? acquired to boost our position in
the security rmarket

* Disposals simphfy Mitie Group and
strengthen the bafance sheet

I MNote 5 to the consohdated finandial statements on
discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries.

2 Note 30 10 the consolidated financial statements
on acquisilions,

3

successful cransactions
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Key performance indicators

Monitoring
our progress

Our KPls are measures we use

to assess the Group's progress
against our strategy of focusing on
our larger businesses and strategic
accounts where our technology
offer is a true differentiator to
ensure long-term sustainable
growth, delivery of our vision

of The Exceptional, Every Day’
and creation of value for all

our stakeholders.

The health and safety of our people is the bighest prority
for us as a business. We are constantly striving to develop
a zero-harm workplace, Coordinated by Mitie's Quality,
Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE) team, our
LiveSafe programme was launched in December 2018
This highlights the importance of workplace safety and
was developed out of the need 1o constantly improve
QHSE performance across the business. This year we are
introducing a non-financial QHSE KP! to our reporting —
altinjury frequency rate.

Our strategic piilars

Customer; bulld markec-leading positions in higher
growth segments and Increase customer NPS
People: create a ‘Great Place te Work' for

our employees

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain
cost discipline to remain competitive

Technology: embed technology into the heart of
our offering

BO@®
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Organic revenue growth (%)

D iptl

Revenue growh refiects the heatth of our order book, our ability to upseli and
cross-sell, the pipeline of potential opportunitres, our win and retention rates and
our broader reputation in the sectot. Organic cevenue growth is growth ona
comparable basis before any impact from acquistions and esxcluding discontinued
operations Reconcliaton of revenue excluding the impact from the V3G
acquisition to the statutory accounts is provided in Appendix ~ Alternative
Perforrmance Measures on pages 163 to 185,

FY 1819 £222Im

FY 1819 toxhing V3G) £2447m 5‘ 55

FY N8 aoim BT
How we did it Outiaok

Organic ravenue grew by 5.5% despite  Our plan is to achieve 3%-4%
a challenging market environment, due 1o organ revenue growth in the
new wins and focusing on adding more medium term.

value and JErvices 10 O 10D Customers,

Wi continue to ivest in o strwce

and technology 1o drive customer reterntion

and win rates, Revenue growth of 9.4% from

continuing operations induded the impact

from the acquisition of VG,

Operating profit margin
hefore other items (%)

®®

The UK FM industry is 2 rature and highly competitive market. Profitability on
contracts improves as we enhance the effidency of cur operations throughout
the life of the contract. Reconcliation of operating profit before cther tems
from continuing operations to statutory accounts is provided in Appendix —
Alternatrve Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165,

FY B 40% lo
bpts
Fy 1718 4.1% rom
Pravious year
How we did it Qutisok

The operating profit margin before other For F¥ 19720 we expeact operating
items reduced slightly to 4.0% over the year  profit 1o grow at mid-single digits
as the dilutive impact from the acqussition = with revenue growth and cost
of VSG was mitigated through continued savings partially cffset by the
strong performance within our larger ditive efiect of the FY 18/19
contracts and realised cost savings fromour  contract renewals and continued
transformation programme. We invested reinvestment in our business.
back into customer servite, our techrology  Project Forte and foaus on
capability and staff incertive schemes, strategic accounts and larger
businesses should drve operating
profit margin in the medium term

to our tarpet of 4.5%-5.5%.
Order book (£m)

Descriptl

The reported order book incudes only secured fied-term contracted work
andt excludes varable work, such as catenng point-of-sale. See Note 3 to the
cansofdated financial statements for analysis of the forward order book,

Fr w19 £4,147m |
Fr 178 A
7/ £4.186m decrease from
previous year
How we did it Outiook

Our order baok for continuing operations In FY 1B/19, we were successful in

dedined by 1%. Contract wins and the qualifying as a supplier on Phases |
benelit [rom the acquisition of VG ofiset and Nl of the Crown Commercial
the dekvery of revenue under long-term Services Faciliies Management
cantracts. Marketplace Framewark, We
will be locusing on this area as
significant wins would materiaily
improve our order position.



Net debt/EBITDA ratio (x)

Description

®©

Period erd et debt/EBITDA ratio or leverage rati s one of the two debt
covenants used to assess our financial postion. For the leverage covenant the

Average daily net debt (fm)

Description

®

Our balance sheet heatth 15 of paramount importance to the long-term
sustainabiity of our business. Average daily net debt reflects working capital

rato of net debt to EBITDA should be no more than 3x. The other coverant and bill-to-collect management.

ratio is mterest cover (ratic of EBITDA to net finance costs to be no less than 4x).

FY 1819 133x FY 1819 £302m

FY [iI8 198x 0°65" FY 17118 {286m £I6“‘
improvement from deterioration from
previous year previous year

How we did it Outlook How we did it Outlook

Our period end net debt decreased by We expect to continue to reduce Qur average daily net debt increased Proactive management will be an

£52.8m to £140.7m as we benefited from our penod end net debt/EBITDA compared to the prior year's level. The ongoing theme. Over the medium

net proceeds from disposats and focused ratic whilst also reducing increase in HI 10 £317.4m was due 1o term, we aim to continue to

on accelerating our order to cash oycle. off-balance sheet financing, termporary working capital issues related reduce average daity net debt.

We continue to operate comfortably
within cur debt covenants,

See Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statermerts for analysis of net debt.

to outsourding of transactional processing.
This was reversed in H2 resulting in lower
average daily net debt in the H2 penod at
£286.5m. Overall, average daily net debt
for FY 18/19 was £15.9m higher than prior
year at £302.0m.

Staff turnover (%)

Description

&

‘We measure the number of employees leaving us voluntacily over a 12-month

period against our overall headcount.

Employee engagement (%)

Dascription

®

The survey asks colleagues at Mitie how they feel about working with the
organsation, and what improvements could be made. This is followed by
the “You Said, We Dwd’ carnpaign to demonstrate actions undertaken in

response to feedback.
FY 1ang 9.7% FY 119 45%
FY 18 168% 2 '9PP“ FY 17118 33% I ZPP“
increase from increase from
previcus year previous year
How we did it Outlook How we did it Outlook
InFY 18/19, we launched People Hub. a We will continue to utilise 28% of employees (exduding V5G The annual survey 15 a vital tool
one-stop-shap for everything related to technology to support our colleagues) completed the Upload survey in raising employee engagement,

the employee ifecycle, and Learming Hub,
an online portal through which employees
2n access courses related to their career,
as well as health and wellbeing. We have
been embedding new behaviours following
the roll-out of new values in FY 17/18.

people processes, n FY 1819,

we appoined a head of resourcing
to create an industry-leading talent
and resourding function to attract,
recrutt, develop and retain the
best people at all levels.

and the engagement score was 45%, up
from 33% the year before,

but it is not the only one, Senior
management meet employees
throughout the year at roadshow
conferences across the UK and
members of the Group Leadership
Team go ‘back to the floor' to
engage with front-ltine colleagues.

Net Promoter Score (index)

Description

NPS is a measure for gauging the customer’s averall satisfaction with a company’s
product or service and the customer’s loyalty to the brand.

All injury frequency rate .
(per milion rmanhours worked)

Description

Safety of our employees is of paramount importance. We have established
systems and governance processes to measure our performance. Our injury rate
is 3 key measure to monitor our progress towards 2ero harm and includes all

injury severities from first aid to fatality.

@

FY 1819 +12 FY 18A% 30y

FY 718 -0 22!""“’-‘ FY 718 358 I 35"
increase from reduction from
previous year previous year

How we did it Outlook How we did it Qutiock

In FY 18/19 we reached a wider and deeper  This is a core focus for us Ower the past year we have changed Continued efiorts to further

section of our customer base, capturing and we will be enhancing our reporting systermn ((23) and categorisation reduce injuries is at the forefront

0%+ of cur revenue, in a more exdensive  CRM programme, customer of incidents allowing for increased focus of the LiveSafe programme,

CRM programme. Qur NPS improvedasa  commwunications and engagement. and analysis of accidents and incidents. striving towards a zero-harm

result of continued investment, in customer Through the promotion of our LiveSafe workplace. Additionally we

service and our One Mit:e approach. programme and campaign promoting the will continue to develop our

proactive reporting of hazard observations  Cccupational Health strategy

and near misses we are seeing a shift from
reactive to proactive safaty performance.
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Operating review

Our divisional
performance

Engineering

Services

£m FY 1819 FY I8 Change.%
Revenue 9057 8863 22
Operating profit before

other items 58.7 54 85
Opersting morgin before

other items, % &5 6.1 04 ppt
Order book 1,807 2039.2 (11.8)

Performance highlights
+ Good growth of operating profit before other temns driven by
a strong performance in the major accounts

+ Encouraging improvements in engineer productivity

+ Phase | of Engineenng Services transformation under
Project Helix completed

= Engineering Services transformation is moving into Project Forte

Operational performance

Engineering Services had another year of good operating profit

growth driven by a strong performance in the major accounts.

The business focused on reducing layers and increasing spans of
control, whilst continuing to invest in customer service and technology
to enhance the quality and effidency of the service we provide. We
have also listened to and acted upon customer feedback. We are dearly
seeing the impact of our investment into service with our divisional
NPS up 30 ponts year-on-year,

Ancther area of focus was the productmty of our engineers where we
have seen encouraging improvernernts in utilisation with a 7% increase in
productivity, a 3% (c.£3m) reduction in core subtentyactor spend and a
subsequent increase in profitabiity. This increased productivity has been
partly driven by a 20% reduction in travel time which has in turn alliowed
us 1o reduce the backlog in jobs by 20% and therefore provide a better
service 10 our custorners, Acdibonal year-on-year indrect cost reductions
included a 12% (c.£2m) dearease in vehicle costs and 2 4% (c.£€0 Im)

drop in staff travel expenses, We have created a data hub which

allows benchmarking, best practice and standardisation to enable

these improvements.

We also took steps 10 reduce complexity n our business, On the
customer fromt we activety focused on revenue quality by serving our top
chients better. VWe made a decision to no longer pursue smaller and Jess
profitatde opportunities and to proactively exit low-margin contracts.
With regard to the supply chain, we reduced our supplier base by 25%
by migrating to fewer strategic pariners. enabling meaningful economies
of scale. There is further opportunity in these areas.
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Under Project Helix, we have now completed Phase | of the Engineenng
Services transformation. This included the roli-out of PDAs to our
engineers and related training. the imtroduction of a dashboard enabling
better performance management of all organisational levels including
engineers; and faunching our Click pilot {automated engneer schedulng
and deployment toof). We ako introduced incentive schemes for engineers
1o aim for firstAime-fix and greater efficiencies.

The next phase of transformation for Engineering Services s grouped
under Project Forte arwd will include changes to the culture, processes and
technology underpinning the business. This wil inchade the scheduling and
deployment system roll-out and a new case management and biling
apphcation. The objective & to drive further improvements for our
custormers and our stafl by using technology to improve productivity
and service delivery.

The programme will also include Group-wide intiatives aimed at
organisational consolidation and further cost reductions by automating
manual and paper-bised processes. Project Forte is expected to run

for approximataly two years with associated cost of mplementation

of ¢.£30m and estimated &xst gross run-rate benefits of ¢.£30m by
March 2021,

In FY 18/19 Mite Property Management's roofing and painting businesses
were integrated into Engineering Services Following the sale of the Social
Housing business in Novernber 2018. ncorporating these two business
units into the ES projects business broadened the overall offering under
the projects umbrella and boosted cross-selling oppartunities across Mitie.
It also aflowed the sales teamns to share leads and be progctive in capturing
opportunites with customers. Overall, this combination is starting to gain
traction in the market and is helping to make Mitie known as a one-stop
projects business.

From the start of FY 19720 several business units of the current
Professional Services division will be incorporated into an enlarged
Engineering Services dhvsion. These indude Connected Workspace,
International Services, Occupier Services and Sustainability. The logic
behwyd the move is that these services are closely alignest to our largest
integrated accounts where engineering services are central to our offer.
We wilt therefore be able to improve and broaden our customer product
offering in a manner that more closely aligns with our customers’ needs.
To fadiitate these changes we have strengthened the Engineering Sernces
leadership team with senior appointments in mobile engineering, strategic
accounts and critical infrastructure.

Engineering Services reverye comprises fixed contract work and variable
work. During the year we broadened the capability of our commercial
team by setting up a new dedicated sales tearn {ocused on winning more
variable and project-based work with our existing and potential chents.
The order bock declined 11.6% to £1,802.7m in the year as the unwanding
of existing contracts exceeded new wins and renewals underpinned by
more distiplined bidding,

‘We extended a nurnber of contracts, including a five-year contract
worth £17m with Gatwick Airport and 2 two-year extension with
Vodafone. We won new business as part of irtegrated FM contracts with
amajor UK retailer; a major infrastructure company, Connact Group and
Yorkshire Buikding Society We also won several single service contracts,
induding a contract with construction firm Willmatt Dixan to provide
mechanical and electrical services for Bournemouth University,

We aiso enhanced our focus on the government sector enabling us to
qualify as a supplier of M&E services on the CCS Framnework which offers
UK-wide facilties rmanagement opportunties across numerous public
sector entities.



Financial performance

Revenue from continuing operations in the Engineering Services division
was up 2.2% to £905.7m (FY 17/18: £886.3m), with growth in top accounts
and related project work offsetting the impact of contracts lost during
the prior year and a slower year in terms of contract wins. The top 50
Engineering Services contracts continued to defiver good growthin
both volumes and profitability on the back of project and variable work
volumes with revenue growth of 8% and 70 basis points improvement
in gross profit margin Our projects business, which includes fire
protection, painting and roofing, as well as project weork within top
accounts, grew its revenue by 4% and saw operating profit margin
expansion of 80 basis pomts.

Cperating profit for continuing operations before other items increased
B.5% to £58.7m (FY 17/18: £54.1m). This was due to a combination of
strong performance in our largest accounts, exit from low-margin
contracts and cost savings from the transformation programme, partly
offsat by the impatt of contracts lost in the prior year and incremental
mvestments into improving service levels.

Outlook

As we deepen cur relationships with our largest customers we are
increasingly seeing the demand for a broader service offering which
includes the use of predictive maintenance technology. improved facilities
performance management information and more energy effidency from
assets and buildings. By combining several existing Mitie businesses from
the Professional Services dwision into one enlarged Engineering Services
divisicn, we will be able to meet these demands better. The market for
Engineering Services remains fragmented but is still showing modest
growth. We are optimistic abeut our future performance as we broaden
our offering, particularly focusing on technology. and as we embark on a
transforration of the business through Project Forte that will improve
the customer experience whilst reducing our cost-to-serve.

Security

€m FY 18/19 FY 1718 Charge, %
Revenuve 5365 4320 24.2
Operating profit before

ather rems 30.7 75 1.e
Operating margwn before

other items, % $7 64 (07)ppt
Order book MMSs 6408 51.6

Performance highlights

* Strong year with a good performance across all business
units together with a positive contribution from the acquisition
of VS5G

Significant progress made in integratng V3G following its
acquisition in October 2018

Technology solutions playing a greater role in contributing to
the overall profit growth

Operational performance

Security enjoyed another strong year with 2 good performance across

all its major business units, together with a positive contribution from

the acquisthion of V5G in October 2018. The largest part of our security
business 1s manned guarding where we saw good growth across all regions
as we continue to develop our presence in the retail, logist«cs and critical
security ervironment sactors.

The VSG acquisiion strengthened the position of Mite's Security business
as one of the leading prowders of integrated and risk-based securtty
services in the UK. The combination offers opportunities 10 accelerate
the growth of Mitie’s premium systerns and technology-enabled and
inteligence-led security solutions.

Sgnificant progress has already been made in integrating VSG, aligning both
operations and technology capabilities. We have consolidated operations
ino our new global security operatons centre (GSOC), a single hub,
located in Northampton. it will serve as a centre for inteligence and
security industry experts with cutting-edge software tools 10 capture,
translate, geolocate and alert to any major giobal inddents. This wall
become a hub for developrment of our intelligence cell and house our
interactive qustomer control certre where we undertake live CCTV
monitoring. In addition, we are employing innovative and unique methocds
of collating actual ncidents and crime reports overiaid with naticnal cnme
statistics to dynamically nisk-rate indvidual locations to drive the efficient
deployment of security resources for our customer sites.

Owr industry-leading 24/7 commurkeations and technology centre MiTec will
be retained as our primary alarm recenving centre (ARC) responsible for
delivering a wide range of remote services induding CCTV. intruder. fire.
access control and lone worker monitoring and dedicated dient helpdesks.
We are ako creating a secondary ARC location at our

GS0C to provide MiTec with added resikence. We will continue to focus
on the growth of our Fire & Security Systemns business as one of the leading
providers of life safety sohtions and innawative security systems in the UK.
Through the integration of V5G's systems team, we have expanded our
geographical footprird, increased our technical expertise levels and
strengthened our operational model which is enabling us to deliver
larger-scale projects and contracts for chents,

Mitie is a significant Front of House service provider through our
Signiature business. There are opportunities for growth, especially in

major city conurbations and in particular the premium and London-centric
corporate market.
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Operating review continued

Mitie's ernployee vetting business, Procus, continues 1o ho'd a strong
postion in the aviation industry whilst we are ako seeing traction
within commercial sectors. The facus here is on developing further
technology-led solutions 1o automate, faciitate and speed up

vetting processes,

In Document Management we continue to grow our customer

base, attracting high-end law firms and corporate dients by offering
t:d'mology -enabled document management and document processing
outsourding among other services. Through recent wins, we are
expanding to indude the delivery of our services to dients’ regional offices.

The divisional NPS score improved by 15 points as we expand and
ephance our offer and embed more technology sohsons 0 owr
services. The secured order book before the impact from the VSG
acquisition was up by 19%, with the unwinding of contracts more than
offset by significant contract wins and successful retenders. We won a
three-year contract with a multinational retad group and extended a
contract with Springfields for a further three years. We also had a strong
year for retaining dients, inchuding two contract extensions for travel
clients, Strathdyde Partnership for Transport (a further five years) and
Eurostar {for two years). We successfuly extended a contract with Beifast
City Airport and won a high-profile conlract from the CCS framework.
The total secured order book benefited from the acquistion of ¥SG and
grew overall by 51.6% to £971.5m.

Financial performance

The Security division delivered a strong financial performance, with

goodorganxgrawﬂn!ogeﬂ\erwmaposmvecontrhnnnfmmﬂie
VSG acquistion. Organic revenue grew by 5.8%, and overall reverue,

including VSG, grew 24.2% to £536.5m (FY 17/18: £432.0m). Manned

guarding, technology solutions meluding vetting services, and Document

Managerment all defivered good growth folowing new sales wins

and higher volurnes of project and variable work. Front of House

perforrmance was impacted by loss of key contracts in the prior year.

Operating profit before other items increased 11.6% to £30.7m
(FY 17/18: £27.5m) driven by cortract wirs arxd operational efficiency
initigtives as well as a positive contribution from VSG's performance.

VSGmpyedaverymcaﬂ,gngmunderMmesmrshpA&eruhng
over a busness which was trading at dose 1o break-even, we are seeing a
faster ¥nprovement n mangins than onginaly planned at the intial integration
stage. VSG's gross margn increased from 5% pre-takecver to 8% over s
first trading period under Mitie's ownership.

Technology-sokstions are increasingly i to the overall revenue
growth of the division and now account for 13% (FY 17718, 12%) of the
revenue {exciuding VSG), driven by growth in Fire & Security systems.
MiTec and vetting. MiTec is benefiting from the Detention & Escorting
Services comtract, won by the Care & Custody division in December 2017,
while vetting is moving into the corporate space on top of its strong
pasition in aviation.

The division finished the: year with good momenturn following successful
contract wins towards the end of FY' 18719,

Qutlook

The overall security market remains fragmented and manned guarding
rermains competitive and highly commoditised. In this context, Mitie's
ability to provide a broader range of services gives 3 competitive
advantage when bidding for and winning business. Retention is then
enhanced through application of technology. We wil continue to derive
benefits from the V5G acquisition where the performance of major
contracts will continue to benefit from ongoing price renegotiations,
reducing revenue leakage, waking away from substandard arrangemenits
angd re-aligning the cost base.
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Professional

Services

£m FY 18/19  FY 1718 Change. %
Revenue 131.4 1312 0.2
Operating profit before

other tems 5.6 56 [e14]
Operating morgm before

other items, % 43 43 00 ppt
Order book 869 1445 (400)
Perform:nce highlights

+ Divisional revenue performance was impacted by the exit
from two loss-making international contracts and renewed
focus on internal projects 1o support Mitie key accounts
The Waste Management business retained two significant
contracts and won the first phase of a significant contract
with NHS Improvement

Sustainability delivered a stable performance for the year
The International business focused on re-balancing its
portfolio Yowards higher-margin work

Operational performance

Whikt the Professional Services division showed a flat trading performance
year-on-year, it recorded a hign-profite win with NHS improvement for
Waste Management and it repositioned several of the other operating
units to focus on driving overall Mitie performance by supporting key
accounts. The benefits of these activities fall outside the division.

The Waste Management business retained two significant contracts during
the year with a pharmaceuticals company and the UK branch of a global
corsurner goods company. both for a further two years. Contract wins
during FY 18/19 induded Bidfood. 2 commercial real estate services
company and the first phase of a significart contract with NHS
improvement, won from the CCS Framework, which was mobilised

in October 2018,

The Sustanabiity business, indudirg Energy, had a slow start to the

year but gained momenturn on the back of project work. The Water
business was fully integrated during the year into the Sustainability business,
whuch now encompasses all key utilities. enabling it 1o build a broader
proposiion for our custormers.

The International business focused on re-balancing its portfofio towards
higher-margin work and, as a consequence, we proactively exited two
loss-making international contracts, At the same time, Mmesemreda
{acilities management and property services contract with Ahlsell -
hardwarereuiler-iommgeandmntahallftssmresinNomay
The order book dedined 40% as contract wins and renewals only partly
offset the deiivery of contracts.

Financial performance

Professional Services, exduding the International business. delivered
revenue growth in FY 18/19. However, the overall divisional perfarmance
was impacted by the reduction in revenue as we exited loss-making
contracts in the International business, Overall revenue for the division
was flat at £13).4m (FY 17/18: £131.2m). Waste grew strongly by 14%.
including the new INHS Improvement contract. Sustainability defivered

a stable performance for the year.

At the operating profit level, we benefited from exiting the loss-making
intermational cantracts, good cost discipine across the dansion and
re-balancing our activities to target higher-margin work. Profitability
was partly helkd back by a renswed focus on projects 1o support key
Mitie strategic accounts and investments into Connected Workspace,
Operating profit before other items was £5.6m (FY 17/18: £5.6m).



Outlook

Our Connected Workspace solutions are increasingly bemng focused

on montoring the critical emvironments of our largest clients, where

we provide maintenance and engineering solutions. Given the close link
between the dient solutions required within ocur Engineenng business,
and several elements of the Professional Services division, we are
embedding Connected Workspace, Occupier Services, international

and Sustainability under Engineering Services from April 2019. We see
this as an opportunity to enhance and IMpProve owr Core engntering
offering by using technology to menitor critical assets, thereby allowing

us to deliver a proactive service. We alio see the opportunity to improve
the quality of information that customers receive to manage their facilities
and their assets

As part of these changes, Waste Management is moving to Cleaning &
Errvironmental Services, and Risk Advisory Services s transferring nto
the Security division,

Cleaning &

Environmental

Services

im FY 1819 FY 1718 Change, %
Revenue 404.4 3B4.4 53
Operating profit before

cther ftems 175 196 (10.7)
Operating morgin before

other irems, % 43 51 (08pp
QOrder book 663.1 6563 1.0

Performance highlights

* The division delivered good revenue growthin a
highly-competitive market environment, however, profits
were negatively impacted by the dilutive effect of contracts
wWOn in prior years

On 30 September 2018, we sold the Mitie Pest Control
business unit to Rentokit Initial pic and entered into a
preferred supplier partnership covering a range of services

Operational performance

On 30 September 2018, we scid the Mrtie Pest Control business unit
to Rentokil Initial pic and emtered into a preferred supplier partnership
covering a range of services. These services will be provided as part

of an integrated facilities management offering to Mrtie's wide range of
custormers. The transaction enables us to continue to provide specialist
services to our dients whilst focusing on our core competencies.

Cleaning & Erwironmental Services (CES) delivered good revenue growth
from continuing operations in a highly-competitive market ermronment
where rermains a compelling option for clients. Margins stil,
rermain low. However, the division was negatively impacted by historical
contracts with low margin. Offsetting this were cost savings arising from
various delayering exercises to remove managerial roles.

In addition to our core Cleaning business, there are two significant
stand-alone business units within the CES division. Our Landscape

business is a specialist service where we enjoy a balanced mix of fixed

and pay-as-you-go work throughout the year. This ensures a broadly stable
performance with further upside during harsh winters. Mitie Healthcare
provides a multi-service offering looking after a broad portfolio of NHS
clients and has recently introduced a range of technology features to its
offer, inchuding dynamic performance dashboards, electronic meal ordering
and the trialling of an inteligent automated portering systam.

The division was successful in retaining a number of large clients as well
as winning new clients partly as a consequence of a much improved NPS
score, up 26 points year-on-year. The CES order book for continuing
operations was up 1% to £663.lm. We extended our services with
Epsom & St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust for deaning and with
Whitbread for fandscaping. We also won a five-year landscaping contract
with NHS/South Western Ambulance. Towards the end of FY 18/19, the
division was sucoessful in securing an extension 1o its 10-year partnership
with %1 George's University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust until 2030,
which is worth £150m and covers a range of services induding deaning,
patient catering and fadlities helpdesk services; the extension will also
indude waste management duties at one of the sites. At the same time,
we have also taken steps to reduce the margin drag of new contracts by
imtroducing tighter bidding discipline. As a consequence, growth in the near
term will be slower.

Financial performance

CES revenues for continuing operations grew by 5.3% to £4044m
(FY 17/18: £384.1m) driven by the impact of prior year contract wins.
However, operating profit for comtinuing operations before other iterms
was down 10.7% 10 £17.5m (FY (718" £19.6m) due to unfavourable
contract mix versus last year, only partly offset by savings from Project
Helix. Within the division, Healthcare grew strongly on the back of
the pror year wins, however, first-year moblisation factors wnpacted
profitabdity: ths has now been addressed. Landscapes delivered a
strong performance despite a particularly mild winter, with operating
profit protected by a well-balanced portiolio of work, which hedges
pay-as-you-go with fixed-price contracts.

Qutlook

Crver the next couple of years we expect steady growth n our Healthcare
and Landscapes businesses. Cleaning is not expected to grow as we work
on improving margins through disciphined bidding and re-balancing of the
contract base,

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 19

—
aQ
o
)
pu
o
=¥s
)
=
L]
-

vy

Governance

Financial statements



Operating review cortinued

Care &
Custody

£m FY 1819 FY I7/18  Change. %

Revenue 107.3 599 791

Operating profit before

other tems 39 19 1053

Operating morgin before

ather items, % 3.4 32 04 ppt
Order book 5064 670 | (1.0
Performance highlights

-

Excellent year following the successful mobisation and
commerncement of operations for the Detention & Escorting
Services (D&E) Home Office contract and a strong delivery
from existing contracts

* The division continues to expand its offering as &t doversifies
into adjacenit areas to complement its core capabiities

Opaerational parformance

The Care & Custody division had an excellant year, having almost
doubled in size on the back of the successful mobilisation and
commencerment of operations for the sizeable D&E contract won in
Decernber 2017. in addition, the division benefitad from strong delivery
of existing contracts with police forces. custody support and Forensic
Medical Examiner (FME) services. The D&E corttract. the largest ever
conttract for the division, reinforces our role as the largest supphier of
immigration detention services to the UK Government.

H &5 also akiowang us to expand and gain expertse in areas adjacent 1o
the core immigration detention and movement services. During the year,
we won an electronic tagging of offenders contract in Northern ireland.
This opportunity is an entry point into electronic monitoring within the
criminal justice systern in other parts of the UK, where we are able to
leverage Mitie Security’s MiTec facility. Other wins included the
Nottinghamshire FME services contract.

The order book dedlined 119% to £596.6m as the unwinding of long-term
contracts was only partially offset by cantract wins and renewals.

Following an apnouncement in November 2018 the Home Office

unexpectedly dosed Campsfield IRC, which was managed by Mitie,
The contract expiced in earky 2019,

Financial performanca

Care & Custody’s revenues grew by 79.1% to £107.3m (FY 17/18: £595m)
following the win and successful mobilisation of the DRE contract and
£00d growth from existing contracts. Operating profit before other items
inareased by 105.3% to £39m (FY 17/18: £1.9m) driven by performance of
the D&E contract and other contracts won in the prior year and includes
the expensing of a net £3.3m of mebilisation costs for the D&E contract.
Amounts related to these mobilisation activities were paid by the customer
and will be released from deferred income over the term of the contract.

Outlook

As the division grows its core competencies and expands into adjacent
services, the pipeline has expanded to indude large apportunities such as
the latest cyde of Prisoner Escort and Court Services contracts (PECSH).
These are long-term cyclical opporiunities with lengthy bidding lead times.
Qur clients are UK Govemment departments which are increasingly
evaluating bids against surety of delivery, sustainability and quakty of
outcomes, all of which play well to Care & Custody's proposition. In a
competitve market place, Care & Custody 15 well postianed to win
contracts because we are growing in scale, enjoy a solid reputation with
our public sector commissioners and dlients, and continue 1o expand cur
offering as we diversify into adjacent areas {such as custodial movernents)
o complement our core capabilities.
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Catering

£ro FY 15/19 FY 1218 Change. %
Revenue 136.1 137.1 on
Operating profit before

other items 5.2 56 fed)
Operating margin before

ather items, % 38 4 O3
Order book 265 347 (23.8)
Performance highlights

¢+ The division delivered broadly flat performance at the
revenue level and a dediine at the operating profit leve

* Growth in Gather & Gather was offset by weaker results
in external events and venues through Creativevents

* Gather & Gather's differentiated wellbeing and sustainability-
focused offer continues to gain traction in the market

Operational performance

Our Gather & Gather brand s a niche player in the catering sector
with a well-articulated and differantiated offer which continues 1o gan
traction. During FY 18/19, we saw further increases in the adoption of
our welbeing-led food contepts and tonsurner technology solutions.
We also launched The Gathered Table - a unique collaboration between
culinary, tchnotogy and sustainability experts to hélp fuel the continued
development of Gather & Gather’s innovative offer. The Gathered Table
defivers pop-ups, menu content, training and client appearances to amplify
Gather & Gather's influence on the heakh, producnvrtyandengapnent
of the customers we serve every day.

During the year; Gather & Gather akso qualified onto the London
University Purchasing Consortiurn (LUPC), the largest higher education
purchasing consortium in the UK, As a consequence, we won a significant
£10m 3+2-year contract with Edinburgh College — our first onthe
framework and our first in the further and higher education sector.

This provides an opportunity 1o transforrn the tatering experience

for students and staff by bringing a contemporary approach 10 food,
service and consumer technology.



Gather & Gather also secured other significant new wins in the year,
induding Dropbox. We were also successful n securing the opportunity to
roli out a new café concept across some of Primark's UK and Ireland retad
estate, The division akso won work for Yorkshire Building Society and a
major LUK retailer as part of new or expanded integrated FM contracts.

The secured order book for the division decined 23.6% to £26.5m.
The secured order book only includes fixed contract work, while ¢96%
of the dvisional revenue in FY 18/19 came from point-of-sale contracts
and variable work.

Financial performance

In FY 18/19, the Catering division delivered broadly flat revenue at

LI36.0m (FY i7/18: £137.1m) with improved momentum in H2 largely
offsetting the cortraction in HI. The core Gather & Gather workplace
offering grew revenue and operating profit whilst the overall divisional
performance was held back by weaker results n external events and
venues through Creativevents. Against an inflationary beckdrop, gross
profit was stable as we partially mitigated food price inflation, reduced

the use of consumables and disposables — reducing the overall cost to

the business and impraving our environmental footprint — and improved
labour management disopline. Overall, operating profit before other iterns
dedined by 7.1% to £5.2m (FY 17/18: £5.6m) due to weaker performance
in Creativevents.

Outlook

Whikt the catenng sector remains under pressure from food price

and labour inflation. the market offers opportunity for a well-respected
brand such as Gather & Gather. Clierts increasingly seek to enhance their
catering facikties as key contributors to their talent attraction and retention
strategies, by mprowving the customer experience, impraving wellbeing and
increasing sustainability. Gather & Gather has continued to demonstrate its
ability to anticipate and satsfy these demands as the industry changes.

In this context, we expect a good year from Caterng in FY 19/20 on the
back of the annualisation of significant recent wins with 90% of reverue
already secured. The Gather & Gather brand continuesto offer a
distinctrve quality alternative to the large corporate caterers who
dominate the rass market.

Corporate overheads

Corporate overheads represent the costs of running the Group function
and include costs for the commerdial, financial, marketing, lega! and HR
teams. Corporate overheads have ncreased as we conbinue to invest

in the foundations to defiver: 'The Exceptional. Every Day'. leadership

in the Connected Workspace: and accelerated growth. We also
reinstated certain stafl ncentive schemes in FY 18/19 after suspending
them for two years during the early stages of the Mitie turnaround.

The main investments were into our commercial capabilrty, upweighting
our marketing, and strengthening our technology underpin. Corporate
overheads increased by 74% to £33.4m (FY |7/18: £31.1m).

Public sector

Given the significant opportunities available in the public sector, we
have recently set up a new public sector centre of excellerce. This team
wilt be responsible for assisting in any public sector work across Mitie
as well as owning the overall relationship with the UK Government,
During the year, we qualified as a supplier on Phase | of the Crown
Commercial Service (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework, which will
allow departments, as well as Phase |, which will allow us to bid for
defercce fachities management as well as for security services and
technical secunty contracts. Qualfication as a supplier on the CCS
Framework has added large opportunities to our pipeline. We have
established a new public sector sales team who will coordinate bids
from across the dvisions into these key public sector accounts.

I
H H H Social Housing
Discontinued operations >0 e Py Crange
Below are the resutts of discontinued operations up to the date of disposal. Revenue 9.1 1508 o
Operat it befi
Pest Control ota nenng-:mf o 1.6 38 nm
£m FY 18/19  FY 1718 Change, - -
hange % Operating margin before
Revenue 119 223 nm other iterns, % .8 25 {07) ppt
Operating profit before
other iterns 24 16 nm In November 2018, the Group sold the Social Housing business to
Operating margin before Mears Group plc. The Social Housing business was previously part
ather items, % 20.2 1.7 85 ppt of the Property Managemnent division, together with the roofing and

On 30 September 2018, Mtie completed the sale of the entire issued
share capital of Mitie Pest Controt Limited to Rentokil Initial plc.

Mitie separately entered into a preferred supplier partnership with
Rentokil Initial ple, covering a range of services (including pest services)
to be provided as part of integrated facilities management offerings to
Mitie's wide range of customers

Pest Control reported revenues of £11.9m (FY 17/18: £22.3m) and
its operating profit before other items was £2.4m (FY 17/18, £2.6m).
Pest Control was previously part of the Cleaning & Environmental
Services division.

painting business units, which have been integrated into the Engineering
Services division.

The consideration comprised an inrial payment of £22.5m, which was
paid in cash at completion. No fair value was recognised on the further
contingent consideration of up to £12.5m, payable n cash after two
years post completion which is subject to the achievernent of certain
performance mitestones. The Group has retained liabilities for a number
of lepacy contracts in the Soocal Housing business.

In FY 18/19 the Social Housing business reported revenues of £89.Im
(F 17118 £150.8m) and operating profit before other items of £1.6m
(FY 17/18: £3.8m).
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Finance review

Finance review

Whilst we have accomplished a great deal during this second year of
our transformation, there remains more to do as we continue our
journey towards a One Mitie way of delivering cur products and
services. Following the centralisation of our core support functions last
year. the majority of the transactional activity for IT and Finance is now
being undertaken offshore by global process experts and we have
imtroduced new systems across the business, including recruitment
platforms for ternporary and permanent stafl.

Our revenues and profits are growing. both at a headiine level, and
also on an organic basis excluding the impact of M&A. We have started
to focus our business through the acquisition of VSG by our Security
division and the sale of our Pest Control and Social Housing businesses.

We have again made progress in reducing our leverage and
strengthening our balance sheet with further reductions in ofl-balarce
sheet finance, imgproved suppler payment per formance and proceeds
from our disposals programme. Going forward, we expect to continue
1o reduce leverage.

Following the transfer of our finance transactional processing to Genpact
{a business process outsourcing provider, operating out of Kokata, india)
in April 2018 we have now initiated a broader finance modernisation
programme. The initial Genpact move entailed a lift-and-shift approach
which caused issues in the first few months due 1o the muitiplicity of
processes used acrass Mitie. These issues have now been largely
resolved and we have turned our attantion to ongoing improvement

n the function through our finance modermisation programme. This is
forused on finance process simplification and standardisation, ¢leansing -
our master data and upgrading finance systems and toolks across the
business with a view 10 paying our suppliers quicker, reducing our
procassing costs through automation and further accelerating our
order-to-cash cydle.
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GG

We are continuing to
simplify our business and
de-lever our balance sheet.

Paul Woolf
Chief Financal Officer

Reported financial performance
Reported revenue and reported operating profit from continung
operations are set out below:

m FY 1819 FY 17/1B  Change X
Revenue 22214 20306 2]
Operating profit before cther items 832 832 &0
Other nems (38.0) (821) nm
Operating profit $0.2 B} nm

revenue from continuing operations was £2,2214m compared
with £2,030.6m in FY17/18. The Group reported an operating profit
before other fterns from continuing operations of £88.2m (FY 17/18:
£83.2m).

Reported balance sheet

£m FY I18/19  FY 1718 _ Change. {m

Goodwill and intangible assats 3445 3479 (34
Property, plant and equipment 290 338 (48)
Working capital balances @iy (198.2) (18.7)
Net debt (140.7) (1935) 528

Retirernent benefit kabikties (63.9) (56.8) 7.0)
Deferred tax iss 359 (i}
Other net (labiitiesMassets (03) (Al (74}
Total net labilitles (24) {240) 1.6

The Group is reporting net liabikties at 31 March 2019 of £12.4m
(FY 17/18: £24.0m). with an improvement in net debt, offset by a
larger negative working capital balance and an increase in retirement
benefit liabilities,



New accounting standards

The Group adopted IFRS 15, 'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ in FY 17/18, as previously described in the Annual
Report and Accounts 2018.

IFRS ¢

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ became effective for the Group

starting | April 2018 and replaced the requirements of |AS 39

‘Financiat instruments: recognition and measurement’. The main changes
introduced by the new standard are new classification and measurement
requirements for certain financial assets. a new Expected Credit Loss
{ECL) model for the imparment of financial assets, revisions to the
hedge accounting model, and amendments to disclosures The Group
elected, from | Apnl 2018, to continue to apply the hedge accounting
guidance in IAS 39,

With respect to loss allowances for trade receivables, IFRS 9 replaced
the 'mcurred loss’ model in LAS 39 with an ECL model. The Group.
from | April 2018, measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
accrued income at an amount equal 1o lifetirne expected credd losses
using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Group's historical experience and forward-fooking information.
The Group has determined that the transition to IFRS 9 resutted in an
additional loss allowance for trade receivables and accrued income as
at | April 2018 of £2.5m and gave rise 1o a tax credit of £04m, The
addrional loss allowance has been applied as an adustment to opening
retained earnings at | April 2018 and therefore, the prior year
comparative information s not restated.

Future accounting standards — IFRS 14

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ became eflective for the Group from | Aprnil 2019

and replaces the requirement of IAS (7 ‘Leases. An asset representing
the Group's right as a lessee to use a leased item, and a liability for
future lease payments, will be recognised for all leases, subjact to imited
exemplions for short-term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs
of leases will be recognised in the consolidated income statement spht
between depreciation of the lease asset and a finance charge on the
lease Kability, This is similar to the accounting for finance leases under
IAS 17. but substantively different to the accounting for operating leases
{under which no iease asset or lease lability was recognised, and rentals
payable were charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis).

As a result of adopting the new rules, for the year ending 31 March
2020, the Group expects net profit before tax to increase by between
£nil and £3rn. Operating profit is expected to increase by between
£24m and £29m as the operating lease rentals payable which were
previously induded in operating profit are excluded, with this increase
being offset by additional depreciation of between £22m and £24rm as the
right-of-use assets are depreciated. In addition, cperating cash flows are
expected to increase by between £24m and £29m as repayment of the
lease Kabiities is reclassified as cash used in financing actrvities and net
debt will ncrease by between £8m and £86m.

Alternative Performance Measures (APM)

The Group presents its key financial analysts as the results of continuing
operations before other Hems as the Directors believe this is most
useful for users of the financial staterments in helping to provide a
balanced view of, and relevant information on, the Group's financial
performance. Accordingly, the Group separately reports the
impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes,
acquisition and disposal costs (including the write-off and amortisation
of acquisition related intangible assets) as ‘cther items’. Read more on
pages 163 to I165.

Divisional breakdown of financial performance

Revenue, £fm FY 1B/1Y FY (718 Change, %
Engineering Services 905.7 8863 22
Security 536.5 4320 24.2
Professional Services 130.4 1312 02
Cleaning & Environmental Services 404.4 384.) 53
Care & Custody 1073 599 791
Catering 136.1 137.1 (a7
Total 2,221.4 20306 94

The Group's revenue increased in the year, from £2,030.6m to
£22214m. This was principally due to a significant contract win in

Care & Custody, the acquisrtion of V5G in Security and good underlying
growth in our Engineering Services strategic accounts and in Security
and Cleaning. Organic revenue growth was 5.5%.

Operating prafit before other tems. £m FY 18/1% FY 17/18  Charge. %

Engineering Services 58.7 54.) 85
Security 30.7 275 116
Professional Services 56 56 00
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 17.5 196 (10.7)
Care & Custody 19 19 105.3
Catening 52 55 7.0
Corporate centre (33.9) @Ly 7.4
Total 88.2 832 &0

Qperating profit before other items increased by 6.0% in the year from
£83.2m to £88.2m. reflecting good growth in strategic accounts and
projects in Engineering, the significant contract win in Care & Custody,
strong underlying growth in Security in addition to the impact of the
acquisition of V3G, partly offset by ongoing investrment in customer
service and the remstatement of staff incentives.

Other items

m FY 1811% FY 1718
Restructure costs (15.1) 47.0)
Acquisition and disposal related costs 8.7 8.4
Gain on bargain purchase of VSG 8.8 -
Pension scheme Section 75 debt {20.0) ~
Impairment of ganodwill - an
Other (3.0) 40
Total other items before tax (36.0) &)
Tax credit on ather items 74 100
Other items after tax {30.6) 721}

Disappomiingly. other items before tax remain high at a charge of
£38.0m, aiben significantly lower than last year (FY |7/18; £82.1m)
The main components are restructure costs and a provision for the
Section 75 debt on the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK)
Industry Pension Scheme {the Plumbing Scheme). The tax credit on
these other items was £74m (FY 17/18: £10.0m).

Tax contribution

The Group manages both direct and indirect taxes to ensure that it
pays the appropriate amount of tax in each country whilst respecting
the applicable tax legislation, where appropriate utilising any legislative
reliefs available. The strategy is reviewed regutarly and is endorsed by
the Board.
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Finance review continued

Mitie is a significant contributor of revenues to the UK Exchequer,
paying £529.3m in the year ended 31 March 2019 (FY 17/18: £481.2m).
This comprised £534.3m (FY [7/18; £492.8rn) of indirect taxes including
business rates, VAT and payroll taxes paid and collected less 2 £4.7m

(FY 17/18: £]1.6m) refund of UK corporation tax. The tax refund was
due to the utilisation of losses resulting from the accounting adjustments
in eartier years' accounts. As Mitie’s business is primarily based in the UK,
the effective tax rate should track the UK statutory tax rate.

There was a tax charge aof £6.4m (FY (718 £1.lm) on the profit before
1ax of £36.4m (FY 17/18: loss before tax £154m)

Discontinued operations

During the year, Mitie sold its Soaal Housing business to Mears Group pk,

with the sale completing on 30 November 2048. As a result. the business
is dassified as a discontinyed operation as at 3! March 2019. This
business formed part of the Property Management division. Following
this sale, the roofing and painting businesses of the former Property
Management division were integrated into the projects business of
Engineering Services.

In addition, Mitie dsposed of its Pest Control business (previously
included in the Cleaning & Enwvircnmental Services division) to Rentolal
Initial plc, with the sale completing on 30 September 2018. This is also
consequently classified as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2019.

Discontinued operations contributed a profit after tax before other
temns of £3.1m (FY 1718; £5.6m) Other nems before tax were a charge
of £6.0m (FY 17/18: £15.8m) and included a gain on disposal of Pest
Controt of £27.6m. a loss on disposal of the Soaal Heusing business of
£11.7m and a £20.5m charge for various remediation and rectification
habilities associated with the Social Housing business, The tax crednt on
other erms was £3.8m (FY 17/18: £0.7m).

Dividends

The full-year dridend is 4.0p per share (FY 17/18: 4.0p per share).
comprising an interim dividend of 1.33p per share and a final dvidend
recommended by the Board of 2 67p per share.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets of £344.5m (FY 17/18: £347.5m) were
heki on the balance sheet at 31 March 2019. The small reduction can
be explaned by a reduction in goodwill due to disposals of the Social
Housing and Pest Control businesses during the year, largely offset by
an inCrease in imangitie assats from the recognition of a customer
relationships intangible asset on the acquisition of V3G and additional
internally generated intangibie assets from software development 1o
enhance customer experience.

Cash flow

The Group continued to strengthen its balance sheet during the year,
assisted by two business disposals. Utilisation of non-recourse invoice
discounting was reduced slightly during the year, while supplier paymenit
performance was improved,

Overall cash infiow, before movernents in working capital
was £39.5m (FY 17/18: £67.2m). This includes defined benefit pension
contributions of €11.6m {FY 17/18: £4.7m). Cash generated from
operations during the year was £47.5m (FY 17/18: £79m used in
operations) induding a working capital inflow of £8.0m (FY 17/18:
outflow of L75.Im). The working capital movement is explained in
more detail below,

24 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

After paying interest of £i24m (FY I7/18: £13.5m) and receiving
corporation tax refunds of £4.7m (FY 17/18: £11.6m), net cash inflow
from operating activities was £32.8m (FY |7/18: cutflow of £3.8m}.
Capital expenditure reduced by £1.5m compared to the prior year to
£23.3m (FY [7/18; £24.8m), while the business generated £43.5m from
the proceeds of disposals net of acquisitions. Dividends of £14.4m were
paid in the year (FY |7/18: £4.8m).

Owverall this resulted in a reduction of the Group's net debt of £52.8m
{FY 1718 £46 3m increase) to £140.7m (FY (7/18: £193.5m).

Working capital

Working caprtal movements resulted in an inflow for the year of £8.0m,
The complex process of outsourcing transactional processing activities
in April 2018 caused trade and other receivable balances te increase,
resulting in a working capital outflow of £34.0m in the first half. The
situation has now been addressed. Working capital reduced by £42.0m
in the second half of the year.

Whilst the Group has been focused on improving its working capital
cycle it has also considered its responsibilities to the supply chain by being
fair in respect of paymenit perforrmance. Supplier paymenil terms were
reduced by eigmazysmrﬂ\efull year, with the improvernent taking
place skewed to the second half. This was partially achieved by unilaterally
reducing payment terms for 2 number of our suppliars meaning that they
have now reduced their need for supply chain finance. Consequently, the
use of the supply chain finance facility reduced by €25.Im. The working
capital outflow associeted with this reduction in payment terms was
offset by an mcrease in provisions of £25.5m. Thase provisions
predominantly relate to the now disposed Sodial Housing business.
Along with gther M&A related working capital batances, they are
expected to result in a cash outflow of c. £40m over the next two years.

The Group also marginally reduced its utlisation of non-recourse
customer invoice discounting by £3.lm to £73.2m (FY (718 £76.3m).
The nvoice discounting facilities are non-recourse and are theréfore
netted off against trade and other receivables within the balance sheet.

MNet debt

Net debt is the aggregation of the Group’s borrowings net of cash
in hand. The Group's net debt reduced by £52.8m to £140.7m as at

a1 March 2009 (FY 17/18: £193.5m). After a poor start to the year
following the outsourcing of finance transactional processing,

Q4 showed positive progress on our journey to reduce the volatility

of working capital Average daily net debt in Q4 was £3Im lower than
the same period last year with average daily borrowings of £278m

(Q4 17/18: £309m). This improved posrtion was largely achieved through
a combination of busness disposal proceeds and improved customer
cash collection performance, at the same time as paying our suppliers
more quickly. The net debt position benefited from disposal proceeds,
net of acquisitrons and acquisition and disposal related costs, of £40.9m.

Liquidity and covenants

As at 31 March 2019. the Group had £466.5m of commtted funding
arrangements (FY {7118; £466.5m). The £275m multi-cwrrency Revolung
Credit Facility (RCF) matures in july 2021. The £I51.5m of US Private
Placerment notes are spread over three maturities: Decermber 2009
£40.0m; December 2022 £121.5m; and December 2024 £30.0m.

Mitie’s two key covenant ratios are leverage (ratio of net debt to
covenant EBITDA 1o be no more than 3 times) and interest cover
(ratio of covenant EBITDA to net finance costs 10 be no less than

4 times). As at 31 March 2019, we were operating comfortably within
these ratios at 1.33x for leverage and 8.8x for interest cover.



The principal financial covenant ratios (leverage and interest cover)

for our committed funding arrangements are tested every six months,
Following an amendment agreed on 29 March 2019, all future covenant
caleulations will be on an IFRS 15 basis. The covenants continue to
exclude the future impact of IFRS 16.

As is usual for corporate facilities, the definition of key metrics in Mitie's
finance agreements s somewhat different to its reported numbers and
this is outlined in the table below This table shows that Miie remains
comfortably within its covenant requirements. In this instance, the prior
year comparatives are not provided, as while Mit:e had adopted IFRS {5
i FY 17/18, its covenant reporting at that time remaned on a pre-IFRS
15 basss, making comparison urthelpful. :

£m FY 18/19
Operating profit before ather items

~ continuing cperations 882

- disconinued operations 40
Totat 2.2
Add: depreciation & amortisation 208
Headfine EBITDA i13.0
Deduct: covenant adjustments . @.n
Consolidated EBITDA {a) 105.9
Full-year effect of acquisitions & disposals {3)
Adjusted consolidated EBITDA (b) 103.6
Net finance costs 138
Less: covenant adpustrents (L7
Consolidated net finance costs (<) 12.1
Interest cover (ratio of (a) to (<)
must exceed 4.0x) 8.8x
Net debt 1407
Impact of hedge accounting & uplrom fees (30
Consolidated total net borrowings (d) 137.7
Leverage (ratio of (d) to (b) must
not exceed 3.0x) 1.33x

Mitie’s intention is 10 consistently maintain adequate headroom
within its committed facilities. in addrion to its committed funding,
the Group utilises ancillary facilties, including invoice discounting off
£73.2m (FY 1718: £76.3m). The Group's trade creditors include
amounts due to UK suppliers which make use of supply chain finance
arranged by Mrue of £20.0m (FY 17/18: £45.1m).

Retirement benefit schemes

The net defined benefit pension liability at 31 March 2019 for the Mite
Group scheme was £614m (FY 17/18: £54.8m). The increase in the
deficit 1s principally due to a 20bps decrease in the discount rate driven
by reductions in corporate bond rates since 3f March 2018. The latest
valuation of the Mitie Group scheme as at 31 March 2017, indicated an
actuarial defict of £24.0m (31 March 2014 £6.0m), largely due to a fall in
discount rates since 2014, The Group has agreed a deficit recovery plan
with the Trustee for further payments totalling £64.8m in instalments.
until 31 March 2025.

The Group also makes contributions to customers’ defined benefit
pension schemas under Admitted Body arrangements as well as to other
arrangements in respect of certain employees who have transferred

1o the Group under TUPE. As at 31 March 2019, Mitie's net defined
pension liability in respect of these schemes, which it is committed to
funding, amourted to £2.4m (FY 17/18: £2.0m).

in addition, the Group ako participates in four industry multi-employer
defined benefit pension schemes, including the Piumbing Scheme.
These schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes,
either because the assets and liabilties cannot be apportioned among
employers or the amounts involved are not significant. Contributions to
these schemes for FY 19720 are expected to be approximately £0.Im.
The Group is exposed to Section 75 employer debts in respect of two
of these schemes. These labilities arystallise when the Group ceases

to have any active employees in the schemes, In the last few months,
the Group recerved a Section 75 demand in respect of the Piumbing
Scheme for £20.0m. This has been provided for in full

Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer
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Stakeholder engagement

Building constructive
relationships

Building constructive relationships
with our key stakeholders is
aritical to our business. We are
focused on long-term success
and creating sustainableé value

in the broadest sense.

Links to policies

Business areas considered 16 have the highest
risk of bribery and corruption are pubiic
procurement, pifts and hospitality. overseas
operations and oversight of subcontractors.
The risk is managed by several policies and
training courses which are available to
employees through the process repository
(BMS) and our new HR online Learring Hub.

The policies include:
* One code (code of conduct);
» Ethical business practice policy;

* Business expenses &
entertaining procedure; -

* Modern slavery;
» Whistleblowing process; and

*» Anti-bribery and
anti-corruption
e-learning module.
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Customers

Mitie works with private and public sector (the UK
Government) chents. Through understanding our
customers’ needs we can offer value-added,
innovative and cost effective solutions and

bulld enduring refationships.

BOO®

Shareholders, banks,
noteholders and media

Ve proactively engage with shareholders, banks,
noteholders and journalists on an ongoing basis.

BOO®

Employees

Mitie currently employs 52,500 employees.
Our success Is underpinned by the way
we lead and engage with our people.

DO®

Communities
and environment

Our employees touch the lives
of others every day.

®
Suppliers

We work closely with our suppliers
o ensure a responsible supply chain.




+ Ongoing management of customer relationships
by senior leaderstup.

* Government 15 a regulator and often a customer

for Mitie, so engagement ensures Mitie can help

in shaping new polides, regulations and standards;

INPS programme;

Customer experience programmes;

Partiopation in industry forums and events;

Customer communications;

Website and social media platforms; and

Meetings and briefings.

« s & & = &

Our strategic plitars

@

Customer: build market-leading positions in higher
growth segments and increase customer NPS

People: create a ‘Great Place to Work'
for our employees

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and
maintain cost discipline to remain competitive

&

» Customer satisfaction;

= Fimandal position:;

» Reputatcn and brand;

* Performance and efficiency;

+ Quality and value for money:

* Technology, reseanch and inneovation,
* Sustainabilty performance;

* Govemance and transparency;

* Vision and values;
* Sociat vatues: and
+ People and cutture,

Technology: embed technology into the heart
of our offering

+ B% revenue growth from top accounts
wFY 18/19;

+ Customer retenbon improved to 64%:

+ 250 customers surveyed in the NPS

survey,

NPS improved 22 points to +12; and

= Feedback from unsuccessful contract bids
is analysed to improve our win rates,

= Annual Report and Accourts;

+ Anrwal General Meeting

Investor and News & Insights sections of the corporate
website Mitie.com;

Results presentations and post-results roadshows,

Stock exchange announcemants and press releases;
‘Website and social media platforms: and

Regular and ad hoc enquiries, cafls, meetings and interviews.

. . s s

Finanaal performance;
Transformation and Project Helix;
Governance and transparency:
Sustainabwlity performance;
Peopte and culture;

Contracts, new products,
technology, innovation: and

* Reputational impact.

PO B

Bi-annual roadshows:
Corporate governance and Ervironment,
Sodial and Govermance (ESG)-focused
meetings with institutional investors;
+ CEO and divisional Managing

Dhrectors regularly give interviews to

a number of publfications;
+ Operating profit improved from £1.1m
nFY 171810 £50.2min FY 18/19; and
Total dvidend of 4.0p for FY 18/19.

HR core standards s¢t the frarnework for
employee engegement:

* Health, safety and ernvironment
performance;

Allinjury frequency rate
decreased 13.5%:

* Onboarding and induction training and Learning Hub; * Reputation; * Employee engagement increased to
*» Annual employee engagement survey; » Emplayee development; 45% from 33% in FY 17/18;
*+ "You Said, We Did’ carnpaign; « Talent pipeline and retention; * Supporting women in STEM roles;
+ MiNet, intermal communications and social media platforms; = Career opportunities; * Mrtie Exteptionals is a group of volurteers
» Townhall meetings and annual roadshow by + Diversity and inclusion: and 2tross the Group who act as ambassadors
senior management; + Remuneration and reward, for our values and behaviours; and
+ 'Grill Phil' channel to engage directly with the CEO; * Jennifer Duvalier, Non-Executrve Director,
+ “Back to the floor’ sessions for Group Leadership Team: has been designated to oversee Board
* Recognition and reward programmes; and engagement with the workforce,
+ Anrwal individual performance reviews.
+ Employee volurteering * Future talent pipeine; * Ready2?Work;
+ The Mitie Foundation; * Lol operational impact; and * Employer engagement days:
+ Mitie com and social media platforms; * Health, safety and » Think Differently programme:
* Local community evertts; and emvironment performance. + Schoal!, academy and callege events;
+ Electrc fleet vision, * Reduction in fuel and energy
consumption;
+ Raduction in carbon emissions: and
* Focus on key sodal value areas where
we can make a real contnbution.
* Supplier conferences and workshops; * Responsible procurement; = Mitie encourages suppliers to work
+ Global supplier portal and notices 1o suppliers; « Trust and ethcs; collaboratively to ensure continual
+ Mie.com; + Prompt payment code; and improverment in operations and to
+ Annual Report and Accounts; and + Operational improvement, deliver mutual benefit;
+ The Mitie Foundation. * Fhe trade creditor payment days

decreased from 5B days in FY 17/18

to 50 days in FY 18/19; and

We reduced the use of the supply
chain finance facility by £25m compared
o FY 17/18.
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Non-financial information statement

Non-financial
information statement

‘W continually look for ways to make Mitie a responsible business and
we actively engage with aur stakeholders to improve our impact. In FY
18/19. we commissionad a comprehensive summary of our social value
activity and how Mitie aligns with all 17 of the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals. We also became the first major UK FM prowvider

te launch an electric vehicle fleet, We introduced a range of initiatives to
further benefit our employees and made commitments in areas where
we can contribute real benefit to improve social value and erwironmental

In accordance with Sections 414CA and
414CB of the Companies Act 2006, which
outline requirements for non-financial
reporting, the table below is intended to
provide our stakeholders with the content

they need to understand our development,
performance, posttion and the impact of
our activities with regards to specified

non-financial matters,

iMpact within the communities we work in.

We use a variety of tools 10 track and measure our performance
against strategic objectives. Our business model encompasses the
non-financial value created for our stakeholders from our resources,
human capital, expertise and refationships. Through our business
model we deliver value for our smployess, suppliers. communities,
sharehokders and customers.

Reporting requirement Relevant pal cies! Annual Report page reference
Environmental Sustainabiey pobicy Stakeholder engagernent pages 26 t0 27
matters Procurement policy Socdial value pages 29 to 33
Employees One code: our code of conduct Chief Executive’s strategic review pages {1 to 13
Peaple policy Stakeholder engagement pages 26 to 27
Inclusion policy Qur people pages 34 to 37
Health and safety poficy Social value pages 29 to 33
Ethical business practice policy
Sustainability policy
Quality policy
Social matters Sustainability policy Chief Executive's strategic review pages 1! to 13

Social value pages 29 to 33
Stakeholder engagement pages 2610 27

Human rights

One code: our code of conduct

" Ethical business practice policy

Social value pages 29 to 33

Anti-bribery
and anti-corruption

One cotie: our code of conduct
Ethical business practice policy
E-learning module available for employees

through the process repository (BMS)
and Learning Hub .

Sodal value pages 29 10 33
Qur people pages 34 to 37
Stakeholder engagement pages 26 to 27

Business model

Business model pages 08 to 09

Non-financial KPis

KPls pages 14 to 15

Principal risks

Principal risks and uncertainties pages 38 to 46
Viabikty statement pages 47 to 48

Audit Committee report pages 62 to 67

The Board pages 59 to 60

| Policies, statements and codes are available 3t www.mitie.com

~
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Social value

Delivering
social value

People, products and services are integral to
the delivery of long-term sustainable solutions
both within Mitie and for our customers.

We have been reflecting on our sustainability performance over
the past decade, as well as looking forward to further reducing
our environmental impact and enhancing social vakse actvity

in the decade to come.

Key to this 1s our Sustainability Working Group and mternal
governance structure, which was realigned to better drive our strategy
and represent our diverse business in FY 1&/17, The Sustainability
Working Group is headed by |o Davis, Group HR Director and
execuytive sponsor for Sustainabikty. Two years on. the group now
includes a cross-functional cohort of subject matter experts, who
spedalise in a wide range of areas, including erwironmental mpact,
supply chain and people management.

In FY 19/20 the remit for the Sustainability Working Group will

be broadened to encompass the Group's sodial value agenda.

The Sustainability Working Group will report directly to the Board
to ensure that Mrtie’s sodial value and sustainability commitrnents
for 2030 have the appropriate resource and focus,

Social value in action

As a responsible corporate dtizen caring for both people and planet,
we commissioned a comprehensive summary of our social value activity
and how Mitie aligns with all 17 of the United Nations (UN) Sustarable
Development Goals {(SDGs).

In FY 19720 we will set our 2030 targets and focus on some key themes
where we feel Mitie can contribute real benefit to improve social value
and environmental impact within the communities it works in.

Senior members of the Executive
Leadership Team have individual
responsibility in five significant areas:

I Promoting skills
* and employment;

Supporting the growth of
* responsible regional businesses;

Creating healthier, safer and

* more rasilient communities;

* our environment; and

2
3
4 Protecting and improving
5

Promoting
* social innovation.

By FY 19/20, we pledge to...

Increase apprenticeships by over

1005

Reduce our emissions intensity by

35«

(from FY 09/10 base)

Increase the number of women
entering STEM roles by

20%

People through our
Ready2Work programme

450

Mitie's spend under our supplier
management framework to be

20+

Electric vehicles within our small
vans and car fleet should be at least

20

Become a Living Wage Foundation
Recognised Service Provider

Remove all consumer single use plastic
from our Gather & Gather business

Launch ‘Mitie Girls Can', a female-only
technical apprenticeship programme

to assist with encouraging more women
into STEM roles

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Soacial value continued

Promoting skills Supporting the growth of
« and employment « responsible regional businesses
How we ofigr to SDGs: Aligning to our strotegic pillors: How we align to SDGs: Aligning to our strotegic pilfors:
@ SOC
Apprenticeships Resource efficiency

We paid £4.7m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY 18/19

and currently have 660 apprentices working across our portfolic of
contracts. They are engaged on a range of technical apprenticestups

in engineering and catering. as wel as professional apprenticeships in IT.
HR and management development. All Mitie apprentices benefit from
permanent employment contracts and are fully embedded n business
activities to maximise learning.

Learning Hub

Our Cloud-based Learning Hub i an online portal through which
emplayees can access onhne development matena! relevant to their role,
mandatory training, induction, a weatth of self-selected development
material, as well s health and wellbeing modules. It means that all our
people have access to quality education 21 a tirme and place that suits
them.

Springboard

Gather & Gather Managing Director; Allister Richards, sits on the board
of Springboard UK, a subsidiary of the Springboard Charity, which seeis
to relieve poverty and unemployment by developing the potential of
disadvantaged young people. At our Springboard Takeover Days we give
cookery demonstrations and talks about the benefits of working in the
hospitality industry. we also mentor those showing particular promise.

704

of candidates receive a [ob offer
following Ready2Work programme

Mitie Foundation

The Mrtie Foundation has worked on a number of initiatives durng
FY 18/19, designed to create work ekperience opportunities to those
with barriers to employment.

The Ready2Work programme consists of a pre-placement week,
followed by seven weeks’ work experience. The programme provides
valuable work experience 10 the long-term unemployed. On average.
over 70% of candidates receive a job cffer at the end. In the past year
our six Ready2Work programmes helped arcund 60 long-term
unemployed people into work

We ako supported 12 employer engagement days: these workshops
benefited around 340 disadvantaged peaple with low self-canfidence,
a disabiity, refugee status, a crminal record or mental health issues.
As a rule, these events are attended on average by 16 employers and
30 candidates, who face a Dragon's Den/Apprentice-style challenge.

Qur Think Differently’ programme was developed 1o support
candidates with learning disabikties/neurodiversity and those who have
experienced mental ilness. In FY 18/19 we held six disability awareness
workshops which resulted in 24 candidates being offered four weeks’
wark placements with Mitie. our chients ar suppliers.
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‘We understand our business impacts the planet and its finite resources.
Improving our efficiency is therefore essenitial to creating a more
sustainable business,

Qur transformation strategy was designed to improve efficiency, with
an associated reduction in resources, through better technology and
innovation, and smarter processes. in FY 18/19 we achieved large paper
savings as we digitised records. The saving continues to increase due

to our investment in IT,

The move to regional office hubs and improving our people’s ability
to work remaotely also suppart waste reduction. Our use of Skype
for Business and Microsoft Teams has helped improve processes
and reduce business travel and associated emissions.

58.1%

reduction in total waste
generation since FY D910
(Mitie estate)

Reducing supply chain impact

It is vital to understand our supply chain impact in order to ensure

a responsible supply chain, In FY 18/1% we undertook a resource use
assessment by supplier category and spend. We will continue to work
to ensure all suppliers adhere to our Code of Conduct. inchuding our
Modern Siavery and Human Trafficking statement, Wae alsc vet al
suppliers to ensure that our Safety and Sustainability objectives and
our vetting standards are met.

120 supphers were invited to take part in our sodal auditing exercise
in FY 1819 The programme included collaborating with other

+ organisations, training some of our preferred suppliers, and writing

a joint case study with the Home Office to demonstrate best practice,

We will continue to work with preferred suppliers to measure impacts
and understand our Scope 3 (indirect) carbon emissions.

Some achlevements on our sustainability journey...
» We completed a Consumer Single Use Plastk (CSUP) plan and
will continue to work to elimmate our plasti footprint.

+ Gather & Gather was ona of the first major contract caterers in the
UK 1o announce the removal of plastic straws. tn May 2018, we sgned
up to #thelaststraw campaign and banned single-use plastic straws in
all 276 outlets. We have eliminated plastic water bottles at our Shard
offices and continue to run 'keep cup’ promotions. as wel as providing
ceramic cups and plates and metal autlery.

* Where apphcable, our Government contracts support the 25-year
ermronment plan target of eliminating all CSUP on their estate by
2020, Care & Custedy completed a CSUP elimination plan and has
stopped procurement of plastic products which could be easity
eliminated or substituted with non-plastic materials,

We actveved Gold Medal recognition from Ecovadss, putting our
organsation in the top 5% of those evaluated.

« Gather & Gather has retained the maximum three-star award from
the Sustainable Restaurant Assodiation in recognition of achievements
in Society, Environment and Sourcing.



Creating healthier, safer
« and more resilient communities

How we align to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

O

Mitie's people are our strength, which is why welibeng is a vital
component of our employee value propostion. In FY 18/19, we launched
a new wellbeing working group 1o utilise the expertise of our in-house
wellbeing and occupational heatth specialists.

As part of the annual Mental Health Awareness Week, in May 2018

we focused on stress in the workplace and how best to deal with it.
We have also conducted awareness initiatives on workplace
mindfulness and psychological wellbeing, nutriion and physical activity.
Thirteen mental health first aid workshops were also held across the
UK. As part of our learning and development transformation, we are
in the process of launching e-learning packages on wellbeing and career
development to ensure our people are equipped with the knowledge
and tools 1o support their future ambitions,

Through Gather & Gather, we support Public Health England's

nutrition initiatives, including chitdhood obesity and calorie. sugar and saft
reduction programmes. We aiso back Government recommendations
that free sugars should make up no more than 5% of energy intake sach
day, and limiting daily sakt intake to no more than 6g. We strive 10 assist
guests in achieving these healthy targets through recipe reformulation.
product sourcing and menu development.

Gather & Gather aiso runs the Lve Well scherne, designed to help
our customers employees and our colleagues make informed food
choices to support wellbeing, Using spedalised Saffron software,
detailed nutritional labels can be produced for each recipe. Live
Well-branded leaflets. cards and posters on topics such as poruon
control, snacking and eating five-a-day ensure people are updated
with relevant nutrition information.

Protecting and improving
+ Our environment

How we align to $DGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

-

Reducing carbon emissions

In 2010. we committed to reducing our carbon intensity by 35% by 2020.
We are proud to have achreved this target a year early. We did so by
rationalising our estate, reducing business travel and building occupancy
supported by remote working technology, and improving fleet efficiency.

We continue to procure 100% renewable energy and are working
towards the implementation of ISO 50001 Energy Management System.
In Y 18/19 the Carbon Trust scored Mitie 81% for carbon management,
the highest mark within the UK FM sector.

Mitie also completed a climate change risk assessment based on
guidance from Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
{TCFD). We are working to establish future carbon reduction ptans
and objectives. This includes setting a science-based target for carbon
reduction and working with key supply partners on innovations

and reduction technalogy.
O, o)
524 37%
reduction in emissions intensity

reduction in energy consumption
across Mitie estate since FY 09/10  since FY 09/10
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Social value continued

Managing fleet impact

13.9% 354

reduction in fuel reduction in fuel
consumption since consumption intensity
FY 09110 since FY 0910

Mitie's vehide operations account for over $0% of our total carbon
emissions. Through our fleet committee’s low carbion fleet strategy
we have reduced our total emissions footprint year-on-year.

Low carbon solutions

i FY 18/19, we signed up to the Clean Van Commitment and were
accredited as a Go Ukra Low company. Following successful trials
of hydrogen and electric vehicles, we committed to 20% of our
small vans and cars being fully electric by 2020.

Sometimes an EV is not the best commercial or operabional

decision. in which case we will source the most efficient diesel vehicle.
Through our great supplier relationships we are kept informed of market
progress, meaning we can take advantage of new technology wher it
becomes available. An example of this is the new model of the Vauxhall
Vivaro, which brings 15% CO, and fuel savings over the previous model.
Ower 1 seven-year period. the Vivaro's efficiency has improved by 262,
creating significant environmental and financial savings.

Restricting vehicle selection

Mitie vehicles typicaly operate on a rolling four-year contract

hire agreement from our strategic fleet partner, Lex Autolease.

By outsourcing fleet management, Mitie aims to take advantage

of the most efficient technology when it becomes available. Al of
our non-commercial vehicles are restricted by a self-imposed vehicles
emissions cap of 130g/km CO,. in 2018, our commercial vehicle models
were on average 10.5% more efficient in terms of carbon emissions
compared to 2014, and the phasing out process continues to ield
carbon and fuel savings. Qur Vauxhall Astra estate models generate
10% less emissions, and by changing Vauxhall Vivara vans from 2.0L
to L.6L engines. plus Adblue, stop/start technology to cut idiing.

we have restricted carbon emissions by 11% and NOx emissions

by 72% on average. ensuring compliance with EUROS emission
standards and significantly reducing fuel costs.
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Telematics

Al cur commercial vehicles are fitted with telematics. Non-conformance
to our driver expectations, such as speeding, 1dling or substandard
driving, is escalated accordingly. During 2019 we will continue to work

on better telematic information and data for faster real-ime reporting.

Permit to Drive

‘We launched Permii to Drive in August 2018 as part of our
commitment to road safety. driver wellbeing and ervironmental
protectiaon. Our annual e-learning awareness traning and assessment
scheme has seen 3,505 drivers compilete Permit 1o Drive so far.

‘We believe our driver awareness campaign and fleet risk reduction
plan will bring down the number of road traffic incidents and improve
fuel efficiency. The combined impact of our measures, including
technology, has seen a 13% reduction in vehidle accidents from

the previous year,

Mitie electric vehicle project

In the face of rising fuel costs, stricter emissions targets and a need

to address dimate change, fleet electrification marks a dramatic step
towards reducing the financial and environmental cost of dong business.
In December 2018, Mitie became the first major UK FM provider to
launch an electric vehicle (EV) fleet. By 2020, 20% (717) of our compact
vans and cars will be fully electric.

With a total fleet of 5,107 vehicles, Mitie's diesel cars, vans and trucks are
a familiar sight on UK roads. Due to significant developments in battery
technology and driving range, electric vehicles represent an exciting and
viable alternative to traditional cars and vans.

Mitie has ordered vehides with a long range and fast charging capabilities.
The Volkswagen e-Golf, Hyundai Kona, Renautt Zoe and Kia e-Niro will
join the Mitie flzet in coming months, alongside fully electric vans like

the Nissan eNV-200.

Charging infrastructure

Mitie 13 investing in appropriate charging infrastruciure 1o ensure
operational success of our electric vehicles, We are partnenng with
2 renowned charging supplier to install over 800 charging points
across the Mitie estate and at employee harnes. We will also build
on relationships with dients who have EVs in their fleet to offer
Mitie colleagues the opportunity to use their charging sites.

We look forward 1o supporting current and future customers

who share our passion for innovative and sustainable mobility.

Key benefits

Electric vehicles produce no CO; when they are being drven.
This is good for the planet and good for the packet — electric
vehides attract a fraction of the company car tax of their fossil
fuel counterparts. Electric vehicles are also less expensive to run
due to significantly reduced fuel costs, which means we can keep
operational costs to a minimum.

Training and telematics

Matie has developed a suite of traming courses for drivers of its electric
vehicles to ensure that they are used safely and with maxirnum efficiency.
By partnering with the manufacturer, we ¢an guarantee training is
relevant to the vehicle model at hand.

Tapping into clean water

Gather & Gather's supplier is LifeWater, a British brand that partners
with the charity DropADrop 1o fund dean water projects around the
globe. So far 14 pumps and wells have been built iIn needy communities
acrass India and Africa thanks to LifeWater purchases at Gather &
Gather The most recent was in the village of Bejiman, Mzimba District.
Malawi. Water sources funded through Gather & Gather currently
benelit over 18,000 people and ail feature a plaque bearing our catering
arm’s distinctive logo.



Promoting social
« innovation

How we olign to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pilfars:

Supporting women

The Mitie Foundation has supported the build of a mini-retail park
inside HMP Foston Hall, a women's prison in Derbyshire. Mitie
employees have worked in partnership with female prisoners, teaching
the skills of landscaping, groundworks, building, electrical, solar panels,
ranwater harvesting and work ethics. When the park is complete,
fermale prisoners will be trained to run their own micro-retall business,

supporting them with new skills and experience to build upon on release.

Partnership with Well Grounded

Gather & Gather has been working with social enterpnse Well
Grounded tc help a broad spectrum of young Londoners into work

as baristas. In FY 17/18, this induded a cohort of nine trainees. who
attended a full-time, four-week course at Well Grounded's East London
academy. Upon training completion, they completed four weeks' work
experience with Gather & Gather and successfully took up positions

as baristas post graduation.

Mitie continues 1o work with Well Grounded 10 assist those who
have struggled to find employment. The second cohort of 10'Well
Grounded barstas began traning in FY L8/19.

Volunteering days
In FY 18/19, 151 Mitie colleagues volunteered to assist in a range
of education and community events.

We coordinated 41 careers and World of Work days held in schools
and colleges. Mitie coleagues volunteer to assist, providing positive
business role models and giving students the skills and knowledge 10
raise their aspirations and broaden their career horizons. in addition to
this, Mitie Landscapes teams supported the annual Manne Conservation
Society Great British Beach Clean, volunteering to remove litter and
plastic from the UK shoreline; ard working with Keep Britain Tidy.

Mitie volunteers attended Saturday moming ktter picks to remove
rubbish from the countryside.
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Our people

Our promise
to our people

Mitie's people are our strength. As a major
UK employer with 52,500 colleagues, we
take our responsibility towards our people
seriously. improving our Employee Value
Proposition has been a key focus in FY 18/19
as we look to consclidate our position as
one of the UK's most dynamic, forward-
thinking and sustainable ™ companies.

We have been busy developing a range
of inttiatives to make Mitie a 'Great Place
to Work' and an employer of choice.

Upload survey

Listening to our people is as important as listening to our customers.
We launched the Upload survey in April 2018 to ask our people
how they feel about working at Mitie, and what improverments could
be made. This was followed by the "You Said, We Did’ campaign

1o demonstrate actions undertaken in response to feedback.

There were five key priority areas for improverment:

* Reward and recognition:

¢ Enabling infrastructure;

* Senior leadership:

» Employee brand; and

* Autonomy and empowermert.

OCur 2018 Upload survey proved a vital tool in benchmarking employee
engagement. We relaunched the survey in March 2019 to measure
progress. Following our improverents and ouwr “You Said, We Did’
campaign, we have seen employse engagement rise by 12%, In
addition 1o overall engagement increasing, we have seen perceptions
of leadership improve by +17% and employee brand improve by +12%.

Although we have made significant progress, the results show
that there are stil areas where we can improve. The resufts will
be followed by another You Said, We D’ campaign in 2019.
We plan to continue to measure engagement annually.

28% 45+ +12%

Upload Engagement Impravement in
response rate score engagement score
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‘You Said, We Did’ campaign
Listening to our people ied to the introduction of the following initiatives
in 2018:

Mitie Stars

The Mitie Stars schvemne is our way 1O reward and recognise those
who have gone above and beyond for our customers and collsagues.
By engaging and thanking our peaple, we are helpng to make Mitie

a great place to work. Qur colleagues up and down the country
proudly display their badges on their lanyards

Feel Good Fridays

Feel Good Fridays is 2 new recognition scheme that gives Mitie people
the opportunrty to thank and recognise colleagues for delivering the
exceptional, every day’. Nominations are made via MiNet and thank yous
are published online each Friday.

Long-service awards
‘We launched the long-service award scheme to celebrate and mark
one, five, 10, 20. 30, 40 and 50 year service milestones with Mitie.

Enhanced maternity pelicy

in October 2018, we introduced an enhanced maternity package for all
eligible salaried employees, with an additiona! ‘return to work bonus’
10 encourage mothers back after maternity leave. it demonstrates

our commitment to gender equality, our efiorts 10 raise the number
of women in the workfarce and our intention to become an employer
of choice for women in FM The package is detailed below.

* |0 weeks' pay at full pay inclusive of Statutory Maternity Pay (SMP) —
ncreasing from the previous allowance of statutory payments anly
(six weeks at 90% of average earnings):

= Afurther 29 weeks at the applicable SMP rate; and

+ A ‘return 10 work bonus’ equivalent to two weeks' full pay.

We are also introducing enhanced adoption pay arrangements for
those taking adoption leave. An adjustment to paternity provision
is due 1o be reviewed.

IT improvements

‘We have invested £1.5m in new faptops for our people. replaced

a significant number of mobile phones, and rolled out a company-wide
upgrade to Windows 10. This has enhanced our cyber security as weil
as increased connectivity and collaboration,

The Mitie Roadshow

Mitie's Executive Leader ship Tearn held nine Roadshows across five
locations in the UK, engaging over 2000 managers to update on our
transformation journey and listen 10 our people’s views,

Back to the floor

To increase visibility of our senior leadership team, we have refreshed
the popular ‘back to the floor’ initiative. Thes is an opportunity for
members of the Group Leadership Team (GLT) to get to grips with
what ow front-kne people experience every day. Each GLT member
s required to complete 1wo back to the fivor visits each year. Besiges
assisting with the work, they provide our cofleagues with support,
Sistening events. and recognise and celebrate veams defivering

“The Exceptional, Every Day"

These nitiatives represent a huge step forward as we seek to engage.
reward, recognise and retain our people.



Vision and values

Ermbedding our values into our DNA is enabling a successful
cuttural transformation,

During 2018, we articulated a new set of behaviours that

bring our values to life with help from our Mitie Exceptionals,

a group of values champions from every comer of our business.
They were nominated because they lve’ our new vision so we
asked themn to help us articulate how you deliver our new vision
of The Exceptional, Every Day, every day.

These behavicurs now form the basis of all our people policies
and processes, from recruitment and onboarding, through 10
performance reviews. The Uipload survey 2019 shows that 69%
of our respondents have a good understanding of cur values,

Gender pay gap report

Mrtie Group 15 required 1o publish data on two legal entities,

Mutie Limited and Mitie Property Services {UK) Limited, compared
to the 15 legal entities reported in 2017,

As at 5 April 2018, Mitie Group had a2 mean average gender pay gap of
13.8%, which was lower than the 16.0% gap reported as at 5 April 2017.
The mean bonus gap was 47.3%, which was considerably lower than the
71.0% reported in 2017,

We have made a number of significant changes 1o reduce the gap,
which include introducing a new people system to enable better
gender and job level reporting, enhancing our maternrty pay offering
and setting the strategic objecuve to ncrease the number of women

entering science, technology. engineering and mathematics (STEM) roles.

While cur gap has improved, we still have work to do in FY 19720,

V22% 1237

pay gap bonus gap

Since June 2017, we have welcomed four women to our Board of
Directors {(women: 4; men. 4). Women account for 11% of our
Executive Leadership Team (woman: ); men: 8) and 24% of our
Group Leadership Team (women: 18, men. 57} as at 3| March 2019.
Across Mitie Group female employees account for ¢ 32% of our
workforge (women: 16,800; men: 35,700).

We are One Mitie

We are buift on integrity and trust

We go the extra mile

Our diversity makes us stronger

* Our customer’s business, is our business

Living Wage Foundation

We want our people to feel valued and engapged and recognise

that wages play an important part in this. Our goal is to become a
Recognised Service Provider with the Living Wage Foundation by 2020,
and we are already paying employees working in Mitie offices the real
Living Wage,

Diversity and inclusion

At Mitie, we are very proud of our rich and diverse culture and
backgrounds — it creates ideas and insights. We believe everyone
should have opportunities to progress, whether that i through working
with amazing customers or inchividual learning and development.

This year, we were immensely proud to be recognised as |7* on the
Inclusive Top 50 UK Employers kst

Our employee networks help support our agenda by allowing
members to discuss issues affecting them with key decision makers,
assist in formulating new and reviewing existing policies and procedures,
provide a safe space for members to raise their concerns ina
confidential environment, and provide an opportunity for members

{0 update each other on local and natronal policy and developments,
Each network is sponsored by a member of the Executive Leadership
Team who is a role model for dversity and inclusion and champions

the agenda across the Group.
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Our people continued

Diversity networks
Mrtie's employee diversity networks are designed to support and
champion the following minority groups:

Enable network. disability awareness and support — sponsored by
Sirmon Venn, Chief Government & Strategy Officer.

Engender network, gender equality — sponsored by Carlo Alfoni,
Managing Director, Engineermng Secvices.

Generations network, age awareness — sponsored by Peter Dickinson,
General Counsel & Company Secretary.

Kaleidoscope network, ethnic mmorities, particularly BAME
{Black, Asizn and Minority Ethnic) ~ sponsored by Matthew Thompson,
Managing Director, Cleaning & Environmental Services.

Proud To Be network. LGBTQ awareness — sponsored
Allister Richards, Managing Director, Gather & Gather.

A new start for our new starters

First impressions last, and in FY 18/19 we overhauled the onboarding
process. The purpose 1s not only to provide an exciting introduction
to their new role at Mitie, but to highlight the opportunilies open to
colleagues in the UK's feading FM organisation, For the first time. we
have a ‘One Mitie’ approach to induction, providing clear and easily
accessible nformation on our cormpany structure, what we do, our
values, keadership, benefits, tools and systems. AN new starters are
required to complete a series of learning modules wa our e-learning
platform, the Learning Hub.

Temporary resourcing
Every year. Mitie engages with a significant number of suppliers to find
pecple required on a temporary basis. The opportunity to reduce cost
and compiexity was dear, and to this end in October 2018 we launched
atemporary resourcing team in colaboration with our recruitment
partner, Retinue. Working together, both tearms ranage the recruitment
of temporary staff across Mitie. The benefits are dear and numerous:
= Simple and fast process via a new technology platform — it takes
52 seconds to raise a Job. 64 seconds to book a fully-compliant
candidate and 18 seconds to approve a timesheet:
* Moabile app to use on-the-go, providing quick access to manage
requests and approve timesheets:
Ensures all suppliers are compliant with right to work and
pre-employment screening checks, providing a clear audst trail
for each worker;
» Consolidated invoicing reduces the time spent on administration,
aking us from 37,000 irvoices to one per week per business unit; and
* Reduced costs and corsistency of terms.

Permanent resourcing

The next step in our HR transformation is our permanent resourcing
solution, the Talent Hub, launched in earty 2019, We are creating an
industry-leading talent and resourcing function 1o attract, recruit,
develop and retain the best people at al! levels,

We will use the best technology in the market 1o mine new talent and
fill opportunities quickly. Our new Talent Hub platform also allows us to
grow our employer brand and raise awareness of internal career paths.

Apprenticeships

As a major UK employer, Mitie provides a wealth of apprenticeships
taking an ‘apprentice first' approach to training, We paid £4.7m into
the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY 18/19,

660 apprentices are working across our portfotio of contracts.

Gur apprenticeship strategy continués to evolve, and we are partnering
with a number of specialist providers to ensure we deliver lsarning that
meets the needs of the individual as well as the business. We have
ambitious plans to increase apprenticeships by over 100% by 2020,

We recognise the Government's target of 2.3% apprentices across

the workforce: a target we are set to exceed.
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Learning Hub

At the core of our Learning and Dievelopment transformation
is our Learning Hub. an online portal through which employees
can access onling developmerd, material refevant 10 thew role,
mandatory matenal, our induction, a wealth of seif-selected
development material, as well as health and wellbeing modules,
The Learning Hub is Cloud-based and can be accessed on any
device connacted to the internet, allowing colleagues to access
courses and content at a time and place that suits them. in the
five manths since launch in October 2018, Mitie colleagues
completed 40.000 Learning Hub courses. There are 2,500
instructor-led courses as well as 900 Learning Hub activities
avaifable, which range from informative documents and

infographics to eight-hour seminars

40,000 2,500 900
Learning Hub instructor-led Learning Hub
courses completed  courses activities available

Sales Academy

January 2019 marked the beginning of an exciting new era for Mitie's
Sales community: the launch of the Mitie Sales Academy. The first
cohort of 12 colleagues began a year-long apprenticeship that culminates
in Level Four sales certification from the Assodiation of Professional Sales
{APS). Apprenticeship Levy funding has enabled us to create our first
professional Acaderny which creates an Acaderny blueprint for other
professional apprenticeship programmes to be launched in 2019,

LiveSafe

We are constanitly striving to develop a 2ero-harm workplace.
Coordinated by Mive's Qualty, Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE)
team, our LiveSafe programme launched in December 2018 in order to
constantly improve Quality and HSE performance across the business.

LeveSafe s underpinned by a set of principles and rules that will help us
keep durselves, our colleagues and those affected by our operations safe.

Extensive supporting material is available on the designated LiveSafe
inmranet page, and a series of workshops has been rolled out across
the country.



People Hub

Launched in October 2018, the People Hybis a

one-stop-shop for all things related to the empicyee lifecyde.
It provides colleagues with 24/7 access to their personal
employee profies, allowing them to marage everything from
viewing payslips. to requesting and approving leave requests.
The People Hub 1s paperless and all new employees are
onboarded electronically with DocuSign. For the first

time at Mitie, cur organisational hierarchies are visible.

24/7

People Hub provides colleagues with
24/7 access to their personal profile

(6

Our promise to our people
is to create a place where
they can thrive and be their
best every day.

Jo Davis,
Group HR Director
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Awards

Mitie’s far-reaching efforts to improve our employee value
propositon have not gone unnoticed and we were the
only FM provider to be recogrised by two prestigious
awarding bodies:

* |7th place on the inclusive Top 50 UK Employers kst
the definitive round-up of UK organisations promoting
diversity and inclusion across disability, gender, age,
LGBT and race.

» Certified a 2019 Top Empioyer by the Top Employer
Institute Certification Programme. The award is made
to employers who lead the way in forward-thinking,
people-first HR practices,
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Employee involvement in Company performance

Mitie encourages the involvernent of employees in the Company’s
performance through the annual bonus scheme and various share
schemes. Durmg the year, nvitations to join the Comparry's Save As
You Earn share option plan were distributed to all eligible employees.
Employees can ako participate in a Share Incentive Plan.

Engaging with our people

As part of our ongoing commitment 1o improving employee
engagement, we have implemented a new employee communication
channel strategy which includes additional channels promoting direct
engagement between managers and their teams and encouraging regutar
employee feedback. These indude the monthly Mitie Download, our
team briefing document for managers, and weekly Recap news email.
These are supported by digrtal engagement channels including Yammer.

Qur aim is to ensure our employees are fully aware of and feel
supported through our transformation journey. We provide regular
updates on financial and economic factors affecting our company’s
performance, and the important role each employee plays in Mitie's
future success. Qur specific locus 1s on our front-bne workforce,
and we waill be implementing several new digital channels as we
continue to improve how we engage with our people.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Effective risk
Management

Our risk management approach
Qur approach to rsk management is
regularly reviewed by the Board and

Our risk management framework

Executive Leadership Team and continues Top down Bottom up

10 evolve in line with our business structure Strategic risk management Operstional risk management

and risk profile. We recognise that to have

an effective risk maragement framework, = Rewew exiernal environmert » Assess effectveness of

we need to develop appropriate risk . fisk management system

management culture, controls and supporting m * Report on prinapal risks

processes. Our 'One Mitie' Vision and Values } . Board/Audit and uncertainties

and Enterprise Risk Managernent policy have ‘ :‘d"’kw Committes

an important role to play in this regard. parameters

Further information can be found in the * Determrune strategc

Board report on pages 56 1o &1, action points

Risk management structure

Our risk management structure is designed 0

to ensure a consistent approach to the

dentification, assessment, monitoring and « identify principal risks + Consder completeness of

management of risks across the business. * Direct delivery of strategic identified risks and adequacy

This is set out in more detail below and actions in kne with risk appetite Executive of mitigating actons

in the Board report on pages 59 and 60. . Leadership + Consider sggregation of nsk

Areas of focus Expasure across

Cur focus during the year has been on

standardising and simplifying processes,

procedures and associated [T systemns

in the Group, including: e o

* Simpification of the * Execue strategic actions « Report current
SrgRnisational structure. * Report o0 key risk indicators and emerging nsks

* Clarity of reporting knes for « Identify, evaksate and it
central functions; Divisions op af': ! risks recorde gli ;

* IT. financiai and operational systerns in risk register

improverments across the business;
* Improvements to cyber security controls
across all systems and infrastructure;
* Deployment of an improved
incident recording. monrtoring and
reporting systerm;
Deployment of a new HR resourcing
systern across the Group:
Launch of online training and
development hub;
Simphified approach and consistent
process to both temporary and
parmanent recruitment;
Qutsourcing of back-office finance
transactional processes 10 Genpact; and
Outsourcing of application maintenance
IT processes to Wipro.
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New and emerging risks

We continuously monior our internal and external environment to
ensure that any new or emerging risk is identified in a timely manner
and responded to appropriately. As a result of the Principal Risks
assessment. new risks relating to structural complexity, market share
and inaident at dient site have been identified.

Risk management structure

Responsibilicy

Intermal Audit
Pt/

Board and Audit Committec

!

!

Exccutive Leadership Team Interoal Audit

mitie

@ = ©

Process

* Vision and Values statement and Code of Conduct approved by the Board and communicated
to employees ~ setting tone at the top.
* Review of the Group's strategy by the Board and the setting of risk appetrte for the Compary.

= The Board through the Audit Committee reviews the eflectiveness of the imternal control and
risk management framework on a yearly basis,

* The Board set the frequency and scope of its discussion on strategy. business model and risk

* The Board reviews prindpal risks on a yearly basis.

* The Audit Commrttee, which comprises independent Non-Executive Directors, reviews
internal audit reports on a regular basis

Mitie's focus is to operate a ‘three fines of defence’ model for effective risk management

and monitoring.

First line of defence

* Core set of business policies available on the Company's intranet — setting out
managerment’s expectations.

* Maintenance of risk registers at business unit and function level. Risk registers are also
maintained for major contracts.

Second line of defence

¢ Enterprise Risk Management policy is i place and available to employees.

* Emterprise Risk function is in place.

* QHSE compliance function operates to ensure adherence with the Company’s QHSE policies.

* Formation of audit and risk committees operating at business unit levels

Third line of defence

Internal Audit acts as a third line of defence.

* The Head of internal 2udit reports functionally to the Chair of the Audit Committee.

* The Internal Audit function targets its work at areas of the business where risk management
and internal controk are suspected of requinng improvernent. In addition, the Internal Audn
plan is linked with the Prindipat Risks to ensure adequate coverage of the risk areas.

* The in-house Internal Audit team uses Grant Thormton 1o support its work, where appropriate.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

ts
(D) Politicay A

@ Health, safety and environment 4 »
Polftical and economic uncertainty in the UK Failure to maintain approprately high standards
may adversely affact our customers' approach to i health, safety and environmental manapernert
outsourting decisions and our ability 1o plan and may result in harm to employees, dient staff or
irvest. The fack of clarity of the timing end inpact members of the public, and consequential fines
of Brexit adds further uncertainty and reputational damage.
(@ Structural complexity New risk (®) ncident at client site New risk
Mitie has historically operated using complex manual A high-profile incigent or accident oecurring at
processes and an organisational model with a high an FM dient site, or a location tperated by our
and misakigned cost base. rather than leveraging its Care & Custody business, as 2 result of negigent
technology. i we do nat address these issues we staff actons, incorsistent vetting or ineffective
will be unable to execute dient contracts efficently. training and communications for $taff, could
resulting in sub-optimal customer experiences and have a significant irnpact on our reputation and
erosion of sustained profitable growth. current and future contracts,
@ Cyber v @ Data management 4 »
Failure of critical infrastructure, including through a Ineffective processes and controls to manage our
eyber-attadk. could affect chent defivery operations data and customers’ data may result in a major
and cause critical delays in internal processes data breach leading to fines, remediation costs
@ Funding 4 ) Employees v
Inability to maintain access to and renew suitable Inability to recruit, retain and reward suitably
sources of funding due to a perceived risk in both our talented employees, as well as faflure to implement
business and the sector as a whole, may impact our appropriate development plans, simple consistent
abity to mantain profitable business performance. processes across the business and a One Mitie
approach, could negatively impact our operational
and financial performance.
@ Legal 4 »r @ Market sentiment A
Faiure to comply with applicable laws and Negative sentiment towards the outsourcing
regulstions may lead 1o fines, prosecution sector tould lead 1o fewer opportunities, inchxding
ang damage to our reputation. reduced IFM volumes, and challenges to our
business medel and profit growth,
(&) Market share New risk (2) Contract losses 4 >

A loss of market share through competitors
improving their offering and price. and potentially
targeting some of our key contracts, or from new
entrants depioying new business models, could have
a significant impact on our revenue and profit.

If we do not ensure that we produce bids for
contracts which are competitive, finangially viabte
and have a balanced approach to risk, and/or fail

1o defiver on our conract cbiigations, we may
damage our dient relationships, which may lead to
canceilation of contracts resulting in financial losses.
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Our strategic pillars Change in year
Customer: build market-leading positions in higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS
People: create a ‘Great Place to Work’ 4 P Sty
for our employees the same
Caost: strengthen our batance sheet and maintain A Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viability
of our offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties

(D Politicat

Political and economic uncercainty in the UK may adversely affect our
customers’ approach to autsourcing decisions and our abificy to plan
and invest. The lack of clariry of the timing and impact of Brexit adds
further uncertaincy.

Impacts on: Change in year:

HOB© 4

As the vast majority of Mitie's dient base is within the UK, we are
particularty exposed to uncertainties in the UK's pofitical and economic
landscape. A major aspect of this uncertainty continues 10 be the cnpgoing
negotiations for the UK to leave the European Union (Brexit), This may
result m changes to the regulatory framework, as well as restrictions in the
supply of labour and materials,

Political and economic factors akso influence the deasions taken by both public
and private sector dients on which activities should be outsourced and the
amount of discretionary spend avaifable for outsourding activities This may
result in fewer opportunities for Mriie and have a consequential negative
impact on our finandal performance.

It is important that we are able to offer competitive, innovative and high-quality
solutions to dients, and demonstrate the value we bring to them. We also need
to ensure that we carefully monrtor and idemtify the most appropriate
opportunities in both the public and private sectors.

Controls and mitigating actions

Future plans

* Maintain blend of public and * Ensure the focus on strategic

private sector clents AcCOUMLS penerates growth
* Appointment to the Crown opportunites
Commerdal Services Framework * Mantain dialogue with key public
* Appoirtment of Chief and private sector dhernts to
Government & Strategy demonstrate the value we offer
Officer and team * Leverage the most appropriate
* Regubar reviews of sales opportunities through the Crown
opportunities by all business Commercdial Services Framework
sales leaders o increase public sector contracts
* Dedicated accourt managers
to focus on ntegrated
strategic accounts
* Focus on high-margin opportunities
with growth potential

* Dnwve for greater customer
retention through improvements
in the vatue we defiver

* Development of new and
innovative service offerings

@ Structural complexity

Mitie has historically operated using complex manual processes and an
organisational model with a high and misaligned cost base, rather than
leveraging its technology. if we do not address these Issues we will be
unable to execute client contracts efficiently, resulting in sub-optimal
customer experiences and erosion of sustained profitable growth.

Impacts on: Change in year:

BOD@@ Q) rewnsk

Mitie’s business and orgamsational model has evohved with a large number
of unnecessary complexities, induding multipie and inconsistent processes,
isolated IT systems, and unclear organisational and reporting structures,
These complexities have required a disproportionately high cost base in
order to maintain them.

The business transformation project {Project Helx), and a number of cther
improvement initiatives over the past two years, have made substantial
progress, but further work s required to simplify and standardise these
undertying processes and to ensure that we are able to deliver acceptable
margins and grawth from our business.

We are continuing to address internal costs by leveraging the opportunities
from outsourcing back-office functions, mdluding in Finance and TT, In addition,
we are investing in IT systems improvements across the business, notably

in Engineering Services, HR and Finance, We will ako continue to simphly
end-to-end processes and the structure of the organisation.

Mitie is now embracing technology to defiver a digital experience to both
internal and external users, If we fail to do this we could be unable to deliver
profitatle growth, our opportunities to invest in new technology and offenngs
could be limited and our bids coukd be uncompetitive.

* Successful delivery of Project * Successfully complete

Hehx and other improverment improvernent projects for IT
and simpification intiatves systems in Engineering Services
* T, financial and operational systems ¢ A comprehensive review of
improvements across the business end-to-end processes across the
*+ Qwsourting of back-office business to improve effidency
functions in T and Finance and kscommmd "IB.dremuve unmy
» Smplification of the business tas duce costs.
*» Clarification of accountabilities mﬁ?’m who s resparsible

and responsibilities, particularly

for strategic accounts * Legal entity rationafisation
* Focus on sourcing and + Finance modemisation programme
procurement processes to + Commence a further
simplify supplier base and transformational review
leverage cost opportunities to smpiify the business
* Use of digital technologies for
customers and employees
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

@ P v * Chear strategy to invest in * Upgrade to the Engineering
yhe 1echnology improvements, both in Services operational and financial

Fallure of critical infrastructure, including through a cyber-attack, internal systerms and dient offering SYSLEMS 10 IMProve security

could aHect client dellvery operadons and cause oritical delays * Outsourcing of routine IT and efficiency

in internal processes. operations to partner ofganisiton = Look for opporiunibes to

m on: Ch i . ’ to improve resihence and controls leverage the outsource partner’s
pacts ange In year * Upgrades to legacy systems to development capabifities

@ v reduce complexity and improve

rmanagement information

The reliability and effectiveness of our technalogy is vitally important to * Rationalisation of ERP systems

ensure that we ¢an meel our contract obkgations, deliver improvemerns and infrastructure

in operational processes, generate meaningful management information * Leveraging new technologies

and help dakver value Tor our thents. In many cases thents rely upoh us such as Al and big data

10 look after their critical data and infrastructure, * Martenance and testing of

We are continuing to iwest in technology to simplify our business, as well R Ieﬁecuve dsastet:mcoveryplans

3 improwving resiience and security to protect against systems failure or a Impravements “WM

cyber-attack. ODuring the year we have commenced an upgrade programme wm'nhdr‘mmm

10 ensure we meet the Government's Cyber Essentials Plus requirements.
This has involved a substantial programme 10 upgrade and replace computers * Dedicated IS PMO 10 ensure

within the organisation. We have also delivered a number of system alpr'qedswihm!Selement
improvements in the year inchuding People Hub, & standardisad and are managed effectively and
integrated HR soksion. risks ane minimised

‘We have alo outsourced our routine IT operations to a partner which will
help improve effidency and eflectiveness and buikd in greater resilience 1o
failures. This also alows us to foaus on higher value technology developments
for dients, We will continue to invest in systems and technology to replace
the legacy estate, automate processes and ensure the smocth and eflicent
operation of our business. It is also important to have effective business
continuity and disaster recovery plans, and this is another key focus.

@ Fundi * Regular forecasting of cash + Contiue 10 work with a
unding flow and net debt range of finandal institutions to
Inabilicy to maintain access to and renew suitable sources of funding * Thorough focus on working capital ensure we can access affordable
due to a perceived risk in both our business and the sector as a whole, cycles with a dear set of KPk finance sources
may impact our ability to maintain profitable business performance. « Maimenance of strong barking, * Focus on working capital
Impacts on: Change in year: debt and equrty relgtionships processes to reduce cycle
* Strong focus on and monitoring times and average net debt
@@ ‘ } of cash collection °Imprweaccruedincomeand
bulling processes

* Regular reviews of paymert terms
in order to be able to meet our finanaal commitments, we need to have access with customens and supply chain
1o a nurnber of affordable sources of finance. Cur core dept fapkuies ndude
a revolving credit fadility and private placement loan notes. We need to have
suffidend fiquicity to be able 1o pay supplers and staff, whikst also investing in
the butiness and ensuring that we have enough options for profitable growth.

In the past few years there has been significant concern about the financial
strength and viability of companies operating in cur sector. This has continued
during the year with a number of high-profile incidents occurring relating to
our competitors. Any actual or perceived weaknesses in our financial position
could restrict our access to finance or attract high imerest rates.

We have been focused on maintaining strong financial discphne in the
management of our working capital and investment decisions and on
minimising our levels of debt. This has induded working with cur back-office
process oulscurce partner 10 improve processes and efficiency.
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Qur strategic pillars Change In year
Customer: build market-leading positions in higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS
People: create a ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P Stayed
for our employees the same
Cost: strengthen cur balance sheet and maintain A Increased
cost disclpline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology inta the heart Viabilicy
of our offeringour offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties

@ Legal

Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may lead to fines,
prosecution and damage to our reputation.

Impacts on: Change in year:

YINO) «»

Qur business is subject to a wide range of laws and regulations. Given
the nature of our business, these inciude, amongst others, heatth & safety.
employrment, anti-bribery and corruption and statutory wage requirements.

Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could resultin
prosecution andfor significant fines, and, from a reputational perspective.
could damage our refationships with dients and our ability to win work.
We may also face debarment from public sector contracts.

We continue to ensure that we have effective governance and oversight

of our compliance with applicable laws and regulations and continuously
assess the impact of changes in relevant legislation. it is also important that
we provide appropriate communications and training for our people to
ensure that they are aware of their obligations, and that regular menitonng
of compliance is undertaken.

* Regular monitonng of legal * introduction of further mandatory
and regulatory changes by training Courses 1o relevant
Group Functions indluding employees via our Learming Hub

= Ongoing review of BMS 10 update
policies and procedures

and Ernironment, (QHSE)

Code of Conduct communicated

to all employees

Group-wide policies updated for

changes to laws and regulations and

maintained in the cnline Business

Management System {BM5}

Regular and thorough external

regulatory audits

Training and awareness material

communicated to employees

and monitoring of completion

performed

* Externally hosted whistleblowing
service avalable

@ Market share

A loss of market share through competitors improving their offering and
price, and potentially targeting some of our key contracts, or from new
entrancs deploying new business models, could have a significant impact
on our revenue and profit.

Impacts on:

1SN0,

In the recent past, many companies in our sector have experienced finangial
and operational difficuities, and as a resull there has been a sirong focus on
strategy, costs, investments and business structure. For those organisations
that have successfully addressed their issues there may be cpportunities

10 increase market share through more competitive or innavative offerings,
which may impact our ability to retain current clients and win future business

Change in year:

New risk

Addttionally, there is akso the possibility of a new entrant disrupting the market
by deploying a new low- cost business model for FM, potentiaily through

a technology platform, which would challenge the structure and approach

of the existing arganisations, including Mitie. This could also potentally
significantly erode our market share and decrease new opporiunities,

It 15 important that we continue to prioritise the transformation of our
business, particularty through improving processes and simplifying business
structure, focusing on minimising costs and developing innovative solutions
for clients, such as the Connected Workspace, In this way, we will be able
to defiver genuing value for current and future clients,

* Continued fotus on simplifyng
business processes and structure

* irvestment in new and innovative
technologies — incuding
Connected Workspace

* Focus on dient relationships
and Net PFromoter Score

* Regular reviews of sales
opportunities arising

* Replacing and upgrading
operatonal and financial systems

* Standard processes and tools
for sales and CRM teams.

* Deployment of strategic account
managers for key comtracts

* Cornplete Project Forte
launched to improve IT
systems in Engineering Services
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertainties

Controls and miitigating actions

Future plans

* A comprehensive QIHSE * Buikd an tha principles of LaeSafe
(@ Health, safety and environment strategy has been developed and ensure regulér communiCation
F;lltn w0 malnuln appropriately high standards in heatch, safecy and « Major cultural HSE programme, and engagement with stafl
envir may result in harm 1o employees, dlient sl LiveSafe, launched in the year, with  * Transition from OHSAS heath
or members of the public, and q | fines and rep | damage. dear rules and training for stafl mssar:;ymnumgementsyswn
mpacts oh: Change in year: * Reguiar rraining and tol !
! on e i ye communication delivered
@ @ 4 > throughou the compary in

accordance with LiveSafe prinaples
As 4 company we are committed to maintaining the highest levels of heath, * Centified HAS management
safety and enviconmental (HSE) standards. The services we defiver could systerns 1o OHSAS 18001
potenually present an increased risk of a health and safety incident involving evironmental systern
our employees, dient stafl or even members of the public, Our activities also 1o I5G14001
carry a sk of damage 10 the environment, Itis esserttial that we manage these Deployrment of an improved
risks in a highly difgem and effective manner. mdmtm
At alt levels in the organisation, safety is our number ong priority and we * Ragular HSE reviews conducted
enwre that all risks are properly assessed and managed. our employees a1 Givisionah and Group level
are trained. our expectations of how they perform their work are dearly s Clear and standardised KPls
expilained, and acherence to heglth and safety standards i regularly monitored. y © itor
\f swe da not manage these risks appropriately, it could lead to harm to :nd'"m. ed to monitor progress
incinduals and damage 10 the ervironment, and consequently prosecution, 3 ""p'%';"se‘""’ it
fin ifh r n * Targeted procedural
es and significant damage to our reputatio Y ced

* - A i
@ Incident at client site w, thin ;mmdm Ope m.“ ons 2 :ﬁ:&mﬁ :,3“ ;.E:f
A high-profile incident or accident occurring at an FM client site, Procedures (SOP), bespoke response plans
or:loc:tionopenudhvourCare&Custodyb\ulneu.utmuh 10 eath sie for Care & * Transition from OHSAS health
of negligent seaff neti or ineffective training Custody business and safety management system
and communications for staff, could have a sl;nlﬁcm: Impact on * Contingency plans are regularly 10 1045001t
our reputation and current and future tontracts. tasted and compliance to

: . SOPs regularty audived for

Impacts on: Change in year: Care & G sites

+ Health and safety strategy —
@ @ @ New risk U-{t&hprmhmdmd
We deliver services to dients at a number of important and high-profile sites .tmramorwmw
across the country. These include locations with substantiat historical and Certified H&S_‘m‘
cultural significance and high level of scrutiny by gavernmental bodies, media N‘Y;E'“ o
organisations and the general public. if a major incident oCcurred at one Isoe"“l““m“"‘"ﬂ'm
of these sites, whether through the negligent or defiberate act of Mitie © '_ .
employees, it could attract a krge amount of publicity and have a highly ¢ Comprehensive trainng plans
negative IMpact on our reputation. it would also be likely to Emit our on safety. security and risks
chances of vanning future contracts and patentially retaining curcent clients. * Regular updstes art: unpbyeﬁmaj

saf

in order 10 make sure we manage this risk. it is important that we have mmmm operat
appropriate polices and processes in place, which dearly set out the * interral and exteraal
expectations of our employees. We also need to communicate these comphiance audkts
efiectively and defiver regular and refevant trainng to . addition, v Eflects y
itis important that we ensure our employees have been appropriately Ilbcu-e:mmpfm
vetted to determine wha i efigible to work on particular contracts and sites, “f'wd::“‘d"“d“"
so that we are able to rest the specific requirements of our chents. of exch " and ste

¢ Tested business comtinuity and
It is also necessary to have effectve business continutty plans in place for crisis response
our operations, so that we can continue to defiver a high-quality service + Standardised and comprehensive
to chients in the event of a disruptive incident. Shoukd an incident oceur, a investigation procese

comprehensive and tested crisis response plan is essential to ensure that
we would be able 1o minimise the impact on our employees avd clients,
the publk and the environment.
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Our strategic pillars Change in year
) Customer: build market-leading posidons In higher v Decreased
growth segments and Increase customer NPS
People: create 2 ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P Stayed
for our employees the same
Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A  Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viability
of our offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions M

@ Data management

ineffective processes and controls to manage our data and customers’
data may result in a major data breach leading to fines, remediation costs
and reputational damage.

Impacts on: Change in year:

BB «»

One of the most important assets we have is the data we hokd, which includes
information concerning our business operations. employees. dients, suppliers
ard others, This information 1s vital to enable us to run our business efficiently
and profitably. We need to maintain adequate controk to mitigate risks
associated with loss or theft of data which would damage our reputation

with dients and potentially expose us to significant fines from regulators.

In order to ensure nfidential and sensitive data is processed, transmitted
and stored securely, we have implemented formal technical and procedurat
controfs. These controls are deployed agrass our [T systems and are subject
to regular review and testing. Eflective information security procedures help
to prevent or minimise the impact of any breaches of security.

We have an ongoing programme of work to ensure we are compliant with
the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

+ Centralised information security * Regular reviews of information

team in place managemert to ensure

* Information Security Management compliance with GDPR
System (ISMS) in place and * Expansion of dedicated data
certified to ISONEC27001:2013 privacy team
for key information assets * Ensure seamless transition to

* IT security controk in place to IT outsource partner with data
proactively test, monitor, identify standards maintaned
and respond to cyber threats * Working towards achieving

+ Information security oyber essential plus accreditation
requirements established on
all new projects. including
outsourcing of routine aperations

* Cyber essental accreditation
* Cyber insurance palicy

Employees

Inzbility to recruit, retain and reward suitably talented employees, as
well as failure to implement appropriate developmente plans, simple
consistent processes across the business and a One Mitie approach,
could negatively impact our operational and financial performance.

Impacts on: Change in year:

VIO, v

tt is important for the success of our business that we continue to recruit,
devetop, motvate and retain talented individuals. If we are unable to do so
there would be an adverse impact an the profitable and successful delivery
of our contracts, and we would be limited in our ability to win future
opportunties and grow the business.

We need 1o have the right level of experience and expertise available and be
able to develop a cutture of high standards of achievement, cornpliance to the
Mitie vatues and good governance and control. In order to achiave this, we also
need to provide development opportunities for our employees to enable them
to reach their full potential.

In addition, it is important that we maintain a stability and consistency m our
senior leadership team to provide high-quality direction for the business and
deliver our strategy.

An important elemenit of the culture 1s ensuring that we have 2 One Mrie
way of operating and collaborate effectively across the business, This will
give greater consistenty in processes and controk and allow for seamless
movement of stafl across the Group,

"+ Deployment of new HR resourong  * Further enhance online HR

systern across the Group and training systems
* Launch of onkne training and * Launch of new induction
development hub, People Hub programme, rmandatory for
* Simplified approach and consistent new starters
process to both temporary and * Salary benchmarking
permanent recruitment * New competency framework

* Regular communications from
leadership team — including ELT
country-wide roadshow

* Specific plans developed to address
results of emplayse survey

+ Competitive rernuneration,
termns and conditions

* Training and development
programmes for senior leadershup

* Reguiar employee offers

* Developed talent
dentification, management
and development plans

* Succession plans are in place
for critical roles, especially for
the senvor leadership team

* Clear performance
managernent framework

1o be developed
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertainties

@ Market sentiment

Negative sentiment towards the outsourcing sector could Jead to fewer
opportunides, including reduced IFM volumes, and challenges to our
business model and profit growth,

Impacts on: Change in year:

BOBDO© 4

In the past two years, the activities and results of a number of companies
operabing in our sector have generated significant negative publicity. which
potentially affects Mitie's reputation and raises concerns with current and
future clients. This has included the fiquidation of Carillion and the
adminstration of Interserve. The viability of cutsourced facilities management
companies to deliver operational performance 1o sufficently high standards,
whilst also managing costs appropriately, has been the subject of much scrutiny.

In particular, the opportunities for integrated faclities management contracts
may decrease in both the public and private sector. as organisations look to
spread the risk of these services amongst a greater number of providers.

In order to address these concerns, it is important that we are abie to
consistently defiver a high-quality and valued service on our existing contracts
and demonstrate this 10 potential new dients, We need 10 ensure that we
develop and maintain a business model and offering which can successfully
deliver profitable growth and exploit new opportunities as they arise, whilst  *
adapting o the needs of the market.

Future plans

Contrals and nutigating actions

* Incision and mamntenance
on Crown Commercial
Service Framework

* Dedicated managernent
of strategic accounts

* Regular financial
performance neviews

* Focus on improving Net
Promoter Score

* Strong reltionships with
financial nstituti

* Process and [T systems
improvement programmes

* Long-term contract portiolio
and spread of dlient base

@ Contract losses

If we do not ensure that we produce bids for contracts which are
comperitive, financially viable and have 3 balanced approach to risk,
and/or fall to deliver on our contract obligations, we may damage our
client relacionships, which may lead to cancelation of contracts resulting
in financial losses.

impacts on: Change in year:

PQO@®® «»

In order to deiiver consistent and profitable growth, it is impartant that
we continue to bid for and secure contracts at acceptable margins, It is ako
essential that we successfully mobilise and delver our contracts. In order
1o achieve this, we must monitor and control costs, deliver on the contract
obligations and meet dient expectations.

We need to devalop competitive bids, which provide a fair batance of risk and
reward that is property reflected within the contract terms and conditions.
Our offering needs to be compelling and mnovatve and provide a balance
between cost and margin pressure, which is a key feature of the sector in
which we operate. It is also important to make sure we have the skills and
rescurces available to execute on our contracts successfully.

Once we have mobifised the contracts. we need 1o ronitor a relevant set

of Key Performance Indicators (KPls) to ensure that we are defivering on

the obligations to which we have agreed and communicating with dients 10
understand of they are satisfied with aur performance. It is dlsa important to
assess and agree any variations to the contract services and terms and amend
the KPis accordingly.

W we are unable to deliver the services as agreed in our contracts, it couid
negatively impact our customer refationships and reputation and lead to

legal disputes and termination of contracts. This could then lead to potentially
{ailing 1o retain existing thents and secure new contracts, with a detrimental
eflect on our linandal performance.

*+ Bid Committee approval = Post sales review of loss-malking

for complex bids contracts to ensure we identify
= Detaiied contracting guidelines and apply lessons learned for
developed and rolled out our future bids '

* Clear delegated autharities register

* New Sales and CRM teams in place

* Use of specialist mobilisation teams
for complex contracts

* Strategic account management

* Risk registers in place for
farge-scale contracts

* KPUSLA formal reviews
with customers

* improved CRM capabiltties with
active refztionship management

* Focus on Net Promoter Score

* Launch of Sales Acadery 1o
train sales teams .

* Appointment of Chief
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The Group's strategic report (pages | 1o 48) contains nformation on the Group's strategy (pages |1 1o 13),
business model (pages 8 and 2} and market review {page 10). as well as principal risks and uncertainties
(pages 38 to 46). The key factors affecting the Group's prospects are:

+ Mitie is the leading UK FM business with 4% of the market,

* The outsourcing market is relatively insensitive to economic cycles;

* The Group has a diverse portfolio of blue-chip and public sector clients, the largest of which
constitutes <10% of revenue;

* We have a clear wision for our technology centric growth strategy: and

* We are making good progress in our transformation programme,

Governance

The Directors believe that a three-year period 15 appropriate for their viability assessment as it is
supported by the Group's strategic, budgeting and business planning cycles and is relevant to the duration
of existing contracts with customers which is around three years on avwerage. It thereflore represents

a tmeframe over which the Oirectors believe they can reasonably forecast the Group's performance.

In making this statement, the Directors have carried out 2 robust assessment of the principal risks facing .
the Group, inchuding those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or

liquidity. Thes includes the availability and effectrveness of mitigating actions that could realistically be 1aken

to avoud or reduce the impact or occurrence of the undertying risks. In considering the likely effectiveness

of such actions, the conclusions of the Board's regular monitoring and review of risk management and

internal control systems, as described on pages 59 to 61, are considered.

In undertaking ris viability assessment, as a base case, the Board has used the agreed budget for FY 19720,
which includes analysis of the forecast performance of the Group’s existing contract base, expectation
for future growth including sales targets and expected win rates, and overhead cost base. Based on this
budget. further projections for viability purposes have been made using prudent assumptions for-

* Modest revenue and margin growth beyond FY15/20;

* No major changes in working capital;

Invoice discounting continuing to decrease over time:

Future divdends in line with current policy;

*+ Settlement of existing provisions according to best estimates together with funding costs for ongoing
transformation activities;

* No changes to group structure: and

No additional caprtal beyond current committed debt fadities.

Financial statements

The resulting financial model assesses the ability of the Group to remain within the financial covenants and

liquidity headroom of the existing committed debt facikities. During the forecast period, £40m of the US

Private Placement notes mature and the model assumes these are not refinanced. The £275m revolving

credit facility also matures in the forecast period and the Directors consider it reasonable 1o assumne this S~
will be refinanced on materally similar terms, The Group akso utiised £73m of invoice discounting.at 3| e
March 2019, which the Group is not dependent upon for liquidity, covenant compliance or \g'abilily‘f - e Gy i
purposes in the base case scenario.
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Viability statement continued

A range of scenarios that encompass the principal nsks were applied to the base case and are set out
in the table below. The analysis also considered a reverse stress-test scenario to illustrate the working
capital outflow required to cause a breach of leverage covenant, in combination with the reduced
revenue scenario.

Scenaric Principal risks
1 Loss of major contract — lost revenue and operating profit in all 1,2.3.12
future periods
2 Major client inscivency - lost revenue, operating proft and cash flow, |
plus one-nff costs equivalcnt 1o three months’ revenue
3 Major working capital outflow — £100m 4
4 10% revenue reduction 1.23,5.6,7.9. 11,12
5 Margin erosion . L2,7.8.10.12
é Reverse stress test — revenue loss and working capital outflow in N/A
combination to covenant breach

In each of scenanos |-5, the Group would be able to continue operating within debt covenants and
liquidity headroom, and mauntain dividends in line with current policy. Scenario 6 required such an
extreme set of factors in unison that it is considered to be a very remote likelihood and therefore
does not reprasent a realistic threat to the viability of the Group.

The Directors considered mitigating factors that could be employed to counter the negative effects
of the crystallisation of each of these risks. The main actions included the short-term scaling down
of capital expenditure, asset disposals, reductions in cash distributions or raising equity.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able
to continue in operation and meet its habilities as they fall due over the three-year period considered.

The strategic report on pages | 10 48 of Mitie Group plc. company registration number SC019230
was approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for ssue on 5 June 2019,

it was signed on its behalf

Phil Bentley %
Chief Executive Officer

Paul Woolf

Chief Financial Officer /
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InFY 18/19 Mitie signed the Clean Van
Commitment which builds on our promise to
ensure 20% of our small van and car fleet is
electric within the next two years. We also
ordered 400 electric vehides to suppeort the
fight against dimate change and air poliution.
Mitie, which has a fleet of 3,500 compact vans
and cars. will run more than 700 electric
vehicles by the end of 2020.

Mitie has also been aceredited as a Go Ultra
Low company. under a scheme jointly run
by Government and vehicle manufacturers,
which has |60 signatories. Mitie joins

other companies that have committed to
increase the number of electric vehicles

in their fleets,

(®) Read more on PG 31-32

;2% ;7%

reduction in energy reduction in
CONSUMPTION ACrOSS emissions intensity
Mitie estate since FY 09/10
since FY 09/10
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Board of Directors

An experienced
Board of Directors

Derek Mapp
Non-Executive Chairman

Board Committees

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Data of appointment to the Board
9 May 2017

Other current appointments

Derek i5 Chair of Informa pk and private

cornpnies: Imagesound Limited and Salmon

Developments Limited. Derek alsc has several

other private business interests.

Past roles

Derek was Chair of Hurtsworth ple from

Decernber 2014 to March 2019, He was also

previously Chiel Executive Officer of Tom

Cobleigh plc and Chair of Leapfrog Day

Nurseries Limited, East Midlands Development

Agency, Sport England and British Amateur

Boxing Assodation Limited.

Skills and experience

* Experienced chairman and ertrepreneur;

* Extensive career in ownership, managerial,
operational and commercial roles I
service industries;

* Wealth of commercial and governance
experience within various sectors; and

* Promotes robust debate and an open and
engaged culture

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer

Board Committees
None

Date of appointment to the Board
| November 2016

Othar current appointmants
None

Past roles

Phil was Group Chiel Executive Officer of Cable
& Wireless Communications pk from January
2014 until its sale to Liberty Global plc in May
2016. Prior to this he was a member of the
board of Cemtnica plc from 200010 2013 whilst
also Managing Director of British Gas from 2007
to 2013, Managing Director, Europe from 2004
to 2007 and Group Finance Director from 2000
to 2004. Phil's prior non-executive dicectorships
include 1M plc from 2012 to 2014 and Kingfisher
pic from 2002 to 2010.

Skilis and experience

* Executive and non-executive experience with
FTSE 100 companies for over 18 years;

* Significant strategic and commerdial experience
at both national and global level;

* Extensive executive and leadership experience
from across industry;

* Extensive financal, audit and risk management
systerms experience; and

* Accountant by profession, with a master’s
degree from Cxiord Universty and an MBA
from INSEAD, Fortainebleau.
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Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Board Committees
Nore

Date of appointment to the Board
13 Nevemnber 2017

Other current appointments
None

Past roles

Paul was Chief Executive Officer of Virgin Active

Health Clubs from September 2013 to March

2017 and Chief Financial Officer {rom January

2013 to September 2013. Pnor to that he was

Cheef Finandal Officer of Jack Wills, Group Chief

Finandial Officer of Birds Eye Iglo Group and

Chief Financial Officer of the Automobile

Skills and experience

* A highly-regarded leader with experience
across a broad range of industry sectors;

* A proven track record in operational, financial
and strategic oversight and execution;

*+ Extensive turnaround experience; and

+ Qualified as a chartered accountant, with a
degree from Oxford University in Philosophy.
Politics and Econormics.



Nivedita
Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination Commitiee

Date of appointment to the Board
| june 2017

Other current appointments

Nivedita is Chief Executive, Infrastructure
Services & Cloud Services UK, Europe at
Capgemini SA, a French publicly listed
multinational corporation. She is akko a member
of its UK management board.

Past roles

Nivedita was Head of Enterprise Solutions,
EMEA and Head of London Development
Centre at Infosys Technologies Ltd from 1998 to
2010. Prior to this she was a consultant in the
corporate finance diviston al KPMG India.

Skills and experience

* Significant international management
experience having worked across the UK,
Europe, US and Indi:

* Vast experience in advising dients on
technology solutions with a view to enabling
them to increase sharenoider value;

* Several years of IT consultmg and T
outsourcing experience managing large
complex contracts;

* Strong sales orientation having sold global
technology and digital solutions to global
clients;

* Deep PAL management with focus on top and
bottom Iine; and

* Qualified as a chartered accountant, with a
degree in Economics.

Jennifer Duvalier
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
2 july 2017

Other current appointments

Jennifer is Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Remuneration Committee of Guardian
Media Group plc, and Non-Executive Director
of NCC Group plc. She 1s also Director of The
Cranemere Group Limited and a member of the
Coundl of the Royal College of Art, where she is
ako Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Past roles

Jennifer was Exeartive Vice President, Pecple, for
ARM Hokdings ple, a global technology business,
from September 2013 to March 2017. She was
ako an executive committee member with
responsibility for peopte and internal
communications activity. Prior 10 this, jennifer
was Group People and Cubture Director at UBM
ple from 2007 to 2013 and Group HR Director at
Emap pic from 2003 to 2007.

Skills and experience

* Leadership development, talent acquisition and
managernent and succession planning

* Mentoring and coaching;

* People strategy. arganisation development and
change management; .

* Employee engagement and internal
communications;

*+ Corporate sodal responsibility and
partnerships; *

* Executive remuneration and performance
management;

* Executive team and Board effectiveness; and

* MA (Hons) from the University of Oxford in
English and French.

Philippa Couttie
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nominatioh Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
15 November 2017

Other current appointments
Philippa is a member of the House of Lords and
party whip.

Past roles

Prdippa led Westminster City Council from 2012
10 2017. She joined the Coundil in 2006 and has
previously served as Cabinet Member for
Finance, Cabinet Member for Housing and
Deputy Cabinet Member for Children’s Services,
Philippa was ako a member of the Polling and
Digital Media Select Committee from 2017 to
018

Prior to progressing her career in public service,
Philippa was a director at Citigroup following its
takeover of Schroders, where she headed up its
prindipal finance business. She was ako previously
Chief Executive of Cornerstone
Communications.

Philippa has served as a non-executive director
on several boards since 2006, induding Royal
Parks and the London Local Enterpnse
Partnership, She was also previously Chair of the
WWest End Partnership and Countil Member of
Imperial College, where she was also Chair of
the Audit Committee.

Skills and experience

* Extensive experience in both public and
private sector at the most senior level:

= Ennobled and joined the House of Lords
in 2016; and

= A degree from the University of 5t Andrews
in Psychology.
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Board of Directors continued

An experienced
Board of Directors continued

Mary Reilly
independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Commiittees

Chair of the Audit Committes

Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Commitiee

‘Date of appointment to the Board
| September 2017

Other current appointments

Mary is Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Essentra plc, an
international supplier of specialist plastic, fibre,
foarn and packaging products. She is ako
Non-Executive Diector and Chair of the Audrt
Committee of Travelzoo. Her current
trysteeships incude the Ivictus Games
Foundation and PDSA.

Past roles

Mary was Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Ferrexpo pic, 2n iron
ore rmining compary, from 2015 10 2019, She was
also Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit & Risk Committee of the UK Department
of Transport and of Crown Agenas Limited, an
international developmertt company, from 2013
to 2017, Prior to this Mary was Non-Executive
Director of Cape pic, a global industrial services
company, from 201610 2017, She has served asa
non-executive director on several other boards
since 2000.

Mary was a partner m Deloitte ULP (and

predecessor firms) for over 25 years. Mary was

an Audit Partner in the UK speciafising in

manufacturing, howry retait and business

services. She also headed a unit offering

outsourcing capabiiity.

Skills and experiance

* Accounting, fmance and internationat
management experience; and

* Chartered accountant, with a degree from
University College London in History.

Roger Yates
Senior Independent
Director

Board Committees

Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
| March 2018

Other current appointments

Roger s Non-Executive Director of Jupiter Fund
Manmagerment pic and Senior Ind
Director of St James’s Place pic, where he is also
Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Past roles

Roger started his career in asset management st
GT Management in 1981 and held positions of
increasing seniortty at Morgan Grenfel, LGT and
Trvesco. He served as Chief Executive of
Henderson Group pk from 1999 to 2008 and as
Chief Executive of Unicredit's asset management
arm, Pioneer Irvestments.

Roger's non-executive roles have included F&C

Irvestments. IG Group ple, Electra Private Equity
phc and [PMorgan Elect ple.

Skills and experience

* Substantial board experence:

* Strong business track record; and

*» Extensive knowledge of the finance and
investrnent comrmunity,
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Peter Dickinson
General Counsel &

Company Secretary

Board Commiittees
MNone

Date of appointment
6 March 2017

Othar current appointmants
None

Past roles

Peter was a partner at global law firm Mayer
Brown International LLP {and its predecessor
firm) from 1995 to 2017, During his time at
Mayer Brown, Peter was also Co-Head of the
Global Technology Transactions practice from
2015 to 2017, Co-Head of the Global Corporate
practice (with specific responsibiiity for sirategy)
from 2008 to 2015. and Head of Corporate
practice in London from 2005 to 2015,

Skills and experience

* Substantial experience in corporate advisory.
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and
ather significant commerdal transactions
including large scale muttyjunsdictional

= Qualified solicitor, with a degree from
Southampton University in Law.



Corporate governance

Chairman’s introduction
to Corporate Governance

The Board 1s continually seeking 1o adapt and respond to meet
its responsibilities to shareholders and wider stakeholders for the
Group's activities and its long-term success.

The Board is kept up 1o date on al matters of key governance by way of
comprehensive reports prepared by the Compary Secretary for each
Board meeting. Between meetings, the Company Secretary and wider
team are available if required, and the Board has access to an electronic
board portal which is kept up 1o date with the latest governance-related
informnation and guidance.

Statement of compliance with the Code

For the year ended 31 March 2019, we are reporting against the

April 2006 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the

Code) and | can confirm on behalf of the Board that the Company

has compiied throughout the year with all the principles and the relevant
provisions. The Code can be found on the Financial Reporting Coundil's
website at www.frc.org.uk.

Details of haw we have applied the principles and complied with
the provisions of the Code are explained throughout the Annual
Report and Accounts. In the following sections, we explain how the
Code is implemented via Mitie's governance framework.

The Financial Reporting Councd published an updated Code n July
2018, which applies to the Company from | April 2019. As a Board,
we have spent time rewiewing the Company’s governance processes
in preparation for reporting under the updated Code and we are
confident we will be able to confirm full compliance for FY 19720,

Stakeholder engagement

The Board acknowledges the importance of forming and retaming
sound relationships with all stakeholder groups, Effective engagement
enables the Board to ensure stakeholder interests are consdered
when making strategic decisions.

Accordingly, the Board has reviewed and discussed the Group's

key stakeholders along with the engagernent mechanisms in

place to ensure they support effective, two-way communication,

This information has been collated into a stakeholder engagement
'map‘which will be considered regularly by the Board to ensure it
remains fit for purpose. The map will also be used to support the
Board's reporting requirements under Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006, More details on stakeholder engagement can be found

on pages 26 and 27.

e

As a Board, we are committed
to delivering and maintaining the
highest levels of governance.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

To further enhance our extensive employee engagement activities,
Jennifer Duvaker has been appointed as the Group's designated
Non-Executive Director to oversee Board engagement with our
waorkforce. Jennifer is committed 1o understanding the views of
our workforce and will ensure those views are incorporated nto
the Board's decision making processes,

Board composition

Jn July 2018, Larry Hirst retired from the Board with Roger Yates
succeeding Larry as Senior independent Director. Mark Reckitt also
stood down from the Board in July 2018, with Mary Reilly assuming
the role of Chair of the Audit Committee.

As announced in August 2018, Jack Boyer stood down from the Board
with eflect from 31 August 2018. Jennifer Ouvaher succeeded Jack as
Chair of the Rermuneration Committee.

Diversity and inclusion

During the year, the Board adopted a Board Inclusion Policy which sets
objectives for the Board i terms of diversity and inclusion See page 69
for further information.

Board effectiveness

The performarxe of the Board, its Committees and its indwidual
Directors is an essential component of the Company’s success. During
2019, | led an internal Board evaluation, which involved one-to-one
meetings with each of the Directors facilitated by a questionnare
completed by each Director in advarke. As Senior Independent
Director, Roger Yates led the review of my performance as Chairman.

Regulatory update

On 26 June 2018, the Company was advised by the Financial Conduct
Awuthority {the FCA) that the nvestigation into the Company in
connection with the timeliness of a profit warning announced by the
Company on |9 September 2016 and the manner and preparation
and content of the Company's financial information, postion and
results for the period ending 31 March 2016, which was inftiated on
25 Awugust 2017, had been discontinued.

In conclusion

The Board remains dedicated to achieving the highest leveis of
corporate governance to underpin the delivery of shareholder
value in the years ahead.

Derek Mapp
Chair
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Governance at a glance

Overview
of our governance

Governance  Sharoholdars
framework T bt o e et o bt
success of the Company.

“

The Board provides leadership and direct:on to management within
a framework of controks enabling risk to be adequately assessed
and managed.

(@ Read more on PG 56-61

The Remuneration
Committee

The Audit Committee provides effective The Nomination Committee evaluates The Remuneration Committee
governance of the appropriateness of the composition, diversity, experience, determines the framework or

the Group’s financal reporting and the knowledge, skills and independence of the broad policy for remuneration and sets
performance of both the Internal Audit Board and its Convrnittess, the rernuneration for the Charman,
function and the external auditor. the Chvef Executive Officer, the Executive

Directors and senior management

@ Read more on PG 62-67 @ Read more on PG 68-69 @ Read more on PG 70-81

m

The Executive Leadership Team includes members from esch
business unit and central group function ensuring accountability
across the business.

Our range of services

Engineering Security Professional Cleaning & Catering Care &
Services Services Environmental Custody

Board activities
Members of the Board attended
a number of stakeholder
related events during the year.

Nems discussed at Board
meetings during the year are
included on pages 56 and 57.
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Gender diversity Roles Director age range
[
U
@ female 4 @ Charman I @ 41-50 years 2
& Male 4 @ Exeative Directors 2 @ 51-60years 3
@ Non-Executive Directors 5 @ 6)-70 years
<]
g
Table of meetings k]
Nomination Audit Remuneration
Position Name Board Committee® Committee Committee ig
Chairman Derek Mapp w7 2 - -
Board members  Phi Bantley 77 22 - -
(Executives) Paul Woolf 717 2 - -
Nwedita Krshnamurthy Bhagat  7/7 2 67 -
Jack Boyer! 212 o - 33
Phifippa Couttie® 7 212 &6 _
Board members lennifer Duvalier Fir 212 - 55
{Non-Executives) Larry Hirst? 22 [T _ 33
Mark Reckitt* b1yl 00 4/4 -
Mary Reilly* . n U2 77 m
Roger Yatest " 2 33 U2

1. Jack Boyer resigned on 31 August 2018

2. Phiippa Couttie joined the Audit Committee on 22 May 2018.

3 Larry Hirst retired on 31 Jly 2018,

4 Mark Reckitt resigned on 31 july 2018

3. Mary Reilly joined the Remuneration Committes on 31 August 2018,

& Roger Yates joined the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee on 31 july 2018,

* Phil Bentley and Paul Wooll stood down from the Momination Committee on 31 March 2019

September Octaber November December | January 2019 February i March

The Gathered Table | Employee roadshow
(five locations across
the UK attended

by over 2,000
employess)

Finance leadership
team forum
{The Shard}

Supplier conference

(The Shard)

Major shareholder
dinner (offsrte)}

Client dinner
* | {The Shard)

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 55



The Board

Board report

Chalrman  Derek Mapp
Executive  Phil Bentley
Directors Paul Woolf
Non- Novedita Krishnarnurthy Bhagat
Executive |3 Boyer until 31 August 2018
Directors o e Couttie
Jenpifer Duvaker
Larry Hirst until 31 July 20¢8
Mark Reckitt unitil 31 fuly 2018
Mary Reilly
Roger Yates

@ Full biographical details can be found on PG 50-52.

Purpose of the Board

The Board s responsible and accountable to shareholders for the
sustainable kong-terrn success of the Compary. The Board leads and
directs management within a framework of controls enabling risk to
be adequately assessed and managed.

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for the Group on an
annual basis and reviews aspects of strategy a1 Board meetings during
the year. When setting Group strategy, the Board considers a wide
range of matters including, but not imited to:

» Finance;

* Shareholder returns;

* Corporate structure;

¢ Market trends;

= Competitive environment;

* Private/public sector approach;

* Imternational aspects of the business and opportunitees; arx

+ People and talem.
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Board Commiittees
The Board has four formal Committees:

= Audit Committee;

* MNorminztion Commitiee;

* Remuneration Committee; and
* Disclosure Committee (ad-hoc).

Details of the purpose and activities of each Committee are set out
on pages 62 to Bl.

The Board alsc has an informal Bid Committee comprised of the
Chief Executive Officer. Chief Financial Officer, General Counsel
& Company Secretary, Chief Government & Strategy Officer and
members of the sales team. The Bid Commitiee meets weekly to
consider any material bids being submitted.

Board activities

The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year. Individual

Director attendance at each meeting and a timefine setting out '
stakeholder related events attended by members of the Board can

be found on pages 54 and 55. Other Board activiies during the year

include those set out below. In undertaking their duties, the Directors

act in a way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely 10 promote

the success of the Company for its shareholders as a whole, having

regard also to other stakeholders.
Activices
Strategy
Offsite strategy day All Directors attended the Board's offsite
strategy day in Septernber. On the day,
the Board discussed the Group's strategic
and recommendations, target
operating model and execution risks.
Chief Executive At every Board meeting the Chief Executive
Officer's update Officer presented to the Board on topics
such as: ’
* Financial highlights;
* Business development;
* Sector considerations;
» Customers;
* Sales;and
* Divisional updates,

Corporate transactions  The Board debated and approved the:
* Acquistion of Vision Security Group Limited;
* Sale of Mitie’s Socal Housing business; and
* Sale of Mite Pest Comrol Limited.

Finance '
Chief Financial At every Board meeting the Chief Financial
Cfficer’s update Officer presented a paper to the Board
covering topics such as:
* Financial performance of the Group;
* Finance structuring review: and
* Finance modernisation,
Budger The Board reviewed and approved the Group's
annual budgert.
Results and dividends The Board reviewed and approved the

haif-yearly financial report and Anrual Report
and Accounts, and associzied dividends.




Governance and risk

Share dealing procedures An external review of Mitie’s Market Abuse
Regime compliance policy was undertaken
during the year. The Board subsequently
adopted updated docurnentation.

Company secretarial
and legal updates

At every Board meeting the General Counsel
& Company Secretary presented a paper
covering topics such as:

* Whistieblowing

= Material litigation;

* Modern Siavery Act Statement:

GDPR:

July 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code:
Companies Act 2006 Section 172
considerations; and

» Other governance and regulatory highlights

People and culture

The Board received and discussed the results
of the annual employee engagement survey,
Upload, and agreed actions to be taken, Actions
included the creation of the "You Said, We Did’
campaign which was launched during the year.

Employee engagement

Cukture The Board recerved regular updates on;
* The roll-out of Mitie's vision and values;
* Mitie Exceptionals, an employee champions
network to embed new cornpany behaviours;

and

* LiveSafe, the safety culture development
prograrme aligned to Mrtie’s vision and
values, launched in Decernber 2018,

Stakeholders and society

Stakeholder The Board discussed the resutts of a formal

engagement ‘map’ review which was undertaken during the
year to identify:

Key stakeholders;

Their ‘owners’ within the business;

Reasons for engagement;

Engagemert mechanisrms; and

Important issues for each stakeholder

Investor relations,
corporate affairs
and Internal
communications

At every Board meeting a report from the
Head of Investor Refations was presented

cavering topics such as:

* Share price performancs;
* Shareholder engagement;
* Share register analysis;

* Sector news;

* Investor feedback;

* Media coverage; and

* Internal cormmunications.

Net Promoter Score The resufts of a Net Promoter Score survey
were prasented to the Board in March 2019
along wrih an action plan to embed more of
the right behaviours going forward The survey
involved 250 dients being asked how fikely
they were to recommend Mitie to a friend

or colleague. Mitie's Net Promoter Score

improved 22 points from the prior year,

Director induction process and training

On joining the Board, all Directors receive a personally tailored induction

which includes:

+ Meetings with Executive Directors, the General Counsel & Company
Secretary, and other members of senior management;

= An overview of the Group's governance policies, corporate structure
and business functions;

* Details of risks and operating issues facing the Group;

* Visits to divisional offices and key client sites; and

+ A briefing on key contracts.

Mitie is commytted to the continual professional development of its
Directors. In 2018, all Directors attended an externally facilitated training
session on director duties, stakeholder engagement and the july 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have access to Mitie's Board Handbook which includes:

* Board and Commitiee terms of reference:

= The Company’s Articles of Association;

* Guudance on directors' statutory duties;

* An overview of the Group's directors' and officers’ liability insurance
arrangements;

¢ Delegated authorrties register:

¢ Share dealing procedures;

* Corporate governance and regulatory guidelines; and

* Key corporate documents and policies.

The Board Handbock is subject to regular review and was last updated
in early 201%.

Briefing notes on changes in the regulatory and governance erwironment
are circulated to Directors on an ad hoc basis.

Online training is also available to all Directors on topics such as the
Bribery Act, GOPR, Criminal Finance Act 2017 and ant:-slavery.

Visits to different business sites and offices are arranged for Directors
to facilitate a deeper understanding of the business.

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Code and the Company's Articles of Association,
all Directors are subyect 10 election or re-election by shareholders,

At the 2018 AGM each Director in post at the time (except for Larry
Hirst and Mark Reckitt} stood for election or re-slection and was
appointed or re-appointed by shareholders. Larry Hirst and Mark
Reckett departed the Board folkowing the 2018 AGM. All Directors

will stand for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Terms of appointment for Non-Executive Directors and service
contracts for Executive Directors are available for inspection at the
Company's regrstered office and head office, and will be available at
the 2019 AGM.
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The Board continued

Responsibilities of the Board

Mitee maintains a formal schedule of matiers reserved for the

Board which can be viewed at www.mitie.com/investors/
corporate-governance. The schedule was last reviewed and
updated in March 2019 following the introduction of the july 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code. The schedule details key matiers
and responsibilities that are to be dealt with exclusively by the Board.

These include 10:

* Approve the Group’s long-term objectives and commerdial strategy.

= Establish the Group's purpose and values and be satisfied that these,
its strategy and cufture are aligned:

* Review performance in light of the Group's strategy. objectives.

business plans and budgets;

Approve the half-yearty finandial report and the Annual Report

and Accounts;,

* Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control processes:

= Approve all material acquisitions, material disposals, material

contractual and other operational matters,

Ensure adequate succession planmng for the Board and

SEMIOr Managerment;

* Undertake a formal and rigorous review annually of its own

performance and that of its Committees and inddual Directors: and

* Make arrangements for diakogue with shareholders, canvassing
shareholder opinicn and engagement with shareholders in relation
to any shareholder resolution which is opposed by more than 20%
of the votes cast.

Division of responsibllities
Directors have certain responsibilities in ine with their role, including
those set out below.

The Board corminues to support separaton of the roles of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. A more detailed document

setting out their respongibilities s available at www.mitie.com/investors/

corporate-governance.

Chairman

+ Chair the Board, Nomination Committee and shareholder
general meetings: ’

* Ensure effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role, including
the regularity and frequency of meetings;

* Set Board agendas, taking into account the issues and concerns of

all Board members;

Ensure appropriate delegation of authonty from the Board 10

executive managemert;

Manage the Board to ensure sufficient time is allocated to promate

healthy discussion and open debate, supported by the nght level and

quality of information 1o assist the Board in reaching its decisions,

Facilitate the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors

and encourage active engagement Dy all members of the Board;

Ensure constructive relations between the Executve Directors

and Non-Executive Directors;

Hold metings with the Non-Executive Directors without the

Executive Directors present;

Ensure that new Directors participate in a full, formal and tailored

induction programme;

Ensure that the performance of the Board, its Committees and

individual Directors is evaluated at least once a year and a<t on

the results of such evaluation;

Maintain sufficient contact with major shareholders to

understand their issues and concerns: and

Ensure that the views of shareholders are communicated to

the Board.
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Senior Independent Director

» Act as a sounding board for the Chairman;

= Serve as an irtermediary to other Directors when necessary;

* Conduct the Charman's annual performance evaluation and
lead the appointment process for any new Chairman;

* Actas chairrnan of the Board nthe absence of the Chairman; and

+ Be available as an alternative point of contact for shareholders if they
have concerns which have not been resolved through the normal
channels, or for which such contact is inappropriate in the
circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

* Exerdise ndependent skill and padgement,

» Constructively challenge proposats based on relevant
individual experience, knowledge and skills;

Contribute to the formulation and development of strategy:
Monitor corporate reporting to ensure integrity of

finandial information;

Oversee the Group's principal risks and assurance in place relating
to those risks, induding internal audit programmes;

Play a key role in determining the remuneration pohcy for the
Chairman, Executive Directors, General Counsel & Company
Secretary and members of senior management; and

Hold a primary rote in Board succession planning.

Chief Executive Officer

* All aspects of the operabion and management of the Group withn
the authorities delegated by the Board;

* Develop Group objectives and strategy, having regard 16 the
Groeup's responsibilities 1o its shareholders, customers, emplayees
and other stakeholders:

* Successful achievement of objectives and execution of strategy
following presentation 10, and approval by, the Board;

* Recommend to the Board an annual budget and long-term business
plan and ensure their achievernent lcliowing Board approval;

» Optirnise the use and adequacy of the Group's resources;

= Recommend 1o the Board acquisitions and disposals, and ensure
their execution following Board approval;

= Manage the Group's risk profile, including the health and safety
performance of the business; and

* Make recommendations 1o the Remuneration Commrttee on
remuneration policy, executive remuneration and terms of
employmerit of the senior executive team.

Chief Financial Officer

* Lead. direct and oversee all aspects of the finance and accounting
functions of the Group;

* Evaluate, approve and advise on the financial and commercal impact
of material contracts and transactions (including mergers and
acquisitions), technology investrments, long-range planning assumptions,
investment return metncs, risks and opportunities and the impact of
changes in accounting standards;

* Qversee and direct the Group's Risk, Insurance, Pensions and Internal
Audit functions; :

+ Manage relationships with the external auditor and key financal

institutions and advisors:

Ensure effective internal controls are in place and cormpliance with

appropriate accounting regulations for financial. regulatary and tax

reporting, and

= Provide an underpin to all aspects of the Group's governance
framework, the application of its delegated authorities and its
investment activities.

.



Board effectiveness

In accordance with the Code, the Board carnes out annual performance
evaluations. These are externally led every three years and internally

led in other years. In FY 18/19, the Board evaluation was internally led by
the Chairrnan for the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors,
and facilitated by the Senior independent Director for the Chairman.
The Board's evaluation of its own performance provides an opportunity
1o enhance 1ts effectiveness and identify any areas for mprovement.

The Board evaluation process followed n FY |18/19 is set out below.

Identify areas of focus

Circulate questionnaire

One-to-one meetings

Anonymise meeting notes

Produce findings and actions

Board discussion

The Chairman discussed the gutcomes of the evaluation with the
Board at its meeting in June 2019, Details will be set out in the next
annudd report.

Board accountability and assurance

Risk management approach

During the year, the Board has continued to oversee the improvements
being implemented by the management team to reflect the more
structured approach to governance, risk management and internal
control first adopted following the FY 16/17 comprehensive review of
the Group's balance sheet. These have included simplification of the
organisational structure, darity of reporting lines for the central
functions, notably HR, Legal and Finance, cessation of the “Mitie Model’
arrangements, outsourcing of the back-office finance transactional
processes to Genpact. the outscurcing of application maintenance IT
processes to Wipro and continued standardisation and simplification
of processes and procedures in the Group. In FY 17/18, a Group-wide
delegated authority register (DAR) was deployed which danifies the
accountabilities and authority to take decisions on specific matters
within defined financial imits, at levels from the Board to divisional
leadership. This helps to disseminate the Board's risk appetite. At the
same time, authority registers were also implemented in each division,
which follow the same principles as the DAR. This structure should
ensure a consistent approach to acceptance and management of risk
across the business.

The whistleblowing line, provided by an external party, was launched
in FY 17/18, with all reports being reviewed and investigated, This also
enhances the identification of risks. Improvements in IT systems

have continued 10 bring the business onto consistent platforms, with
improving management information and visibility of common risks and
effectiveness of controls. The Internal Audit function has targeted its
work at areas of the business where risk management and internal
controls are suspected of requiring improvement. which has helped
1o improve the risk and contrel frameworks.

in addition, a new Bid Committee has been established, the key
members of which comprise the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, General Counsel & Company Secretary and

Chief Government & Strategy Officer. The rale of the Committee

is to consider zll bids the aggregate value of which exceeds £3m pa..

to determine whether such bids meet the Group's financial. commercial
and legal objectives.

The Group's approach to risk is set out in more detail below. The
approach 10 risk management is regularly reviewed by the Board and
Executive Leadership Team and continues to evolve in line with the
business structure and risk profile. The Board understands that effective
risk management and a sound system of internzal control are essential

to the achievement of the Group's strategy and supporting objectives.
The Audit Committee has continued to focus on its review of the risk
management framework to increase its understanding of the nature

of the risks faced by the Group and how they are addressed.

Risk culture

h is recognised that the risk management culture within the business
is equally as important as an effective risk management framework.

In support of this, the '‘One Mitie’ Vision and Values have an important
role to play. As well as helping to achieve common ways of working
and dlarity of approach for customers and employees, they also

help set out, together with the code of conduct {One Code). the
framework upon which Mitie's risk culure is built. Emphasis is placed
on the importance of embedding risk management into all key
decisions, such that opportunities to grow the Group are effectively
balanced with effective risk management decision making. This means
that opportunities may continue to be exploited, provided risks have
been properly identified and the right controls established or, in some
cases, potential opportunities are declined if they sit outside the
Group's risk appetite.
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The Board continued

One Code sets out the expected behaviours for alf employees and
supply chain partners and establishes zero tolerance in specific areas as
part of an establshed ethical business framework. The Group continues
to review and reaffirm fts code of conduct with employees and supply
chain partners 1o ensure awareness of the vision, values and expected
behaviours is maintained.

Risk management processes

The Group's risk management framework provides a flexible and
adaptable approach to the identification of risk across ali areas of

the business, to meet the demands of the dynamic and fast evolving
environment in which the Group continues to operate, Ultimate
responsibility for risk management kes with the Board, delegated to
the Chief Executive Officer; who further delegates it to the Executive
Leadership Team, with accountability and responsibikty assigned to
specific risk owners, The Group risk profile is reviewed by the Chief
Executive Officer. Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel &
Compary Secretary in advarke of formal review and approval by the
Board. This information is captured in risk registers at business and
functional level, as well as for large contracts, which are subsequently
consolidated into strategic, operational, finandial and regulatory risk
categories within the overall Group risk register maintained by the
Group Risk function.

Risk identification and t

‘When considering the risks that pose a threat to the achievernent

of the Group’s strategy. the Board takes both internal and external
perspectives into account to ensure a thorough identification process
occurs, The internal view takes Mo account fagtors such as the changing
and developing business profile, operational processes, technology and
people. while the external view includes the economic ervironment.
politicat factors and sector and geographwal risks, A top-down and
bottom-up approach ensures the systematic identification of significant
risks 1o the business. Once identified, risks are assessed using standard
impact and likekhood ratings to quantify the risk to the achievement of
business objectives. The Group employs risk management software 10
help deliver its enterprise risk management agenda as well as enhancing
risk reporting and oversight. Risk registers are formally reviewed twice a
year and approved by business unit Managing Directors,

Risk assessments are based on a ‘5 x 5’ scale ranging from minimal to
catastrophic, with any risks falling into the Group's upper limits having
mandatory mitigation plans with the expectation that these risks are
managed down to acceptable levels.

Risk mitigation

Each idertified risk has a defined control owner who is responsble for
developing and implementing a risk mitigation plan. As part of the risk
review process, each controt is required to be reviewed and formally
assessed for its effectiveness in mitigating risk. In order to strengthen
the oversight of risk management and internal control, audit and risk
governance meetings occur at a business unit level.

The terms of reference for the operation of these meetings are

aligned with the Audit Committee’s objectives. The agenda requires
business units to review their top-leve! risks and the progress of
associated mitigation plans as well as assess any changes to the external
enwironment and their consequent impact on business units’ risk profile.
in addition, reports from the internal Audit function and other internal
or external assurance providers are discussed, with the objectives to
share best practice and identify common or emerging risk themes.

Assessment of the effectiventess of the control environment is
undertaken at both business and Group level, with the Audit Committee
formally reviewing performance throughout the year and advising on the
effectiveness of the risk management system in place.
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Risk monitoring and review

Principa! nsks 1o the business and associated mitigation plans
are presented to the Audit Committee and are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The nsk management framework is designed 1o manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failing to achieve the objectives and strategies

of the Group and can therefore only provide reasenable. and not
absohute, assurance against material risk and loss, The Board, through
the Audit Committee, considers the nature and extent of significant
risks in setting the Group's strategy. Details of the principal risks of
the Group are set out on pages 38 to 46. k should be noted that other
risks are identified as part of the risk management process, but these
do not have a material impact on the Group's overali ability 10 achieve
business objectives. These risks are managed via the existing risk
management process.

The Audit Committee confirms that this risk managerment process has
been in place throughout the reporting year and remains in place up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. However. as
described, the process is continuing to evolve and will be subject to
review and improvement.

Whistleblowing

Since Saptember 2017, Mitie has aperated an independent.
whistieblowing service to enable employees, suppliers and third parties
10 report any concerns or wrongdoing ancnymously without any fear of
retaliation. The serwice, which is managed by an independent service
provider, can be accessed via a freephone number, a free oniine app or
through the service provider's website.

Details of the service are made available to employees via Mite's Code
of Conduct and are displaysd on Mrie's intranet and workplace posters.
Details of the service are also communicated to suppliers via Mitie's
scuncing portal and to other third parties via www.mitie.com.

The service and refated inernal procedures are structured 10 ensure
that all reports are reviewed and investigated ndependently from the
area of the business 1o which they relate, thereby minimising the risk of
conflicts arsing.

All reports are copied to the Group Legal function, which is intended to
ensure transparency and enable any trends across different divisions and
functions 1o be identified and addressed. An update on whistleblowing
activity is provided to the Executive Leadership Team as appropriate
and to the Board at each Board meeting,

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective internal cortrol
framework. Mitie's system of internal control consists of financial,
operationa! and comphance controls.

The system covers both entity level and monitoring and oversight
controls, comprising business leadership review and direction, and
detated process controls and control activibies, which are embedded
n business processes, During FY (8/19, a comprehensive exercise was
commenced 1o review. improve and document internal controls across
the Group.

Mitie's policies and procedures are documented m the Business
Management Systern (BMS) and are available to management and
employees through an intranet portal Divisional and functional
leadership teams ensure that controls are operating within the processes
and pracedures, and that risks are beng appropnately managed.



The Audit Committee conducts a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal controf annually. This review is supported by a report
from the Head of Internal Audit and includes a control assessment
exercise undertaken by Internal Audit in conjunction with the business
leadership teams. The review focuses on the key imernal controls which
manage the risks faced by the business. The Committee also considers
the results of the work completed by Internal Audit, which are reported
to it in regular updates, There has continued to be a significant number
of internal control weaknesses reported 1o the Audit Committee in
reports produced by the Internal Audit team. This is because the internal
audit work plan is targeted at areas known, or suspected to have, weak
or ineffective internal contrals. Remedial action plans developed by
management to address any control weaknesses found are monitored
by the Audit Committee to ensure timely closure of the actions.

Further detail on this can be found in the Audit Cormmittee Report

on page 66,

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function’s autherity and responsibilities are defined

in its charter, which is reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit function operates independently and reports directly
to the Audit Committee (administratively to the Chief Financial Officer).
This reporting kne offers independence from audited activities and allows
the internal Audit function to achieve objectivity.

The work of the Internal Audit function helps 1o provide assurance

over the effectiveness of the Group's gavernance, risk and control
frameworks. The Charr of the Audit Commitiee oversees the
appointment and removal of the Head of Internal Audrt and assesses
the function’s performance against internal audit objectves. The annual
internal audit plan is approved by the Audit Commitiee All amendments
1o the approved annual internal audit pian are communicated 1o the
Audit Committee through periodic update reports. The results of

each internal audit are documented in an audit report for internal
distriburbion and action.

The Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s external auditor,
BDO LLF have access 1o all internal audit reports issued during the year:
The Audit Committee also receives a quarterly report on internal audns
completed in the period, and reports from BDO LLP arising from s
audr work, These provide an independent perspective on the Group's
internal financial control systermns.
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Audit Committee report

Report from the

Audit Committee Chair

Audit C ittee bers

Mark Reckitt was the Chairman of the Audit Committee from

Juty 2015 until July 2018. Mary Reilly succeeded Mark as Chair of

the Audit Committee on 31 july 2018, having been 2 member of the
Committee since | September 2017, Mary has a wealth of experience
as a non-executive director and chairing audit and risk comemittees.

She has extensve relevan and recent accounting, finance and
management experience. Mary's full biography can be found on page 52.

At the date of this report the Audit Comemitiee comprises mdependent
Non-Executive Directors who are all considered appropriately

experienced to fuifil their duties.

Chair Mary Reilly from 31 July 2018
Mark Reckitt untit 31 july 2018

Committea Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat

members  Philippa Couttie from 22 May 2018
Roger Yates from 3 July 2018

Freguency of Audit Committes meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2019. the Audit Committee met seven
tires. For the Directors' attendance, see table on page 55. Invitations to
attend meetings are narmally extended to the Group's external auddor,
the Chairman, the Senior Independent Director, the Chief Executive
Officer. the Chief Financial Officer. the Director of Group Finance. the
Group Financial Controller, and the Head of Internal Audit.

The Audit Committee also meets with the external auditor and the
Head of Internal Audit without the Executive Directors present.
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The current financial year has
seen further improvement in the
internal control and financial
reporting environment.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

As Charr of the Audit Committee | am pleased to present my first
report 1o shareholders, | was appointed Char of the Audit Committee
in July 2018, having been a member of the Committee since September
2017. | would like 1o thank my predecessor. Mark Racknt, for his
leadership of the Committee and work with the Group during what
had been a difficult period with a number of compilex and challenging
matters being presented for the Committee's consideration.

!t is gratifying to report that continued further improvements have been
made by the Group to strengthen the internal control srwironment,
nprove the accuracy of financial reporting, and ensure consistency of
application of accounting policy across the Group, including:

* An appropriate risk management and internal contral cutture is

being successfully embedded in each division through divisional audit
committees which are attended by the division’s Managing Director
and Finance Director, the Head of Internal Audit, the Group Financial
Controller, and other represeniatives or specialists as required. Gong
forward each dwvision will present its key risks and mitigations along
with the status of any fofow-up actions to the Audit Committee for
review at least once eath financial year and more frequently should
circumstances require;

The strengthening of the Group finance function is now iargely
complete; this nas become a function which & capable of setting and
monitoring financial and accounting policy as well as supporting the
commercial and financial objectives of each division and the Group

as a whole; and

The size of the Internal Audit team has been increased through
external recruitment bringing new external perspectives alongside
additional capacity. A comprehensive risk focused programme of
work has been successfully delivered in FY 18/19, and a simitar
detailed plan for FY 19/20 has been developed by the Head of Internal
Avdit in consuMtation with management and the Audit Committee.
The outsourcing of the finance back office to Genpact was completed
during 2018; a second phase of work is now underway to rationalise,
simplify and standardise processes aaross the Group to promote
efficiency and improved financial control. A key enabler of this phase
will be to move the Engineering Services dwvision from a legacy finance
system onto the Group's SAP platform as well as more general
improvements to accounting and control processes.



Having joined the Board in September 2017, | saw the scope and impact
of many of the issues identified during FY 16/17, it is encouraging to see

the substantial progress that has been made since then and in particular
to note that in the main the matters presented for consideraton by the
Audit Committee, while often still complex and judgemental, are more
in the nature of those which would typically arise in a group of this scale
and with this mix of businesses and contracts.

Strategic report

In addition to fulfilling its normal programme of activities this year the
areas of focus for the Audit Committee have been:

« Ensuring the continued development of the Internal Audit function
by supporting recruitment and challenging the audit plan to ensure
maximum impact through alignment of audits with the risks faced by
each dwsion and the Group more generally;
Assessing the judgements made by management in respect of
the acquisition and disposals made by the Group. In particular the
Awudit Committee has assessed management's approach 1o and
assumptions made in respect of the valuation of intangble assets
associated with Vision Security Group as well as the associated gan
on purchase, the gains and losses on disposals included in the income
statement in respect of the disposal of Mitie Pest Controf Limrted
and the Social Housing business, and the provisions made for legacy
liabilities retained by the Group as part of the disposal of the Sodial
Heusing business;
= Evaluating the approach taken by management to support the
going concern and viability statements set out on pages 86, 87
and 47 respectively:
Considering whether the Annual Report and Accounts provide
sufficient information to understand the financial position and
prospects of the Group; and
Following the successful early adoption of IFRS 15 'Revenue from
contracts with customers', considenng the process followed by
ment 1o assess the impact of IFRS 9 ‘Anancial Instruments’
and 1o embed the accounting requirements of thes standard and
{FRS 15 into the Group's monthly accounting processes.
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@ Further detail regarding the Audit Committee and its work can be
found on PG 64-67.

In condusion, the Audit Committee can provide positive assurance 1o
the Board, that the Annual Report and Accounts, when taken as a whale,
is fair, balanced and understandable, and provides shareholders with
sufficient and appropriate information to enable an assessment of the
Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

As Chair of the Audit Committee, | will be available at the 2019 AGM
to answer any guest:ons about the work of the Audit Committee,

Financial statements

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee
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Audit Committee report continued

Key purpose of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides effectrve governance of the
appropriateness of the Group's financial reporting and the
performance of both the Internal Audit function and the external
audrtor. The Audit Cornmittee also supports the Board in meeting its
responsibilities in respect of overseeing the Group's internal control
systems, business risk management, and related compliance activities.

@ The Audit Committee's Terms of Reference are availabie at
www.mikie.comlinvestors/corporate-governance,

The role of the Audit Committee in relation

to financial reporting

The primary role of the Audit Committee in relation to financial
reporting is to review with both management and the external auditor
the appropriateness of the half-yearly finandial report and Annual Report
and Accounts, concentrating on, amongst other matters.

+ The consistency of, and any changes to, significant accounting policies
and practices both on a year-on-year basis and across the Group;

* The clarity and completeness of disclosures and the context in which
statements are made;

+ The methods used to account for significant or unusual transactions
where different approaches are possible; and

* Whether the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders 10 assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committee considers reports from the
Chief Financial Officer and also reports from the external auditor on
the cutcomes of the haif-year review and year-end audit.

Significant issues considered by the
Audit Committee during the year
The Audit Committee gives attention to matters it considers to be

important by virtue of their size, complexity, levef of judgement required,

or potential impact on the financal statements and wider business
madel. and matters pertaining to governance. Identification of the issues
deemed to be significant takes place following open, frank and challenging
discussion between the Audit Committee members, with input from the
Chief Financial Officer, the external auditor. the Head of Internal Audit,
the Group Firancial Controller, and other relevant Mitie ernployees.

The Audit Committee considered the significant matters set out
below during the course of the financial year. In all cases, papers were
presented 1o the Audit Committee by management. setting out the
relevant facts, material accounting estirnates, and the judgernents
associated with each item. The external auditor provided a paper
setting out its views on each area of judgement

The Audit Committee discussed the papers with management and
sought the views of the external auditor on each matter. For each
area of judgement. the Audit Commuttee concurred with the
treatment adopted and any relevant disdosure presented in the
Annual Report and Accounts.
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Revenue recognition

The Group adopted IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers’
from | April 2017. While this standard has in general reduced the level
of judgernent required in respect of revenue and profit recognition,

the Audit Comwnittee has considered papers prepared by management
setting out the ongoing activity to embed this standard into monthly
reparting and contract performance measurement processes as well as
the approach taken to judgemental areas such s contract modifications,
mobilsation costs, pre-contract costs, and the recognition of revenue as
performance obligations are achieved.

Provisioning for legacy contractual liabilities

Under the terms of the disposal of the Social Housing business the
Group retained kiability for certain contractual ssues for completed
contracts. Management has made j to arrive at the prowvisions
recorded in the financial statements. The Audit Cornmittee has
corsidered papers prepared by management setting out the basis

for these judgements.

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired

During November 2018 the Group conckided the acquisition of Vision
Security Group Limited and its subsidiary companies, As requred by
IFRS 3 'Business Combinations', the Group has carried out work to
assess the fair value of the consideration paid, and the assets and habilities
acquired. Such an assessment inchudes the evaluation of intangible assets
which were not previously recogrused by the acquired entrties.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by managernent
detaibng the process, assumptions, and methodotogy applied to assass
the far value of those intangible assets, the value of the consideration
and the resulting income statement credit of £8.8m representing a gain
on bargain purchase,

The Audnt Commutiee concurs with the assessment made by
rmanagement in respect of these matters.

Assessment of the outcome of completion settiements
During the year the Group has completed the disposal of Mitie Pest
Control Limited and the Social Housing business and the acquisition

of Vision Security Group Limited. All thase transactions include a
completion accounts process for the final determination of the
consideration due.

These processes are ongoing and so the Audit Committee has
consiered papers prepared by management detaling the current status '
of each negotiation and management’s assessment of the likely outcome.



Adoption of IFRS 9 and the potential impact of IFRS 16
The Group adopted IFRS 9 'Financial instrumnents’ from | Apcil 2018
and will be required to adopt IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ for the year ending

31 March 2020.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by managemerit
n respect of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9, the potential impact
of IFRS 16, and the disclosures made in Note | te the consolidated
financial statements.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the disclosures made within the
financial statements in respect of:

IFRS 9 are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the impact

on the Group of the changes in the measurement and disclosure

of financial instruments brought about by the adeption of this
standard; and

+ IFRS 16 are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the substantial
change in the presentation of the Group's ncome statement and
balance sheet which wili arise when this standard s adopted for the
year ending 31 March 2020.

Valuation of goodwill

The Group has made a number of acquisitions In previous periods
and carries goodwill as an intangible asset on its balance sheet in
respect of the businesses acquired (see Note |2) to the consohdated
financial statements.

The Group considers the carrying value of all goodwill on at least

an annual basis, or when an indicator of impairment has occurred.

The valuation and impairment review of goodwill 5 assessed for each
individual cash-generating unit {CGU) and considers the balance sheet
vale of the goodwill compared to the net presert value of the post-tax
cash flows that are expected to be generated by that CGU. The
approach involves an estimation of the future cash flows expeacted to be
derived from each CGU) and the selection of appropriate discount rates,
which are then appked to the cash flows 1o calculate a net prasem value.

The assumptions underpinning the review of the carrying value of
goodwill were considered by the Audit Committee. The cash flow
forecasts used in the review were derived from the most recent CGU
budgets which have been reviewed and approved by the Board and the
long-term business plans of the Group.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
detailing the assumptions and methodcology applied to assess the carrying
value of goodwill. The Audit Committee concurs with the assessment
made by management in respect of this matter.

Other material accounting judgements

Management has continued to operate the structured process, first
intraduced in September 2017, for the dentification of material
accounting judgements made in arriving at the results. The judgements
with a significant actual or potential impact upon Group results are
presented to the Audit Committee for consideranon.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
in respect of the lollowing matters.

+ The recoverability of trade receivables and accrued ncome;

Disclosure of contingent kabilities related to the Group’s participation

n mukti-employer pension schermes;

* Disclosures in respect of other contingent liabilities;

* Provisioning for commercial settlements, disputes and other
contractual liabilties;

* Provisions related to the ndemnity provided as part of the disposal
of the Healthcare business during FY 16/17: and

* The need for provisions in respect of potentially onerous contracts.

The Audit Commettee has reviewed the information provided by
management as well as the wews expressed by the external auditor.
The Audit Committee concurs with the judgements made by
management in respect of the accounting for and disclosure of
these matters.

Use of Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)
The Company's performance measures continue to include some
measures which are not defined or spedfied under IFRS.

. The Audit Committee has considered presentation of these additional

measures in the context of the guidance ssued by the FRC in relaton
to the use of APMs, chalienge from the external auditor, and the
requirement that such measures provide meaningful insight for
shareholders into the results and financial position of the Group.

The Audit Committee concurs with the judgements made by
management in respect of the presentation of the APMs. Furthermore,
the Audit Committee conchudes that dear and meaningful descriptions
have been provided for the APMs used, that the relationship between
these measures and the IFRS rmeasures s clearly explained, that the
IFRS measures are afforded equal prominence 1o the APMs, and that
the APMs support understanding of the financial statements.

A reconciliation of the APMs to the IFRS measures is provided in the
Appendix — Alternative Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165.

Review of the Group's going concern and

viability statements

The Audit Committee has considered the ewdence that supports the
Directors’ conclusion that the Group has adequate financial resources
ta continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can therefore
prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Audit Committee considered papers detailing management's
assessment of the prospects and performance of the Group induding:

+ The future business plans of the Group;

« The potential impact of acquisition or disposal activity and possible
changes to the composition of the Group;

« The projected future cash flows of the Group;

= The availabikty of core and ancillary financing facikies and compliance
with the related covenants;

* The projected drawn positions and headroom available on the core
committed financing facilities; and

+ Those matters reviewed in connection with the Viability Statement.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and considered the disclosures
related to going concern and wiability in the Annual Report and Accounts
and considered them to be appropriate.

Details of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in relation to
preparng the financial statements on a going concern basts ¢an be found
in the Directors’ report: other disclosures on pages 86 10 B7, as can the
details of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in assessing the
viability of the Group.

The more detailed assessment of the Group's long-term viability is set
out in the Viability Statement on page 47.

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 45

Strategic report

a
;
3
2



Audit Committee report continued

Internal audit development and review of findings

During FY 17/18, the Audit Commitiee requested that Internal Audit
expand its scope of work to indude greater coverage of the commercial
nisks and issues faced by the Group and the associated mitgating
processes and controls. Additionaly, a focus on the effectiveness and
consistency of controls contained within Group-wide processes was
agreed, Following this request the size of the Internal Audit tearm was
increased. The Group continued to make use of Grant Thornton to
support the delivery of the Internal Audit plan, utilsing specialist
resource to assist a1 certain areas, notably IT audits.

The Internal Audit prograrmnme during FY 18/19 has induded:

+ A review of the programmae by the IS and Legal functions to ensure
that the Comparty is compliant with the new data privacy (GDPR)
regulations, and how this has been embedded into the ongoing
activities and business urits: ’

* A comprehensive audit of the processes and procedures to bring

new employees imo the Company, induding the relevant security

and vetting assessments and induction processes: '

An audit of the effectiveness of the controls and risk management

pracesses in the mobilisation of the new Detention & Escocting

Services Home Office contract within the Care & Custody

deasion: and

* A review of the projects business within the Engineering Services
division, which has undergone significant change during the year,
having absorbed the roofing and painting businesses from the former
Property Management division.

The Head of Internal Audit reviews the content and focus of the Internat
Audtt plan throughout the year to ensure it reflects the risk profile of
the business. resutting in a number of amendments to the plan originally
presented to the Audit Committee in March 2018. This has, n part. been
due 10 the sale of the Social Housing and Pest Control businesses and
acquisition of VSG, as well as the significant amount of process and
organisational transformation affecting both the risk and control
processes. Al of the changes to the Internal Audit plan were
communicated to and approved by the Audit Committee.

The Avdi Cornrnittee reviewed the updates provided by the Head
of Internal Audrt at meetings throughout the year, which induded
developments in the internal control environment, highligtting
improvements and areas requiring greater focus. During the year,
there continuad to be a number of audits rated as unsatisfactory or
requiring improvement, which is reflective of the tarpeting of internal
audit activity to processes and areas where internal controks are
suspected to require improvement.

The Audit Committee also monitored the status of the actions
undertaken by management to address the findings from nternal audit
reports. Whilst the number of actions completed after the orginal
planned dosure dates has not increased, there is stil more work to

be done to ensure that sufficient time and resource is assigned to
completing actions. The Audit Committee contnues to monitor the
closure of actions dosely and challenge management to ensure they
are addressed on 3 timely basis.
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Tax strategy

The Chief Financial Officer presented a paper to the Audit Committee
detailing the Group's tax strategy and associated governance, planning
and attrtude to risk. The Audit Committee considered this paper and
was satsfied with the approach being taken by the Group.

External audit

Each year the Audit Committee reviews the performance of the
external auditor in respect of audit related services and non-audrnt
services and is committed 10 ensuring the independence, effectiveness
and objectivity of the external auditor.

External auditor effectiveness
The Audit Committee monitored the conduct and effectrveness of
the external auditor through its assessrment of:

* The expenence, expertise and perceptveness of the auditor;

* The planning and execution of the agreed audit plan and quality
of audit reports; and

* The conduct of the auditor induding the Audit Committee’s
experience of interaction with the auditor.

1n addition to recemng written reports from the audtor and

from management, the Audit Committee also conducted private

meetings with the external auditor and separately with management.

These meetings provide the opportunity for open discussion and

feedback on the audit process, the responsiveness of management.

and the effectiveness of both internal and external audit teams.

Non-audit services provided by the external auditor
The Audit Committee has approved a non-audit services policy that
ensures the externa! auditor remains independent and objective
throughout the provision of its independent audrt services and
when formulating its audit opinion. I order to retain the flexibility
of utilising the external auditor to provide non-audit services, the
following critera must also be met.

These are such that the external auditor does not:

* Audt its own work,

* Make management decisions for the Group;

* Create a conflict of imerest; or

= Fird itself in the role of advocate for the Group.

The non-audit services policy identifies the varicus types of

non-audit services which might be required and determines the
analysis to be undertaken along with the level of authority required
before the external audrtor can be considered for such work. Further,
the policy is consistent with the Financial Reporting Council's ethical
standards policy.

When considering the appointment of the external auditor for

non-audrt services, the following factors are taken into account:

= The quality of work provided by the external auditor.

* Representations provided by the external auditor regarding
independence and objectivity. along with internal controls
implemented when prowiding non-audit services;

+ The level of the external audrtor's understanding of the Group,

+ The nature of the work being performed; and

* The commercial and practical circumstances of particular types of
work required,



A summary of the fees paid 10 the external auditor is given in Note & to
the financial statements. The only other service provided to the Group
for the year ended 3| March 2019 was the review of the interim financial
statements. The Audnt Committee considered reports from both

ertt and the external auditor, none of which raised concerns
about auditor independence. The Audit Committee confirms that the
requirements of the non-audit services policy have been met throughout
the year.

Appointment and reappointment of the external auditor
The Group undertook a competitive external audit tendering process in
2017 and BDOQ LLP was selected as the Group's audrtor with effect from
19 September 2017, replacing Deloitte LLP.

Scott McNaughton is the lead partner on the audit for the year ended
31 March 2019 and was the lead partner in the previous year.

© The Audit Committee considers annually the need to tender the audit
for audit quality or independence reasons. There are no contractual
obligations in place that restrict the Group's choice of statutory auditor.

The Audit Committee confirms that the Group is 1n compliance with
the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market Investigation
{Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014

Assurance

In accordance wath Internat Control: Guidance for Directors and section
C.2.3 of the Code, the Board performs a formal anrwal assessment

of the operation and effectiveness of the system of internal control,
covering all material controls including financial. operational and
compliance controls, and updates this assessment prior 10 the signing

of the Annual Report and Accounts.

These activities are monitored at exeastive level to ensure that control
changes are implemented appropriately and that they are effective.
The Head of Internal Audit oversees the application of control
environment improverents and attends Audit Commrttee meetings
to provide regular updates on the eflectiveness of the Group's internal
controls and the results of the internal audit process.

Features of the internal control and risk management systems that
ensure accuracy and refiabifity of financal reporting include:

* A culture of good governance, integrity, competence, faimess
and responsibility;

* Group policies and procedures to support the business by
providing an operational internal control framework; and

» (learly defined responsibilities, delegated in accordance with the
Group's delegated authorities and authonsation registers.

Accountability for internal controt and risk management systers is
devolved into each division and any control weaknesses within divisions
are investigated and resoived. Management and the Committee seek to
ensure that their cause is understocd, and mitigating actions are taken
to mn the potential for recurrence. In view of the work of the Internal
Audtt function, management and the external auditor, it is considered
unlikely that a weakness within 3 particular division would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Review of whistleblowing processes

Part of the Audit Committee’s role is 10 ensure that appropriate
procedures are in piace in relation to whistleblowing and to review
on an annual basis the Group’s whistleblowing policy. The Group

has continued 10 operate its ‘Speak up' service via an independent
third-party provider. Reporting of matters rased through this service
15 to the Board of Directors.
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Nomination Committee report

Report from the Nomination

Committee Chairman

Nomination Committee members
At the date of this report the Nomination Committee comprises:

Chairman  Derek Mapp

Committee Phil Bentley

members  pyy\Woolf
Nrvedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Jack Boyer until 31 August 2018
Philippa Couttie
Jennifer Duvaler
Larry Hirst
Mark Reckitt
Mary Reilty
Roger Yates

until 31 March 2019
until 31 March 2019

unti 31 July 2018
Ut 31 July 2018

Frequency of Nomination Committee meetings
Dunng the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
met twice. For the Directors' attendance. see table on page 55.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code),
membership of the Committee comprises a majority of independent
Non-Executive Directors, all of whom are considered to be
appropriately experienced to fulfil their duties. Phit Bentley and Paul
Woolf stood down from the Cormmittee on 31 March 2019,

Key purpose of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee evaluates the composition, diversity,
experience, knowledge, skills and independence of the Board and its
Committees This allows appropriate balance to be mantained and
ensures the continued effectiveness of the Board.

The Committee considers the length of service of the Board as a whole
50 that the membership of the Board is regularly refreshed, taking intc
accourt the challenges and opportunities facing the Group, and the skills,
expertise and diversity required for the future.

68 Mitie Group pic | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
The key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee inchade:

+ To idenufy and nominate candidates to fill board vacancies as and
when they arise;

» To ensure plans are i place for an orderty succession to Board and

senior management positions and oversee the development of a
diverse pipeline for succession;

To keep under review the number of external directorships held by
each Non-Executive Director;

To review the results of the Board performance evaluation process
that relate 1o the compaosition of the Board; and

To keep the Board indusion Policy under review to ensure its
effectiveness and alignment with best practice.

@ The Nomination Committee’s Terms of Reference are available at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

Key activities during the year

Composition

As indicated in last year's report, Mark Reckitt and Larry Hirst stood
down from the Board on 3! July 2018. As announced in August 2018,
Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August 2018.

Ags it does annually, and in light of the above changes, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the compositon and leadership of the Board and
each of its Committees. The Nomination Committee is satisfied that the
Board's composition and diversity has been appropriate throughout the
year, having regard in particular to the integrity. skills, knowledge and
experience of its Directors and the size and nature of the business.

A skills matrix can be found on page &9,

In accordance with the Code, all Dwectors wil stand for re-election at
the 2019 AGM.

Succession planning and talent development

The Board recognises the importance of planning for the future and
the succession planning process. During the year, the Nomination
Committee considered the ongoing succession planning and refreshing
of the Board.

The Committee also reviewed the work undertaken within the business
during the year to kentify, develop, engage and nurture talent across the
Group and 1 particular at the level immediately below the Executive
Leadership Teamn, the Group Leadership Team.

During the year, a fufl talent review was conducted, and work continues
to identify personalised developrmert plans for those recognised as
having the highest potential. The Committee alsc considered the work
underway 1o increase the performance and capability of the Group's
senior leaders. Firm foundations are now established withmn Mitie to
build a more visible talent and succession process.



Director time commitments

During the year, the Committee reviewed the tme commitments for
each Non-Executive Director to ensure there are no concerns regarding
overcommitment. The review considered the number and scope of
appointments, as well as the size and type of company in which roles are
helkd, the views of major shareholders and current published guidelines
and recommendations.

The Committee noted the significant vote against the re-election of
Mary Relly at the 2018 AGM and the Company's update statement
publshed on 31 January 2019 which can be found at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

The majority of the votes recerved against Mary's re-election were
atiributable 1o one of the Company's major shareholders whose poficy
is not to support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
pesitions with other companies or organisations. Non-executive
directors holding a position of chair of an audit commitiee are aleo

not expected to hold more than one other position. '

Members of the Board have met with the major shareholder and have
sought to provide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate
to her duties Director time commitments also formed part of the
discussion held with major shareholders at a shareholder dinner held
in March 2019.

The Board remains confident that all Board members have sufficient
tirme 1o dedicate to their duties.

Board diversity and inclusion

Mitie has a Group-wide Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Pokcy that
dearly states its commement to the indusion and diversity of al
employees at all levels.

As an extension to the Group-wide policy, during the year the Board
adopted a Board Inclusion Policy. which recognises the importance of
Board membership reflecting diversity in its broadest sense and sets
cbjectives for diversity at Board level.

The Board, through the Nomination Committee, is committed to:

*+ Ensuring its membership reflects a combination of demographics,
skills, experience, race, age, gender. educational and professional
backgrounds which provides a range of perspectives. insights and
challenges needed 10 support good decision making and reflects the
diverse worklorce at Mitie;
With regard 1o gender diversity. the Board maintains a balance so that,
as a minirnurr, 30% of the Directors are women provided that this
remains consistent with the skills and diversity requirements when
seeking a new appointment to the Board; and
* Supporting and monitoring activities to increase the percentage of
senior managemert roles held by women and other
under-represented groups across Mre.

The Commitiee is pleased to report that as at 3| March 2019,

50% of the Board is femnale. it 1s the Board's intention that female
representation on the Board will be maintained at a leve| higher than
that recommended by the Hampton-Alexander review, although it 1s
recognised that there may be periods of time when the balance falls
below during the search and recruitment process.

Across the Group female employees account for ¢.32% of the
workforce. 1% of the Executive Leadership Team, and 24% of the
Group Leadership Team are female

During the year, Phil Bentley set a strategic cbjective to increase the
number of women in science, technology, engineering and mathematics
{STEM) roles across the Group. To support this objective, the Group
has joined the WISE campaign which enables and energises people in
business to increase the participation, contnbution and success of
women in STEM. The partnership will help us to generate and share
fresh insight and knowledge about the causes of and solubions to gender
imbalance in STEM — from classroom to boardroom. It also cements
our commitment to making Mitie a great place to work, demonstrating
our value of 'our diversity makes us stronger’

Further detsiks of the Group's commitment to diversity and the diversity
of Mitie’s people can be found in the sustainability section of our website
at www.mitie.com.

Derek Mapp
Chairman of the Nominatign Committee

Disclosure Committee

Overview and purpose

The Disclosure Committee assists and informs the decisions of
the Board concerning the identification of irside information and
makes recommendations about how and when the Company
should disclose that information in accordance with the
Company's disclosure policy.

The Chairman of the Disdosure Commitiee is the Chief
Executive Officer and the cther members of the Committee
are the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Financial Officer.
the General Counsel & Company Secretary and the Group
Legal Director.

The Committee met once during the year to approve the
announcement relating to the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited.

Derek Phil Paul Nivedica Philippa nnifer Mary Roger
Skill Mapp Bentley Woetl K Bhagat Coutde uvalier Reilly Yares
Leadership and business operations & © & « & & & <4
Strategy development & & & @ @ &
Corporate governance & 1< & “ “ & & <4
Audit/risk management and assurance 4 & 1< ] 1<
Remuneration/HR & ]
Commercial & & & & <3 “ <
Technology/digital & <]
Finance & [ & [ & &
Investment community © &
Public sector experience © <]
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Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the

Remuneration Committee Chair

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors'
remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

| was pleased to be appointed as Char of the Remuneration Committee
from 31 August 2018. My thanks go to Jack Boyer, who served as Chair of
the Committee from October 2014, for his support when | took over
the role.

The report is split into three main parts:

= Executive remuneration at a glance. This sets out a summary of
our approach, including how we intend to operate under our policy
and remuneration outcomes during the year;

+ The Annual Report on Remuneration. This provides more detail

on the above, as well as setting out other remuneration-refated
disclosures;

Summary of our policy. Our existing policy was approved by 99.7% of
shareholders at the 2018 AGM and | would like to thank shareholders
for their continued support. Nc changes are proposed to our policy
this year and a summary of the policy has been included on pages 7|
to 73. The full Policy appraved at the 2018 AGM is available on our
website (www.mitise.com/investors/corporate-govarnance) and in
the Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The Remuneration Committee has addressed a number of ssues during
the year: | have described below the approach the Committee has taken,
together with the context in which key decisions were made.
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We are committed to
providing remuneration that
is both fair and reflective
of Company performance.

Jennifer Duvalier
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Remuneration decisions and outcomes

Salary

With regard to fixed pay. it has been agreed that salaries for the
Executive Directors wili not be increased for FY (920 and so will remain
£500,000 for Phil Bentley (since appointment in Novemnber 2016) and
£430,000 for Paul Woolf (since appointment in November 2017).

FY 18/19 bonus

The Committee assessed outcomes over the period with respect to
operating profit, organic revenue, Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engapement and individual performance and determined that bonuses
of 79.4% and 78.4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phit Bentley
and Paul Woolf respectively. Achievernent against these measures is
described in more detail in the Annual Report on Remuneration,
Furthermore, the Committee challenged itself to ensure that these
bonus outcomes were appropriate in the round and was comfortable
that these bonus levels are commensurate with strong organisational
and individual performance.,

2006 LTIP awards

Following his appointment, Phil Bentley received a Long Term incentive
Plan (LTP) award in November 2016. This award vests subject to the
extent to which the annual bonus targets that apply for FY 17/18, FY
18/19 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns a
bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award vests. with 67% vesting if
a bonus is earned in two of the years and full vesting if a borws s earned
in all three years. In any event, no vesting will actually occur until 2020.
The bonus targets that applied for FY 17/18 and FY 18/19 are deemed to
have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three years has been
achieved 10 date.

Incentives approach for FY 19/20

For FY 19/20, incentive opportunities will remain the same for Phil
Bentley and Paul Woolf. For bonus, this will be 160% and 120% of salary
respectively. For LTI, this will be 200% and 150% of salary respectively.
For the FY 19/20 bonus, we will have the same split of fnarwial and
strategic targets. The mix of measures will be as follows: 35% organic
revenue growth; 35% operating profit; 109 on receivables; 10% on
individual objectives; and 10% on other strategic targets. For the LTIF. we
will continue to use 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion targets.




The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Commyttee are all Non-Executive
Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Committee met
five times. For the Directors’ attendance, see table on page 55.

The Committee has responsibility for determining the remuneration

of Mitie’s Executive Directors and the Chairman, taking into account the
need to ensure Executive Direciors are properly incentivised to perform
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Commiittee is
also responsible for setting the remuneration for other senior exeautives,
including at least, the Executive Leadership Team.

@ The Committee’s terms of reference are available at
www.mitie.com/finvestors/corporate-governance.

The Committee regularty consults with the Chief Executive Officer
and the Group HR Director on varigus matters relating to the
appropriateness of rewards for the Executive Directors.

However, the Chief Executive Officer and other Executive Directors are
not present when matters relating directly to their own remuneration
are discussed. This is also the case for other executives attending
Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary attended the meetings as Secretary to the
Committee. The Chief Executive Officer and Group HR Director
attended the meetings by invitatan only.

Corporate governance developments

The Committee noted with interest corporate governance
developments during the year, In particular, the updated July 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code introduced a number of requirements
which apply to the Company from | April 2019, We are very mindfu! of
these developments and will report to shareholders in our 2020 Annual
Report on Remuneration on our approach and policies (e.g. pension
provision and post-cessation shareholding requirements).

Conclusion
We will be seekng approval for the Direclors’ remuneration report
{advisory vote) at the 2019 AGM. | welcome your views and feedback

on the report.
Jennifer Duvalier

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
jenniferduvalier@mitie.com

WMJ

Key features of our remuneration policy

GG

Our philosophy — The Commiittee believes in an approach to executive pay
which is commensurate with value creation for shareholders

The table below highlights the key features of our policy and sur approach which algns the Executive Directors’ remuneration
arrangements with the shareholder experience. The full policy can be found on our website at www.mitie.com.

@ Track record @ Shareholding
in taking a guideline of
responsible 200% of salary

and appropriate
approach to pay
(e.g. exercise

of negative
discretion)

in conjunction
with enhanced
malus and
clawback
provisions

(3) Bonus deferral ~ (*) LTIP holding
— 50% of the period of two
bonus deferred years after
into shares vesting —
for at least five-year
two years time horizon
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration

at a glance

Key principles of the policy

Mitie's remuneration pokcy is based on a number of principles:

() Reward should be
aligned with the
shareholder experience

The performance-related incentive
arrangements are designed to align the
interests of Executive Directors with
those of shareholders and to promote
the Group's long-term success.

. @ The majority of the

package should be
performance-related

The majority of reward opportunity
for Executive Directors is provided
through performance-related
incentives linked to the Group's
strategic goals and taking account

of the Group's attitude 1o risk; reward

under these incentives is linked to both
individual and Group performance.

@ The policy should

be comprehensive
and simple

The overall remuneration policy

is designed to be comprehensive
without becoming overcomplicated
and 10 encourage Exacutive Directors
1o concentrate on profitable growth.

Summary of remuneration policy
Executive Directors’ remuneration is made up of the following elemenis:

(X X))

Varmable —————————

+

Executive incentives and link to strategy

The following table sets out how the intended measures across the incentive plans for FY 19720 support the Group's strategy and KPls:

Sustained and Serong cash-

renewed profit growth Qualicy client base ganeracive business Individual cbjectives Orther stratagic targets
& 35% operating & 35% organic & 10% reduction in & 10% individual & 10% other strategic
Annual bonus b K 1o % in
LTiP & 50% adjusted EPS & 50% cash conversion
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All employee incentive arangements
The Company ako operates SAYE share option and Share Incentve Plan arrangements allowing employees to participate in share ownership and
to share in corporate success over the medium term,

Summary of how we intend to operate our policy for FY 19720

This table summarises the approach for remuneration arra

for Executive Directors (Phit Bentley as CEQ and Paul Woolf as CFO) for

FY 18/19 under the policy approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM, alongside how we intend to apply our policy in FY 19/20.

At a gtance FY 1e/1? FY 19/20
CEC: £900,000 CEO: £300.000
Base S&'&T}’ CFO. £430000 CFO: £430,000

Maximum bonus
opportunity

CEO: 160% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary

CEQ; 160% of salary
CFC- 120% of salary

Bonus deferral

50% of borus deferred into shanes which
vest after at least two years

50% of bonus deferred into shares which
vest after at least two years

Bonus performance
measures — mix

70% financial, 30% strategic

70% financial, 30% strategic

Bonus performance
measures — metrics

Financial: organic revenue growth, operating profit
Strategic: Net Promoter Score (NFS), employee
engagement, individual

Mix: 35% orgaruc revenue growth, 35% operating
profit. and 10% each on custormer NPS, employee
engagement and individual strategic objectives

Financial, organic revenue growth, operating profit
Strategic: reduction in recenables, individual, other
sirategic

Mo 35% organuc revenue growth, 35% operating
profit. 10% reduction in receivables and 10% each
on individual objectives and other strategic targets

' CEO: 200% of salary CEQ. 200% of salary

Maximum LTIP CFO 150% of salary CFO- 150% of salary

opportunity

LTIP performarice 508 adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion 5096 adjusted EPS and S0% cash conversion
measures

LTIP h0|ding period of Shares refeased after at least five years Shares released after at least five years

two years after vest

{vesting after three years plus two-year
holding pertod)

(vesting after three years plus two-year
holding period}

Share ownership
requirements

200% of salary

200% of salary

Malus and clawback
provisions

As per policy approved by shareholders at 2018 AGM  As per policy approved by shareholders at 2018 AGM
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration
at a glance continued

Summary of remuneration outcomes for the year ended 31 March 2019
The followng provides a summary of incentive outcomes and the single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors. Full details can be found
later in our Annual Report on Remuneration.

Annual bonus In respect of FY 18/19

The Comymittee assessed oulcomes over the period with respect 1o operating profit, organic revenue, Net Promoter Score (NPS), empioyee
engagement and individual performance and determined that bonuses of 794% and 78:4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phil Bentley and Paul
Woolf respectively. Achieverment against these measures is described in more detail in the Annual Report on Remuneration. Furthermore, the
Committee challenged itsell to ensure that these bonus outcomes were appropriate in Lhe round and was comfortable that these bonus levels are
comnersurate with strong organisational and individual performance. Please see table on page 76 for further detail.

2016 LTIP awards

Foliowing his appomntroent, Phil Bantley received an LTIP award in November 2016 This award vests subject to the extent to which the annual bonus
targets that apply for FY |17/18, FY 18/19 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns 3 bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 7% vesting if a bonus is earned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned in all three years. In any event, no vesting will actually
occur until 2020. Paul Wooll does not hold any 2016 LTIP awards. The borus targets that applied for FY 17/18 and FY {&/19 are deemed to have been
met and therefore a bonus in two of the three years has been achieved to date.

Single figure for FY 18/19
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and their
comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Phil Bentley
£ 2009 £ poslt)
@ Salary 900,000 @ Salary $00,000
@ Benefits 25,406 @ Benefits 2549
@ Pension 180,000 @ Pension 180,000
@ Bonus 1,143,542 @ Bonus -
Total 2,248,948 Total 1,162,549

Paul Woolf
£ 2019 £ 2018
@ Salary 430,000 @ Salary 166,136
@ Benefits 1716 @ Benefits 686
@ Pension 43,000 @ Pension 16614
. Bonus 404 409 @ Bonus -
Total 879,315 Total 163,436

Note: Paul Woolfl joined the and Board as Chief Financial Officer on |3 November 2017 and the information above for 2018 comprises his earmings from that date to

3t March 2018. Both Phil Bentiey and Paul Wodl waived their FY 17/18 bonus and there were ne LTIP pay-outs for them in 2018 and 2019,
Further information on the above is provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
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Annual Report
on Remuneration

Strategic report

Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and their
comparatrve figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Year Salary Benefi Pensi A t bonus LTie Total
Phil Bentley 2019 £900,000 £25,406  L180,000  £1,143542 - £2,248,948 o
2018 £300000 £22549 £180.000 - - £1,0025909 =
Paul Woolf 2019 £430,000 L1716 £43,000 £404,609 - £879,325 g
2018 £166,136 £686 £16514 - - £183,436 S
Total 2019 3,128,273
018 £1,533216

Notes: .

Paul Woolf oined the Board as Chief Financial Officer on |3 November 2017, The information in the table for 2018 above confirms hes earnings as an Executive Director from that date.
The diﬁ‘ereni:gl;\ the 1otals for 2018 is atiributable to earnngs for former Executive Director. Sandip Mahajan, between | April 2017 and his resignation [rom the Board on 13
Novernber 3

Benefits relate to the cost 1o the Group of prvate medical cover, car allowance and financial/tax planning advice.
The pension benelit dsclosed above comprises cash allowances in lieu of pension contributions for Phil Bentley of 20% of salary and for Paul Woolf 21 10% of salary.

Bonus payable in respect of the finandal year indudes any deferred element at face vatue at the date of award. Further information about haw the level of the award for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was determned & provided on pages 76 and 77,

8

For any new Executive Director appointments, the Remuneration Committee will consider the alignment of pension arrangements with the g

wider workforce. §

Non-Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit) 3

The fass for the Non-Exacutive Directors for the finandial year ended 31 March 2019 and therr comparative figures for the financial year ended 3 | March 2018 are set g

out below: i
201y 2018
£000 £'000
Derek Mapp' 225 201
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat  ° L ¥4 43
Jack Boyer? 25 60
Philippa Couttie 52 0
jennifer Duvakier? 57 35
Larry Hirst* 20 59
Mark Reckitt’ 20 60
Mary Reilly* 57 30
Roger Yates? 59 5
Total’ 547 575

Notes:

* Allamounts were paxd i cash and no other benefils were recenved in the year. The diflerence in the total for 2018 s attributable to fees for former Non-Executrve Director.
Roger Matthews, between | April 2017 and his stepping down from the Board on 26 july 2017,

. Derek Mapp joined the Board on 9 May 2017 as Chairman-elect and took over as Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committes at the AGM on 26 July 2017

Jack Boyer resgned from the Board on 31 August 2018

Jennifer Duvalier assumed the role of Char of the Remuneration Committee upon Jack Boyer's resignation.

Larry Hirst retired from the Board on 31 July 2018

Mark Recknt resigned from the Board on 31 july 2018,

Mary Reilly assumed the role of Chair of the Audit Committee upon Mark Rackitt's resignation,

. Roger Yates assumed the rofe of Senior Independent Director upon Larry Hirst's retirement.

N
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Base salary and benefits
Commencing | November 2016, and to be first reviewed in April 2020, the annual base salary for Phil Bentley s £900,000.

Commencing |3 November 2017, and reviewed in April 2018, the annua! base salary for Paul Woolf was £430,000. The review of Paul Woolf's base
salary in Aprif 2019 resulted in no change in base salary.

Benefits are as described in the notes to the Executive Direclor remuneration table on page 75. No changes in benefits are planned for the year ending
31 March 2020.

A review of Non-Exeautive Director fees was undertaken by the Board in March 2019 which resulted in no change to fees.

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Chairman fees? 228 25
Non-Exacutive Director core faes® 52 52
Additional fees:
Senior Independent Director : 7 7
Chair of a Committee 8 8
Notes:

1 ThecorefeesofLSl.{)OOpermnpadtoeuhNon -Executive Director (induding the Chairrnan) will total BII,OOOformezwmd%Jl March 2020. Total fees including
chatves are exp mmmcsoapooh—uu,ums March {£567. actual for the year ended 31 March 2019},

2. The Chairman's fee is inchasive of the Non-Extcutive Dncl.ormfeeandmaddnnnalfmmpﬂwwmmuhesdmrmmoramwberofmCmmm

3. ForNon-EmnMDmotml\d’md\nlhumhmkemdaddmﬂthslme!Mopmmm«mthmmmmﬂea
the greater responsibility and time required.

Annual Bonus Plan
Annual Bonus Plan awands were made in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019. Phil Bertley was eligible for a maximum bonus opportunity of 160%
of base salary and Paul Woolf was eligible for 2 maximum bonus opportunity of 120% of base satary

The awards were structured by reference to performance against a biend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets

{the remaining 30%). At the threshold level of performance for finandial targets, 25% of the maximum bonus opportunity is due, 50% of the maximum
bonus opportunity is due at the target level and (00% at the maximunm level. Between these points the out-tumn 15 determined on a linear sliding scale
basis.

As the financial performance ranges exduded the impact of IFRS 15 and acquistions and dispesals during the year. the performance ranges have been
adusted for these smpacts and the out-turn has been assessed by comparing the reported FY 18/19 results after the impact of IFRS 15, acquisttions and
disposats with the adjusted performance ranges:

Parformance Ad]usted

measure Weighting performnance range Out-turn
Operating profit' 35% of the award £79.5m threshold The out-turn was £88.2m resulting in an outcome of 100% of the maximum
£83.7m target for this element, being 35% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
£87.9m masimurn ‘
Revenue? 35% of the award £2.15bn threshold The out-turn was £2.22bn resulting in an outcome of 41.2% of the maximum
£2 26bn target for this element, being 14.4% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
£2.37on maxdmum
Customer Net 10% of the award + Ipts threshold The out-turn was +22pts resulting in an cutcome of 100% of the maximum
Promaoter Score + 3pts target for this elernent, being 10% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
+ Spts madmurm
Employee engagement 10% of the award + |ppts threshold The out-turn was +i 2ppts resulting in an outcome of 100% of the maximum
+ Ippts targer for this element, being 10% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
+ Sppts maximum
Individual strategic 0% of the award nia The Committee considered performance against the strategic objectives set
obyectives out betow and determined that the outturn was 100% and 90% of the
maximum for the CEO and CFO respectively. being 10% and 9% of the
maxinum bonus opportunity.
Notas:

I, Operating profit before other items from continuing operations.
2. Revenue from continuing operations.
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The individual strategic objectives set for the CEO and CFO were as follows:

CEO

Strategic objectives

Strategy Drive business development agenda, with a focus on exiting non-core businesses and adding technology capability:
Strengthen balance sheet 1o reduce average net debt: and
Head external messaging for Connected Workspace demonstrating its value to clients.

Customers Champion the embedding of unitary account management; and
Retertion of top accounts,

People Ensure leadership team stability and upgrade talent: and

Increase women recruited into Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) roles

Shareholder relations Mantain core shareholder support.

CFO

Strategic objectives

Costs Increase cash from the ‘order 10 cash’ working capital cyde and reduce finance costs from the organisation as part of Finance
transformation.

Pecple Upgrade finance talent measured by an increase in the number of GLT/igh-potential employees.

Customer/Technalogy Implement standard chart of accounts and unitary account management for Mitie’s top 50 integrated accounts.

The bonus structure and assessmer was as lollows:

Financial performance Non-financial performance Total bonus payable
%ol %X of % of %X of % of % of
paya::g pmm payabnl: ra{ u,l‘:y‘ payagl: :{ paya:;I: ;{ paya’blleh r:: saxh?: m Cash Def;“rr'e:;
threshoid target  maximum payable threshold target  maximum payable £000 £000 £000
Phil Bentley 28% 56% 112% 79% o% 214% 46% 48% 1143542 N7 571771
Paul Woolf 20% 2% BA% 59% 0% 18% 36% 35% 404609 202305 202304

The Annual Bonus Plan will be operated on similar terms for the year ending 31 March 2020. Phil Bentley’s maximum bonus opportunty for FY 19720 will
remain at $60% of base salary and Paul Woolf's at 120% of base salary. Awards will be payzble by reference to performance against a blend of financal
{70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets {the remaining 30%). However. if none of the financial targets have been achieved, no bonus will be
payable by reference only to the strategic targets, 50% of any bonus entitiement will be deferred. The targets are at present commercially sensitive and
so are not disclosed in this report. However, as above, details of the targets will be disclosed in next year's report.

LTIP awards granted in 2018 (subject to audit)
On 2 August 2018, the following conditional L TIP awards were granted to the Executive Directors:

Number  Face value Performance Performance % vesting
Aprd Type of shares' (L000) % of salary conditions period at thrashold
Phil Bentd 1180327 1,800 200%
i ey Performance Nik-cost 803 B Performance .
LTP Aug 18 optons conditions are Three financial 25%
Paul Woolf Performance Ni-cost 422950 645 150% setoutinthe 31 March 2008
LTIP Aug 18 options 1able below

Notes
1. Number of shares was calculated based on the average closng share price for up 1o five business days preceding the date of grant giving a share price of |52.50p

LTIP awards granted in 201B were simplified to two performance measures, adjusted EPS and cash conwersion, These awards will vest in 2021
conditional en performance against the following measures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the sward

measure Weighting Performance range {performance penod three years ending 31 March 2021)

Earnings Per 50% of 5% - 12% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth. as adjusted by the Committee as appropriate. is less than 5%
Share (EPS) the award pa. if EPS growth is equal 1o 5% pa, 25% of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of 8.5% pa, 70% of the award will vest If EPS growth of 12% pa or more is

achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 8.5% and 8.5% and 12%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be determined on a Inear sliding scale bass.

Cash conversion  50% of 75% — 85% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 75% pa. At 75% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest. 70% of the award will vest If Mitie achieves BO% pa cash conwersion. Full
vesting for this portion will oceur if 85% pa cash conversion is achieved. Between 75% and
80% and 80% and 85%. the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear
shding scale basis.

To reflect the impact of any changes in or adoption of new IFRS accounting standards, the Committee will consider adjusting financial targets
appropriately for subsisting LTIP awards, ensuring that they are not materially easier or harder to satisfy than the original targets Any amended targets
deterrmined by the Commttee will be disclosed to shareholders in the next Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

The grant of 2019 LTIP awards 10 the Executive Direclors will be made in due course. The performance conditions that apply to the awards follow
the same construct as in 2018 with two measures: (i} EPS; and (i} cash corversion, each accounting for 50% of the award with the followng
performance conditions:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measure ‘Weighting Performance range {performance perood three years ending 31 March 2021)

Earnings Per 50% of 5% - 10% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth. 2s adjusted by the Committee as appropriate, is less than 5%
Share (EPS) the award pa. i EPS growth is equal 1o 5% pa, 25% of the award wili vest. if Mitie achieves EPS

growth of 7.5% pa, 70% of the award will vest. If EPS growth of 10% pa or more is
achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 7.5% and 7.5% and 10%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be determined on a knear sliding scale basis.

Cash conversion  50% of BO% — 90656 pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than B0% pa. At 80% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves 85% pa cash conversion. Ful
vesting for Lhis porton will occur if 90% pa cash conwversion is achieved. Between B80% and
85% and 85% and 0%, the proportion of awards vesting witt be determined on a linear
shiding scale basis

Details of July 2016 LTIP awards vesting in July 2019
The Commitiee assessed the outcome of the July 2016 LTIP awards (based on FY [8/19 results before the impact of IFRS 15) granted under the plan
against a basket of performance measures:

Performance Vesung of poruon of the award

measure Waighung Performance range (performance period three years snding 31 March 2019)

Earnings Per 25% of 3% - 8% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committes as appropriate, is less than 3%

Share (EPS) the award pa. if performance 1s equal to 3% pa, 25% of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves EPS

growth growth of B% pa, all the awards will vest. Between these twe points the proportion of

awards vesting will be determuned on 2 linear skding scale basis.

Relative Total 0% of Qutperformance Zero vesting i Mitie’s TSR gravwth is less than the median of the index. if Mitie's TSR

Shareholder the award against the Business growth is equal to the median of the index, 25% of the award will vest and if it exceeds

Return (TSR} Support Services subsector  the index median TSR by 10% pa or more. all the awards will vest. Between these two
of the FTSE 350 points the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a inear skding scale basis.
Support Services index An underpin condition for undertying financial performance also applies.

Strategic 25% of Zero vesting if the strategic objectives are not met. Straight kne vesting batween 2ero

objectives the award and maximum based on Remuneration Committee assessment of performance against

Cash conversion  30% of 75% - 85% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 75% pa. At cash corwversion of 75% pa, 25% of

the award thmm»mm_?@xdmemmwmﬁﬁhieMushmﬁmdmp&

Full vesting for this portion will ocour if cash conversion of 85% pa is achieved. Between
75% and 80% and BO% and 85%. the proportion of awards vesbng will be determined ona
linear shding scale basis.

Following a review of actual performance, under a formulaic cutcome, there would have been no vesting under the EPS, TSR and strategic elements, and
some vesting under the cash conversion element. However, the Committee exercsed negative discretion and determined that these awards granted to
senior management should lapse in their entirety. N6 current Executive Director has July 2016 LTIP awards.

Details of November 2016 LTIP award vesting in 2020

Foliowing hrs appointment, Phil Bentley received an LTIP agward in November 2016. This award vests subject to the extent to which the annual bonus
targets that apply for FY 17/18, FY 18/19 and FY 1920 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns a bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is earned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned in all theee years. In any evert, no vesting will actually
occur until 2020, The bonus targets that applied for FYY 17/18 and FY 18/19 are deemed to have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three
years has been achieved 1o date.

Loss of office payments (subject to audit)

As set, out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2018, Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Dlnector of Mitie Group pic and took up the role of Chief Financial
Transformation Officer on 13 November 20(7. Full details of Sandip's departure terms were disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts and a
summary made available on the Company's website n the relevant Section 430(28) Companies Act 2006 statement.

Sandip left the employment of the Cornpany on 12 November 2018 as indicated.
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Payments to past Directors (subject to audit)
There have been no payments to past Directors durmg FY 18/19 that relate to their penod of employment as a Director.

Change in CEO pay for the year compared to UK salaried employees
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and Mitie’s LK salaried non-contract population, which s considered
the most appropriate group for comparison purposes.

X Salary Benefits Bonus
Chief Executive Officer 0.0% 425% Y
Average pay based on Mitie’s UK salaned non-contract employees' 783% 17 B7%* 194.26%
Notes:

I. Reflects the change m average annual pay for salanied non-contract UK employees employed the two financial years ended 31 March 2019, Salaried non-contract

employees are those wha are employed directly by Mitie Group and whose roles are not dedicated to the provision of chent services.
1 Indudes carfcar alttowance, priate medical beneflit and private fuel.
3. Phil Bentley voluntarily warnved the bomus payable in FY 17718

Relative spend on pay
The 1able below shows the total cost of remuneration in the Group. compared with dividends distributed

Year ended Year ended

31 March 201% 31 March 2018
&m m Change
Aggregate employee rermuneration 1,244 L1i9 112%
Equity dividends 14 5 180.0%

Assessing pay and performance

The table below provides a summary of the Chief Executive Officer's single figure remuneration over the past ten years, as well as the pay-out and
vesting levels of variable pay plans in relation to the maximum opportunity. The chart below shows the historical TSR performance over the same period.
These indhces (FTSE 250, FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350) have been chosen as they are widely recognised and Mitie has been a member of
these indices during the period:

TSR (Rebased to 100}
W00 —

350 —

300 [—

S0 —

00 —

150 —

100 A -
March 09 March 10 March 11 March 12 March 13 March 14 March IS5 March 16 March 1?7 March 18 March 19

e Mie = FT5E250 = = FTSE 35055 - = - FTSE 350

2017
Ruby 2017
. McGregor- Phil
20)0 01 012 013 X014 W15 pao [T Smith! Bentley' e 019

Single figure

remuneration £1,703031 £2324443 £2431,773 £2,105131 £1447266 £1525824 £2,448,161  £530428  £479073 £1,102545 {£2,248,948
Annual bonus

element (actual

asa % of max) 100% 100% 100% 85% 0% 50% 73% 0% waived waived T9%
LTIP element

(actual vesting

asa % of max) 1007% 10056 87.2% 572% 0% 25% £95% 0% nfa na nia

Note

I Ruby McGregor-Smith stepped down as Chiel Executive Officer on 12 December 2016 Phil Bentley joined the Board on | November 2016 and assumed the position of
Chuef Executive Officer on {2 December 2016, The figures above indude Phil Bentley's rermuneration from | November 2016,
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Share ownership (subject to audit)

Number of Percentage Percentage
shares Value of salary of target
owned as at of & Targe heldasat  achieved asat Compliance with share
31 March 2019* hm sharehokiing 31 March 2019 31 March 2015 ownership guidefines
Phil Bentiey? 1,999,749 £1,800,000 926328 43%% 216% Achieved
Paul Woolf* 48967 £860,000 552,841 18% 9% Not actveved but complart
Notes:
1, Inchudes shares owned by connected persorns.
2 Ve of target holding is 200% of base salary for Phi! Bentley. In accordance with Phil Benthey's service mhenoquredshamwoﬂhwﬂxofshqonllmmbermls

Has target shareholding s the value of his target holding divided by the share pece of 194.3p on 21 vabuzol

3. hmrdwnwuhtheComparvys ownership policy. Pleodfumq:mdmh;idmdmmndvmghwmwnmdvesudshreom-ﬂwehdd of 200% of
base salary. His tarpet muahxhledmmlhemragedowwwrepnced|55.6pforﬂzfmb\wmsdayspnortomsmdthefmnlyurmded | Mareh 2019,

Directors’ outstanding share interests (subject to audit)
Tne folowing 1ables prowde the outstanding share interests for the Executive Directors:

Directors’ interests granted under the LTIP

QOptions Options
outstanding Exerosed outstanding

Year of as at 3) March Grantedin Lapsed inyear asatdl M Exercise  Eariest normal
grant 2018 year® nyear 2019 price exarcise date®

Phi Bentley Nov 2016 89077 - - - 879,077 Ni-cost May 2020
MR 669393 - - - 649,393 Nil-cost il 2020

Aug 2018 - 1160327 - - 1,190,327 Ni-cost Aug 202

Paut woolf Nov 20172 143269 - - - 143,269 Nit-cost Nov 2020
Aug 2018 - 422950 - - 422,950 Nil-cost Aug 2021

Notet:

perfm\cec'nemappﬁablemmeNovembermlbwdmﬂwmwmmdnbmswmxnmmrmmﬂmmmll March 2020
IfPhlurnslborumonedthuevxs the award vests, 67% vests if a bonus is earned i two of the years and 100% vests if a bonus 8 carned in all three years.
The bonus targets that appbed for FY 17/ amdFYIBII9u¢deunedmhmbeennmmdMoreabmntwodmethmemnhasbeenm:vedwdne

2. The performance criteria applicable to the 2017 swards were duciosed in the previous Directors' Remnuneration Peport

3. The performance criteria apphcable to the 2018 awards are provided on page 77,

4. The market price of the Company’s shares asat 31 March 2019 was 1492p. The highest and lowest prices during the year were 196.8p and 105.8p respectively,
S Awards are subject 10 an additional two-year holding period.

Directors’ share ownership

Number of ordinary shares beneficlally owned Number of ordinary shares beneliciilly owred
as at 3| March 2019 (or date of cessation if earlier) as at 31 March 2018 (or date of appoimment if later)

Executive Directors
Phil Bentley 1,999,749 1,852,656
Paul Woolf 48,947 48967
Non-Executive Directors
Derek Mapp 140,000 140,000
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat 0 o
Jack Boyer' 5,000 5,000
Philippa Coutte [ ] 3]
Jenrufer Dhavaber 18,459 18,469
Larry Hirst? 15,000 25,000
Mark Reckitt? 4,000 4,000
Mary Reilly 11,708 0
Roger Yates 50,000 ]
Notes:

1. Jack Sayer resigned from the Board on 31 August 2018,
2. Larry Hirst retired from the Board on 31 july 2018,
3. Mark Reckitt resigned from the Board on 31 july 2018.
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Share dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guidetines of 10% of ssued ordinary share capital in respect of all employee schemes and 5% in
respect of discretionary schemes. In calculating compliance with these guidelines the Company allocates available headroom on a ten-year flat-line basis,
making adjustments for projected lapse rates and projected increases in issued share capital

LTIP and deferred bonus awards are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Group pk Employee Benefit Trust. The potential
dilution of the Comparny's issued share capital s set out below in respect of all awards granted in the last ten years under the Company's equity-based
incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the allatment of new shares or treasury shares.

Share dilution at 31 March 2019

. Diution
All share plans (maximum 1036) S.7%
Discretionary share plans {maxmum 5%) 23%

Shareholder voting

Mrbe remans committed to ongoing shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes, Where there ars substantial votes against
resolutions in relation to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Group seeks to understand the reasons for any such vote, and will detail here any
actions in response to it

A resolution to approve the Directors’ rei'nuﬂeratior; policy as set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2018 was passed at the Company's 2018 AGM.
At the Company's 2018 AGM, a resolution was passed to approve the 2018 Directors' remuneration report {exciuding the summary of the Directors’
remuneration policy). The results of the votes on these resolutions were as follows:

Vetes in Votes
Number of votes favour aguinst Withheld'
2018 Directors’ remuneration policy — 2018 AGM 2768m 08m Olm
99.7% 3% -
2018 Dvectors’ remuneration report — 2018 AGM 2458m 31.0m 09m
888% 11.2% -

Note:
| Votes withheld 2re not counted m the calculation of the proportion of votes lor or against a resolution.

Remuneration Committee and its advisors
The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneraton adwisors where appropriate.

In September 2017, following a retender process and the resignation of Deloitte LLP as Mitie's auditor, the Committee appointed Deloitte LLP as
independent remuneration advisors The adwisors attended Commitiee meetings and provided advice and analysis of executive remuneration. During
their tenure, the advisors provide no other services to the Company (save in relation to services connected to executive remuneration and share plans)
and also comply with the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants. The advisors’ total cost of advice to the Committee for the year was £57.950
{(such fees being charged n accordance with their standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the advisors and was satisfied that the adwice the Committee received from them was objective
and independent, given that they provided no other services to the Company.
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Directors’ report: other disclosures

Directors’
report

The Directors present thewr Annual Report. together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group. for the year ended
31 March 2019

The Directors’ report required under the Companies Act 2006
comprises the corporate governance statement on pages 53 10 69,
with both the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 7010 81
and Strategic report on pages | 10 48 incorporated by reference.
The torporate governance staternent on pages 53 to €9 fulfils the
requirement under Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of
the Financial Conduct Authority (DTR) 7.2.1.

For the purposes of DTR 4.1.8R. the management report for the year
ended 31 March 2019 compnses the Strategic report and thes Directors’
report.

Listing Rule (LR) 9.8.4
The information required to be disclosed by LR 9.8.:4 can be found in the
folowing locations:

Page relerence

Directors’ remuneration report on

Detalls of any long-term
pages 70 to Bl and Note 31 to the

incentive schemes

consohdarted financial statements
Shareholder waiver Directors' report: other disdosures
of dividends and on page B5

future dividends

No shareholder is considered a controlling shareholder as defined in
the Financial Conduct Authortty Handbook.

The remaining disclosures required by LR 9.8.4 are not applicable to
the Company.

Principal Group activities

The Company is the holding company of the Group and its principal
activity s 10 provide management services to the Group, The Group's
activities are focused on the provision of strategic outsourcing

services, further details of which can be found on pages 4 and 5 of

the Strategic report.

The Cormpany does not have any branches registered overseas, but

the Company’s subsidiaries have registrations/branches across the Unrted
Kingdom,. Republic of Ireland, Guernsey, |ersey, Belgium, Fintand. France,
Germany, Ghana, Kenya, the Netherlands, Nigeria, Norway, Poland,
Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United Arab Emirates.
Details of the Comparny's subsdiaries are se1 out in Note 35 1o the
consolidated finandal statements.

Given the nature of its activities, no material research and development
work is carried out by the Group.

The Board's view on the likely future development of the Group is set
out inthe Strategic report on pages | to 48, -
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Board of Directors
The names of all persons who served as Drrectors of the Company at

any twme during the year are set out on page 56.

Full biographical details, including Committee membership and external
appointmenits, are set out on pages 5010 52.

The Board considered the independence of all Non-Executive
Directors during the year and determined that, as at 31 March 2019,
all Non-Executive Directors continued to be independent in mind and
judgement, and free from any material relationship that could interfere
with their ability to discharge their duties eflectively.

Director appointments

The rules governing the appointment and replacement of Directors are
set out in the Company's Articies of Association {the Articles), the Code,
the Compames Act 2006 and other retated legislation

Directors’ conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Articies, the Board has a policy on the declaration
and managemer of Directors’ conflicts of interests. Arny potential
situation or transactional conflict must be reported as soon as possible
to the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and General Counsel &
Comparny Secretary. Where a potential confhict is authorised under
statutory powers and powers granted under the Articles. such conflict

1s kept under ongoing review.

Exeautive Directors are permutted to accept apporitments outside

the Group provided that permission is sought from the Chairman

and Chief Executive Cfficer and that the additional responsibikties

do not interfere with the Director's ability to discharge histher duties
eflectively, Executive Directors are entitled to retain fees earned from
any external appointments. Nerther Phil Bentley nor Paul Woolf held
any external positions during FY 18/19. External positions held by the
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are detailed in their biographies
on pages 50 to 52

indemnification of Directors and insurance

The Directors and the Company Secretary benefit from an indemnity
provision under the Articles. In addition, alf Directors and the General
Counsel & Company Secretary have been granted a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006, which has been in force throughout the year
and remains in force as at the date of this report.

Certain subsidiary directors have also been granted a qualifying
third-party indemnity provision which has been in force throughout
the year and remains in force as at the date of this report.

The Group maintains directors’ and officers' liability insurance which

prowides appropriate cover for any legal action brought against the
Group's drectors and/or officers.




Articles of Association

The Artides were adopted at the 2017 AGM. Anyy future amendment
1o the Articles must be made in accordance with their provisions, the
Companies Act 2006 and related legislat:on. The Articles are available
at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

Share capital

The Group s financed through equity share capital and debt instruments.
Detaiks of the Company’s share capital are given in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statemertts. Details of the Group's debt nstruments
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Cornpany has a single class of shares divided into ordinary shares
of 2.5 pence each (Ordinary Shares). The Ordinary Shares are entitied
to one vote each per share at general meetings and have no right to any
fixed income.

In accordance with the Artides, holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled
to participate in any dividends pro-rata to thewr holding. The Board may
propose and pay interim dividends and recommend a final dividend to
shareholders for approval at an AGM. A final dividend may be declared
by the shareholders at an AGM by ordinary resolution, but such dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

Powers of the Company to issue or buy back

its own shares

The Company did not allot any Ordinary Shares during the year,
undertake any market purchases of rts own shares or distribute any
shares from treasury. Exercisable awards under the Mitie Group plc 2011
Save As You Earn Scheme and Mitie Group plc 2001 and 2011 Executive
Share Option Schemes were underwater during the year, and no awards
were exercised The total number of Ordinary Shares held by the
Comparny in treasury as at 31 March 2019 remained unchanged at
7,748,108 (representing 2.1% of the issued share capital of the Company).

At the 2018 AGM, shareholders authorised

_* The Drectors to allot Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate nominal

amount of £914,842.64, representing 10% of the issued share capital

{excluding treasury shares) as at |12 June 2018;

The des-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to an

aggregate nominal value equal to £457421.32. equating to 5% of Mitie's

issued share capital (excluding treasyry shares) and 4.90% of the issued

share capital including treasury shares, each as at 12 june 2018,

The dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to

an aggregate nominal value of £45742).32, equating to 5% of Mitie's

1ssued share caprtal (excluding treasury shares) and 4.90% of the issued

share capital including treasury shares, each as at 12 june 2018, in

connection with the financing (or refinancing, f the authority is to be

used within sox months of the original transaction) of an acquisition or

specified capital mvestment; and

* The Company to make market purchases of its own shares up to
atotat of 36,593,706 Ordinary Shares {representing 10% of the ssued
share capital as at 12 june 2018 (excluding treasury shares)).

These authorities will expire on the earlier of 30 September 2019 or
the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. A renswal of these authorities will
be put to shareholders at the 2019 AGM. Further details can be found
in the notes te the relevant meeting nitice which can be found on
Mitie's websrte.

Restrictions on the transfer of shares

The Compary is not aware of any agreements between holders of its
securities which may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities
or voting rights. No person has any special rights of control over the
Company’s share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of any shareholding or
on the iransfer of shares, which are both governed by the provisions
of the Articles.

Certain Ordinary Shares previously issued in consderation for the
acquisition by the Company of shares held by minority shareholders

in subsidiaries of the Group under the Mitie Mode| have contractual
restrictions placed upon them. These restrictions prevent recipients
from selling those Ordmary Shares andfor attach clawback provisions,
which typicatly apply for a maximum penod of two years from allotment.

Under Mitie’s Rules on Share Dealing, persons with access to certain
confidential company information or inside mformation are required

to follow a clearance to deal procedure and may be restricted from
dealing in the Company's shares. Persons subject to these requirements
are notified individually and appropriately informed of the rules.

Significant interests in the Company’s share capital
As at 31 March 2019 the Company had been notified of significant
holdings of voting rights in its Ordinary Shares under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules as set out beiow

X of share

capital at che

Number of date of

Ordinary Shares notification

Silchester Internatonal Investors LLP 62210238 1700%
Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen pic 53532508 14.63%
MR LLC 19717936 538%
Harris Assocates LP. 18393003 S.12%
Brandes lnvestment Partners LP 18,117,242 5.05%
Heronbridge 18366728 500%

Changes that occurred between the end of the period under review and
5 June 2019, the latest practcable date prior 10 the date of this report,
are set cut below.

% of share

capital ac the

Number of date of

Ordinary Shares notificstion

Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen pk 56,214,197 1536%

Directors' interests in the Company's share capital are set out in the
Directors' remuneration report on page 80
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Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Dialogue with shareholders

The Board is committed to ongoing and proactive dialogue wrth
shareholders. A full programme of formal and informal events,
institutional investor meetings and presentations is held throughout the
year. This programme of shareholder engagement aims to ensure that
the performance, strategies and objectives of the Group are clearly
communicated to the investment community and provide a forum for
institutional shareholders to address any corporate governance issues.
The programme is led by the Executive Drrectors with support from the
Investor Relations team. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is made aware of any issues and concerns of major shareholders.

The Company acknowledges that there was a significant minority vote
against one resolution at the 2018 AGM which related to the election

of Mary Reilly as a Non-Executive Director. 76.26% of votes cast were in
favour of this resolution. The majority of the votes received against were
attributable to one of the Company’s major sharehaolders whose polcy
i Mot 1o support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
positions with other companies or organisations. Non-executive
directors holding a position of chair of an audit committee are also not
expected to hold more than one other position. Mary Reilly currently
holds external appointments as set out in her biography on page 52.
Members of the Board met with the major shareholder and have sought
1o provide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate to her
duties. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, regularty
reviews and considers the time commitments for each Director to
ensure there are no concerns regarding overcommitment. The Board
remains confident that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate to her duties,

The Board is regularly kept informed of any investor feedback,
stockbroker updates and detailed analyst reports. The Head of investor
Relations also updates the Board at every Board meeting as set out
under Board activities on page 57.

The Chairrnan and Senior Independert Director are available to meet

with sharehokders upon request. All Directors were present at the 2018
AGM and will attend the 2019 AGM.

Mitie has a specific area dedicated to investor relations on its
website {(www.mitie.com) where the items below are made available
to shareholders.

* Latest Group nformation;

* Finandal reports;

= Corporate povernance and sustainability matters,

* Half-year and full-year results presentations:

= Major shareholder information, and

= Al regylatory announcements.

Annual General Meeting

Shareholders are invited 1o attend Mitie’s 2019 AGM, which will be held
on 30 July 2019 at 11.30 am at Linklaters LLP, One Silk Street, London
EC2Y 8HQ.

Employee involvement
Details of how Mitie encourages employee involvement can be found m
the Strategic report on pages 34 to 37.
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Diversity and inclusion

The Board 1s responsible for driving the diversity agenda throughout

the Group. Dunng the yaar the Board adopted the Board Inclusion Policy
as an extension to its existing Group-wide fnclusion Policy. The Board
Inclusion Policy includes 2 commitment to maintaining a minimum of

30% fernale representation on the Board as recormmended by the
Hampton-Alexander review, provided that this remains consistent with
the skills and diversity requirements when seeking a new appointment to
the Board. Female representation on the Board increased from 36% at
the start of the year 1o 50% as at 31 March 2019.

The Group's approach to business is underpinned by a belief that

all individuals should be treated fairly and have access to equal

opportunities. To attract, recruit. develop and retain the very best

people at all levels, Mrte is committed to respecting and ernbracing talent

and working ta support a culture that is indusive and reflective of Mitie's

visions and values. Cbjectives of Mitie's Group-wide Indusion Policy

include that:

= No job applicant or employee will receive less favourable treatment
on the grounds of sex, race, age, ethnic ongin, martal status,
pregnancy and maternity, civil partnership status, any gender
re-assignment, religon or belief, sexual orentation, disability or
part-timefixed-term work;

+ Inclusion, equality and diversity will be promoted within the
workplace: and

» An environment wil be created where anyone believing they have
been subjected to discrimination, victinisation, bullying or harassment
in the workplace, is entitied and feels safe to raise such concerns.

In implementing the policy, Mitie:

+ Ensures that all polidies, processes, procedures and practices underpin
dehvery of the Inclusion Policy;

= Cascades jessons learned and shares best practice throughout the
business; and

* Identifies key issues and recommends any changes.

During FY 18/19 five diversity networks were established. The networks

host a variety of face-to-face and virtual events and comtribute to online
platforms designed to mteract and share ideas.

Diversity networks

Enable Raises awareness of disability-related topics across
the business, while offering support and guidance to
colieagues and line managers

Engender ‘Works to engender equality for men and women
at Mitie

Ganer Supports Mitie's age-diverse workforce

Kaleidoscope Ensures an indusive working environment for people of
all ethnicities, and above all, ing Mitie'’s BAME
{Black. Asian and Minority Ethnic) talent across the
business o succeed

Prowd To Be Is all aboun educating, informing and inspiring Mitie

employees to be themselves by promating an inclusive
culture in the workplace, particularly 2round LGBTQ

In connection with the Group's wider dversity saatrves and Inclusion
Policy, Mitie s cormmitted to:

» Giving full and fair consideration to applications for employment
by disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilbes:
+ Continuing the ermployment of, and arranging appropriate training for,
emplayees who have become disabled during their employment, and
* The traning of, career development and promotion of
disabled employees.

In recognition of Mitie’s diversity-related initiatives, Mitie was named
17th in the Excellence in Diversity Awards Inclusive Top 50 UK
Employers in November 2018.




Culture

The 'Mitie Way' of doing business and 'One Mitie’ unitary approach of
working with chents continues to be advanced, The Mitie Way has many
elements to it inchuding purpose, vision, culture, values and branding, and
covers all aspects of the business, from ‘who we are’ to ‘what we do’ and
‘howwe do it

Greenhouse gas emissions

Mitie is committed to reducing s carbon emissions and environmental
impact and has been actively recording and managing greenhouse gas
ermussions {GHG) since 2010, when an ambitious target to reduce

Scope | and Scope 2 carbon footprint intensity by 35% was set.

Absolute emissions

The Group continues to report total GHG emissions annually using the
finangial control approach. The methodology used aligns with Defra’s
Environmental reporting guidelines and uses the Government's GHG
reporting conversion factors 1o quantify emissions.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Mrtie had reduced its enmissions
ntensity by 374% against its FY 09/10 baseline and 4.1% against FY 17418,

Absclute emissions have also decreased by 19.5% against the FY 09/10
baseline and 3.8% against FY |17/18.

Charge Change
FY 09110 nst
Emesions {basedine) FY 1218 Fy 189 bas:é;% FY 17/18'%
Total Scope | tCO,e)* 41,3403 35974 35,230 -14.8% 1%
Emissions from fuel combustion across fleet 40277 35272 ' 34688 -139% -1.7%
Emissions from gas combustion at occupied buildings (excluding landlord sites) 1,066 702 542 49 2% -228%
Total Scope 2 (tCO¢) i 3,490 1,524 857 -75.4% 43.8%
Emissions from the purchase of electricity across occupied buildings
{excluding landltord sites) 1490 1524 857 -75.4% A38%
Total Scope | & 2 (tCO.¢) 44,933 37,498 36,087 -195% 38%
Intensity
Change Change
FY 08HO agamnst aﬁamﬂ
Emussions ravo (baseline) Fy 1718 FY 1819 basefine % FY 1718%
tCO e/Lm revenue (Scope | & 2) 2607 §7.02 16.32 =37.4% -4,1%

* Refrgerant data has been exduded due to dificutties obtaining acturate data on landiond managed sites, howwever, this data is not considered material

Mitie's efforts to reduce its carbon emssions focus on reducing the impact of its fleet, which contributes 96% of its total Scope | and Scope 2 footprint.
Mitie has pledged to run at least 20% of its company small van and car fleet using electric vehides by 2020, A fleet transformation project is underway to
standardise current vehicles with newer, more efficient vehicles. Part of this project has been to ensure that all commerdial vehicles are installed with

telematics to improve driver behaviour,

Further information on these calculations can be found in the GHG methodology statement available on cur website www.mitie.com

Environmental data

Further details on the Group's ervironmental performance can be found in the table below:

200910 E;ﬁ s
(baseline) 201718 201819 baseline %  previous year %
Energy
Electricity consumed across occupied buildings (kWh) 9091141 540,091 3417.254 -£24% -38.3%
Gas consumed across occupied buikdings (kwWh) 7980537 4949461 3,261,106 59.1% <34 1%
Fue! used by fleet for business travel (KWh) 184,088,382 154681.158 148488776 -193% -40%
Total organisational energy < nption (kWh) 201,150,060 165,170,710 155,167,136 -22.9% 4.1%
Water
Water consumed across occupied buildings (m?) 29306 W12 28,106 -4.1% -298%
Waste
Total waste to landfil (lonnes) 9BY 336 231 766% -31.2%
Total waste recycled {tonnas) 447 541 37t -17.08 -314%
Total waste generated across accupied buildings (tonnes) 1,438 877 602 -58.1% -30.4%
Recydling rate 31% 62% 62% +31 ppts -
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Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Political donations

Mitie has a long-standing policy of not making any polrical donations.
However, it is possible that ¢ertan routine activities (including charitable
donations) undertaken by Mitie might unintentionally fall within the wide
definition of payments constituting political donations and expenditure
as set out in the Compames Act 2006. At the 2018 AGM shareholders
granted the Company and its subsidiaries authority to make poltical
donations up 1o a total aggregate cap of £50,000 until the 2019 AGM.

A renewal of this authority will be put to shareholders at the 2019 AGM.

Significant agreements — change of control

There are a number of agreements with provisions that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of control of the Company, such as bank
facility agreements and cther financial arrangements and employee share
scheme rules. None of these are considered to be significant in terms of
their likely impact on the normal course of business of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any agreements between the Comparyy and
its Directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occurs solely because of a change of control.

Financial results

A detailed commentary on the operational and financial resuits of the
Group for the year 1s contained within the Strategic report, induding
the Finance review on pages 22 to 25.

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations for the
financial year was £36.4m {2018: £154m loss).

Dividends

An interim dividend of 1.33p per Ordinary Share (2018: 1.33p) with
atotal value of £4.8m (2018: £4.8m) was paid to shareholders on
12 February 2019.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 2.67p per Ordinary Share
(2018: 2.67p) with a total value of £9.6m (2018: £9.6m) based upon the
rmber of shares in issue as at 5 June 2019. Subject 1o approval at the
2019 AGM. the final dividend will be paid on 9 August 2019 to
shareholders on the register as at close of business on 28 june 2019,

The final dividend of 2,67p per share recommended by the Directors for
the year ended 31 March 2018 was replaced by an interim dividend of
2.67p declared by the Directors on 31 July 2018 as the Nctice of 2018
AGM omitted a resclution seeking shareholder approval of the final
dividend.

The total dividend per Ordnary Share for the year ended 31 March 2015
will be 4.0p (2018: 4.0p).

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had distributable reserves of £64.6m
(2018: £117.5m).

Mitie operates a Dividend Re-investrment Plan {DRIP) which allows
shareholders 1o use thewr cash dividend to purchase additional Ordinary
Shares, Further detail on the operation of the DRIP and how to apply
can be found on page 1656 and are avadable from Mitie'’s Registrar, Link
Asset Services.

The trustees of the Company's Employee Benefit Trust waived dividends
payable during the year and have agreed to waive future dividends.

In accordance with Section 726 of the Companies Act 2006. no
dividends are paid on shares held in treasury.
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Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments include bank borrowing facilties,
finance leases, overdrafts, US private placement loan notes and
derivatives which are used to manage interest, currency and other
risks when necessary or material.

The principal objective of these instruments is 1o raise funds for general
corporate purposes and to manage financial risk. Further details of these
instruments are given in Note 23 to the consoidated financial staternents,

Statement of the Directors In respect of the

Annual Report and Accounts

In accordance with the Code, the Directors confirm that they consider
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and that it provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's posiion and performance, business
model and strategy. When arriving at this position the Board was assisted
by varicus processes mcluding the following:

¢ The Annual Report and Accounts is drafted by senior management
with overall coordination by the General Counsel & Company
Secretary 10 ensure consistency aaross the relevant sections,

* A review is undertaken to assess whether the Annual Report and

Accounts is fair, balanced and understandable using a set of
pre-defined indicators (such as consistency with internally reported
nformation, investor comrunications and relatve performance in the
industry):

* Comprehensive reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and Accounts
are undertaken by the Executwve Directors and other senior
management: - .

* An advanced draft is reviewed by the General Counsel & Compary
Secretary and external advisors; and

* The final draft is reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to
consideration by the Board.

Details of the basis on which the Company generates and preserves
value over the ionger term and the strategy for delivering the Company's
obgectives are set out in the Strategic report.

Golng concern

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Coundil’s ‘Guidance
on Risk Management, internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporting’ ssued in September 2014. The Directors have considered
principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group which are described
on pages 3810 46.

The Directors have considered the Group's financial position which
incorporates the Parent with reference 1o latest forecasts and
the actual performance for the periad. The Group benefits from a
well-diversified portfolio of service offenings and has a broad, diverse
customer base.

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants
associated with its committed fundng Ines. These include £191.5m of
US Private Placement debt maturing in December 2019, December
2022 and Decernber 2024. The Group also benefits from a2 committed
muhti-currency revolving credit facikity of £275.0m. which will mature in
July 202!, Together with the US Private Placements, this gives the Group
total committed funding of £466.5m, of which £221.9m was undrawn at
31 March 2019



The Group's US Private Placement and bank debt contain certain
financial covenants. The primary ratios are net debt to EBITDA and
EBITDA to net finance costs. These covenants are tested on a rolling
12-month basis as a1 the March and September reporting dates.

At 31 March 2019, both covenant tests were passed. The Group is
forecasting to remain within its banking covenants over the next
twelve months and has stress-tested these cajculations for reasonable
posaible adverse variances in trading and cash performance.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to tontinue in operational existence
for 2 period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. Accordingly. the Group and Parent Company
continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing

the consolidated financial statements.

Viability statement
This statement is detailed in full on pages 47 and 48.

In accordance with the Code, the Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period to 31 March 2022 takng into
account the Group's current position and the potential impact of the
principal risks set out n the Strategic report. Based on this assessment
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group is and will
continue to be viable.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each Director in office as at the date of this Directors’ report
confirms that.

* Sofar as he/she 15 aware, there 1§ rno relevant audrt nformation
of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and oo

* Helshe has taken all the steps that he/she gught to have.taken asa, -
Director to make himselffherself. aivare ofarfy ilevint. =+ 1
audit nformation and to establish that the Company's audrtor 18 aware
of that information.

This statement is given, and should be interpreted in accordance with,
Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

By order of the Board

Peter Dickinson
General Counsel & Company Secretary
5 June 2019

S
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Directors’ report: statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect

of the Annual Report, the remuneration report and

the financial statements

The Directors are responsidle for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial staternents in accordance wrth applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare financial statements for
each finandaf year. Under that law the Directors are required to prepare
the Group finandial statements in accordance with Intermnational Finandal
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) including FRS 101 Reduced Disciosure Framework.

Under compary law, the Directors must not approve the financial
statemenits unless they are satisfied that these give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or
loss for the period.

In preparing these finandal statements, the Directors are required to.

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistantly;
* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable,
reievant, rehiable and prudent;

For the Group financial statements, state whether they have been

prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial staternents; ‘

For the Company financal statements, state whether applicable

United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed,

subject to any material departures disclosed and exphined in the

financial statements;

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the Group or Compary will
continue in business;

* Prepare a Directors’ report, a Strategic report and Directors'
remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are resporsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Cornpany’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that its financial stnements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Fhe Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, are far, batanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for sharehoiders to assess the Group's
position and performance, business model and strategy.
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Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the Annua! Report and
the finandial statements are made avallable on a website. Financial
statemenits are publshed on the Company's website in accordance
with legisiation in the United Kingdomn governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staternents, which may vary from legislation
in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Company's
website is the responsibikty of the Directars. The Directors’
responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial
statements cortained therein.

Directors’ responsibilities pursuant to DTR4.1
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge:

= The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union and Articie 4 of the IAS Regulation and give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, finandal position and profit
and loss of the Group; and

* The management report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the financial posrion of the
Group and the Company, together with a description of the peincipal
risks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board

Phil Bentley Paul Woolf

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
5 june 2019 S june 2019
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Improwving our employment offer to our
colleagues has been a key focus of the
past year as we look to consolidate our
position as one of the UK's most dynamic,
forward-thinking and sustainable facilizes
ment companies. In FY 18/19 we
launched People Hub - a single source for
all pecple-related matters — and Learning
Hub to further gur colleagues’ careers.

(@® Read mere on PG 34-37

—— ———
top 50 UK core values that
employers drive our business
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Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Mitie Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financal statements of Mitie Group pk: (the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2019
which comprise the Consolidated Income Staternent, the Consolidated Statement of ive income, the Consolidated and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company Staternerts of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flows and the Notes

to the finandal statemerts, inchuding a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied n the
preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union. The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in the preparation of the Parert Company financial staternents is applicable aw and
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Practice, inchuding Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disdosure Framewark’ (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the Group's profit for the
year then ended;

* the Group financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

= the Parent Company finandal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accourting
Practice; and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, a5 regards the Group financial
statements, Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under thase
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report We are independent of
the Group and the Parent Cornparnyy in accondance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the finandial statements in the UK,
induding the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to ksted public interest entites, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bass for our opinion,

Condusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement
We have nothing to report in respect of the following information in the antwal report. in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you
whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to!

* the discosures in the annual report set out on pages 38 to 46 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

s the Directors’ confrmanonsetot.nmpage47|nﬁemnudmpu1tmmhvewTEdMamhstmnofﬂewm&argﬂ\e
Group, including those that would threaten s business model, future performance, solvency or hquidity:

» the Directors’ statement set cut on page B8 in the financial staternents about whether the Dwectors considered it appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financal statements and the Directors’ identification of any matenal uncertainties to the Group and
the Parent Company's ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements;

» whether the Directors’ statement relating to going concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Ruie 2.8,6R(3) s materially
inconsistert with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

* the Directors’ explanation set cut on pages 47 and 48 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
pericd they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including
any related disdosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Key audit matters
A summary of our key audit matters and the assessment against prior year is as folkows'

Rask Rask consistant with prooe year

Appropriateness of revenue recognition Yes — incorporates compliance with IFRS 15 in current year
Contractual matters and provisions Yes —with spedfic contractual matters being considered in each year
Recoverability of trade recenables and accrued income Yes

Acquisition of Vision Security Group New nsk following current year acquistion
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The prior year key audit matters also induded the transition to IFRS |5, presentation of other items in the consolidated financial staternertts and
impairment of goodwill in the Property Managemertt division.

Whilst compliance with IFRS |5 remams a risk in respect of revenue recognition, following adoption in the prior year the key audit matter in respect
of transition i no longer applicable. In addition, the Social Housing business within the Property Management division has been disposed of in the year
ard therefore impaimment of goodwill relating to the division is no longer considered to be a key audit matter,

With the exception of a £200m provision being required in respect of a Section 75 pension liability (see Notes 4 and 32), the quantum of amounts
recorded as other itemns and the level of judgement reduced, this is therefore no konger considered to be a key audit matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the currert
period and inchude the most significant assessed rsks of material misstaterment (whether or not due to fraud) that we identtified induding those which
had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters were ackdressed in the context of our audit of the financal statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

Appropriateness of revenue recognition
Key Audk Matter

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the Auit’

Following the adoption of IFRS |5 in the prior year, the level of
wawmwﬂwwmrapectofmmeandpmm
recognition has significantly reduced.

There rernains however an assessment of new and modified contracts to
ensure compliance with IFRS |5 as well as the aut-off risk in respect of
recognition of accrued income. Unbilled accrued income at the year-end
totalled £132.6m (see Note (5).

The accounting polides and arttical judgernents applied are disdased n
Nortes | and 2.

Judgements include:

¢ |merpretation of contract terms;
Awess’wﬂofrevenuerecogwedmrwedofpropdsw:than
over time revenue recognition requirement;

+ Mobilisation and pre-contract costs capabie of being capitalised; and

* Assessment of revenue recognition based on performance obligations
being achieved

‘We completed the following awdit procedures:

+ Reviewed the basis of revenue ised against the
requirements of IFRS |5 and challenged and where necessary
corroborated to undertying audit evidence the key judgements
made by managernent; ‘

¢ Tested a sample of new and modified contracts in the year to
confirm revenue recognrtion in accordance with IFRS 15;

+ Obtained a sample of contracts to confirm that ficed revenue
had been appropriately recognised induding recakulating the
expected revenue for the year;

. Testedasampleofcomractrelatedassetstowppomng
documentation to ensure reverwe had been recognised in line
with IFRS |5;

* For specific divisional revenue streams we tested the operating
effectiveness of controks induding the testing of [T controls over
key operating systems and

+ Tested a sample of acorued income balances to supporting
docurmentation, which induded procedures such as: assessing
proof of works; confirming customer acceptance; reviewing
customer correspondence; and ensuring cut-off had been
appropriately applied.

Recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income
Key Audit Matuer

Howr we arkdressex the Key Audit Matter inthe Audit

Material amounts of the billed and unbilled work remain outstanding for
more than three months as resolution of cpen issues remans ongoing on
various contracts.

The aged nature of these balances increases the risk of recoverability,
particularty where there is disagreement or dispute.

Trade receivables and accnued incorme are disclosed inNote (5 to the
financial staterents. Credit risk associated with trade receivables i discosed
in Note 23 to the finarial statemnents.

In addftion, in the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 9 *Finandil
Instruments’, which includes the requirements to determine the prowision
for expected credit losses. This has resulted in a pre-tax adjustment to
opening reserves and recenables of £25m.

There 15 significant management judgement involved in assessing the
recoverability of these balances, talang into consideration the Group's
contractual rights, available evidence of work perforrned, as well as the
status of ongoing commerndial negotiations.

This judgermnent s compounded by systerm limitatiors within the Engineering
division which require a manual ageing of unbilled acarued income balances,
increasing the risk of error,

For a sampie of these balances we have challenged the validity
of the recorded debtors and acaued income as well as the
completeness of provisions and expected credit losses by a
number methods induding:

¢ Where possible, conﬁm-lingaged balances to
post year-end cash receipts;

* Examining dient approval of works orders or
contractual commitments;

» Reviewing evidence of work performed and status
of negotiations,

+ Testing the acouracy of ageing of trade receivable and
accrued income (induding the manual ageing requirement
inthe Engingering division);

+ Reviewing in-house legal counsel reports for any
material disputes;

* Scrutinising the methodology and assumptions used in
calculating the expected credit loss prowsion; and

* Analytical procedures to consider consistency in the
provisioning methodclogy to the prior year.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Contractual matters and provisions
Keey Audit Matier

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the Audit

Under the terms for the disposal of the Social Housing business the
Group retained specific contractual liabilities and provided certain
indemnities to the buyers relating to dosed contracts.

‘Whilst certain liabiities have now been settied in full there remain
cortractual matters that require significant judgenent in estimating the
quartum of provisions required.

There is a risk that the prowvisions included as contract specific costs and
disposal indemnnities in Note 19 and also disclosed within other items in
Note 4 are not complete.

We examined the Social Housing disposal documentation and held
discussions with in-house legal counsed to confirm the contractual
liabilities retained and indernnibes given.
We!mrereadmtenﬂa:ﬂedemaldoummtzﬂontoevaluateﬂwe
reoordedtoens.uretheyarerrmullyoomplebeand
correcﬂycalcu
For all matters we have reviewed the disclosures included in the
finandal staternents to ensure that they are complete and ako fair,
balanced and understandable.

Acquisition of Vision Security Group
Key Audt Matter

Howr we addressed] the Key Audit Matter in the Audit

During the year, the Group acquired Vision Security Group Limited for net
consideration of £82m.

There are several pxdgemental areas in the accounting for the acquisition
induding

+ Fair value of consideration, specifically related to an adjustment of
£5.28m being recorded prior to reaching a final agreement of the
completion accounts with the sellers;

» Fair value of the opening aoquisition balance sheet assets and kabities;

* Adoption of IFRS 9 and |5 into the opening acquisition balance
sheet, and

» Valuation and the useful economic life of the separately identifiable
customer relationship intangible asset.

In determining the completion accounts adjustrnents and arriving at

their best estimate, managerment have obtained third-party accounting

and legal support.

The transadtion resulted in a gain in bargain purchase of £8.8m which has

been recorded as a gredit within the income staterment.

The Group's accounting policy for business combinations is disciosed in

Nate |, the judgements made in Note 2 and further detail concerning the

Owr audit procedures ncluded:

* With the support of our internal speciafists we assessed
the fair value of consideration, specifically in respect of the
complebon accounts adjustments made by management.
This inchuded reviewing management papers and judgements,

the sale and purchase agreemerts, corespondence with the
vendors and third-party reports obtained by management to
support their assessment:

+ Substantively audited acquisition net book values of assets
and Kabilities and resulting fair value adjustments induding the
adoption of IFRS 9 and 15; and

= Wth the support of our internal valuation specalists we
challenged the key inputs, assumptions and methodology
used by managernent in determnining the fair values of
|ntargibleamasacquumd

In light of the assessed gain on bargain purchase we chalienged

management on its recognition.

‘We have also revewed the relfevant disclosure in the financial

statements to assess compliance with the requirements of IFRS 3

and ako the disdosure in Note 2 of the significant estimates and

judgements made.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit and in evaluating the effect of misstaterents. We consider materiality
10 be the magnitude by which misstatements, induding omissions, could nfluence the economic dedisions of reasonable users that are taken on the

basis of the financial statements. Importartly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaternial as we also take account
of the nature of identified misstaternents and the particutar circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial statements

asawhole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Group financdial statemertts to be £3.8m and for the Parent Company to
be £29m Perfonmance matenality, based on our assessmert of past misstaternents and the control environment was caleulated based on 70% of

our mateniality.

The materiakty we applied in respect of the Group financial statements equates to 5% of continuing profit before other ftems and tax. Parert Compary
materiality was set at 19 of net assets, and capped at 75% of Group materiality.

We consider the use of 5% of continuing profit before other iterns to be the most performance measure for the basis a5 it removes the
impact of certain one-off or ttemns impacting the undertying profit of the Group and is also a key measure for stakeholders. Other iterns are
detailed in Ncte 4 to the Group financial statemnents.

We set companent materiality between £0.9m and £2.6m based on the overall size and respective risk of each component.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £190,000 as well as differences below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also reported to the Audit Committee on disdosure matters that we
identified when assessing the overall presentation of the finandal statements,
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An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group operates through a number of legal entities, which form reporting components — the reporting components are consistent with the
segmenttal analysis as disdosed in Note 3 to the finandal statermentts with the exception of Vision Security Group which is treated as a separate
component for audit purposes but forms part of the Security division within the segmental analysis. Alt components were subject to full scope
audits with the exception of certain overseas entities which were disaggregated from the division and were subject to desktop review procedures.
All audits and desktop review procedures were completed by BDO LLP, .

The audit procedures were carried out over 95% of Group revenue, profit before other ftems and totat assets.

@ Full audit
@ Desktop reviews

2019 2019 201y

Total revenue Profit before Total assets
other items

The Group audit team set camponent matenalty levels as detailed above with work on all components being performed by the Group auditors under
the direction and supervision of the Group engagemert partner, With the exception of the non-sigificart componerits, the Group engagement partner
visted all cormponent locations and attended various telephone conference meetings through the planning fielkdwork and completion stages of the audit.

We also ganed an understanding of the legal and reguiatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it operates, and considered
the risk of acts by the Group that were comrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We designed audit procedures at Group and
sgnificant component level to respond to the sk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstaterent due to fraud is higher than the risk
of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,

or through callusion. We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstaternent in the financial staterments, including, but not
limited to, the Companies Act 2006, the UK Listing Rules and tax legislation.

Qur tests incuded agreeing the financial staterment disdosures to undertying supporting documentation, enguiries with managernent and enquiries of in-
house legal counsel, There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures descnbed above and, the further removed non~compliance with laws and
regulations it from the events and transactions reflected inthe finandiat statemnents, the less likely we would become aware of &. We did not idertify any
key audit matters relating to irmegularites, including fraud. As in all of cur audits, we also addressed the risk of managerment override of internal controks,
induding testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due

to fraud,

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The cther information comprises the information included in the annual report, other thanthe
financial staternents and cur auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion on the finandal statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extert otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurarxe condusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial staternents, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statemenits or our knowledge obtained in the audit or atherwise appears to be materially misstated, If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent rmaterial misstaternents, we are required 1o determine whether there is a material misstaternent in the financial statements
or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenial misstatement of the
cther information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

i this context, we also have nothing 1o report in regard to our responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other inforrnation and 1o
report as uncorrected material misstatements of the other information where we conclude that those iterns meet the following condrtions:

= Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 86 — the statement by the Directors that they consider the annual report and finandial statemments
taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance,
business model and strategy, is matersally incorsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

s Audit Committee reporting set out on pages 62 to 67 — the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

*» Directors’ statemert of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 53 — the parts of the Directors” staterent required
under the Listing Rules relating to the Company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing promsions specified for review by
the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not property disclose a departure from a relevant prowision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. theinfomﬂtiongvenhﬁ\estrategicrepmtmﬁtﬁmam'mpmfwt;wﬁwﬁaly:afauﬁd\ﬂtfmn@mmmprepamdis
consistert with the financial statermenits; and

® the strategic repart and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Compary and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we

have not idertified material misstaterrents in the strategic report or the Directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in

* adequate acoounting records have nat been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors' remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the accourting
records and retumns; or

* certain disdosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not recefved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ nesponsibilities statement set out on page 88, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statemnents ang for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internat control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

in preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Comparvy’s ability to continue as a going
concerm, disdosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unfess the Directors either imtend to
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s respaonsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our obyectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whoie are free from matenal misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that indudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accondance with [SAs (LK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material f, indmdually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic dedsions of users taken on the
hasis of these financial statemernts.

A further description of our responssibifties for the audit of the finandal staternents is located on the Rinandial Reporting Coundl's website at:
www.ircorguk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our audtor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address )

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Audit Committee on {9 September 2017 to audit the financal
statements for the year ending 3| March 2018 and subsequent finanaa! periods. The penad of total unimterrupted engagernent is two years, covering
the years ended 3| March 2018 and 31 March 2019.

The non-audit services prohibrted by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Comnpany and we remain independent
of the Group and the Parent Company in conducting our audit

Cur audit opinion is consistert wath the additional report to the Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parert Company’s rembers, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.

Qur audt work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them

manaudnorsreportandformdmerpwposaTohefwestmm permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Parent Comparty and the srmrrbersasabodyforouraudatwodgformsrepoﬂorformeopmmwehawfom\ed

Scott Mc?Z ghton (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
5 june 2019

BDO LLP s a limited kabiity partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 3| March 2019

2019 el t
Beforo Other Before Oxher, §.
other iterms Kems® Total other iems tems' Total
Notes &m €m om m £m £m o
Continuing operations g’
Revenue . 3 22214 - 2,221.4 20306 - 20306 v
Cost of sales (1,923.9) - (1,922.9) (1.7628) - (1.7628)
Gross profit 2915 - 2975 2678 - 2678
Administrative expenses (209.3) (38.0) (247.3) (1846) (8213 (266.7)
Operating profiti(loss) 36 882 (38.0) 50.2 82 821y LI
finance income 0.2 - 0.2 0.1 - 0.1 v
Finance costs 8 (14.0) - (14.8) (168) - (166) g
Net finance costs (13.8) - (13.8) (165) - (165) O
Profiti{loss) before tax 3 74.4 (38.0) 36.4 67 ‘21 (1549)
Tax 9 (13.9) 7.4 (6.4) (IR} 100 o.n
Profit(loss) from continuing operations after tax 0.6 (30.6) 300 556 n (165)
Discontinued aperations -
Profit/{loss) from discontinued operatons 5 1.1 @) 0.9 56 (5.0 9.5) &
Profit(loss) for the year 61.7 (677 ] 309 612 (872) @260) z
Altributable to: g
Equity holders of the parent 63.7 (32.8) 309 &1 (872) 27.1) -
Non-controlling interests - - - 1 - LI
63.7 (328) Jo.g 612 (872) (260)
Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS) attributable to
equity holders of the parent
From continuing operations:
Basxc " 16.8p 83p 152p 9%
Diluted K} 16.7p 8.3p 15.1p (49p
From continuing and discomtinued operations.
Basic n 17.70 B.6p 168p . @8)p
Diuted 1 17.5p 8.5p 1679 76
Notes
| The has IFRS 9 i 2018 using the it ion avaiiable in the standard ing the: i retained ; the date of mitial
Group texd I n:anm Pqi“ using _‘m n by disclosing the impact as ar adiustrernt to opening eamings at

2 Re-presemad to dassify the Pest Comro! and Social Housing businesses as discontinued operations. See Note |
3. Other teme are as described in Note 4
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 3| March 2019

1009 2018
Noxes om m
Profit/(loss) for the year 309 {26.0)
tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or foss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit persion liabiity 32 13.9) 19.7
Income tax credit/(charge) relating to items not reclassified 9 24 (34)
(i1.5) 163
tems that may be reciassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on transkation of foreign operations (0.3) Q.
Gains on hedge of a net investment taken to equity 0.1 04
Net gains on cash flow hedges arising during the year 27 12 al
Income tax (charge)/icredit relating to itemns thar may be redassified 9 {0.3) .l
LY 07
Other prahensive {exp )i for the financial year v.9) 170
Total comprehensive k e/{exp ) for the fi ial year 2. (5.0
Attributable to:
Equity halders of the parent 210 {10.1)
Non-controlling interests - N
Noter

LTheGru.pMadﬁnleRS')m' | 2018 the transibon option Fvailable in the standard by disciosing the impact as an adjustment o opening retanad eamings a1t the date of inkal
applcation. Under mhmwmrmmunuw i
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 March 2019

019 8

Notes m £m g
Non-current assets ?:.
Goodwil (b1 2938 3096 ®
Other intangible assets 13 507 383 5
Property, plartt and equipment 14 29.0 3386
Interest in joint vantures and assocates - 0B
Demnvatve finandial instruments 3 16.4 &l
Contract assets I3 45 18
Deferred tax assets 20 3.7 367
Total non-current assets 4331 4269
Current assets g
Irvertones 5.6 69 E
Trade and other recenvabies 5 4352 3860 3
Contract assets I3 14 . 04
Current tax assets ' ' -A,‘\:;;— h 63
Cash and cash equivalents ) €l o El:i:{" ‘0 598
Total current assets 7 . 550.8 4594
Total assets [TiY) 8863
Current labilities g
Trade and ather payables 1”7 {531.9) (496.8) S
Deferedincome ) 18 54.9) (46.2) =
Current tax abilties 3 - =
Financing Labiines y7] (40.7) 08) z
Provisions 19 (50.6) (252
Totl current liabilities ] (680.4) (569.0)
Not current liabilities (119.6) (109.6)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income I: (18.4) (188)
financing kabiities n (224.8) {258.6)
Provisions 19 (6.0) 63
Retirement benefit kabilities 2 (63.8) (568)
Deferred tax lbilbes ’ 20 @9 08
Total non-current liabilities ' 315.9) G413)
Total liabiltties (996.3) 9103)
Net liabilitias {12.4) (240)
Note:

I The Group has adopted IFRS 9 startng | 20i8 the tranabon opbon avaiable m the standard by disciosing the impart as an adustment 10 openng retaned eamings at the date of infiia)
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 3|1 March 2019

1019 018

Neres im m
Equity
Share capital 28 9.3 93
Share premium accoum 9 130.6 1306
Marper reserve 29 104.2 1042
Own shares reserve 29 (a@8.1) (434)
Other reserves 29 103 ni
Hedging and translation reserve 29 (5.6) a3
Retained losses (213.1) (2287)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (12.4) (240)
Nz
1. The Group hes s wj!;f\;:migiA@dmlsmi!drwmhhmwmmmamwmmmwﬁwzhmdﬁﬂ

me&wm&ﬁmmdhﬁewmwm@mmmmWBOmapprovedbytheBoardofDirectorsand

authorised for issue on 5 june 2019. They were signed on its behalf by:

Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 3| March 2019

Share Own Hedgng and Non-
Share  premim  Merger  shares Other  transaton  Retained oy Tocal §_
apial acooun reserve reserve reserves' reserve amings Total rerests equity
£m fm £m fm fm fm £m £&m £m im B
Adjusted badance at | Aprl 2017 92 1306 918 (422) 103 80) Qiz4) (207 (18.4) §
Loss for the year - - - - - - @7 @) 1l (26.0) 'g
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 07 163 7.0 - 17.0
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - o7 (108} 1o.1) 1. 9.0)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (48) (4.9} - (4.9)
Share-based payments - - - 69 1.0 - a3 8.1 - 8.2
in non-controlling interests 0l - 124 (8.1) - - (1.0) 34 34 -
At 3| March 2018 93 1306 1042 (43.4) 1t3 73) 2287) {(24.0) - (24.0)
8
At | April 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) L3 7.3) (228.7) (24.0) - {24.0) é
Impact of change in accounting policy’ - - - - - - @n (2.1) - .1 g
Adiusted balance at | Aprl 2018 93 1306 t042 (43 4) 13 73 (@BoR (26.1) - (26.1) ©
Profit for the year - - - - - - 309 109 - 30.9
Other comprehensive {expense)/income - - - - - 1.7 {I15) 7.8) - (9.8)
Total comprehensive income .- - - - - V7 194 1. - 21.1
Dividends paid - - - - - (144)  (14.4) - (14.4)
Share-based payments - - - 53 00 - 0S5 5.4 - 54
Other movernents - - - - - - 1.8 8 - 1.8
At 31 March 201% 93 1306 1042 (38.1) 103 6 (Qun (124 - (124
Notes:

| Other reserves indude the share-bised payments reserve, the revahuation reserve and the capial redemption reserve. See Nate 29

2 The Group has IFRS 9 startng 1 Aprd 201 B Lsng the trarsition option avalksble n the standard by disdlosing the mpacts as an adustment 10 opssting retained earmings at the date of rutiat
applicrbon, Under ths optiar, the comparative informtion i not restatad,
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 3| March 2019

1009 p.]1:]

Notes &m m
Conttiruing operations ~ operating profit before other tems’ 8.2 832
Contiruing operations -- other items' 4 (38.0) (821}
Discontinued operations — operating loss after other items' @ ©4)
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments expense - 3 50 46
Defined benefit pension costs 2 1.8 i
Past service costs and curtaiments 32 1.4 15
Defined benefit pension contributions . 32 (11.8) 47
Depredation of property, plant and equipment 14 1.8 128
Amartisation of ntangible assets 2 %0 135
Amortisation of contract assets 1 13 ] ol
Share of profit of joint ventures and assodates 5 {0.5) (©8)
tmparment of goodwil ' 12 - .46
Imparment of inargible assets 13 [ K] 104
Gain on bargain purchase 30 (8.8) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {0.8) ©n
(Gain)floss on disposal of subsdiaries 5 (179 02
Other : - ©0
Operating cash lows before movements in working capleal 39.5 672
Decrease/(increase) in invemories 0.4 ©.n
Increase in receivables 517 (432)
Increase in contract assets (4.7) @3
Increasef(decrease) in deferred income 5.1 (128)
Increasef{decrease) in payables 334 @2
Increase in provisions ’ 5.5 45
Cash generatad from/({used in) operations ) 415 @
Incorne taxes received 4.7 1.6
Interest paid (12.4) (135)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 308 (98)
tnvesting activities
Acquisition of subsickaries, net of cash acquired? 30 .3 -
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed® 5 528 v )]
Oividends received from joint ventures and assocates - 06
interest received 0.2 02
Purchase of property, plartt and equipment i4 (121) (158
Purchase of other intangible assets 13 (11.2) ©0)
Disposal of property, plamt and equipment 4.7 1.6
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 25.1 @)
Tcres

1. Re-presented to clssify the Pest Control and Sooal Housing businesses as discontinued operations. See Note: |
2 Dispomal of subsidiaries, ret of cash disposed of £52.8¢m for the year ended 3| March 2019 is stated net of £5.3m of tansaction costs {see Note 5). The net ash inflow from acquisition and dispasal
of subsickaries was £40.9m (201 B: £9.7m cutfiow) induding costs of £2.6m related to the VS( aaquisition (see Note 4).
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Consolidated statement of cash flows continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

201y 018
Notes tm {m 5

Financing activities g

Increase/(repayments) of obiigations under finance leases 27 0.2 (15) §’

Private placement notes repaid and associated hedges settied - (602) B

(Repayments cf)/proceeds from bank loans 27 @.n 383

Proceeds from re-issue of treasury shares 9 - 34

Purchase of non-controling interests 20 - G0

Exquity dvidends paid 10 {14.4) {48)

Net cash used in financing activitles ' {16.3) 278)

Net increase/{decreass) i cash and cash equivalents 4%.6 69.7)

Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 598 129.1 g

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - 04 é

Mat cash and cash aquivalents at end of the year 21 108.4 598 3

The above staternent of consolidated cash flows indudes cash flows from both continuing and discontirued operations. Further details of the cash flows
relating to dscontinued operations are shown in Note 5.

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movements in net debt Notes ”‘: mcirg

Cash drivers

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18.6 {69.7)
Detrease/(incraase} in bank loans 27 21 @83)

Private placement notes repaid and assodiated hedges setted - 602 E
(Increase)/repayments of obligations under finance leases 27 ©.1) 15 5
Non-cash drivers E
Non-ash movernent in bank loans 7 (0.2) ©n g
Non-cash movement in private placement notes and assocated hedges 27 212 03 Z
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 7 0.3 04
Decrezse/(increase) in net debt during the year s1.8 (463)

Opening net debt (193.5) (t47.2)

Closing net debt 2% (140.7) (1935)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The Group's finandal statements for the year ended 3 | March 201% have been prepared in accordance with International Firancial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) adopted for use in the European Union and therefore the Group's financal statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The Group's finandal statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis, except for certain finandial instrurments which are required to be
measured at fair value.

Going concern

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Councifs ‘Guidance on Risk Management. Initernal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporting issued in September 2014. The Directors have considered prindpal risks and uncertairties affecting the Group which are described on
pages 38 to 46.

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants associated with its committed funding fines. These indude £19 | 5m (being the
repayment amount based on the original doliar exchange rates when issued) of US Private Placerment debt maturing in December 2019, December
2022 and December 2024 and a committed multi-currency revolving aredit fadility of €275.0m which will expire in july 2021, These faciities give the
Group total committed funding of £466.5m, of which £221.9m was undrawnat 3| March 2019,

The key ratios in these financial covenants are net debt to covenant EBITDA and covenant EBITDA to net finance costs. These covenants are tested on
aroling 12-month basis as & the September and March reporting dates. At 31 March 2019, both covenart tests were passed. The Group s forccasting
to remain within its banking covenants uver the rext twelve months and has stress-tested these caloulations for reasonable possible adverse variances
in trading and cash performance.

Supported by the liquidity provided by committed banking fadiities, notwithstanding the Group is in a net current fiability position, the Directors

have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources 1o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis of accourting in preparing the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Discontinued operations

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (Pest Control) which previously formed a separate major kne

of business of the Group as part of the Cleaning 8 Ervironenenital Services division. As a result of the disposal, the results of the Pest Control business
have been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been restated.

On 19 November 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to sell Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Limited, together

the Sodal Housing business, which previously formed a separate major fine of business of the Group as part of the Property Management division.

As a result of the disposal, which was completed on 30 November 2018, the results of the Social Housing business have been dassified 2s discortinued
operations and comparative informiabon has been restated. The remaining roofing and painting activities of the former Property Management division
have been integrated into the Engineering Services division.

Accounting standards that are newly effective in the current year

With the exception of the adoption of IFRS 9 which is discussed below, none of the new standards and amendmernts that are effective for the first tme
this year have had a material effect on the Group.

HFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ became effective for the Group starting | Apnil 2018 and replaces the requirements of LAS 39 ‘Rinandial irstruments:
recognition and measurement’. The man changes introduced by the new standard are new dassification and measurement requirements for certan
financial assets, a new Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the impairment of financial assets, revisions to the hedge accounting model, and
arnendmentstodisdowr&&ﬂeGrmpeleded.fm | April 2018, to continue to apply the hedge accounting guidance in 1AS 3% ‘Financial instruments
WVith respect to loss allowances for trade recenables, IFRS § replaces the incurred loss' mode! in IAS 39 with an ECL model. The Group, from | April
2018, measures loss allowances for trade receivables and accrued income at an amournt equal to lifetime expected credit losses using both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis based on the Groug's historical experience and forward-looking information. The Group has determined that
the transition to IFRS 9 resulted in an additional loss alowance for trade receivables and accrued income as at | April 2018 of £2.5m and gave rise to a
tax credit of £0:4m. The additional loss allowance has been applied as an adjustment to opening retained earnings at | April 2018 and therefore, the
pricr year comparative information is not restated,

Other than as stated above, the accounting policies and methods of cakulation adopted in the preparation of these Group consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those followed inthe preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statemertts for the year ended 31 March 2018,
which were prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted by the EU.
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Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been applied by the Group
With the exception of IFRS 16 which is discussed below, none of the new standards and amendments that are not yet effective are expected 1o have
a material effect on the Group.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ became effective for the Group from | April 2019 and replaces the requirements of LAS |7 ‘Leases. An asset representing the Group's
right as a kessee 10 use a leased item, and a liability for future lease payments, will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited exemptions for short-
term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs of leases will be recognised in the consclidated income statemertt split between depreciation of the
lease asset and a finance charge on the Jease liabiity. This is similar to the accounting for finance keases under IAS 17, but substantively different to the
accounting for operating leases (under which no lease asset or lease liability was recognised and renals payable were charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-fine basis).

During the year, management set up a project team to neview the Group's leasing arrangements in light of the new lease accounting rules in IFRS 16.
At 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of £72.0m (see Note 25). Of these commitments, £].4m relates to
short-term leases and £0.1m to kw-value leases which will be recognised on a straight-fine basis as an expense in the consclidated income statement.
For the remaining lease commitments, the Group expects to recognise, at | April 2019, right-of-Use assets in the range of £820m to £87.0m, and lease
liabilities in the range of £81.0m to £86.0m (after adjustrnents for prepayments and accrued lease payments recognised 25 at 31 March 2019), Overall
net assets will be in the range of £4.0m lower to £6.0m higher and net current liabikities will be higher by between £21 0m and £260m due to the
presentation of a portion of lease jiabilities as a current liability.

As a result of adopting the new rules, for the year ending 31 March 2020. the Group expects net profit before tax to increase by between £nil and
£3.0m. Operating profit is expected to increase by between £24.0m and £29.0m as the operating lease rentals payable which were previously incuded
in operating profit are exduded, with this increase being offset by additional depredation of between £22.0m and £24.0m as the right-of-use assets are
depreciated. In addition, operating cash flows are expected to increase by between £24.0m and £29.0m as repayment of the lease liabities is reclassified
as cash used in financing actmities.

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and therefore, there & no significant impact from these activities on the consolidated financial
staternents as a result of adopting IFRS |6, However, certain additional discosure may be required in the notes to the consolidated finandial statements.

(b) Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group's IFRS financial information are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated finandal statements comprise the financial statements of Mitie Group pic and all its subsidiaries. The Parent Cornpany has applied
FRS 101 *Reduced disdiosure framework in the preparation of s individual financial statermentts. FRS 101 applies IFRS as adopted by the European
Union wath certain disdosune exemptions.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which comtrol is transferred to the Group and gease to be consolidated from the date on which control
is trarsferred out of the Group. The results, assets and liabities of joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statemertts of subsidianes, joint vertures and asscciates to bring the accounting
policies used imo hne with those used by the Group.

All irter-comparty balances and transactions, induding unrealised profits arising from inter-group transactions, have been eliminated in full

Interests of non-controlling interest shareholders are measured at the non-controlling interest's proportion of the net fair vakue of the assets and
liabilibes recogrised. Changes in a parent'’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do nct resutt in a loss of control are accounted for wathin shareholders’
equity. No gain or loss is recognised on such transactions and goodwill is not re-measured. Any difference between the change in the non-controlling
interest anc the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the parert.

Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance
The financial statements contain afl the information and disclosures required by the relevartt accourtting standards and regulatory obligations that apply
tothe Group.
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In the financial staterments, the Group has elected to provide some further disclosures and performance measures, reported as ‘before other items’,
in order to present its finandal results in a way that demonstrates the performance of continuing operations.

Other e are semns of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income statement to assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. The Group separately reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of
restructuring programimes, acquisition and disposal costs including the write-off and amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, the results of
and costs assodated with disposals, and other exceptional items and their related tax effect as other itemns. Should these items be reversed, disdlosure of
this would also be a5 other items.

Separate presentation of these items is intended to enhance understanding of the financial performance of the Group in the period and the extent
1o which results are influenced by materiat unusual and/or non-recurring items. Further detail of other itemns is set out in Note 4.

In addition, following the guidelines on Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) issued by the European Securities and Markets Authorities (ESMA),
the Group has included an APM appendix to the financial statements on pages 163 to 165.

Revenue recognition policy

The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexity across its service lines, so a range of methods is used for the recognition of revenue
based on the principles set out in IFRS 15. Revenue represents income recognised in respect of services provided during the period based on the
delivery of performance obligations and an assessment of when control is transferred to the customer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied 1o alt sales contracts as outlined beiow. It is based on the transfer of control
of goods and senvices to custamers and replaces the separate models for goods, services and construction contracts

Step | — identify the controct(s) with a customer

For all cortracts with custormers, the Group determines if the arrangement creates enfarceable rights and cbligations. This assessment results in
certain Framework arrangermentts or Master Service Agreements (MSAs) not meeting the definition of contracts under IFRS 15 unless they specify
the minimum quantities to be ordered. Usually the work order and any change orders together with the Framework or MSA will constitute the
IFRS |5 contract.

Duration of contract

The Group frequently enters into contracts with customers which contain esttension periods at the end of the initial term, automatic annual renewals,
and/or termination for convenience and break clauses that could impact the actual duration of the contract. As the term of the contract impacts the
period over which amortisation of contract assets and revenue from performance cbligations may be recognised, the Group applies judgement to
assess the innpact that such dauses have in determining the relevant contract term. Infonmwgﬂwmuckaven&managmwﬂcomdasceﬁalnmﬂua\cmg
factors induding the amount of discount provided, the presence of significart termination penalties in the contract, and the relationship, experience
and performance of contract delivery with the austomer and/or the wider industry, in understanding the likelihood of extension or termination of the
contract

Controct modifications

The Group's contracts are frequently amended for changes to customer requirements such as change orders and variations. A contract modification
takes place when the amendmesm creates new enforceable rights and obligations or changes the exdsting price or scope (or both) of the contract, and
the modification has been approved. Comtract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral agreement, or imphed by customary business practices.

I the parties to the contract have not approved a comtract maodification, revenue is recognised in accordance with the existing contractual terms.

¥ a change in scope: has been approved but the cormesponding change in price is still being negotiated, the Group estimates the change to the total
transaction price.

Contract modifications are accounted for as a separate contract if the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct goods or services and
the change in contract price reflects the standalone selling price of the distinct goods or services. The facts and circumstances of any modificatson are
considered in isolation as these are spacific to each contract and may result in different accounting outcomes.

Step 2 — Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Perforrmance obligations are the contractual promises by the Group to transfer distinct goods or services to a customer. For arrangements with multiple
components to be delivered to austomers such as in the Group's integrated facilities management contracts, the Group applies judgerment to consider
whether those promised goods or services are:

i  distinct and accounted for as separate performance cbiigations,

i. combined with other promised goods or services until a bundie is identified that is distinct; or

ii.  part of a series of distinct goods or services that are substantidlly the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time ie where the customer
is deemed to have simultaneously received and consumed the benefits of the goods or senaces over the Iife of the contract, the Group treats the
senes as a single performance obligation.

Step 3 ~ Determine the transaction price

At contract inception, the total transaction price is determined, being the amount to which the Group expects to be entitled and has rights under the

contract. This indudes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any variable consideration, up or down, resulting from eg. discounts,

rebates, service penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the expected value method and is only recognised to the extent it is

highly probable that a subsequent change in its estimate would not result in a sgnificant revenue reversal.

Step 4 —Alfocate the transaction price to the perforrnance abligations in the contract

The Group allocates the total transaction price to the identified performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone sefing prices. This is
predominantly based on an cbservable price or a cost plus margin arrangement.

Step 5 — Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

For each performance obligation, the Group determines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a poirt in time. Where revenue is recognised
over time, the Group applies the relevant cutput or input mvemerecognﬁonneﬂodformeawnngprogrssﬂmdepmﬁszupspufm
in transferring control of the goods or services to the customer.

Certain long-term contracts use cutput methods based upon surveys of performance compileted, appraisals of results achieved, or milestones reached
which allow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services transferred
to date relative to the remaining goods or sarvices under the comract.

Under the input method, measured progress and revenue are recognised in direct proportion to costs incurmed where the transfer of control is most
dosely aligred to the Group's efforts in delivering the service.

Where desmed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expedient within IFRS |5, allowing revenue to be recognised at the amount which
\heGrouphas'Hweriynto invoice, where that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group's performance obligations
completed to date.
prerfmnanceobhgabor’sdonotmeetﬂwemmmmmw“mﬁmmﬁemmlnmchdd&m
goods or services passes to the customer. This may be at the point of physical delivery of goods and acceptance by a custormer or when the customer
obtains control of an asset or service in a contract with customer-specified acceptance criteria. Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and control has passed to the customer.
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Long-term complex contracts

The Group has a number of long-term complex contracts which are predominantly integrated fadities management arrangements. Typically, these
contracts involve the provision of muttiple service fines, with a single managernent team providing an integrated service. Such contracts tend to be
transformational in nature where the business works with the customer to identify and implement cost saving initiatives across the life of the contract
The Group considers the majority of services provided within integrated faciities managernent contracts meet the definition of a series of distinct goods
or services that are substatially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time. The series constitutes services provided in distinct time
increments {(eg. monthly or quarterty) and therefore the Group treats the series of such services as one performance obligation.

The Group akso defivers major project-based services under long-term complex contracts that indude performance obligations under which reverue
is recogrused over time as value from the service 1s transferred to the customer. This may be where the Group has a legally enforceable right to
remuneration for the work completed to date, and therefore revenue will be recognised in line with the assodiated transfer of control.

Repeat service-based contracts (single and bundled contracts)
The Group operates a number of single or joint-service line arrangements where repeat services meet the definition of a series of distinct services that
are substanttially the same (e.g. the prowision of deaning, security, catering, waste, and landscaping services). They have the same pattern of transfer of

value to the customer as the series constitutes core sarvices provided in distinct time increments (e.g. monthly or quarterly). The Group therefore treats -

the series of such services as one performance obligation.

Short-term service-based arrangements

The Group delivers a range of other short-term service based performance obligations and professional services work across certain reporting
segments for which revenue is recognised at the point in timie when control of the service has transferred to the custorner, This may be at the point
when the customer obtains control of the service in a contract with customer-specified acceptance criteria eg the delivery of a strategic operating
model or report.

Other revenue
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the prindpat outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated firture cash receipts through the expected life of the finandal asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

Contract costs

The Group incurs pre-contract expenses (e.g, legal costs) when it is expected to enter into a new contract. The incremental costs to obtain a contract
with a customer are recognised within contract assets if it is expectad that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to obtain a contract that would have
been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the period.

Contract fulfilment costs .

Costs inaurred to ensure that the project or programme has appropnate organisational, operational and technical infrastructures, and medhanisms in
place to enable the delivery of full services under the corttract target operating model, are defined as contract fuliilment costs. Only costs which meet
all three of the criteria below are induded within contract assets on the balance sheet:

i.  the costs directly relate to the contract (eg. direct labour, materials, subcontractors);

ii.  the Group s building an asset that will subsequently be used to deliver contract outcomes; and

iil.  the costs are expected to be recoverable ie. the contract is expected 1o be profitable after amortising the capralised costs.

Contract fulfiment costs coverad within the scope of another accounting standard, such as inventories, intangible assets, or property, plant and
equiprment are not capitalised as contract fulfilment assets but are treated in accordarkce with the other standard.

Amortisation and impairment of contract assets
The Group amortises contract assets (pre-contract cests and contract fulfiment costs) on a systematic basis that is consistent with the etity's transfer
of the related goods or services to the customer. The expense is recognised in the income statement in the: period.

A capitalised pre-cortract cost or contract fulfiment cost 1s derecognised either when it is disposed of or when no further economic berefits are
expected to flow from its use.

The Group is required to determine the recoverability of contract related assets at each reporting date. An impairment exdsts if the carrying amount
of any asset exceeds the amount of consideration the entity expects 1o receive in exchange for providing the associated goods and servces, less the
remaining costs that relate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevant contract. In determining the estimated amount of
corsideration, the Group uses the same prinaples as it does 1o determine the corttract transaction price which inchudes estimates around variable
consideration. An impairment is recognised immediately where such losses are forecast.

Accrued income and deferred income

The Group's customer contracts include a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term contracts
under which it receives payments throughout the term of the arrangernent. Payments for goods and services transferred at a point in time may

be at the delivery date, in arrears or part payment in advance.

Where revenue recognised at the period end date is more than amounts invoiced, the Group records accrued income for the difference.
Where revenue recognised at the period end date is less than amaounts invoiced, the Group recognises deferred income for the difference.

Certain arrangements with customers indude a contractual obligation to make redundandes for which the Group is reimbursed for the costs
incurred, Revenue is not recognised on these transactions. Instead, the Group expenses all redundancy costs in the period they are incurred and
any reimbursement credit is matched against the associated cost induded in the income statement up to the value of the redundancy cost incurred.
Any cash payments received from the customer in excess of the associated cost of redundancy are deferred over the contract term and urwound
in line with the other services being defivered. .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

‘Where price step-downs are required in a contract and output is not decreasing, revenue is deferred from initial pericds to subsequent periods
in order for revenue to be recognised on a consistent basis.

Providing the option for a customer to obtain extersion periods or other services at a significant dscourt may lead to a separate performance obligation
where a materal right exists. Where this is the case, the Group allocates part of the transaction price from the original contract to deferred income
which is then amortised over the discounted extension period or recognised immediately when the extension right esgpires.

Foreign currency

The financial staterents of each of the Group's businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business. Transactions in currendies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign
currendes at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.

iterns carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currendes are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary iterrs, and on the retranslation of monetary ftemns, are included in the income statement
for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retrarslation of non-monetary iterms carried at fair value are induded in profit or koss for the
period except for differences arising on the retransktion of non-monetary ftems in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
For such non-monetary itemns, any excharge component of that gain or foss is recognised directly in equity.

On consolidation, the assets and liabiities of the Group's foreign operations, inchuding goodwill and fair value adjustrnents arising on their acquisition, are
transizted into sterling at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are transiated into sterfing at average exchange rates
for the periad, Exchange differences ansing are recognised directly n equity in the Group’s hedging and translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation i recognised in the income statement.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that are incumed in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance costs are recognised in the income
staterment in the period in wiich they are inaurred, Mmﬂ\efnmceéwgsrdahngtod'cdrectmofddvtmspmadmﬂtperbdto
redernption using the effective interest method.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax curmrently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because
it excludes itemns of incomé or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further exdudes iterns that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for curment tax is cakoulated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amaounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
staternents and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all twable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the sxent that it is
probabie that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised, Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities

in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

mmrgmmdddmmmsmmmmmmmmm&emmummmmmm
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset & realised, based upon tax
rates and legisiation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to itemns charged or credited directly to ecity, in which cise the deferred tax 5 also dealt with n equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabikties are offset when there i a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilties; or when
they relate to income: taxes levied by the same tasation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and !iabilities on a net basis.
Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accountted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisiion is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange. of assets given, kabilities incLirred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for contral of the acquiree.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed. The acquiree identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent fiabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as hetd for resate in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arsing on acquisition is recognised as an asset anxd indtially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent labilities recognised. Negm«egoodmllmprsemrga@mfm

a bargain purchase, is recognised directly in the income statement.

Where applicable, the corsideration for an acquisition indudes any assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they result from additional
information, cbtained within one year from the acquistion date, about facts and circumstances that exdsted at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration dassified as an asset or ¥ability are recognised in the income staterment, in accordance with IFRS 9.
Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recogrused.
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Any business combinations priorto | April 2010 were accounted for using the standards in place prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008) which
differ in the following respects: transaction costs directly attributable 10 the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs; contingent consideration was
recognised if, and oty if, the Group had a present cbligation, the economic outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable;
and subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwill,

Changes in the Group's ewnership interests in subsidiares that do nat result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for

as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controliing interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Ary difference between the amount by which the non-controiling interests are adiusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between: (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (i) the previous carmying amount of the assets (induding
goodwill) and liabifities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
1o that subsidiary are accourtted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary ie. redassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by apphicable IFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRG 9, when appficable,
of an investrmertt in an assodiate Or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwil arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identfiable assets,
liabilities and contingent labifities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisibon.

Goodwil is initially recognised as an asset at cost and 15 subsequently rmeasured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. it is reviewed for impairment
at least annually. Any iImnpairmnent is recognised immediately in the income staternent for the period and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGLUs) expected to benefit from the synergies
of the cormbination. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for imparrment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. if the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
rechuce the @rrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount

of each asset in the unit. On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill is induded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets ident/fied in a business acquisibon are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Custorner relationships are amortised over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate benefits,
Other acqussition related intangibles indude acquired software and technology which are amontised over their useful lives.

Software and development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset if the asset created can be idendified, if it is probable that the asset created
will generate future economic benefits and if the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Software and developmert expenditure
indudes internally generated intangible assets and is amortised over its useful iife once it has been brought into use.

Following initial recognition, the Garrying amount of an intangible asset is its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any acaumulated impairment
losses. Intangible: assets are reviewed for impairment anrually, or more frequently when there & an indication that they may be impaired.
Amortisation expense is charged to adminsirative expenses in the income statement on a straight-hine basis over its useful Ife.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairrnent in value. Depreciabion is charged so as to write off
the cost less expected residual value of the assets over their estinated useful lives and is calculated on 2 straight-ine basis as follows:

Freehold buildings and long leasehold property ) 50 years
Leasehold improvernents period of the lease
Plaryt and vehides 3-10 years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impaimment loss.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

Recaverable arnount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assassmentts of the time value of money and the risks specrlic to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced
1o its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense rmmediately.

Where an impairmernt koss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amourtt, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impaimment loss is recognised as income immediatedy.

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 107

Strategic report

Governance

o
o}
o
=
[
<
=
=
&

SANCY




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I.  Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Joint ventures and associates
The Group has an interest in joint ventures which are entities in which the Group has joint control The Group also has an imerest in associates which
are ertibes in which the Group has significant influence.

The Group accounts for its interest in joint ventures and associates using the equity method, Under the equity method the Group's share of the post-tax
result of junt vertures and associates i reported as a single line tem in the consolidated income staternent.

The Group's interest in joint vertures and associates is carvied in the consolidated balance sheet at cost phus post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of net assets.

Inventories

Irwentories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs represent materiaks, direct kabour and overheads incurred in bringing the: inventories to their present condition and location.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and estimated selling costs. Provision
ts made for obsolete, slow moving or defective iterns where appropriate.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial kiabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the cortractual provisions of the
instrument. The Group derecognises finandal assets and liabilities only when the contractual rights and obligations are transferred, discharged or expire.

finandial assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The dassification of finandial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based
on the business modet in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. All of the Group's cash flows from customers are
solely payrnertts of principal and interest, and do not contain a significant financing component. Financial assets generated from all of the Group's revenue
streams are therefore initially measured at their transaction price (as defined in IFRS 15) and are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost. Cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and ather short-term highly fiquid investments that are readity convertible to aknown amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The assessment of impairment of trade receivables and accrued income from 1 April 2018 is in accordance with IFRS 9. The Group recognises a loss
allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on all receivable balances from customers subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the ‘smplfied
approach’ permritted under IFRS 9. In the prior year under IAS 39, appropriate allowances for estimated irecoverable amounts were recognised
induding where there was objectve evidence that the asset was impaired,

The Group uses a non-recourse custorner invoice discounting facility (CID fadility) under which certain trade recevable balances are sokd to the Group's
relationship banks. The arrangement with the banks i such that the customers rernit cash directly to the Group and the Group trarwfers the collected
amounts to the banks. The trade receivables are sold without recourse to the Group, and therefore the trade receivable balance is derecognised,
Financial lighilities comprise trade payables, financing liabilties, bank and other borrowings, deferred consideration and contingent consideration. These
are rmeasured at initial recognition at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost with the exception of contingertt consideration which is measured at
fair value through profit or koss. Bank and other borrowings are stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of transaction costs. Finance
charges, induding prermiurms payable on settiement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income staternent.

Inchsded within the Group's trade creditors balance are armounts relating to payments due to UK suppliers which make use of bank provided supply
chain finance arrangements to allow supplier early payment by the bank Armounts are settied by the Group in accondance with each supplier’s normal
payment terms and payments continue to be dassified within cash generated by operations. The Group does not receive any additional guaramees and
does not pay any interest in relation to these amounts.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses dervative financial instruments, including cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward foregn exchange contracts, to manage the
Group's exposure to financial risks associated with irterest rates and foreign exchange. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value. determined by reference to market rates,
at each balance sheet date and included as finandal assets or fiabilities as appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statermert
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrumert, in which event the timing of the recognition in the incorme
statemnent depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Group may designate certain hedging instruments including derivatives as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investrments
in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange rsk on firm commitrents are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group docurnents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its
risk managerent objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting charges in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item.

Fair value hedges

Hedges are dlassified as fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hadges are recorded in the income statement immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable 1o the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrurment and the change in
the hedged itern attributable to the hedged risk are recogrised in the line of the income statement relating to the hedged item. Hedge accourting is
discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged itern arising from the hedged risk is amortised to the income
statemertt from that date.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are dassified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated

with either a recognised asset or fability or a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges are recogrysed in other comprehensive income and accurmulated in equity within the Group’s transiation and hedging
reserve, The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are rediassified to the income statement in the periods when
the hedged item is recognised in the income statement, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is
hedged resutts in the recognition of a non-finandal asset or a non-finandal kabifity, the gains and losses previously accumutated in equity are transferred
from equity and induded in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-finandial asset or non-financial liabiitty. Hedge accounting is discontinued when
the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exerdised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
Auty gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income at that time is accumulated in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimatety recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Hedges of net investments in forergn operations

Hedges are dassified as net investment hedges when they hedge the foreign currency exposure to changes in the Group's share in the net assets of
a foreign operation. Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for simiarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in ather comprehernsive income and accumulated in the Group's translation and
hecdging reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffactive portion is recogrised immediately in the income statement. Gains or losses on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the same way as exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation as described above.

Leasing

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits ncidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the: lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the rermaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substaritially all the risks and benefits indidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income staternent on a straight-fine basis over the lease term. Any lease incentives are amortised

on a straight-fine basis over the non-cancellable period for which the Group has contracted to lease the asset, together with any further terms for which
the Group has the option to continue to lease the asset if, at the inception of the lease, it is judged to be reasonably certain that the Group will exerdise
the option,
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Provisions

Prousions are recogrused when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settte the cbligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised

as a separate asset bt only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense reliting to any prowvision is presented in the income statement
net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Rability.
Where discounting 15 used, the inarease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a bornowing cost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Onerous contract provisions (OCPs) arise when the unavoidable costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed the remuneration expected to

be received. Unavoidable costs include total contract costs together with a rational allocation of shared costs that can be directly linked to fulfiling
contractual obligations which have been systematically allocated to OCPs on the basis of key cost drivers, except where this is impracticable and contract
revenue is used as a proxy for activity. The prowision is calculated as the lower of the termination costs payable for an earfy exit and the expected net
cost to fulfil the Group's unavoidable contract obligations. VWhere a austomer has an option to extend a contract and it is lkely that such an extension
will be made, the expected net cost arksing during the extension period is inchuded within the cakculation. However, where a profit can be reasonably
expected in the extension period, no credit is taken on the basis that such profits are uncertain given the potential for the custorer to either not extend
or offer an extension under lower pricing terms.

Share-based paymaents

The Group operates a number of executive and ermployee share option schemes. Equity-settied share-based payments o employees are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date The fair value exdudes the effect of non-market based vesting conditions. For grants of share
options and awards, the fair value a5 at the date of grant is calculated using the Black-Scholes model, Monte Cario model or the share price at grant date,
and the corresponding expense & recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shares that will evertualy
vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions. Save As You Earn (SAYE) options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to cortribute 1o the scheme.
resulting in an acceleration of the remainder of the related expense.

Restricted shares are issued as part of the consideration for acquisitions made by the Cumpany attached with a condition that the relevartt recipient
continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves
employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares. The fair value of the restricted shares is the share price at the
date the acquisition agreernent was sighed.

The credits in respect of the amounts charged are induded within the share-based paymnertt reserve in equity until such time as the vesting periods
or share restrictions expire.

The own shares reserve in equity indudes the shares owned by the Employee Trust, treasury shares and restncted shares issued as part of the
consderation for acquisitions. When shares are transferred to employees upon exercise of options and awards or when restricted shares held
by employees are released from their restrictions, the own shares reserve is reduced by the relevant cost or value.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schernes for all qualifying employees. Payrents to the defined contribution
and stakeholder persion schemes are ¢harped as an expense as they fall due.

In addition, the Group operates and participates in a number of defined benefit schermes. in respect of the schiermes in which the Group makes
contributions under Admitted Body status to dients’ defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who transferred to the Group under
TUPE. the Group accounts for its legal and constructive obligations over the period of its participation which is for a fixed period onfy.

For the defined benefit persion schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses on obligations. the return on scheme assets {excluding imerest) and the effect

of the asset ceiiing (if applicable} are recognised in full in the peried in which they occur. They are recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Definedbeﬂerf(peﬂsaoncosts(mdudngwm)nrecogsednmnwmstatmlnmadmnmmormmm
whilst the net irterest cost is recognised in finance costs.

The retirement benefit kability recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as reduced by the fair
value of schemne assets. Any asset resulting from this cloulation s limited to the presert value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

Theerpparmtﬂmfourﬂlﬂbewpbye’deﬁnedba\eﬁtpermnsd\eTB.Forﬁ\reeofﬁﬁesd\anesﬂ'eGrupssrweofﬂ\eassetsa‘d
liabilities s rninirnal, The fourth scheme is the Plumbing 8 Mecharuca! Services (UK) Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumnbing Scheme), a funded multi-
employer defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4:000 employers, with cinca 400 rermaining.
Historicatly, the size and complexity of the Plumbing Schemne has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and liabiities of the scheme
which are attnibutable to the Group. The Group has recertly recened a Section 75 employer debt notice in respect of the partidpation of Robert
Prettie & Co Limited in the Plumbing Scheme (refer 1o Note 19 and Note 32). One Group company, Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, continues
to participate in the Plumbing Scheme, however no apportionment of the assets and liabilities attributable to this company is available and consequently.,
the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were paid 1o a defined contribution scheme.

For schemes where sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accourting, no liabikty 15 recognised on the balance sheet, however,
the obligations are disdosed as contingent liabilities in Note 33.
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements under IFRS requires managernent to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts recognised for assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses incurred during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The judgements and estimates which have the most significant effect on the reported result for the year ended 31 March 2019 and upon the carrying
value of assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are described below.

Revenue recognition
The Group's revenue recognition policies, which are set out under Revenue recognition in Note |, are certtral to how the Group measures the work
it has performed in each financial year.

For certain contracts, key judgements were made concerming contract exdensions and amendments which, for exampie, directly impact the timing
of revenue recognition in addition to the phasing of upfront payments to, or fram customers which are deferred to the balance sheet and unwound
ower the expectad contract term. The Group has deferred pre-contract costs of £2.2m to the balance sheet within contract assats following its
assessment of contract modifications during the year (refer to Note 16). Management considers this to be an area of judgement due to the
determination of whether a modification represents a separate contract based on its assessment of the stand-alone selkng price, rather than a
termination of the existing contract and establishrment of a new contract for which the revised contract price would be recognised from the date
of modification.

Profit before other items

‘Other iterms” are items of finandial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income statement 1o assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. Determining whether an item should be classified within other iterns
requires judgernent as to whether an tem is or i not part of the undertying performance of the Group.

Cther items after tax of £32.8m (2018: £87.2m) were charged to the income staternent for the year ended 31 March 2019, An analysis of the amounts
induded in other items 1s detailed In Note 4.

Recoverobility of aged debtors and accrued income

The Group has material amounts of billed and unbilled work outstanding at year end as outlined in Note 23. Where balances become subject to dispute,
the risk of recoverability increases. As a consequence, there s significant management judgement involved in assessing whether these balances have been
earmned and in assessing the recoverability of these balances which invotves consideration of the Group's contractual rights and werk performed as well
as the status of ongoing commercial negotiations. The judgement as to whether an amount has became imecoverable & an assessment made by the
Directors in the determination of the total expected credit loss recognised by the Group under IFRS 9. The Group has recognised a total loss allowance:
of £192m 2018: £173m} in respect of both aged and disputed trade and other receivable balances at 31 March 2019.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Due to the size and complexity of the Group’s contracts, management is required to form a number of key judgemnents and estirmates in the
determination of the amount of reverue and profits to record, and related balance sheet items such as contract assets, accrued income and deferred
income to recognise {refer to Note 1). This indudes an assessment of the costs the Group indurs to deliver the comtractual commitments and whether
such costs should be expensed as incurred o capitalised. These judgements are inherently subjective and may cover future events such as the
achievemnent of contractual performance targets and planned cost savings or discounts. The Directors do not consider that any reasonably foreseeable
change in this source of estimation would have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Provisions and contingere. assets and Kabilities

The Comparry and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and claims that are in the ordinary course of business.
Judgements are required in order to assess whether these legal proceedings and chaims are probable and the labdity can be reasonably estimated,
resulting in a provision or, alternatively, whether the iterns meet the: definition of contingent fiabilities.

Prowvisions are liabitties of uncertain timing or amount and therefore n muking a rekable estimate of the quantum and timing of liabilities judgement
Eappﬁedandr&@uatedat&dwepaﬁngdﬂeTheerprecogﬁsedprwﬁommBl March 2019 of £56.6rn (2018: £3 | 5m). Further details
are induded in 19.

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combination of insurance daims and recourss 10 suppliers a proportion of the £16.1m costs
(refer to Note 4) incurred in respect of rectification works for the Sodal Housing property maintenance contracts, inchading the £12 Im recorded
in provisions (refer to Note |9), are recovered. The amount and tirmning of any recoveries is yet to be determined.

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations
The net pension liability at 31 March 2019 was £63 8m (2018; £568m).

The measurement of defined benefit cbligations requires judgement. It is dependent on material key assumptions induding discount rates,
life expectancy rates, and future contribution rates. See Note 32 for further details and a sensitivity analysis for the key assumptions.

The Group also participates in four multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes, induding the Plumbing & Medhanical Services (UK) Industry
Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). A provision of £20.0m has been made for Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of
Robert Prette & Co. Limited in the Plumbing Scheme. The Group has a further potential exposure to Section 75 employer debits in respect of the
participation of Mttie Property Services (UK) Limited in the Plumbing Scheme, which has been disdosed as a contingent liability due to the inherent
uncertainty regarding the amount of any liability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Gain on bargain purchase

The Group has recognised an £8.8m gain on the purchase of Vision Seaurity Group Limited. The vakue of this gain is subject to the assessrnent of the fair
value of the acquired assets and liabilities and the finalisation of the consideration to be paid through agreement of the completion accounts with the
safler of the business. See Nete 30 for further detais.

The fair value of the acquired assets includes £14.9m representing the value of iIntangible assets associated with austomer relationships acquired.
This valuation is based upon forecast cash flows which are subject to significant management judgemnent and estimation.

Allocatian of goodwill to discominued operations

The Directors have made a judgernent to determine the allocztion of goodwil to the discontinued operations to armve at the gain/loss on disposal
This aflocation was carried out with reference to the forecast performance of those activites compared to the forecast performance of the: cash-
generating units the artivihes were previously part of

Gain/floss) on disposaf of discontinued operations

The Group has recognised a gain of £26.7m on the disposal of Mitie Pest Control Limited and a loss of £11.7m on the disposal of the Social Housing
business, refer to Note 5.

The value of these gains and losses is subject to finaksation of the consideration to be paid through agreemertt of the completion accounts with
the purchasers of these businesses. The Directors have made a judgement as to the likely outcorne of each completion accounts settiernent.

Deferred tax assers
The Group has recognised deferred tax assets of £38.7m (2018: £36.7m). refer to Note 20, The Directors have assessed recovery of these assets

with reference 10 the Group's medium-term forecasts. Recovery of these assets is subject 1o the Group generating taxable profits in fiture years.
Impairment of goodwil! ) . )

In assessing the key sources of estimation uncertainty, the Directors no longer consider impairment of goodwill as a key source of estimation.
The Directors do not consider that ary reasonably foreseeable change in this source of estimation would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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3. Business segment information

The Group manages its business on a service dwision basis. At 3| March 2019, the Group has six strategic divisions which are its reportable segments
and the information, as reported, is consistent with information presented to the Board. Revenue, operating profit before other items and i
profit margin before other items are the primary measures of performance that are reported to and reviewed by the Board, which is the Group's
chief operating decision maker.

The information presented for the year ended 3| March 2018 has been restated to reflect the changes in management reporting, implemented in the
year ended 31 March 2019, of certain business unit activities transfernng between Engineering Services, Professional Services and Corporate centre,
the integration into Engineering Services of the roofing and painting activities which previcusly formed part of Property Management, and the
dassfmbonofPestCorﬁrolarﬂSooalengasdmﬁmedoperﬁbom

w01y 208

T gee P om

Revenue other kems®  other iterms? Raverue s’ other iteme?

&m im x fm im %

Enginesnng Servces 905.7 56.7 65 8863 541 6.
Security 5365 30.7 5.7 220 s 64
Professioral Services 131.4 54 43 1312 56 43
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 404.4 175 43 3841 1956 5.4
Care & Custody 1073 39 3.6 599 19 32
Catering 136.1 5.1 38 137.4 56 4.
Corporate centre - 33.4) - - @GLy -
Total from continuing operations 2,221.4 88.2 4.0 203056 832 4.1
Pest Control .e 2.4 102 23 26 7
Sodal Housing 8.1 1.6 .8 1508 38 25
Total from discontinued operations 10).0 4.0 4.0 173.1 64 37
Total 2,322.4 92.2 4.0 22037 896 4.1

Notes

| Th&'uplmampmdm‘)m‘|MMlehmmiﬂknﬂewwmhmsmﬁmmwmﬁmnﬁncﬁednﬂl
apphcation Under this opion. the comper

2 Other itarve are as described r MNote 4,

3 No single custome> accounted for more than 10% of estemal revenue n 2019 or 2018,

A reconciliation of segment operating profit/(Joss) before other iterns to total profit/(loss) before tax is provided below:

w1y 2018
im £m
Operating profit before other items 88.2 832
Other ftems? ) (38.0) ®2h.
Net firance costs ’ {13.8) (165)
Total from continuing operations 364 (154)
Operating profit before other items 4.0 64
Other items? (6.0) (15.8)
Net finance income - 0.1 0.1
Total from discontinued operations {9 (93)
Profit/(loss) before tax 3458 4.7

Notac:

1. The Group has adopted FRS 9 starting | Aprl 2018 using the transition option avallable n the standard by disclasing the impact a< an adustrnent to opering retained eamings 1 the date of nvtia!
application. Under this opbon, the comparative inforrmation is not restated.
2 Other torms are as described in Note 4.

IFRS 8 requires that a measure of segment assets should be disclosed only if that amount s regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and
consequently no segment assets are disclosed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3t March 2019

3. Business segment information continued

Geographical segments
2019 018
Operating Opﬁﬁf Gperating
F""W(""; margin profitios; fargn
before before before before
Revenue  other iterms’ other iterns? Reverue other pems? other items?
&m ém % £m £m *
United Kingdom 1,122.2 85.6 40 15206 829 43
Orther couritries 9.2 2.6 2.4 t100 03 03
Continuing operations 22214 $#8.1 4.0 20306 832 4.
United Kingdom 101.0 4.0 4.0 173.1 64 37
Onher countries - - - - - -
Discontinued operations 1010 4.0 4.0 173.1 64 37
Total 23124 2.2 4.0 22037 896 41
Notes

i The Group has adopied IFRS 9 siarting | Apri 2018 using the trasitiun option available: in the: standard by disclosing the Impact as an adustment to opening retsived eamings at the date of inkial
mwwmumwm&smm i

2 Cther iters are a3 described in Note 4
Supplementary information

Wiy 08

piantand  of intangible of contract Other pant and rtanghle of contract Orher

R e e Som Mo s o o
Engineering Services LX 4 (L3 - 62 1.2 25 - 37
Security . 18 01 - 1 18 09 - 04
Professional Services 02 ol 02 0.8 03 07 - 06
Cleanmmg & Emironmenal 4 10 - 20 40 03 - K
Services
Care & Custody 04 - 0.8 o 03 - [+1] 04
Catering 10 0. - 0.1 15 02 - -
Corporate centre 32 7.0 - 172 32 85 - 762
Continuing operations 1a X ) 180 123 132 ol 82t
Healthcare - - - (2.0) T - - -
Pest Conrol .l - - (27.6) 02 ol - -
Socid Housing 8.2 o1 - 354 03 o2 - 158
Discondinued oparations 03 0.1 - 0 05 03 - 158
Total 1.6 2.0 08 440 128 135 01 979
Note
1. Other kerms are as described in Note 4.
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Disaggregated revenue

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by sector (government and non-government) and by contract duration (contracts g
with a duration from inception of less than two years, and contracts with a duration from inception of more than two years). The Group believes this

bstdelpiQShowﬂ\enature.tinltganda’:rwﬂofremar\dcashﬂmareaffectedbyeconomncfactorsThefdlowhgtaweindudesa f-é,
reconciliation of disaggregated revenue with the Group's reportable segments. §
2019 “

Contract duration for timing of revenue

Sector' recognition

Government mmmm Toul L?m "";:: Tota)

m {m m ém tm &m

Engineenng Services 348.3 5174 905.7 1224 7833 905.7

Security 88.3 448.2 5365 80.1 456.4 5365

Prolessonal Services 215 109.9 131.4 54 126.0 1304
Cleaning & Environmental Services 1092 2952 4044 - 4044 4044 g
Care & Custody 107.3 - 1073 - 107.3 107.3 g
Catering 5.7 1304 1364 17.4 187 136.1 3

Continuing operations 700.3 1,521.1 22214 2253 1,996.1 21214

Pest Control - 1. .9 - e 1.9

Social Housing 2% - 89.1 54.1 5.0 89.1

Discontinued operations 8%.1 1.y L0 54.1 459 101.0

Total 789.4 1,533.0 1,322.4 1794 2,040 13214

Note

1. Sector 5 defined by the end austomer on any contract eg, f the Group i 2 subontractor to a constnuction company for the bullding of a public hospital, then the contract would be dasufied
€ povemmant,

X018 o

Sector' Contract dursbon for timing of revenue recogrvtion g

Gowrment  govereenona Ta e Zyen T [

Engineering Services 3684 SI179 8863 1374 7489 8863 £
Security 839 348.1 4320 55.7 3763 4320
Professional Services 138 1174 1312 %] 1223 1312
Clezning & Environmental Services 898 2943 3841 - 364.1 364.1
Care & Custody 599 - 599 - 59.9 599
Catering 46 1325 137.1 16 [355 137.1
Continuing cperations 6204 14102 20306 2036 18270 20306
Pest Cantrol - 223 223 - 223 23
Social Housing 1508 - 1508 91é 592 1508
Discontinued operations 1508 223 173.1 916 815 1731
Total 712 14325 22037 2952 19085 22037

Note:
1. Sector is defired by the end austomer on any contract e, i the Group s a subcontractor 10 2 construction company for the bulding of a public hosprtal, than the contract would be daified
25 gOVErTrnert.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3! March 2019

3. Business segment information continued

Transaction price allocated to the remalning performance obligations
The table below shows the forward order book for each segment at the reporting date with the time bands of when the Group expects to recognise
secured revenue on its contracts with customers. Secured reverwie corresponds to fixed work contracted with customers and exdudes the impact of

any articipated contract extersions, and new contracts with customers.

iy w18

..

| yoar | year revenue | year ! year revanue

Em im im im im im

Ergmneenng Servites 3404 1,442.3 1,301.7 3907 L85 20192
Security 478.3 493.1 718 300.1 3407 6408
Professional Servces 29.7 §12 86,9 458 99.1 1445
Cleaning & Erwironmental Services 275.5 k112 663.1 2760 3803 6563
Care & Custody 100.8 495.8 596.6 1008 5693 670.1
Catering 72 193 268 B2 265 347
Continuing aperations 1,250 2,895.4 4,147.3 11216 30644 41860
Past Conrol - - - 30 20 50
Soca Housing - - - 763 2280 3043
Discontinued operations - - - 793 2300 3093
Total 12519 28954 4,147.3 },2009 32944 44953

4. Otheritems

Oﬂwmmmdﬁmnddpufmncewhmmmbdmd\omdbesepumbfide:wﬁﬁedmmefaceofﬂﬁeimstatmtoa&siﬁ
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group.

TheGrmpsepamdyreportsmempalnrmtofgoodmﬂ.ﬁtecostof

programmes, acquisition and disposal costs induding the write-off
and amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, the whdmﬂcosuasocﬁedmhdsposa’sardoﬂnruwpﬁmdtsmmdﬂwrmhted

tax effect as cther itemns:

b1}

Acquisition & Other
CTroctml | voms remtedies  hage  ondmord T herms Tota

Continung opershons im fm &m  purchase m &m im
Adrministrative experses - (5.1 a.n 88 - (23.0) (38.0)
Other [tems before tax - (15.1) %) 88 - (21.0) (38.0)
Tax - 28 0.5 - - 4.0 7.4
Other items after tax - 123 ) L ¥} - (19.0) (30.6)
Decontinued operations
Othar items before tax - o8 - - 179 (23.1) (6.0)
Tax - 0.2 - - {0.9) 435 38
Other items after tax - 0.5) - - 17.0 (18.6) Q.
Total - 129) . a8 17.0 (37.6) (32.8)
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018 i
. Acqimmon Otter g
TEE I LS S B w B
Contruing operations &m m tm £m m &m T
Adrinistrative experses _ @27 (4790) (84) - (40) (82.1) @
Other itens before tax @n (479) (84) - (40) @1y
Tax - 87 04 - 09 100
Other items after tax @ (83) a0 - an 20
Other items before tax (s 03 - - @8 (158
Tax - ot - - 06 07 u
Other ftems after tax . (9) ©2) - - G0 (5.1 g
Total (@46 (385) @0 - ®n @2 e
Impairment of goodwill

No charges in respect of the impairment of goodwill have been made in the year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors assessed the recoverabifity of the goodwall allocted to the former Property Management CGU
and recorded an impairment charge of £34.6m. Following the dsposal of the Social Housing business, the remaining goodwill of the roofing and painting
activities previously reported in Property Management, has been integrated into the Engineering Services CGL) See Nete 12

Restructure costs

The restructure costs relate to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Helix transformation programme induding the
transition costs assocated with the outsourcing of certain badk-office transactional processes.

miy 2018 k5
Contimdng  Discontinued Touat Corwig  Discontiwed o E
£m im im m £m £m
Redundancy payments’ (4.2) (0.5) (4.7} (45) (03} “8
Cost of change team? ©.n - o.n ©n - ©7
Expenditure and provisions in respect of property dosure? ©.2) - ©.2) (48 - {48)
Expenditure in respect of Project Helix transformation activivess (10.0) - (10.0) (@64) - (266)
Expendture in respect of other trarslormation projects - {0.3) (0.3) - - -
Impairment of intangicle assets® - - - (104 - (104}
Restructuring costs (15.1) (0.8) (159) (470) 03 (473)
Taxation p X ) 02 30 87 [A] 88
Restructuring costs net of taxation (+2.3) (0.6) (129) (38.3) 02) {385)
Notes

I Inchudes £13.5m (2018, £348m) n respect of the Project Helfix transformation actinbes.

2 Costs in respect of roles rmade redundant as a result of the Progect Helix trareformation 2d other projects to restructure the Group's activities. '

3 Incremental costs of teams smvolved in the management of Progect Helix transformnation activities.

4 ﬁhmdmwmmmmmmlmmmmmdum‘sMsmdmm&quﬁx

B@aﬂmmr@eﬂdmmmmmmmm(mm tnﬁrn)nfrecnm-nerncmunrapu:tdadmng operating model, £1.6m (2018. £82m)
related to dual running and inowledge transfer costs a5 part of the trancler of the transactonal back Nmmmadem C&Jmn(%(& £48m)d'wdormmmpmm
defivery costs, £1.8m in respect of Genpart mobilisation (2018: £rﬂ)ard&ﬂ(10|8.£|3&n)ofprofenmalfe=mrapea advice and corsuftancy activities assocated with
exacution of the Project Helix transformnation ackivilies.

& hwmsummmwwmwmMmmuwhmmmwsWMMdeﬁnmﬂumﬂhﬂ
proceses.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

4. Other items continued

Gain/(loys) on disposal
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group completed the sale of the Pest Control and Social Housing businesses. See Note 5 for further detals

Acquisition and disposal related costs

Acquisition and disposal related costs from continuing operations include the irmpairment and amortisation charge for acquiisition related intangibles
£1.5m (2018: £2.6m), the charge for restricted shares issued per Note 31 of £3.9m (201 8: £3.4m), costs of £2.6m (2018: £nil) related to the V5G
acquisition, costs of £0.4m (2018: £nil) related to the settlernent of daims associated with previous acquisitions, costs of £03m (2018; £2.2m) relating
to the aborted disposal of the former Property Management division, and £nil {2018: £02m) related to the disposal of the Healthcare division.

Gain on bargain purchase

Acredit of £8.8m (201 8: £nil} representing a gain on bargain purchase in respect of the acquisition of Vision Security Group Limited {VSG) has been
recogrised from continuing operations. See Note 30,

Other exceptional items

Other exceptional itemns are analysed below:

Y nig
Contiming  Discontinued Contirg  Discontinued
¥ * = Total operations operations Towl
&m &m im m m £m
Regulatory investiggbon! [(R}} - [{N}) 23 - @3)
RS 9/15/16 adoption project’ .7 - (X)) (08) - {0:8)
Costs incurved and provision for settiement of contractual disputes’ - (20.5) (20.5) - 33) (33)
Prowision for indemnified costs® - (1.6) (2.6) - - -
Contract termination receipt® - - - 20 - 20
Persion scheme past service costs {induding curtailments)* - - - (19) - 19
Cost of equaling Guaranteed Minimum Pensions” (1.6) - (1.46) - - -
Persion scheme Section 75 debt® (20.0) - (20.0) - - -
Gain on dosure of Mitie Reinsurance” [X] - 04 - - -
Hasictations'? - - - (L) 03} {13)
Other axceptional items (23.0) (23.1) (46.1) {40) 36} 8
Taxation 4 45 .5 09 06 15
Other exceptional items net of taxation (19.0) (18.8) (37.6) A.) G0) [CX)]
Notes:
I and professional costs of £.1 18: 2 z beenincurred n of the dosed FRC ino the tnwm and acorued income
Lﬁ ol mmnu;rmyer BIWrdlml&hcbedm hm Cuws M Caompeny an
13 Iﬂ.ﬂemofprwrnmmdwdh@mwvsfrmﬂmmmdmfwhpemdmdedB m»ola-ﬂwuw;m
Into the ame matters, facts and draumstances which were subject 1o FCA and FRC investigation.
2 Professonal fess and interim staff aosts of £0.7m (2018: €0.8m) have been inaurred in of the © RS 9 Friancal struments’, IFRS 15 Revenue from comtracts with
o fomand it @0 ) respect projects & adopt
3. The £205m forhnaruded.‘ilmmwl?(mlﬂ:a.!m)mmwsﬂmmmmaﬂnmdhmda £161m for the
estivated costs of nectfication works nd legel advice 2mocited with certain of the Group's property mantenance contracts, dmcmm;mm adl 2019, and
nnnfurwummmmwmumwuwumdmmmmmurnmmm u:rmm
4. The f26michange for the yesr ended 31 Manch 2019 reper the estimated costs arising from certain indermnities provided n relation to the disposal of the Social Housing business.
Thmnddndnprgsor\“ﬂfmﬂnzow e n
5. The loss of two major contracts in the year ended 31 March 2018 resulted in a one-ofT tenmination receipt amountting to £2.0m. These are eparately cue to the size of the
payments received and the fact that the loss of contracs of the size is an unusual event for the Group.
& Asaresult of the dosure of the Mitie Group pic Pension Scherne to future acoruat from October 2017, senvice cost (induding Yol L1 9mwass nthe ended
Jl;hﬁlOl&SaNszfwfmmp: R ey
7. Folowing swed by the Hi Cunonzsombernwnﬁ\em Barking Group relating to the equaksation of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) the Group has
mmm&gmbe?dt the actirvated fnancial impact of U mmmmmmmawmmmwt v.h:}mmue

staternent as a plan amardment. the charge has bes:tdﬂadwhnodmwudzwumrdmmdhmnsghmnfufmm
B, Estirraied Sechon 75 debt in refation 10 the partiipabon of Robert Prethe £ Co Limited m the Pumibng & Mecharial Services (UK) industry Peraion Soheme. See MNeie 31 for furthes details.
9. During the year ended 31 March 2019 the Group Biquidated s captive insurance companry Mitie Reinsurance Company Lirnited resufting in 2 net income of €0:4m after setiing all

10. As part of the ratonalistton of the Group's property portioko i review of the potential kabilbes for leasehald property dilapidation oosts was camed out and resulted in a one-ofT £1 3m charge
nthe year ended 3| March 2018,
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5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (Pest Controf) for cash consideration of £40.0m before tax
and transaction costs. The results of the Pest Control business have been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been
restated. The Group recognised a net gain on disposal of £26.7rm, reported in profit from discontinued operations and recognised in other items
(see Note 4).

On |9 Novermber 2018, the Company signed an agreement for the sale of Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Limited (together
the Social Housing business} and this fransaction was subsequertly completed on 30 November 2018. The results of the Social Housing business have
been classified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been restated. The Group has retained liability, and made provisions where
appropriate, for certain legacy contracts of the Social Housing business so these are not induded within liabilities held for sale. The Group recogrised

a net boss on disposal of £11.7m, reported in profit from discontinued operations and recognised in other terns (see Note 4).

The Group has determined that the Healthcare Indemanity provision should be partly released by £2.0m. This has been recorded as a gain on disposal.
The results of these discontinued operations are detailed below. '
There were no disposals in the financial year ended 3§ March 2018.

Income statement of discontinued operations

Strategic report

009
Pest Control  Sodial Housing Total
im im &m
Revenue n.e 89.1 1o
Cost of sales “n 719) (719.6)
Gross profit 52 16.2 214
Aderiristrative experses (2.8) (15.1) (179
Share of profit of point vertures and assodates - 05 (X1
Operating profit before other tems' 4 1.4 4.0
Other items’ - {23.9) {11.%) =
Net finance income ot - .1 §
Profit/(loss) before tax 15 Q2.3) (19.8) z
Tax (©.3) 40 37 =
Profiti(loss) from discontinued operations 12 (18.3) (16.1) E
W18
Pest Cortrdl Sodial Housing Tow
im im €m
Reverue 23 1508 173.1
Cost of sales (162) {1158) (1320
Gross profit Y} 350 41.1
Administrative expenses BGS5) 320 0Qs5)
Share of profit of joint ventures and assoaates - 08 08
Operating profit before other items? 6 38 64
Other ftems® . @©.1) (15.7) {158)
Net finance income 0.l - Ql
Profit/(loss) before tax 26 (119) 93)
Tax (05) 03 ©2)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 21 {118) 95)

Notes:

| The £1.6m operatng profit before cther iterns in Social MHousng for the year ended 31 March 2019 inchudes a £1.4m koss in respect of a comtract which has been tarminated and £2.6m
of recharges in respect of Group central services.

b3 T}eﬂ&noperm\gp-ofabefmwumn%mlﬂ:ﬂforﬂey&uﬂednMard\lOIﬂlﬂ.acBmme&dddiprmdﬂlmnaddeﬂdemnmﬁ
of Group cerral services,

3 Onher fers are as described in Note 4
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries continued
Gain/(loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

wie w8

kuvu‘:: Pest Conw‘:' Sodal m‘ﬁn Tﬁ D-hu%r:‘
Tottal consideration . - M4 ns 0.9 ©2)
et assets disposed - (0.6 GLY @aen -
Relaase of indemnity provision 2.0 - - 20 -
Transachon costs - {13) 3.5 5.3) -
Total gain/(loss) on disposal before tax 2.0 7.4 Ly 179 ©2
Taation - o9 - - ©¢9) -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of discuntinued operations 20 24.7 Ly 17.0 02
Note:

1. Totl consideration of £392m has been receved in cash, but £).6m i experted to be returned through agreement of the completion acoounts with the purchaser of the business.
2 Deferred contribubon of £0.2m inthe year to 31 March 2018 was payable to the punchaser.
3. inchudes poodwll of £3.3m relating to Past Control and £ 12 5m rolating to Socal Housing and cash balances of £3.6m.

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

019 018
&m m
Loss for the year from discontinued operations e.1) 95)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations tro -
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations [ X 95)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year from discontinued operations
201% 2018
on m
Equity holders income/(expense) 0.9 9.5)
Cash flows from discontinued operations
019 w8
tm £m
Net cash used in operating activities (9.4) ©.0)
Net cash generated from investing activities 52,6 02
Net cash generated from financing activities - 13
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 432 75)
Earnings/(loss) par share from discontinued operations
201 2018
(] P
Basic earnings before other terns per share! 0.9 1.6
Basic eamings/(loss) per share ) 0.2 @7
Diluted earrwngs before other items per share! 0.9 16
Diuted earnings/(loss) per share 0.2 @7

Note:
1. Other iems are as desaribad in Note 4
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Joint ventures and associates of discontinued operations

The Social Housing disposal group induded a 30% interest in an assocate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a lirited liability partnership registered in the §_
United Kingdom. The Group's interest in the assodate was accounted for in the consolidated finandial statements using the equity E
The surmmarised finandial information set out below for the year ended 3| March 2019 has been taken from unaudited management accourts §"
of the associate. B
wr
2019 018
m £m
Reverue 93] 122
Operating profit I8 24
Group's share of profit of associate in discontinued operations 0S5 OB
101% 018
£m im Y
Current assets - 38 E
Current kabities - {12) §
Net assets - 26 ©
Group’s share of interest in assoclate - 08

During the 2019 finandial year the Group received dividends from Pyramid Plus South LLP of £nil 2018: £0.6m).

-
I
<
<
=
7
=
o]
c
=
[
o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit/(foss) has been arrived at after chargng:

01 08
Continuing and discontinued operations m im
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 116 118
Amortisation of other intangible assets (Nate |3) 2.0 135
Amortsation of contract assets o8 0.4
tmpairment of goodwil (Note 12) - 346
impairment of other intanghble assets (Note 13) (R} 104
Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment (0.8) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 5) ()] -
Impairment losses recognised on trade recenables (Note 23) 1.1 23
impairment (gains)/osses recognised on atarued income (Note 23) {(1.8) 0
Operating lease rentaks 265 2.
Note:

|. The Group has adopted IFRS 5 starting | 2018 using the transition aveible in the standard by disckoang the impact as an acjustment to opening retained earnings at the date of initial
mmumuwmrﬁwm‘;&smmf & =

A detailed analysis of auditor’s remuneration is provided below:

2019 I8
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Compary's annual accounts — BDO LLP 40 40
Fees payabie to the Company's auditor and its assodiates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant 10 legislation — BDCO LLP 1,520 1,161
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legislation — Deloitte LLP - 87
Total audit faes 1540 1288
Other audt related services to the Group — BDO LLP 127 93
Tax services ~ BDO LLP - 6
Total non-audit fees 127 9%
Total 1,687 1387

122 Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



7. Staff costs
The average number of pecple employed during the financial year was

Strategic report

Number of people 2019 2019
Engineering Services arn 8500

Securty 15,011 14,804
Professional Services 1059 1029

Clearing & Environmental Services 20,301 21,706

Care & Custody 1,976 1051

Catering 2,384 2505
Corporate centre s 37
Continuing operations 49,480 50032

Pest Control 190 198 ¢
Social Housing 737 831 g
Discontinued operations 927 1,029 L-g,
Total Group 50,407 51061

Nage:

R e A YR = s oy s

The number of people employed at 3| March was:

2009 2018
Continuing operations } 52,492 47,354 .
Discontinusd operations - 1,632 E
Total Group 52,492 49026 ;b:
Wiages and salaries 1,125.4 10207 .
Socal sequrity costs ‘w9 77.
Other pension costs . .46 170
Share-based payments (Note 31) Ll 12
Share-hased payments acquisition related costs (Notes 4 and 31) 30 34
Total 1,143.8 11194
Details of Directors’ remuneration is provided below:
2019 2018
im £m
Directors’emoluments 1.7 21
Share-based payments 0.8 06
Total 4.5 27

None of the Directors accrued benefits under the defined benefit scheme, or were members of the defined contribution schemes for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018. Details of loss of office payments (subject to audit) are dischosed in the remuneration report on page 78,

The total amount payable to the highest paid Director in respect of emokuments was £2.2m (2017, £1.im).
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Notes to the consofidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3! March 2019

8. Finance costs

019 2018
Cominuing operations tm im
Interest on bank faciities 4.2 32
Interest on private placement loan notes 7.8 9.1
Bartk fees 0.5 20
Imerest on obligavons under finance leases 0.1 -
Unwinding of discounts on provisions 0.1 02
Loss arising on fair vakee bedges - .o
Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme assets and lablites 13 20
Total 14.0 166
9. Tax

pili] 2018
Continuing and discortinued operations m £m
Current tax' 34 {56)
Deferred tax (Note 20) 0.2 %9
Tax charge for the year 3.6 13
Continuing operations 6.4 K]
Discontinued operations . (2.8) 02
Tax charge for the year 3.6 13
Noxe
IR mwmﬁmomkmlmnmmm m&wlmwkhummdmhmmmgxummmn&edm

Corporation tax is cakoulated 2t 19% (20186; 19%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year. A recondiiation of the tax charge 1o the elemertts of profit

before tax per the corechidated incorne statemert elernents is as follows:

0y 018
Bafore Other Before Other

other items ket Total other items ternd? Total
Continuing and discontinued operations £m &m £m £m m £m
Profit/{less) before tax 785 (44.0) 345 732 0979) (247)
Tax 2t UK rate of 19% (201 8: 19%) 149 [C1) [ 139 (i86) @n
Reconciling tax charges for: .
Non-tax deductible charges 0.9 - 0.9 05 Ll 1.6
Share-based paymenits 03 0.7 7] @n - ©n
Gain on disposat of businesses - (4.0) (4.0) - - -
impairment of goodwill .- - - - 66 66
Overseas tax rates - 0.1 - ©2 ) - ©3).
Impact of change in statutory tax rates (0.4) 0.5 0.l 0.1 02 03
Prior year adjustments ©.n - .7 @n - @4
Tax chargel/(credit) for the year t4.8 1.2) 16 120 {107y 13
Effective tax rate for the year 18.9% 25.5% 10.4% 16.4% 105% (53)%
Notes:

I TMerphudﬁedm9m‘IAyi!ﬂlamghuwmw:nhwbymmmummmwwmnuweofm

2 Cther garns are as destribed in Note 4.

In addition 1 the arnounts charged 1o the consolidated income stitement, tax relating to retiremert benefit costs amounting to a £2.4m credit
(2018: £3.4m charge) has been taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income together with a £0.3m charge relating to share-based
payments and hedged items (2018: £0.1m credit).

The UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 19% to 17% from | April 2020, This will reduce the Group's future current tax charge accordingly.

The UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 March 2019 refiect this change. A curment 1ax prowision is recognised when the Group has a present

obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
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10. Dividends

£
e p.o}:]
i P
" Amounts recopnised as distributions in the year: . §n
Second interim divicend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 267p (2017 final dividend: nil) per share' 9.4 - g
3
Interim dividend for the year ended 3| March 2019 of 1.33p (201 8: 1.33p) per share 4.8 48
Amounts paid in 2019 and 2018 144 48
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 267p (2016: 267p) per share 9.6 96
Note
I On?hmlO!B.theCDumrmnmcednsfmlmforhyearededNI“IarchZOlSme-mh&hﬁd-fmwdlﬂpwm
parableonéAug.stlm&o-\ZMmZOIBmeCunpmy nsNoweonOlBAm.anmeralMea?E(ﬂ\eNmm)M 2 resolution shareholder approval
of the fira! dividend. tn order for the dividend to be pard 1o sharehoklers on 6. August 2018 in accordhnee with MWMBIWEW dechred a second
wmncﬁnduddl&?pp&ﬂamnphneofﬂ:mpndfwﬂcﬁvdmd
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019
11. Eamings per share

Basic and dfuted earnings per share have been calculated in accordance with IAS 33 ‘Earnings per share’.
The calcutation of the basic and diluted EPS is based on the following data:

e 201g
From tontinung operstions &m m
Net profit before other items attributable to equity holders of the parent 60.6 545
Other tems net of o . (30.4) @210)
Net proft/{ioss) attibutable 1o equity holders of the parent 30.0 (176)
iy 218
Fromn contrung and discontirued operations om Im
Net profit before other items attributable to equity holders of the parent $3.7 60.1
Other iterns net of tax? (32.8) (87.2)
Net profit/(loss) attributable 1o equity holders of the parent . 30.9 @22.1)
019 2018
Nurrber of shares million miion
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 360.8 3579
Effect of dilstive patentia) ordinary shares share options 12 13
Weighted avwersge number of ordinary shares for the purpose of ®uted EPS 361.0 3598
01 018
P p
From continuing operations:
Basic earnings before cther tems per share® 168 152
Basic earrings/{loss) per share 83 (49)
Diluted earmings before other items per share? 18.7 15.1
Diuted earnings/(loss) per share a3 (49)
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic earnings before other items per share? 17.7 168
Basic eamings/(loss) per share 8.6 78
Diluted earnings before other iterns per share? 17.5 167
Diutad eamings/(loss) per share as 78
Notes

1. The has IFRS 9 g | 2018 using the i avaibable in the standard ing the i _ _ the date of intial
Group dﬁeﬂ : ”:rh‘ Apri 2018 using ism in by discioging the impact a an adistment tn opening retaned eamings at

1 Cnbher furre are s descrioed in Note 4

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in ssue during the year exdudes those accounted for in the own shares reserve (see Note 29).

The dilutive potential ordinary shares relate to instruments that could potentially dikste basic earmings per share in the future, such as share options.
The loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 means that the identified potentially ditaive shares are arti-diltive for the purposes of cakeulating diluted
earnings per share.
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12. Goodwill

SN
Com 5
At | Aprl 2017 3589 £
impact of foreign exchange . 03 &
At 31 March 2018 3592
Disposal of subsidiaries (319)
At 31 March 2019 3263
Accumulated impairment losses
At | April 2017 150
Impairment of property goodwil 346
At 31 March 2018 49.6 g
Disposal of subsidiaries G A g
At 3) March 2019 318 4]
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019 293.8
At3] March 2018 309.6
At | Aprd 2017 ) 3439

Acquisition of Vision Security Group

©On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). There is no poodwill recognised on acquisition as the consideration
paid was bess than VSG's net assets at the acquisition date, giving rise to a gain on bargain purchase, see Note 30.

Disposal of Social Housing

On 19 Novernber 2018, the Comparyy signed an agreement for the sale of Mitie Property Managernent Limited and MPS Housing Limited (together,
the Social Housing business). This transaction completed on 30 November 2018 and the assocrted carrying amount of goodwill of £12.5m has been
induded in net assets disposed. See Note 5.

Disposal of Pest Control

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (PestComml)andtheassomtedgoodMIIofBBmhasbeen
induded in net assets disposed. See Note 5.

Goodwill impairment testing

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

Goodwill has been allocated to CGUs, which align with the business segments, as this s how poodwill is monitored by the Group internally. The £23.1m

net carryng value of goodwill associated with the roofing and painting activiies which previously formed part of Property Management has been
transferred into the Engineering Services CGU.

P
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£
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The Group tests goodwill at least anrwally for impairment or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill may be impaired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

12. Goodwill continued
A summary of the goodwill balances and the discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from each CGU are s follows:

Pre-ax Postax Goodwill Goodwil
discount rate  discount rate 008 2018
X % on om
Engineering Services' 10.) 23 130.9 1309
Security 103 *3 1047 1017
Frofessional Services 133 103 15.7 157
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services ny 2 29.8 33
Catering 121 *.5 15.7 157
Sociat Housing - 125
Total 2938 3006
Now:
) The nformation presented for the year ended 31 March 2015 has been restated to reflect the integration inlo Engineering Services of the roofing and painting activites previcusly reported
in Property Maragement.
Key assumptions

The recoverable amounts for each CGU are determined by the value in use which is derived from discounted cash flow calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calaulations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and direct costs
during the forecast period. Managernent estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks spedific to the CGUs The long-term growth rates are based on forecast inflation. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past
performance and expectations of future changes in the market, operating model, and cost base.

Growth rates and termina! values
For- a8 CGUs the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derved from the most recent budgets for the year ending 31 March 2020 and the Group
mediumetertn plan 10 31 March 2024 which have been approved by the Board, and a terminal value using a'long-tenm growth assumption of 1.5%.

Discount rates

The pre-tax discount rates used 1o assess the forecast <ash flows from CGUs are derived from the Cornpany’s post-tax Weighted Average Cost of
Capital, which was 8.8% at 31 March 2019 (2018: 7.7%), and is adjusted for the risks specific to the business being assessed and the market m which
the CGU) operates. Al CGUSs have the same access to the Group's treasury functions and borrowing lines to fund their operations.

Sensitivity analysis

A sersitivity analysis has been performed and the Directors have conduded that no reasonably foreseeable change in the key assumptions would result
in an impairment of the goodwill of any of the Group's CGlUs.
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13. Other intangible assets

Total Software and o
rehmrdq:w Other ""m an ) Total ?
£m m im £m im ‘E

Cost
A1 Apr 2017 884 109 9.3 973 1966
Additions - - - 90 20
A131 March 2018 BB 4 109 99.3 1063 205.6
Additions - - - 12 nz
Acquistion of subsiciaries 149 - 149 - 14.9
Disposals - - - G113 1.3
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - (60) (6.9) 8
At 31 March 2019 1033 109 1142 802 194.4 E
Amortisation §
At | Apnil 2017 B34 9.6 230 504 143.4
Charge for the year 22 04 2.6 109 135
Impairment of software and development expendiure - - - 104 10.4
At 31 March 2018 8546 10.0 5.6 7z 167.3
Charge for the year 12 03 15 75 9.0
Impairment of software and development expernditure - - - [ B [N ]
Disposak - - - G13) aLy) g
Disposal of subsdianes - - - @9 .49 £
At 31 March 2019 858 103 974 46.6 141.7 é
Carrying amount E
At 3| March 2019 N X1 06 17.1 336 50.7
At 3] March 2018 28 09 17 345 333
At | April 2017 50 1.3 6.3 469 532

Customer relationships are amortised over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate benefits.

These currently range from four to eight years. Other acquisition related intangibles indude acquired software and technology which are amortised
over their useful lives which currertly range from three to ten years. Software and development costs are amortised over their useful lives of between
five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group impaired £10.4m of software and development expenditure related to intangible assets with the
impairment recognised within restructuring costs in other iterrs (see Note 4).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

i4. Property, plant and equipment

Freehokd Leasehold m Toml
£m m im im

Cost
At | Apeil 2017 13 168 715 [ X ]
Additions ' 02 49 i07 158
Reclassifications within property, plant and equipment - 0.2 ©2) -
Disposals (1.2 08 24 (4.4)
At31 March 2018 03 2.t 96 tot.0
Additions - 4.1 80 121
Redassifications within property, plant and equipment - ©3) 03 -
Disposals - {6.5) (173) {23.8)
Acquisiton of subsidiaries - - 02 02
Disposal of subsicianies ©3) o7 Q@4 a4
At 3! March 2019 - 1727 684 8.t
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At | April 2017 04 105 463 573
Charge for the year - 17 i 128
Redassifications within property, ptant and equipment - 02 ©) -
Disposaks ©3) 03 @ @an
A3 March 2018 [+X] 122 55.1 7.4
Charge for the year - 08 108 1.6
Redassfications within property, plart and equiprerst - ©.h Q. -
Disposals ' - o)) (172 (19.9)
Disposal of subsidiaries . 02 (7 .
Ag 31 March 1019 - 100 471 5710
Carrying amount
Aé]l March 2019 - 77 213 9.0
At 31 March 2018 02 85 245 334
Al Aprl 2017 09 62 52 313

The net book vahse of plant and vehicles held under finance leases included above was £0.7m (2018; £0.7m).
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15. Trade and other receivables

1019 2018
£m m
Trade receivables 2338 2050
Accrued income 132.6 1314
Prepayments ' 271 23
Other receivables? 419 283
Total 435.2 3860
Induded in current assets 435.2 3860
Induded in non-current assets - -
Total 435.2 3860
Notas
k ThaninndnpuleFG9mglA.prlmISWgﬂnwmcpumawwenshemdbfm&emamﬁmmmmﬂmammdm
applcaton. Under this option, the comparatie inft ot restzted

2 mﬁmhhmﬁ;#éLm%g‘ﬂjﬂmwmmdﬁﬁwmmmmmmmhmmm‘

TheGrouprnalcauseofanmmmmemmlmedscmmrgfaaluyur\derm:hwvaderacavablebalancesaresoldtoﬂ‘-eGrups
relationship banks, As these trade receivables are sold without recourse, the Group has derecognised them, and so they are not included within trade
receivables. The Group has reduced the amount of invoice discounting from £763m as at 31 March 2018 to £73.2m as at 31 March 2019,

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and ather receivables approximates their fair value.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and its loss allowance against the balance of trade receivables and accrued income, is provided
in Note 23

16. Contract assets

U o
costs costs Towl
m £m &n
AL April 2017 - - -
Additions - 23 2.3
Amortised in the period - @ {0.1)
At 31 March 2018 - 22 2.2
Addtions 2 25 4.7
Amortised in the penod - (0.8) {0.8)
At 31 March 2019 12 39 6.1
Incdluded in current assets 07 03 .8
Included n non-gurrent assets 15 10 4.5
Towal 22 39 [

Contract assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the contract life which is consistent with the transfer of services to the customer to which
the asset relates, Management has determined that no impairment of contract assets is required as at 31 March 2019,

Mitie Group plc | Anrual Report and Accounts 2019 134

Strategic report

Govermance

o
huis
<
[y
o
jort
]
e
e

o
[}
=
<

[y




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

17. Trade and other payables

2019 218

&m m

Payments received on account ’ 0.6 02
Trade creditors 1603 19F3
Ofther taxes and socal security X ™9
Other creditors LY ] 92
Actruals 30.9 1962
Total 533.¢ 4968
Induded in current kablities 5339 4968
Inchuded in non-current tabilities - -
Total 53319 4968

Trade creditors at 31 March 2019 represents 50 days credit on trade purchases (2018 restatect 58 days).

Included within the Group's trade creditors balance is £20.0m (2018; £45.1m) relating to payments due to UK suppiiers which make use of bank
provided supply chain finance arrangements. During the year ended 31 March 2019 these arrangements were used by ¢.200 suppliers, with a maximurm
faciity available: of £50.0m. The Group settles these amountts in accordance with each supplier's agreed payment terms.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approsdimates their fair value.

18. Deferred income from contracts with customers

The significant changes in deferred income are as follows:

01 018

o £m

AL | April 5.0 0.
Revenue recognised that was induded in the deferred income balance at the beginning of the year (44.9) (15%)
Increase due 1o cash received. exduding amounts recognised as revenue durng the year 50.0 508
Acquisition of subsidianes 4.9 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (.7 -
At 31 March 733 650
2019 2018

dm m

Induded within current labities 549 462
Induded within non-current liabilities 19.4 188
Total 733 650

Deferred income relating to customer contracts mobilising in the year amounted to £5.8m (2018: £.6m). For any amounts which do not relate
to specific contractual performance obligations, the income is deferred to the balance sheet and amortised over the period to which the contracted
services are delivered to the customer.
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19. Provisions

5

£

costs  indemnibes  Resiuchawg  considerston resorve osts Persion  Ogapuciations: Totat g

£m m m fm im m £m &m m v
At | Aprl 2047 20 60 - 03 125 58 - - 28.6
Amounts recognised m the balance sheet - - - - - - - 34 34
Amcunts recognised in the income statement 32 - 1.2 - 40 (13) - - 7.1
Uhilised withan captive msurance subsiciary - - - - Q. - - - (0.t)
Unwinding of discourtt - - - - - - - 02 0.2
Utiised in the year ) )] - ©3) N @n - - (L R)!

At31 March 2018 4. 432 1.2 - 153 24 - 36 315 -

Amounts recognised in the income statement 02 06 - - 25 s 200 - 348 é

Uhilised within captive insurance subsidiary - - - - on - - - {0.1) g

Unwinding of discount - - - - - - - ol 0.1 It}
Utilised in the year (40) © 2 - an (08) - ©04) o.n
Redassification - - - - 06 ©8) - - -
At ¥ March 2019 03 5.3 - - 150 127 200 33 - 566

200

Induded in qurrent kabilrtes 03 53 - - 90 127 33 50.6
Induded in non-current liabilities - - - - 60 - - - 6.0
Total 03 53 - - 150 127 200 33 56.6

meCnts

The provisions balance indudes the following items:

The legal costs provision relates to professional fees payable and the potential cost of settliement of cutstanding daims against the Group.
The utilisation of the provision represents the settiement of a contractual claim related to a contract of the now discontinued Sodial Housing business.

The disposal indemnities provision relates to indemnities provided following the disposal by the Group of the Healthcare and Sodal Housing
businesses. The amount recognised in the income staternert represents a £2.6m charge in respect of Sedal Housing net of a £2.0m release in
respect of Healthcare.

The restructuring provision relates 1o costs of organisational change associated with the Group's Project Helix transformation programme induding
the transttion costs assoaated with the outsourcing of certain back-office transactional processes.

The insurance reserve provides for the self-insured element of fleet and liability daims that will typically settle over three to five years. This indudes
3 provsion for claimes that are expected but have not yet been reported.

The contract specific cost provisions relate to vanous obligations arising in the ordinary course of providing services in line with commercial contracts.
The £11.5m charge for the year ended 31 March 2019 indudes the £12.1m estimated costs of rectification works assocated with certain
maintenance contracts of the now discontinued Social Housing business, all ofmhid'\areindldedwithin other items. Refer to Note 4 for further details

Thepe'\s:onprovns:onrelatstothemrﬂsemployerdebtIBbthsofRobenPretue&Cohmnedasarmltofmatcanpany'spartnpabomnme
Plurmbing Scheme. Ths liability is expected to be settled during the year ended 31 March 2020, See Notes 32 and 33,

The provision for diapidations relates to the legal cbligation for leased properties to be returned to the landlord in the contracted condition at the end
of the lease perod This cost would indude repars of any damage and wear and tear.

Contingent asset

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combinaton of insurance claims and recourse to suppliers a proportion of the £16.1m costs
incurred in respect of rectification works for the Social Housing property maintenance contracts, ncuding the £12.tm recorded in provisions above.
are recovered. The amount and timing of any recoveries is yet to be determined.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

20. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movemnents thereon during the current and prior reporting
perixt:

Retiermnent Imtanghle Short-term
Acoelerated tax benefit assets Share ming
Losses depradiation Tnbiiies acquired options differences Total
£m n fm m m &m m
At | Apd 2017 58 65 126 n o7 16 46.1
{Charge)/oredit ta income 70} ©3) 03 03 ©1 ©n %9
{Charge)/credit to equity and the
staternent of comprehensve income - - Q) - Q.¢ - @3.3)
At 3) March 2018 188 6.2 95 ©8) 07 15 359
Acquisition of subsiciaries - 03 - @5) - 02 Q.0
Disposal of subsiciaries - @3 - 05 - 2 -
{Charge)icredit 1o income (15) ) 23 o 04 on ©.2)
Credit/{charge) to equity and the
statemnent of cornprehensive income - - 24 - (03) - 2.1
At 31 March 201¢9 173 50 142 Q9 08 14 5.8

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The folkowang is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting
PUrposes:

2019 08

& £m

DOeferred tax assets 387 367
Deferred tax kabiities a9 (08)
Net deferred tax asset 35 359

The Group has unutilised incorne tax losses of £1023m (2018: £1 12.8m) that are available for offset against future profits. In addivon, the Group has
£0.8m (2018: £0.8m) of capital losses. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £92.8m (2018: £102.7m) of losses to the extent that
it is probabile that tvable profits will be generated in the future and be available for utifisation. Deferred tax has been cakulated using the corporation
tax rate disdosed in Note 9.

21. Cash and cash equivalents

201y 08
£m fm
Cash and cash equivalerns 108.4 598

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The carrying amount of the assets approximates their fair value.

Inchuded in cash and cash equivalents are deposits totalling £nil (2018: £0.4m) held by the Group's insurance subsidiary, which are not readily available
for the general purposes of the Group, The Group's insurance subsidiary was kquidated during the year.
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22. Financing Kabilities

019 Foall

im £m

Bank kaars — under committed lacities Sl 543
Private placement rotes 2119 2038
Obligations under finance leases (Note 24) 15 13
Total 2655 2594
Inchuded in current kabities 0.7 08
Included in non-current fabifities 224.8 2586
Total 2655 2594

Fhe £275.0m bank facility and the private placement notes are ursecured but have financial and non-financial covenants and obligations commanly

assocated with these The final maturity dates of akl facilities remained unchanged, The Group was in compliance with these covenanits

as at 31 March 2019 and hence all amounts are dassified in line with repayrrent dates.

Included in current financing liabilities are £0.7m (2018: £0.8m) of cbligations under finance leases (see Note 24).

With the exception of derivative financial instruments, all finanding liabilities are held at amortised cost. Derivative financil instrumerits are initally

recogrvsed at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequenttly remeasured 1o their fair value through profit or loss unless they

are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be apphied (see Note 23).

At 31 March 2019, the Group had available £221.9m (2018: £219.3m}) of undrawn committed borrowing fadilities in respect of which all conditions
had been met. The facilities have an expiry date of july 202|. The loans carry interest rates which are currently deterrnined at 1.0% over

the applicable LIBOR

Details of the Group's cortingent liabilities are provided in Note 33

The weighted average interest rates paid during the year on overdrafts and loars outstanding were as follows:

1019 2018

%x *

Overdrafts .7 20
Bank ioans [F ] 15
Private placement notes 4. 39

Private placement notes

Following the issue on |6 December 2010 of US$96.0m and £40.0m of private placement (PP) notes in the United States Private Placement market,
the Group issued a further US$153.0m and £55.0m of PP notes on 13 December 2012. The PP notes are unsecured and rank pani passu with
other senior unsacured indebtedness of the Group. In order to manage the risk of foreign currency fluctuations and to manage the Group's finance
costs through a mix of fixed and variable rate debt. the Group has entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps. The swap contracts have the
same duration and other critical terms as the ings and are considered to be highly effective. US$36.0m of these PP notes were settled in
December 2017 upon maturity, along with the assodated swaps which had been designated as fair value hedges The amount, maturity and irterest
terrns of the remaining PP notes are shown below.

Tranche Maturky date Aot inerest terms Swap rerest
9 year 16 Decermnber 2019 £400m £ fixed at 4.38% nfa
10 year 16 Decamber 2022 US$760m USS fixed at 3.85% £ fixed at 402%
10 year 16 December 2022 USST70m USS fixed at 3.85% £ ficed &t 4.02%
10 year 16 December 2022 £250m £ fixed 2t 387% ra
12 year | & December 2024 £300m £ fixed at 400% nfa
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

23. Financial instruments

Classification

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and derivative financial instrurments. With the exception
of derivative financial instruments, all financial assets are held and measured at amortised cost

The Group's principal financial liabilities are trade and other payables and financing liabilities, All financial kabilities are held and measured
at amortised cost.

Derivative finandial instruments are measured indtially at fair value 2t the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured

to their fair value through the income statement unless they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied.

Details of the significant accourtting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases
for recognition of income and expense) for each class of financial asset, financial lability and equity instrurnent are disciosed in Note |

Risk management objectives

The Group's treasury department monitors and manages the finandial risks relating to the operations of the Group, These reks indude those arising
from interest rates, foreign currendies, liquidity, credit and capital managernent. The Group seeks to minirmise the effects of these risks by using effective
control measures and, where appropriate, derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed
by Growp policies and reviewed regularly. Group policy is to not trade in financial instruments. The risk managernent polices rermain unchanged from
the prevous year.

Interest rate risk

The Group's activities expose it to the financial risks of interest rates. The Group’s treasury function reviews its nsk management strategy on a'regular
basis and will, as appropriate, enter nto derivative financial instruments in order to manage interest rate risk,

Interest rate sensitivity

The interest rate sensitivity has been deterrined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the
balance sheet date. Al finandal labilities, ather than financing Rabilities, are interest free.

If underlying interest rates had been 0.5% higherlower and all cther variables were held constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the year ended

31 March 2019 and reserves would decreasefincrease by £0.8m (2018; £0.7m).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited exposure to transactional foreign currency risk from trading transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of
individual group entities and some exposure to translational foreign currency risk from the translation of its foreign operations. The Group considers
the need to hedge fts exposures as appropriste and will enter into forward foreign excharge contracts 10 mitigate any significant risks.

In addition, the Group has fully hedged the US dollar exposure on its private placernent notes into sterling using cross-currency interest rate swaps
(see Hedging activities below).

At 31 March 2019 £9.2m (2018 £3.3m) of cash and cash equivalerts were held in foregn currenaes Included in bank loans were £13.1m

(2018: £15.7m) of loans denominated in foreign currency.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk using a cash flow projection model which considers the maturity of the Group's assets and labikties and the
projected cash flows from operations. Bank loans under committed faciities, which allkow for appropriate headroom in the Group's daily cash
movernents, are then arranged. Details of the Group's bank facilibes can be found in Note 22
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The tables below surmarise the maturity profile (induding both undiscounted interest and principal cash flows) of the Group's finandial babilities:

v
Within  Inthe second After %‘
oneyear  to fifth years five years Total
Financs! kebies at 31 March 2019 #m m £&m £m 5'
Trade creditors 160.1 - - 180.1 g
Other creditors 40.9 - - 40.9 “
Financing habilties 102.0 162.6 30.9 2955
Financial kzbifties' 303.0 162.6 30.9 49485
‘Within In the second After
one year to fifith years five years Total
Financal Rabdives 3¢ 31 March 2018 m &m m m
Trade creditors 1913 - - 1913
Other crednors 292 - - 292 g
Financing kabiibes 656 1989 315 2960 s
Financat Kabiities’ 2861 1989 315 5165 g
Note ' 0

1. F‘m-qdﬁ:ﬁ_snmrkyprdhkemﬁdwofmﬂummla £6.1:m) derivative asset which woukd naturally offset the settlerners value of the maturing private plaosment notes 1
randng fabies.

Credit risk

The Group's credit rsk is monitored on an ongoing basis and formally reported quarterty. The vahue of business placed with financial institutions

is reviewed on a daily bass.

The Group's credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is imited because the external courterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rabing agencies and are managed through regular revew.

The Group's credit nisk s prmanly attributable to its receivable balances from astormers. Before accepting a new asstomer, the Group uses external credit
scoring systemns 1o assess the potential customer’s credt quiality and define an appropriate credit limit which is reviewed regulardy.

The maxdmum exposure to credit risk in refation to trade receivables and accrued income at the balance sheet date is the fair value of trade receivables
and accrued income The Group's customer base is large and unrelated and, accordingly, the Group does not have a significant concentration of credit
risk with any one counterparty or group of courterparties.

The amountts presented in the balance sheet in relation to the Group's trade receivables and accrued incorme balances are presented net of loss
alkwances. The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECLS) using both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Group's historical experience, and forward-looking nformation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019
23. Financial instruments continued

The following table provides information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs against customer balances asat 31 March 2019
under IFRS 9:

201%
im
Gross Net
Tewde receivables at 31 March 2019 m uml_: Pl
Current (not overdue) 2103 . 198.4
1-30 days overdue 28.4 K} 145
31-60 days overdue 65 ©.5) 6.0
61-50 days overdue L7 0.3) 1.4
More than 90 days overdue 79 “4.6) 31
Toeal 2528 (19.2) 1334
Trade receivables at 31 March 2019 represents 29 days revenue (2018 restatedt 26 days).
The folowing table provides information about the ageing of trade receivables as at 31 March 2018 under 1AS 3%:
018
tm
Neither impaired nor past due 163.6
Not impaired and less than three' months overdue 374
Not impared and more than three months overdue 213
Provision for doubtiul debts (173)
Toml 2050
Note:
L mm&dﬁwm:‘m‘:wpmmq:mm Jatie in the rd by g the impact as an adustment W opening retaned sarmings at the date of inital
The following table provides the movernent in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables and acorued income:
2019 w8
£m £m
Trade Accrued “Trade Accrued
e income
At Apri . ‘ 73 65 162 45
impact of change in accounting policy s 1.0 - -
Impairment losses/{gains) recognised 11 .8 23 20
Amourtts written off as uncollectable (1.5) - ()] -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 19 0. ' - -
Disposal of subsidiaries .n (0.4) - -
At 31 March 192 56 173 65
Nowe
r maw&ungdﬁ;rmlAgrimlamu:n-&-wmmwzhnwwmumnmmwmmmuﬂnde
Capital management risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities i the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while maxarmising the return
to stakeholders through the optirnisation of dept and equity. The capfal struciure of the Group consists of net dept per Note 26 and equity
per the consolidated statemert of changes in equity.

The Group s not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requiremerts.

138 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accourtts 2019



Hedging activities

Cash flow hedges

The Group holds a number of crass-currency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges on US$153.0m of PP notes. Bannual fixed interest
cash flows denominated i US ddllars arising over the periods to December 2022 from the US Private Placement market are exchanged for fixed
interest cash flows denominated in stering. All cash flow hedges were assessed as being highly eflective as at 31 March 2019,

Hedge of net investment In foreign operations

Included in bank loars at 31 March 2019 was a borrowing of €9.5m (2018: €9.5m) which has been designated as a hedge of the net investrent in the
Republic of Ireland business of Dalkia FM. and is being used to hedge the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk on thrs investment. Gains or lasses
on the transiation of the borrowing are transferred to equity to offset gains or losses on the translation of the net investment.

Derivative financial instruments
The carrying values of dernvative financial instruments at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Ao §o1]
&m fm
Derivative financial instruments hedging private placement notes' 164 6.
Total 144
Included i current assets - -
Induded i non-current assets 164 &l
Totat 164 6.l
Nota

I Derwative linandal nstrumesits hedging private placement notes comprise oross-aumency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges.

Derivative financal instruments are measured at far value.
Fair value measurements are dassified into three levels, depending on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

* Level | fair vale measurements are those derved from quoted prices in active markets for identbical assets or fiabilities;
¢ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from other observable inputs for the asset or liability, and
+ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derved from valuation techriques using inputs that are not based on observable market data

The Directors consider that the Group's derivative finandal instruments fall into Leve! 2. There were no transfers between levek during the year. Fair
values of these instruments are cakulated based on a discounted cash flow analysis using appropriate market information for the duration of the
instruments. All contracts are gross settied.

24, Obligations under finance leases

Minimeum lease payments
009 2018
&m m

Amounts payable under finance leases: .
‘Within one year 0.7 08
In the second to fifth years indusive 0.8 05
15 13
Present value of lease obligations 1.5 I3
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months .7 (08)
Amount due for settement after 12 months ) [ 2] - 05

The average remaining lease term is |8 months (201 8: 20 months). For the year ended 3| March 2019, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.8%
(2018. 1.4%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. Al leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rertal payrments. All lease obligations are denominated in sterling.

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount The Group's obligations under finance leases are protected by the
lessors’ rights over the leased assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

25. Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total outstanding aggregate commitrnents for future minimum lease paymerts under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as foliows:

01y 018

im m
Within one year 253 37
In the second to fifth years inclusive 414 392
After five years 5.3 132
Total . 0 76t

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and hire of vehicles and other equipment.
These leases have average durations ranging from three to ten years. No arrangements have been entered wito for contingent rental payments,

26. Analysis of net debt
201y 208

tm o
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21 108.4 598
Bank loars (Note 22) 52.1) (543)
Private placement notes (Note 72) 1L9) (2038)
Derivative financial instruments hedging private placement notes (Note 23) 164 &l

Net debt before obligations under finance leases 030 (1922
Obbgations under finance leases (Note 24) (1.5) (13)
Net debt (140.7) (1935)

Net debt excudes amounts in respect of customer invoice discounting referred to in Note 5 and amounts in respect of supply chain finandng
referred to in Note 17.
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27. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

019 2018 %_
Cash conversion us:
Operating profit/(loss) . 50.2 (2.0) 48.2 A (94) (a3)
Deprecation 1.3 [ ] 1.6 123 05 128
Amortisation 9.7 0.1 9.8 132 a3 135
trnpairment of poodwill and intangible assets 1.1 - L 331 119 450
Eanings before interest, tax, depredation and amortisation 723 (1.8) 70.7 597 33 630
(EBITDA)
Cash generated from/(used in) operztions 58.9 "4) 4715 LI (50} 79) 8
Free cash flow . E
Cash generated from(used in) operatiors as o9 H
Purdhase of property, plant and equipment (ra.t) 15.8) ©
Purchase of other intangibte assets (.2) @0)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.7 . 16
Income taxes received ‘ 4.7 116
Interest received 0.2 02
Irterest paid (12.4) {11.5)
Free cash flow 24 {28)
019 g
Odher non- E«
Opening Total cash Reclassification Falr value Other FX cash Closing -
balance  movemnants  of senjor debt hang t balance o
&m m im £&m im m im c
Cash flows MNon-cash changes E
Long termn borrowings — bank loans 543 21 - - 03 {0.2) G20
Long-term borrowings — private placement {201.8) - 40.0 (8.1) - - {171.9)
loan notes
Short-term borrowings — private placement - - (40.0) - - - (40.0)
loan nates
Finance lease obligations (1.3) (0.2) - - - - (1.5)
Firancing fabilities (159.4) 1.9 - {8.1) 0.3 {0.2) (265.5)
Derivative finandal instruments [N} - - 10.3 - - 18.4
Net financing Nabilities (253.3) Ly - 2.2 0.3 {0.2) (249.1)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

28. Share capital

Ordinary shares of 2.5p m tm
Allotted and fully paid

At | April 2007 369.1 92
Issued for acquisihons 16 ol
At 3] March 2018 3737 93
Issued for acquisiions - -
At 3) March 2019 373.7 9.3

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4.6m ordinary shares of 2.5p were allotted in respect of the acquisition of non-controling Interests at an issue
price between 266.3p and 278.8p giving rise to share premium of £nil and merger reserve of £124m.

29. Reserves

Share premium account
‘The share premium account represents the premium arising on the issue of equity shares.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents amounts relating to prermiums artsing on shares issued subject to the provisions of Section 612 of the Companies Act
2006.

The merger reserve increased by £12.4m in the year ended 31 March 2018 as a result of the issue of 4.6m ordinary shares of 2.5p for the acquisition
of non-cordrolling interests,
Own shares reserve
The Group uses shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy conditional awards under the Group's LTIP, CSP and DBP share schesmes and

shares held in the SIP Trust to provide matching shares under the SIP scheme. During the year the trust distributed 0.3m (2018: Q.7m) shares at a cost
of £0.8m (2018: £1.6m) to satisfy awards under those schermes.

The Cormpany uses Treasury shares to satisfy share options under the Group’s ESCS and SAYE share schemes. No Treasury shares have been issued
1o satisfy options under the Group's share schernes in the year. During the year ended 31 March 2018, proceeds from the issue of |.5m Treasury
shares to satisfy options under these share schemes were £3.4rm at a cost of £4.3m, with the iess of £0.9m being recognised in retained eamings.

The own shares reserve at 31 March 2019 represents the cost of 127m (2018: 13.0m) ordinary shares in Mitie Group pic held for the purposes of
the share schemes, with a weighted average of 13.8m (2018: |3.8m) shares during the year, as well as the £2.6m (2018: £7.1m) value of the remaining
restricted shares issued as consideration to acquire non-controling interests that is required to be treated as remuneration.

In the year ended 31 March 2019, the £53m (201 8: £69m) movement indudes £4.5m (2018: £1.0m) which has been released against the share-based
payrments reserve foliowing the expiration of the required continuing employment period in relation to restricted shares and £0.8m (2018: £5.9m) for

the cost of shares dstributed to satisfy awards under the Group's share schemes. The £8.m credit to own shares reserve in the year ended 3| March

2018 represented the restricted shares ksued as part of the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Other reserves

Other reserves are comprised of the share-based payrnents reserve of £3.4m (2018 £10.4m), the revaluation reserve of £{0.2)m (2018 £(0.2)m),
the capital redemption reserve of £0.9m (2018: £0.9m) and other reserves of £0.2m (2018 £0.2m).

The share-based payments reserve represents credits in respect of the vesting peridd of equity-settied share-based payment transactions (see Note 31)
and credits in respect of the vesting period of restricted shares ssued as part of the acquisition of non-controfing interests.

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve of £(5.6)m (2018: £(7.3m) indudes balances in respect of the Group's cash flow hedges (see Note 23). A net cash
flow hedge credit during the year of £2.2m (201 8; £0.1m credit) is induded within ather comprehensive incorme. The hedging and transiation reserve
also indudes balances arising on transiation of the Group's foreign operations and n respect of net investrnent hedges of which the combined

movement was a charge of £0.2m dunng the year (2018; £0.5m credit). An income tax charge of £03rm (2018: £0.1m credit) has been recognised
on these movennents.

Other movements in reserves
A movement of £1.8m (2018: £nil) has been reflected in retained eamings representing the recovery of consideration for the purchase of certan
non-controlling interests in the year ended 31 March 2017,
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30. Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions ~ purchase of Vision Security Group
On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired 2 | 00% sharehalding in Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). V3G is a leading security services provider
affering integrated security systems, manned guarding and key holding services, with a team of approximately 6,000 employees servicing more than
1,400 guarding locations and over 5,000 systermns locations across the UK and ireland.
The acquisition of VSG further strengthers the position of Mitie's Total Security Management business (Mitie TSM) as one of the leading prowders of

integrated and risk-based security services in the UK. In particular, the combination will offer opportunities to accelerate the growth of Mitie's premium

technology-enabled and inteliigence-led security sokutions,

Considerabon of £12.7m (on a debt free, cash free basis) was paid in cash at completion, and funded through Mitie's own cash resources. £4.5m of the
cash consideration paid is expected to be to be returned through agreement of the completion accounts with the selfler of the business.

The Group's provisional assessment of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition has been based on total
consideration of £8.2m foliowing expected adjustrnents 1o the completion accounts. The purchase price allocation is as follows:

Book value w:;wd Mf* Fair value

m n im

Software and development expenditure 0l i -
Property, plant and equipment 05 (03) 0.2
Customer relationships - 149 149
Current tax assets 05 - 05
Inventones 07 02 0s
Trade arxd other recervabies 415 (+2) ara
Cash and cash equivalents 16 - 1.6
Trace and other payables 278) (1.2) 31.0)
Deferred income from comtracts with customers (40} 09 {4.9)
Current tax liabiities ©n - {©.1)
Celerred tax tabibties - 0 {1.0)
Net identifable assets acquired HO 60 17.0
Less: bargain purchase m ather items (8.8)
Consideration 8.2

The Group conduded that the value of the order baddog and the customer relationships to drive renewal of the contracts held by VSG was
an intangible asset which has been valued at £14.9m at acquisition and has been recorded as a non-current intangible asset under the caption
‘Customer relationships”. The asset will amortise to the income statermernt in line with the forecast expiry of the underlying customer relationships

over a 10-year period,

The Group has recorded a bargain purchase gain of £8.8m in the consolidated income statement within other itermns. This represents the excess of net

identrfiable assets acquired of £17.0m over the consideration of £8.2m.,
Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired trade and other receivables was £37.3m. The gross contractual amount for trade and other receivables due was £393m,

against which £2.0m is the expected credit loss.
Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of £79.6m and net profit of £1.4m to the Group for the period from 26 October 2018 to 31 March 2019,
if the acqpaisition had occurred on | Aprit 2018, consolidated pro-forma revenue and profit before tax for continuing operations for the year ended
31 March 2019 would have been £2.332.1m and £31.9m respectively. These amounts have been calculated using the subsidiary's resutts and adjusting

them for:

¢ Dxfferences in the accounting policies between the Group and the subsidiary;, and
* The additional depredation and amor—tisation that would have been dharged assuming the fair value adjustrnents to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets had applied from | April 2018, together with the consequential tax effects.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

30. Acquisitions continued

Purchase consideration — cash outflow
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net of cash acquired:

019

tm
Cash conideration 1.7
Less: Gash balance acquired (1.6)
Less recovery of consideration’ (L.8)
Net outflow of cash — investing activities 9.3

Note:
I. Racovery of consideration amounting 1o £ | Sm was in respect of the purchase of certain non-controfing interests n the year ended 31 March 201 7. See Note 28.

Acquisition related costs
Acquisition related costs of £2.6m are induded in administrative experses and recognised in other tems (see Nate 4) in the income staterent and
in operating cash flows in the statement of cash flows.

Prior year acquisitions - purchase of non-controlling interests

©On 19 july 2017. the Cornpany purchased thé minority 49% shareholding in Source Esght Limited. The consideration paid was £4.0m, satisfied with
£30min cash and £1.0m in unrestricted shares. A further £5./m of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing
employment. Regarding shares issued, 2,196,708 ordinary shares were issued, with a nominal value of 2.5p per share in Mitie Group pk (Mitie shares)
at a fair value of 278.8p, of which 1,838,028 Mitie shares were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing ermployment.

In addtion, on 20 October 2017 the Company purchased the remmaining minority shareholdings in five Mitie Model companies. The consideration paid
was £3.4m, satisfied through the issue of unrestricted shares. A further £3.0m of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to
continuing employment. Regarding shares issued, 239638 Mitie shares were ssued at a fair value of 268.3p, of which |,139,697 Mite shares were
subject to sale restrictions related to continuing employment. The shareholdings purchased, primarily held by certain of the employees and senior
management of the relevant sibsidiary companies, are detailed below:

+ Mitie Care and Custody Limited (MCCL) — 6.86% of the issued share capital, comprising 42.505 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration
of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of | 69,328 Mitie shares;

* Mitie Events & Leisure Services Limited (MELSL) — 24.08% of the issued share capital, comprising 205.000 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each,
for a consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of (44,555 Mitie shares;

+ Mitie Facilties Management Limited (ireland) (MFML) — 5.63% of the issued share capital, cormprising 146000 B ondinary shares of €001 each,
for a corsideration of £0.2m satisfied by the issue of 72,228 Mitie shares;

* Mitie Catering Services Lirited (MCSL) — 18.55% of the ssued share eapital, comprising 333,677 D ordinary shares of £00| each, for a consideraton
of £2.9m satisfied by the issue of 1,072,416 Mitie shares; and

» Mitie Waste & Emvironmental Services Limited (MWESL) — 27.7 1% of the issued share capital, comprising 332,500 B ordinary shares of £00i each,
for a consideration of £2.5m satisfied by the issue of 937,854 Mitie shares;

The above acquisitions have been completed basexd on transfer of consideration of the fair value of the shareholdings of the respective entities. As part
of the above transactions Mitie Group rsued unrestricted and restricted shares. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the relevant

recipient continues in employment with the Group for a fored vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient
leaves employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

As a result of the acquisitions outiined above Mitie Group owns 1009 of the ssued share capital of all of the above ertities,
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31. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes The Group has also awarded perforrance-related bonuses for Executive Directors which are
deferred in conditional shares under the Mitie Group pic 2010 Deferred Borus Plan (OBP) and are accounted for as a share-based payment charge.

Discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP was introduced in 2007 and renewed in 20t 5. The conditional awards of shares or rights 1o acquire shares (the awards) are offered to a
small number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exerdise price is £nil. The vesting pervod is three years, although for awards
granted in 201 and subsequently some are subject to a holding perod of up to a further two years. If the awards remain unexercised after a period
of twelve months from the date of vesting the awards expire. The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. Before the awards
can be exercised, performance conditions must be satisfied which are based on movements in a range of market and non-market measures over
athree-year period.

The Mitie Group pic 2001 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares over the five-day period immediately preceding the date of grant.

The vesting period & three years. If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire.
Options may be forferted f the employee leaves the Group.

The Mitie Group pic 2011 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares on the business day preceding grant or, if the Remuneration Committee
decides, the average market value of shares over a number of preceding business days (not to exceed 20). The vesting period is three years. If the
options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves
the Group. Before options can be exerased, a perforrmance condition must be satisfied; the performance condrtion is inked to the percentage growth
in earmings per share over a three-year period.

The Conditional Share Plan (CSP)

The CSP was imtroduced in 2014. The conditional awards of shares or the rights to acquire shares (the award) are offered to a small number of key
senior management. Where offered as opbons the exercse price i £nil. The vesting period is determined at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committes and is generally two or three years. If the awards remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant the awards expire.
The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Non-discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group plc 2011 SAYE scheme

The SAYE scheme is open to eligible UK resident employees. The exerdise price is not less than 80% of the market value of the shares determined using
either: the share price praceding the date on which invitations to participate in the schemne are issued or an average share price over five days preceding
the invitation date. The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexerdised after a period of six months from the date of vesting, the options
expire. Options may be furfefted if the employee leaves the Group.

The Share Incentive Plan (SIP) '

The SIP was introduced in 201 | and is open to all elighle UK resident employees. Under the scheme, eligible employees are invited to invest in
partrership shares which are punchased in the market on their behalf and held in a separate UK trust. One conditional matching share is awarded

for every ten partnership shares purchased and has a holding perod of three years. Matching shares are funded by way of market purchases.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

31. Share-based payments continued

Restricted Shares .

In addition, in certain cases restricted shares are issued to individuals. The restricted shares are attached with a conddition that the relevant recipiert
continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves
employmert with the Group prior to completion of the vesting penod of the shares.

Detais of the awards and share options outstanding are as follows:

20019 20i8 w0y 018

oditosl g Wmberof avmge  MNmberol g

share awards share anarcs  share options  exercise price share aptions SatrCse pace

(million) {rrdion) {mifiion) ®) (mifion) ®

Qutstanding at | Apel [ 8 90 82 247 e 58

Gramted during the year 7.8 43 43 137 27 229

Lapsed dunng the year (2.8) {45) (4.0) 243 (49) 267

Exerdsed during the year .3 ©n - - (15) 239

Outstanding at 31 March e 4] 8.5 120 82 47

Exercisable at the end of the year 10 249 32 40
The Group recogrised the following experses related 4o share-based payments.

201y 018

m m

Discretionary share plars 02 02

Non-discretionary share plans 0.9 10

Share-based payrnents acquisition related costs kL J 34

50 46

The mavernent on the share-based payments reserve, which is part of other reserves, relates to the charge to the income statement for the year of
£50m (2018: £4.6m). This comprises. 1) B%mmmddﬁev&mmddrmncﬁdﬁwsmndapandmemdmmmylm
and i} £1.1m of equity-settied share-based payment transactions. The share-based payments charge for the year is net of income statement credits of
£2.|m relating 1o changes in assumptions relating to the fikelhood of options vesting

In addition, there has been: i) a release of £4.5rn against the own shares reserve on the expiry of restrictions attached to restricted shares issued; and i)
a release of £0.8m 1o retained earnings regarding share options that were previously exerdsed, lapsed, forfeited or cancelled.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for awards and share options exerdsed during the year was 13%p (2018: 252p).

The conditional share awards and share options autstanding at 31 March 2019 had exercise prices {other than nilin the case of the LTIP, CSP, DBP
and the matching shares under the SIP) ranging from 137p — 256p (201 8: 212p — 256p) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.6 years
(2018: 3.6 years). In the year ended 31 March 2019, options were granted in respect of the SAYE, LTIP, CSP and matching shares under the SIP,

The aggregate of the estimated fair values of those options granted was £14.0m (2018; £106m).
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The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Schokes and Monte Carlo models.
The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:
2019 m18

Share price {p) : 258 -118 256-318
Excercise price () 0-260 0-260
Expected volatity (%) 23-29 3-29
Expected fe (years) -4 3-4
Risk-free rate (%) ’ ©)-1Ll (03}—1.1
Expected dridends (%) 1.6=47 16-47

The inputs into the Monte Carlo model are as follows:
2009 2018

Share price (p) 180 - 267 180 - 267
Aversge correlation with TSR benchmark (%) 13-27 B-27
Expected volstity (%) ' 34-37 3437
Expected bfe (years) 3 3
Reske{ree rate (%) 0.22-048  022-068

Expected volatility was based upon the historical volatility over the expected Ife of the schemes. The expected [ife is based upon historical data and has
been adjusted based on management's best estimates for the effects of non-transferabiity, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

32. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has a number of pension arrangements for employees’

+ Defined contribution schemes for the majority of its employees; and
* Defined benefit schemes which indude a group scherne and ather smaller scheres.

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes for qualifying employees. The Group has a defined bernefit pension scherme
called the Mttie Group pk Persion Scheme (Group scheme) where Mitie Group pke is the principal employer. The Group partiapates In a number
of gther defined benefit schermes (Other schernes) in respect of certain emplayees who joned the Group under the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) or through the acquisition of subsidiary companies.

Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution scheme is a pension scheme under which the Group pays contributions 1o an independently administered fund, such
contributions are based upon a fixed percentage of employees” pay. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions

to the fund once these contributions have been paid, Members’ benefits are determined by the amount of contributions paid, together with investment
returns eamed on the contributions arising from the performance of each indnvidual’s chosen investments and the type of pension the member chooses
10 take at retirement. As a resuk. actuarial risk (that persion will be lower than expected) and investment risk (that the assets invested in do not perform
in line with expectations) are borme by the employee.

The Group's contributions are recogrised as an employee benefit expense when they are due.

The Group operates three separate schernes: a stakeholder defined contribution plan, which is dosed to new members; a self-invested personal
pension plan, which is dosed to new members; and a group personal pensicn (GPP) plan. Employer contributions are payable 1o each on a matched
basts requiring employee contributions to be paid Employees have the option to pay their share via a salary sacrifice arrangement. The scheme used
1o satisfy auto-enrolment compliance is a master trust, The People’s Pension.

During the year, the Group made a total contribution to the defined cortribution schemes of £80m (2018: £9.0m) and contributions to the auto-
enrdment scheme of £8.6m (2018: £4.3m), which are included in the income staterment charge. The Group expets to make contributions of a similar
amount in the year ending 31 March 2020.

Defined benefit schemes

Group scheme

The Group scherme provides berefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The level of benefits provided depends
on members’ length of service and their final pensionable pay.

The Group scheme closed to new members in 2006, with new employees able to join one of the defined contribution schemes. The main Group
scheme was dosed with effect from October 2017,

Pensions in paymerit are generally increased in Iine with RP inflation, subject to certan caps and floors. Benefits are payable on death and other events
such as withdrawal from active service.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

31. Share-based payments continued

The Group scherme & operated under the UK regulatory framework. Benefits are paid to members from the tnust-adonnistered fund, where the
Thustee is responsible for ensuring that the scheme is sufficiently funded to meet current and future benefit payments. Plan assets are held in trust and
are governed by pension legislation. If investment experience i worse than expected or the actuarial assessment of the schemne’s liabilihes increases,
the Group's financial obligations 1o the scheme rise.

The nature of the relationship between the Group and the Trustee is also governed by regulations and practice. The: Trustee must agree a funding plan
with the sporsoring company such that any funding shortfall is expected to be met by additionat contributions and mnvestment outperformance. in order
to assess the level of contributions required, triennial valuations are carried out with the scheme’s obligations measured using prudent assumptions
{which are determined by the Trustee with advice from the scheme actuary). The mast recent triennial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2017
and was conchuded in March 2019.

The Trustee's other duties indude managing the investrment of the scheme's assets, administration of plan benefits and exerdsing of discretionary
powers. The Group works dosely with the Trustee to manage the scheme.

Other defined benefit schemes

Grouped together under Other schernes are 2 number of schemes to which the Group makes contributions under Admitted Body status to dients’
(generally local government or government entities) defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who transferred to Mitie under TUPE.
The valuations of the Other schemes are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date.

For the Admitted Body schemes, which are brgely sections of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the Group will only participate for a finite period
up to the end of the relevant contract. The Group s required 1o pay regular contributions, as decided by the refevant scheme actuaries and detalled

in each scheme's Contributions Certificate, which are calculated every three years as part of a triennial valuation. In a number of cases contrbutions
payable by the employer are cappex! and any excess i recovered from the entity that the employees transferred from. In addition, in certain cases,

2t the end of the contract the Group will be required 1o pay any defict (as determined by the scheme actuary) that is assessed for s notiona) section
of the scheme.

Muiti-employer schemes

As a result of historic acquisition activity and staff transfers following contract wins, the Group participates in four multi-employer pension schemes.
The total contributions 1o these schernes for the finandial year ending 31 March 2020 are antiopated to be £0.1m. For three of these schemes,

the Group’s share of the assets and liabilities is minimal,

The fourth scheme is the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry Pension Scherme (the Plumbing Scherne) a funded multi-ermnployer defined
benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers, with circa 400 remaining. Historically, the size
and complexdty of the: Plurnbing Scherne has mmeant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and labilties of the scherne which are
attributable to the Group. The Group has recenttly received a Section 75 employer debt notice in respect of the participation of Robert Prettie & Co
Limited in the Plumbing Scheme (refer to Note 19 and Note 33). One Group company. Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, continues to participate
inthe Plumbing Scheme, however no apportionment of the assets and liabilities attributable to this company is avallable and consequently, the Group
accounts for its contnbutions as if they were paid 1o a defined contribution scheme.

The April 2014 vahuation of the Puurnbing Scheme indicated a surpkss on technical provisions basis of £19.0m, on liabiities of £1.47bn The Apnual Member
update issued by the Plumbing Scheme in October 2018 stated that the draft triennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 showed a surplus on a technical
prowisions basis.

As set outin Note 19, a provision of £200m has been made for Section 75 employer debis in respect of the participation of Rebert Prettie & Co.
Limited in the Plumbing Scheme.

As set out in Note 33 the Group has a further potential expaosure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of Mitie Property
Services (UK) Limited in the Plumbing Scheme, which has been discosed as a contingent Eability.

Further information in respect of the Group scheme and Other schemes

The table below sets out the details of the latest funding valuation of the Group scheme as at 31 March 2017,

Following the £3.0m paid in November 2017, the Group paid additional contributions of £10.5m to the Group scherne during the year ended 31| March
2019, induding amounts of £3.8m and £1.8m in respect of the disposals of the Pest Control business and Social Housing business.

Under the concluded schedule for payments, a further £64.8m is payable in instalmertts by 31 Mards20?5,w+ichifﬂ\eas&mpﬁonsabmearet;ome
out in practice, should eliminate the defit by 31 March 2025,
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The Group made contributions to the Other schemes of £0.3m in the year (2018: £0.3m). The Group expects to make contributions of around £03m
1o the Other schemes in the year ending 31 March 2020.

Details of latest funding valuation

Group scheme
Date of ltest funding valuation : 31 March 2017
Assets at valuation date £1787m
Funding kablities at valuation date £252.7m
Defict at valuation date £74.0m

The total contribution rate was st at between 40.19% and 45.0% of annual pay for the remaining active members. The employer contribution rate is the
balance of the total cost after the deducting the ermployee rate, which ranges depending on status and eamnings. The total contribution exdudes any
allowances for expenses met by the scheme.

ThefdkwwngtablesetsundctmlsofﬂmnwmbushpofmeGmupsd‘ematBI March 2017:

Group scheme
Active mermbers — by number 182
Active members — by proportion of funding kability 15.6%
Total pensonable satary roll pa £8.4m
Oeferred members = by numnber 853
Deferred members — by proportion of funding liability S39%
Total deferred persions pa. (at date of leaving scheme) £4.6m
Persioner members — by number &40
Pensioner members — by proportion of funding habiity 263%
Tonal pensons n payment pa. £2.7m

Accounting assumptions

The assumptions used in caloulating the accounbng costs and obligations of the Group's defined benefit pension schermes, as detailed below, are set after
consultabion with independent, professionally qualified actuaries.

The discount rate used to determine the present value of the obiigations & set by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds.

The assumptions for price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yields on longer-term conventional government bonds and index-
linked bonds. The assumgption for increases in pensionable: pay takes into account expected salary inflation, the cap at CPl, and how often the cap is fikely
to be exceeded.

A UK High Court judgment was issued on 26 October 2018 relating to Guarartteed Minimum Pensions (GMP), Although the ruling refates to

Uoyds Banking Group pension schemes, it is expected to create a precedent for other UK defined benefit pension schemes. The nuling requires the
equalisation of member benefits eamed between 1990 and 1997 to address gender inequality in instances where GMP benefits are currently unequal.
Whilst there remains some uncertainty, the Group has made a provision for the estimated finarcial impact of this ruling on the Group scheme, based
on a comparison of the cumulative vakie of members' benefits with the benefits of a notional member of the opposite gender (method C2 under the
terminology of the High Court Judgment). A past service cost of £1.6m basad on the broad profite of the fund (le. age profile, service profile and
GMP proportion) has been recognised within other itemns in the year ended 3| March 2019,

The assumptions for life expectancy have been set with reference to the actuarial tables used in the latest funding valuations, with a lower ‘best-estimate’
allowance for future improvements to mortality.

Principal accounting assumptions at balance sheet dates

Group scheme Other schermes
2019 2018 201% 18
% * % 3

Key assumnptions used for 1AS 19 valuabon:
Discount rate 2.40 260 240 260
Expected rate of pensionable pay increases 3.20 10 120 310
Retail price inflation 3.20 3i0 3.20 3.10
Consumer price inflation 2.20 210 220 210
Future pension increases 150 340 3.50 340
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Group scheme
wie 018
Years Years
Post retrement fife expectancy:
Current persioners at 65 — male as.0 880
Current pensioners at 65 ~ female 8%.0 890
Future persioners at 65 —male 8%.0 890
Future pensioners at 65 — female 200 900
Life expectancy for the other schemes is that used by the refevart scheme actuary.
The sensitivity of defined benefit abligations to changes in principal actuarial assumptions is shown below.
Sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to key assumptions
Impact on defined benefk cbligatons
A P ]
assumption % £m
Increase in discount rate oI% (2.00% “9)
Increase in RPI inflation® Q1% 0.8% 20
Increase in CPlinflabon {(exduding pay) Q1% 07% |7
Increase in salary prowth o1% 00% -
Increase in e expectancy | year 40% 104

* Inchuding cther inflaton-inked asumptions (CP1 inflation, pension increases and salary growth)

The sensitivity information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when adjusting the results of the latest funding valuation

to the balance sheet date.

Some of the above changes in assumptions may have an impact on the value of the scheme’s investment holdings. For example, the Group scherme holds
apropamnofnsasetsmUKcnrporatebmdsAdenﬂ'ed'ma.mrzteasaresltdbwerUKcorpambmdydckqulmdtoanmeasemthe

value of these assets, thus mitigating the increase in the defined benefit obligation to some extent.

The duration, or average term to payment for the benefits due, weighted by liability, is around 22 years for the Group scheme.

Amounts recognised in financial statements

The table below outlines where the Group's post-employment amounts are induded in the financal statemernts.

201% 218

Group Other Group Ocher
scheme schamas Toeal scheme scharmes Tow!
im m m &m £m &n
Current service cost (0.4) {0.3) {©.7 (.7 ©.3) 0)
Total administration expense i 1.1 - {L.1) (LN - [{N)]
Amounts recognised in operating profit {1.5) (0.3) {1.8) @8 [03) (<2}
Past service cost (induding curtaiiments) {1.6) - {1.8) (1.9) - (1.9}
Net interest cost . €1.3) {0.1) (1.3) (19) .1) 20
Amaounts recognised in profit/{loss) before tax {4.3) (0.4) 4N (6.6) (04) 70)

The past service cost {including curtailments) in the year ended 31 March 2019 was the cost of equalising Guaranteed Minimum Persions and in the year
ended 3| March 2018 was a result of an increase in liabilities driven by the dosure of the main Group scheme.
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Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2019 2018
R T -
im im in im £m im
Actuariad (losses)/gains arising due to changes in
financial assurnpions (13.6) ©.9) (14.5) 85 08 94
Acwarial Josses)/gains arising from flabilicy experience (1.3) - (1.3) (11 08 03
Actuarial gans due to changes in demographic assumptions - 0.l 0.1 59 02 6.l
Movernent in asset celing - - - - ©5) (05)
Return on scheme assets, excluding interest income 13 0.5 1.8 46 C4 50
(13.6) 0.2) (13.9) 180 17 197
The amounts induded in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirement benefit schemes are as follows:
2019 W8
T R
im m £m m fm fm
Fair vahse of scheme assets 190.5 13.1 203.4 1823 12,1 1944
Presert value of defined benefit obligations (251.9) (15.5) (257.4) @37.0) (1403 @512)
Net persion kability (61.4) (2.4) (s3.9) (548) 20 (56.8)
Al figures above are shown before deferred tax
Mmfolbm in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the year in respect of both the Group and other schemes were
as :
019 2018
R T -
im im &m im £m m
At | April 2374 14.) 512 2485 t48 233
Current service cost 0.4 0.3 0.7 17 03 20
Interest cost 6.0 04 64 65 04 69
Contributions from scherne members - 0.1 0.1 - ¢l 0.l
Actuarial losses/{gains) arising due 10 changes in financial
assumptions 13.6 08 14.5 (86) {08) 94
Actuarial krssesf{(gains) ansing from experience 3 - 3 LI ©08) o3
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions - ©.1) @ 59 ©n (6.1
Movement in asset ceiling . - - - - 05 05
Benefits paid 8. 0.2) (8.3) [CI)) ok} (83)
Past service cost (inciuding curtaiments) 16 - .6 19 - 19
At 31 March 251.9 155 2674 37 4.0 2512
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued
The defined benefit cbligations of the Group scheme are analysed by participart status as at 31 March 2017 below:

o1y 201
£m &m
Active " 514 483
Deferred 130.0 1233
Persioners 49.5 655
At 31 March 519 2371
Movernents in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
Fid 218
Group Other Group Orher
scheme schemaes Total scheme schemes Tewl
m m im m m €m
At ) Apel 1823 12.1 194.4 1778 13 1894
Interest income 48 0J 5.1 46 03 49
Actuarial gains on assets 1.3 0.5 1.8 46 04 50
Contributions from the sponsoning companies 113 [ %] il.é 44 03 47
Contributions from scheme members - [ X 0.1 - - -
Expenses paid o.n - .n (19 - (10
Benefits paid ®.n ©.2) (8.3) ®.1) 02) ®3)
At 31 March 1905 13.1 203.6 1823 12.1 1944
The history of expenence adjustments is as follows:
: Group scheme
201y 018 2017 e 015
£&m £m £m im £m
Fair value of schemne assets 190.5 1823 1778 1569 1622
Present value of defined benefit cbiigations @sl.y) @y (2485) (1513) (197.))
Deficit in the scheme (61.9) (548) @ G44) (349)
Experience (Iosses)/gains on scheme Galilities 0.3 n 08 3.1 12
Percentage of scheme kabikties 0.5% 05% 3% (16)% 06)%
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 1.3 16 187 (62) 130
Percentage of scheme assets 0% 25% 105% (40)% 80%
Other schemes
2019 2018 w7 2016 2015
m £m im £m m
Fair value of scheme assets 13.1 121 13 95 25
Present value of defined benefit oblgations (155) (14.1) {148) (106) {104)
Deficit in the scherme 2.4 9 @3s) (L. ©9)
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme Fabilities - 08 - - .1
Percentage of schame iabiities - (5.6)% - - 09%
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets [ 3] 04 13 06 08
Percentage of scheme assets 4.0% 33% 115% &% 8.4%
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Fair values of the assets held by the schemes were as folkows:

101y p. 11

l m ldgﬂlﬂ: Toenl m ﬂ% Total

£m fm m £m £m m

Equities 51.7 75 59.2 663 70 733
Government bonds 271 40 3 269 - 269
Corporate bonds 519 ol 520 20 38 258
Property 168 9 178 95 0% 104
Diversified growth fund 37.0 - 370 456 - 455
Cash 8.0 0s &5 120 0t 124
Total fair value of assets 1905 1.0 200.6 1823 12l 1944

The investment portfolos are diversified, investing in a wide range of assets, in order to provide reasonable assurance that no single asset or type
of asset could have a materially adverse impact on the total portfalio. To reduce volatility, certain assets are held in a matching portfolio, which largely
consists of government and corporate bonds, designed to mirror movements in corresponding labilities.

Around S6% (2018: 67%) of the assets are held in equities, property and pooled investrent vehides which seek a higher expected level of retumn over
the long term.

The property assets represent quoted property investments.

Risks and risk management
The Group scherne, in common with the majority of UK plans, has a number of risks. These areas of risk and the ways in which the Group has sought
to manage them, are set out in the table below.

The risks are consdered from both a funding perspective, which drives the cash commitments of the Group, and from an accourtting perspective,
ie. the extent to which such risks affect the amounts recorded in the Group's financl statements:

Risk Deseripion

Asset The funding habiities are calcutated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with aliowance for additional return to be generated

volatifity from the investment portfolio. The defined beneitt obligation for accounting is calculated using a discount rate set with reference 10 corporate bond yields.
The Group scherne hokds a larpe proportion of its assets (56%) in equities and cther return-seeking assets (pringpally dversified growth funds (DGFs) and
property). The returms on such assets tend to be volatie and are not correlated to government bonds. This mears that the funding level has the potential
1o be volatile in the short term, potentially resulting in short-term cash requirements or alternative security offers, which are acceptable to the Trustee and
an increase in the net defined benefit kability recorded on the Group's balance sheet. Equities and DGFs are considered to offer the best returrs over the
{org term with an acceptable level of risk and hence the scheme holds a sgnificant proportion of these types of asset. However, the scheme's assets are
well-civersified by investing in a range of asset dasses, including property, government bonds and corporate bonds. The Group scheme hokds 19% af its
assets in DGFs which seek 10 maintain high Jevels of return whilst achieving lower volatiiity than direct equity funds. The allocation 1o retum seeldng assets
is monitored to ensure it rermains appropriate given the scheme's long-terrn objectives. The investent in bonds is discussed further below

Changesin  Falling bond yields tend tc increase the funding and accouring obligations, However, the investrnent in corporate and government bonds offers a degree of

bond yelds  matching, ie. the movement in assets arising from changes in bond yields partially matches the movement in the funding or accounting obligations. In this way.
the exposure to movements in bond yiekds s reduced.

Inflation risk  The majority af the scheme's benefit obligations are bnked to inflation. Higher inflation wil kead to higher kabsities (although capss on the level of inflationary
increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). The majority of the Group scheme’s assets are either unaffected by inflation (fixed interest
bonds) or loosety correlated with inflation (equibes), meaning that an increase in inflatson will also increase the deficit.

Life The majority of the scheme’s obligations are 1o provide a pension for the life of the member, so increases in ke expectancy will result in an increase in the

expectancy  obligations.

Areas of risk management

Although investment decrsions in the scheme are the resporsibility of the Trustee, the Group takes an active interest to ensure that pension plan
risks are managed efficiently. The Group and Trustee have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk where appropriate.

Certain benefits payable on death before retirement are insured

33. Contingent liabilities

Contractual disputes, guarantees and indemnities

The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to contrachual disputes that arise in the ordinary course of business.

The Directors do not anticipate that the cutcome of any of these disputes will have a material adverse effect on the Group's finandial position,
other than as already provided for in the accounts. In appropriate cases, a provision is recognised based on best estimates and managemenit
Judgement but there can be no guarantee that these provisions {(which may be subject to potentially raterial revision from time to time) will result
in an accurate prediction, due to the uncertainty of the actual costs and labalities that may be incurred. The Directors will continue to monitor events
as matters progress.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

33. Contingent liabilities continued

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided guarantees and indemnities in respect of performance, issued by financial institutions on
its behalf, amounting to £23.0m (2018: £21.7m) in the ordinary course of business. These are not expected to result in any material financial loss.

Muiti-employer pension schemes

The Group participates in several industry multi-employer defined benefit schermes, induding the Plumbing 8 Mechanical Services (UK) Industry
Pension Scheme (Plumbing Scheme}. The 1otal contributions 1o these schemes for the finandal year ending 31 March 2020 are anticipated to be
£0.1m. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time 10 identify the assets and labilities of the scherme
which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scherne.

‘When the Group (or a subsidiary of the Group) exits such schemes (typically by ceasing to have any active employees In the scheme), pension legislation
may require the Group to fund the Group's share ofﬂ'\etotalanmmofnﬂlaabimesmhaonecﬂcashpaym(aSecbon?Sdebtum:lerme
Pensions Act 1995).

On 27 March 2018, the trustee of the Plumbing Scheme provided participating empioyers with a summary of the draft actuarial valuation of the
Plumbing Scheme as at 5 April 2017. That summary detailed the results of the valuation on three measures:

* technical provisions - the amount of money the Plumbing Scherne needs to meet all its obkgations and pay benefits in respect of past service as they
fall due, based on the scheme assets and the economic position as at 5 April 2017, This measure showed a surpius of £45m on liabifities of £1.885br;

= Pension Protection Fund (PPF) - the amount used to set the Plumbing Scheme’s PPF levies. The benefits under this basis are lower than the scheme's
own benefits and the assumptions are prescribed by the Pension Regulator. This measure showed a deficit of £412m on labifities of £2.342bn; and

* solvency — this is an estimate of the cost of insuring all of the Plumbing Scherme's benefits as at 5 April 2017 with an insurer and is the: basis required
for Sechon 75 debt calaulations This measure showed a deficit of £658m on liablibes of £2588bn.

On 23 April 2019 the trustee of the Plumbing Scheme issued a Section 75 debt estimate to Robert Prettie & Co Limited. A prowision for this debt has
been made. See Note 19.

The Group continues to have an exposure to Section 75 debts in respect of the participation of Mitie Property Services (LX) Limited in the Phmbing
Scherne, however no eventt has occurred 1o trigeer this debt.

Employment claims

The Compary and its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to employment disputes, dams, and other potential iabilties which arise in the ordinary
course of business. The Directors do not anticipate that any of the current matters will give rise to settiements, either individually or in aggregate, which
will have a material adverse effect on the Group's finandial position.

34. Related party transactions !
Transactions between the Cornpany and its subsidianies, which are related parties, have been efiminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in

this Note.

During the year, the Group derived £05m (2018: £0.8m} of revenue from contracts with joint ventures and assocated undertakings and received £nil
(2018: £0.6m) of dividends. At 31 March 2019 trade and other receivables from joint ventures and assadiates of £nil {2018 £02m) were outstanding
and loans to joint vertures and asscciates of £nil (2018: £nil) were induded in finanding assets.

Mitie Group plc has a related party relationship with the Mitie Foundation, a charitable company. During the year, the Group made donations and gifts
in kind of £0.4m (2018: £03m) to the Foundation.

No material contract or arrangerment has been entered into during the year, nor existed at the end of the year, in which a Director had a material
interest.

The Group's key management persorinel inchude the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and the Exenutve Leadership team. Details of the

Directors’ remuneration i included in Note 7. The underlying remuneration for other key management personnel, including the share-based payments
charge is £4.0m (2018: £4.4m).

20019 2018

m m

Short-term employment benefits 35 37
Pension 0.2 03
Share-based paymenrts 0.3 04
At 3| March 4.0 44

The Company's preferred supplier for delivering apprmhoeﬁpstortsm\ployeesusAspureAdmAdvaruUmted(Baaa) a company whose
chairman is also Mitie Group pk's Non-Exeautive Chairman. “The Company pays into a government mandated Apprerticeship Levy Fund, and 3aaa
withdraw from that fund to provide the apprenticeship training. On | | October 2018, the directors of 3aaa presented a petition to the Court for the
sory winding up of the compary. This petition was accepted by the Court and the Offical Receiver was appointed as liquidator on 24 October
2018, During the year ended 31 March 2019, 3aaa withdrew £0.6m (2018; £0.2m) from the fund in respect of training provided o to be provided.
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35. Subsidiaries

£
The companies set out below are those which were part of the Group at 31 March 2019, %
2019 w019 %
% voting rights and % nomina) -1
Cornpary Country of incorporation p value owned 3
Care & Custody (Health) Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Cole Mctors Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Creativevents Limitedt United Kingdom 100% 100%
Direct Enquiries Holdings Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Jabez Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Avettion Security Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Belgium BVBA Belgiurn 100% 100%
Mibe Belgium Security BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Buit Environment Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100% E
Mitie Business Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100% g
Maie Business Services UK Limited?™ United Kingdorn 100% 100% 3
Mitie Care and Custody Limited™ United Kingdom ' 100% 100%
Mt Catering Services Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning & Emvironmental Servces Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning Services Limited? tUnited Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cliant Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mive Comparty Secretarial Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Camphance Ltdt Urated Kingdorn 100% 100%
itie Devtschiand GmbH Germary © 100% 100% £
Mitie Document Sokutions Limted® United Kingdom 100% 100% £
Mitie Dermant (No 1) Limitad? United Kingdom 100% 100% g
Mite Engineering Limited? Unted Kingdom 100% 100% z
Mitie Enginearing Services (Bristol) Limitect Urited Kingdorn 100% 100% §
Mitie Engineering Services (Guermsey) Limited Guernsey 100% 100% &
Mitie Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited Jersey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services {Northern Region) Limned® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Wales) Limitedt Untted Kingdom 100% 100%
tMie Engineering Services Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Environmental Limited® . United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Espadia, SL Spain 100% 100%
Mitie Events & Leisure Services Limited?* United Kingdom 100% 100%
M Faciities Management Lirnited” Irttand 100% 100%
Mitie NI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie France SAS France 100% 100%
Muie Group Pension Scheme Trustee Company Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Holdings Limited _ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Infrastructure Limited~ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mrte Iregrated Facifiies Management Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Imemational Limted* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie nvestments Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Justice Limited® Uniited Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Landscapes Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie LOCa Sarvices Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mrie Managed Services Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mrie Mederiand BY Nethertands 100% 100%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3| March 2019

35. Subsidiaries continued

09 nis

X voting rights and % nominal

Compary Courtry of incorporation value owned
Mive Norge Akgeselskap Norway 100% 190%
Mitie PFI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Palska 5p. z 00, Poland 130% 100%
Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited* Unitad Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Resources Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Schweiz GmbH Switzertand 100% 100%
Mitie Scotgate Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security (London) Limited® Uniad Kingdom 100% 1oo%
Mitie Security Holdings Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Lim#ted United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Services (Retall) Limited? United Kingdomn 100% 100%
Mitie Shared Services Limited United Kingdorn 0% 100%
Mitie Suomi Oy Finland 100% 100%
Mitie Sverge AB Sweden 100% 100%
Mitie T 5 2 Limited®~ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Tedhnical Facilities Maragement Holdings Limited? United Kngdorn 100% 1%
Mitie Technical Facdities Management Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie THley Roofing Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Transport Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Treasury Managernent Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Trustee Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Waste & Environmertal Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Work Wise Limitac? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Parkersell Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Procas Limited? United Kingdom 100% t00%
Robert Prettie & Co Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Service Management international Asia Pacific PTE. Ltd. Singapore 100X 100%
Source Eight Limited™ United KGngdom 100% 100%
SourceB Afnca Limited® Uruted Kingdom 100% 100%
SourceB Delivery (Nigeria) Limited Nigeria 100% 100%
Source8 Services FZLLC United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
UK CRES Limnec? Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
Ultityx Asset Manggement Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Management Projects Limiteg® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utityx Broking Lirnited* Urited Kingdom 100% 1oox
Utilyx Healthcare Energy Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Hokdings Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Usilyx Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utityx Risk Management Linited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Vision Security Group Limited United Kingdom 100X 100%
Vison Security Group Systems Limited® United Kingdom o0% 100%
V3G Payroll Services Limited® Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Staff Hire Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Systems Drrect Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Wealthy Thoughts Lirnitext® United Kingdoon 100X 100%

i Mtﬁhmmmwmﬂ March 2019 and will take the examption from preparing and fiing financial staternerws for the year ended 31 March 2019 {by virtue of

Section 4484, of the Comparses Act

$ These subsidiaries have taken advantage of the aucit exemption under Section 179A of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 March 2019, As such, Mitie Group pic has provided a

guaranlee sgart all debts and Sabalities in theve sbsidiaries as 3 3) March 2019

+ Held directly by the Company.
% The Company hokds direct minority interest in these companses.

~ The Company has voting control of these companies through direct interests ina class of shares representing fewer thn 505 of the total ixed share Gapitat of the companies
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The regrstered office of all subsidianes is The Shard, Leve! | 2, 37 London Bridge Street, _ondon, SE1 95G with the exception of

the folowing g

Company Registered office address o

Mitie Belgurn BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marcel Broodthaersplein 8 (bax 5), 1060 Brussels (Sint-Gillis), Beigium g

Mitie Belgum Security BVEA, Regus Brussels South Station, Marcel Broodthaerspiein B (box 5), 1060 Brussels (Sint-Gillis), Belgium @

Mitie Deutschland GmbH Mefistetter Strafle B, 70567, Stutigart, Germany

Mitie Engineerng Services (Guemsey) Limited Martello Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY | 3HB, Guernsey

Mrtie Engineering Services {Jersey} Limited 13 Castle Street, St Helier, JE4 SUT, Jersey

Mitie Espafa, S.L. Oxborne Clarke, Avenida Diagona), 477, Planta 20, 08036, Barcelona, Span

Mitie Facilibes Management Limited 108 Q House. Furze Road, Sandyford, Dublin 18, Ireland

Mie France SAS " 259 rue St Honore, 75001, Pans, France ‘

Mmie NI Limted Clara House, Cffice BS, Dunmurry Office Park, 37A Upper Dunmurry Lane, Betfast, Northern treland, o
BY17 OAA, United Kingdorm 8

Mie Nederand BV. Hoofdweg 524, 3067 GH Rotterdam. PO. Box 8540, 3009 AM Rotterdam, 3009 AM Rotterdam, Netheriands g

Mitee Norge Aksjeselskap Kongersgate 9.0153, Oslo. Norway. Norway §

Mitie Polska Sp. 2 0.0. Solec 22, 00-410, Warsaw, Poland

Mitie Schwetz GrbH Brandschenkestrasse 90, CH-8027, Zurich, Switzerland

) Mitie Suomi Oy /o Ov Visma Services Infocon Ab, Pormestarinrine 8, 00 | 60 Heisinki, Finland
"- Mie Svenge AB Kungsgatan 55 . 111 22 Stockhalm, Sweden, Sweden

Serace Managerment international 65 Chulia Streev. #38-02/03, OCBC Cenre, Singapore, 049513

Asm Padific PTE. Ltd

Saurce8 Delvery (Nigeria) Limied 235 lkorodu Rosd, lluperu, Lagos, Nigeria

SourceB Servces FZLLC 17 The indium Buiding, Um Suqueim Road, Al Barsha, Dubai, PO BOX 391 | B6, United Arab Emirates

Nombsidiarieshwenor;{mu'dlingintereslsﬂ'atarenutemltoﬂ\e Group.
36. Events after the reporting period
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There are no material post balance sheet events that require adjustment or disclosure in the anrual report.
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Company balance sheet
Asat 3| March 2019

2019 08

£m &mn
Non-current assets
Irvestments in subsickary undertakings 518.3 3570
Deferred tax assel 2.6 08
Total non-current assets 5309 5578
Current assets
Debtors sa.4 982
Total current assets [ LR ] 98.2
Total assets 6193 6565
Crednors: amounts faling due within one year {88.3) (674)
Provisicns. {11.3) (la8)
Total current Habilities (99.8) (822)
Net current liabilities (11.2) 160
Net assets 5107 5738
Capital and reserves
Share capital 9.3 93
Share premium account 130.6 1306
Merger reserve 104.2 1042
Own shares reserve (38.1) (434)
Other resarves 233 229
Retained earmings 190.4 3502
Equity shareholders’ funds 519.7 5738

The Company reported a loss for the finarcial year ended 31 March 2018 of £454m (2018: £12.7m)

The financial statements of Mitie Group pk. company registration number SCD19230, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised
for issue on 5 june 2019. They were signed on its behalf by

Ci T

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 -

e T T i S T
ALl Aprl 2017 92 1306 918 (22) 253 3674 s82.) P
Loss for the year - - - - - (azn {127} E
Share-based payments - - - 69 24) 03 48
Acquisitions and other movernents ol - 124 @9 - - 4.4
Dividends pad - - - - - 48) (4.8)
At3) March 2018 93 1306 1042 39 229 3502 5738
Loss for the year - - - - - (454) (45.4)
Share-based payments - - - 53 04 - 5.7
Dividends paid - ~ - - - (144) (14.9)
At 31 March 2019 93 1306 104.2 381) 233 2904 519.7

Details of dvidenck paid to shareholders are given in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 3| March 2019

1. Significant accounting policies

{a) Basis of accounting

The separate finandal statements of the Company are presented as required by company law. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Agcourting Standards and taw. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with FRS |01 *Reduced Disdosure Framework' as issued by the Finardial Reporting Councl

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advartage of the disdosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to share-based
payments, finandal instrumertts, presentation of a cash flow statement. impairment of assets, standards not yet effective, and related party transactions.

Where relevant. equivalent disclosures have been given in the Group accounts.
As more fuly detailed in the Directors’ report. the Company's financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of Company financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 requires management to make judgements, estirnites and assumptions
that affect amounts recognised for assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses incurmed during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assurnptions.

The key area of judgement that fasﬂwennstsigifmmeﬁenm&eanmmsrecognbedmﬂ-eﬁrwwstatmisﬁwrwiewfor impairment
of investment carmyng values.

(b} Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have been apphed consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.
Investiments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less any provision for impairment.

Investrents in subsidiaries are reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication of impairment and, if any such indication exists, the investment’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statemerntt whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Company has a present obiigation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a relable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for eample under an insurance contract, the reimbursernent is recognised
a5 a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is charged to the profit and loss account,
net of any reimbursement. if the effect of the time vaiue of money s material, provisions are determined by discourtting the expected future cash

flows at 2 pre-tax rate that reflects curment market assessmernts of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the lability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a bormrowing cost.

Taxation
Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and kws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax,
at a future date, a1 rates expected 10 apply when they crystallise based upon tax rates and legisiation that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Temporary differences arise from the indusion of itemns of income and expenditure in tax computations in periods different
from those in which they are induded in the financial statements. Deferred tax is not provided on temporary differences, or on unremitted earnings
of subsidiaries and associates where there is no commitment to remvit these eamnings. Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it is regarded
as more likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabifities are not discounted,

Financial instruments

Intercompany loans are all assessed as being repayable on demand. The assessment of impairment of receivables from | April 2018 is in accordance
with IFRS 9, The Group recognises a koss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on receivable balances subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the ‘general approach’ permitted under IFRS 9. In the prior year under LAS 39, appropriate alkowances for estirated irmecoverable amounts are
recogrised in the profit and loss account where there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

Interest bearing bark loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, nduding prermmurns payable on
settlement or redemption and direct fssue costs. are accounted for on an accruals basis in the profit and koss account and are added to the carrying amournt
of the instrument 1o the extent that they are nat settled in the period in which they arise.

deepayabiaarerrmmmdnﬂmmedcbst
Equity instruments issued by the Comparnyy are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financai assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company's bakince sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual prowisions
of the instrurmnent.
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Share-based payments .
Detais of the Group's share option schemes are provided in Note 31 to the consolidated finandial staternents. The costs of options and conditional awards
over the Company’s shares grarted to employees of the Company's subsidiaries are accounted for as a capital contribution within the carrying value of

investments in subsidiary undertakings.
Pensions

The Company participates in the Mitie Group plc Persion Scheme. All group companies account for the contributions to the defined benefit scheme
in respect of their employees and as part of a group arrangement one of the Company's subsidiaries accounts for the other costs, income, assets and
liabilities of the scheme. Note 32 to the consolidated finandal staternents sets out detalls of the IAS 19 'Employee benefits’ net pension liability of the

scheme amourting to £61.4m (2018; £54 8m)
2. Loss for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Companyy has efected not to present its own statement of ¢

e income

(induding the profit and loss account) for the year. Mitie Group pk: reported a loss after taxation for the finandal year ended 3| March 2019 of

£454m (2018. £127m).

The auditor's remuneration for audit services to the Company was £40,000 (2018 £40.000).

3. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

£m
Shares at cost
At | April 2018 6165
Capital contribution re share-based payrents 57
Disposals {27.0)
At }) March 2019 5952
Pravision for impairment
At | April 2018 59.5
Charged to income statement 74
Disposals -
At 3| March 2019 i
Net book value
At 3| March 2019 518.3
At3] March 2018 5570
A listing of subsidianes is gven in Note 35 to the consolidated financal statements.
4. Debtors
2019 2018
€m im
Amourits owed by subsiciary undertakings 78.0 963
Other debrtors 0.3 18
Prepayrments and accrued income 0.1 4]
Corporation tax 10.0 -
88.d 282

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates their farr vakse.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5. Deferred tax

w
timing
Losses diffarence: Yotal
m m im
Deferred tax asset at | April 2018 . - a8 08
Credit to income statement 1.7 03 14
Deferred tax asset at 3| March 2019 w7 0.5 2.2
6. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2019 2018
Lm m
Overdrafts []X ] 248
Trade creditors 40 44
Amounts awed to subsidary undertakings $12 185
Corporation tax liability - 06
Other taxes and sodal seourity 04 02)
Accruals and deferred income 113 93

8.3 674

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on dermand. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors approximates their
fair value.

The Company’s bank overdrafts are part of the Group's banking arrangements and are offset against credit balances within the Group. The Company
has adequate kquidity to discharge all current obligations.

For details of Group borrowings, see Note 22 to the consolidated finandial statements.

7. Provisions
2009 018
tm m
Prove: 13 148

The maovement in the provisions balance of £3.5m is due 1o amounts recognised in the income statement of £2.0m relating to the Healthcare
provision and £0.2m utiksed from the provision, £1.2m utilised in the year relating to the restructuring provision and ather maovemerts of £0.1m.
Refer 10 Note |9 to the consolidated financial statements,

8. Contingent liabllities
Per Note 33 to the consobdated financial staternents, Mrtie Group pic has taken the audit exermgption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue
of Section 479A, of the Companies Act.

A parent company guarantee has been provided for these entities under Section 479C of the Companies Act

9. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes as described in Note 3 | to the consoldated financial staternents.

The Companty recognised an expense of £0.6m (2018: £0-4m) related to the share-based payment charge for discretionary share option schemes.
The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo maodels. The inputs into the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models
are as described in Note 31 10 the consolidated finandal statements.

10. Related parties

The Comparyy makes management charges to its subsidiaries, whether they are wholly-owned or otherwise, and receives dividends from its subsidiaries,
according 1o their abfity 1o remit them. Other details of related party transactions have been given in Note 34 to the consolidated finandial staterments.
The Directors are remunerated by the Company for their services to the Group as a whole, No remuneration was paid to them specifically

in respect of their services to Mitie Group plc for either year, Detalled disclosures of Directors' remuneration and share interests are given in the
audited section of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 70to 81. The Company had no (201 8: two) employees throughout year.

Under FRS 101 the Company is exemnpt from disclosing key management personnei compensation and transactions with other companies wholly
owned by Mitie Group plc. There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 3| Mardch 2019 (2018: £nil).
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

The Group presents various APMs a5 the Directors believe that these are useful for users of the finandial staternents in helping to provide a balanced
view of, and relevant information on, the Group's financial performance.

In assessing its performance, the Group has adopted certain non-statutory measures because, uniike its statutory measures, these cannot be derived
directly from its financial statements. The Group commonly uses the following measures to assess its performance:

Performance before other items

The Group adjusts the statutory income statement for certain other items which, in the Directors’ judgement, need to be disdosed separately by virtue
of their nature, size and incidence in order for users of the financial statements to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information and the
underlying performance of the business.

These other items include the impairmert of goodwil, amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, acquisition and disposal costs, the: gain or loss
on business disposals, the cost of restructuring programmes and other exceptional iterrs.

Further details of these other items are provided in Note 4.

Strategic report

2019 20i8

Operating profit/{loss) from operabons £m £

Operating prolit from continung operations Face of the corsolidited incorne staterent 50.2 1l g
Adpst forimpairment of goodwil Note 4 - n7

Adjust for: restructure costs Note 4 1510 470 E
Adjust for: acquisition and disposal related costs Note 4 %) 84 v
Adijust for; gain on bargain purchase Note 4 (8.8) -

Adiust for: other exceptional items Note 4 13.0 40

Operating profit before other itermns from continuing operations Performance measures 8.2 832

Operating loss from discontinued operations! . - (2.0) 94)

Adjust for: impairment of goodwill Note 4 - s

Adjust for. restructure costs Note 4 0.8 03

Addjust for: gain on disposal Naote 4 {(17.9) - :é
Adjust for: other exceptional rems Note 4 23.1 16 £
Operating profit before other itarms from dicontinued operations Performance mezsures 40 64 E
Operating proft before other kems — Group Performance measures 922 896 g
- 2

I, Operating loss fior distominued operations compnses the: koss before finance Income and tex of £199m (2018: £9.4m) and the gzin on disposal before @x of £17.9m (2018: £ni). See Note 5

Recondiliations are prowded below to show how the Group's segmental statutory results are adjusted to exxlude other itermns.

101¢ 2018
&m m
Operaing profit/floss) from operations . % mmm Pm Wruﬁ; W(N;::; Mm
Segment
Engineering Services L ¥R 4.2 58.7 504 37 54.1
Security 2.1 Lé 30.7 221 04 275
Professional Services 43 08 5.6 S0 06 56
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 15.8 2.0 175 185 Ll 19.6
Care & Custody 38 0.1 3.y 1.8 0l 19
Caterng 5.1 o.1 52 56 - 56
Corporate centre {60.6) 272 (33.4) {1073) 762 (31.4)
Total from continuing operations 50.2 iso 88.2 ] 82.1 832
Healthcare 2.0 (2.0) - - . - -
Pest Control 0.0 (27.6) 4 16 - 6
Social Housing (34.9) 354 16 (120) 158 38
Total from discontinued operations (2.0) 8.0 4.0 (34) 15.8 64
Total - Group 48.2 44.0 2.2 83) 979 896
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) continued

In line with the Group's measurement of profit/(loss) from operations before ather items, the Group also presents its basic earnings per share before
other ftems for continuing operations. The table below reconciles this to the statutory basic earnings per share.

) 2019 2018
Earnings per share P P
Statutory basic 2arnings/(loss) per share Statutory measures B.é 76)
Adjust for: losses from discontinued operations {0.3) 27
Statutory basic sarnings/(loss) per share from cortirwing operations 83 (49)
Adjust for: other terns per share 8.5 201
Basic earnings per share before other items from continuing operstions Performance measures 163 152

Organic revenue and order book
The Group adjusts revenue and order book from continuing operations for the impact of acquisitions to show organic measures in order for users
of the financial statements to cbtain a proper understanding of the underlying movements in these business reasures.

019 2008
im £m
Adpust for: revenue
Organic revenue by segment for cortinuing operations es)
Segment
Engineering Services Note 3 908.7 - 205.7 8863
Security Note 3 5365 79.8) 4569 4320
Professional Services Note 3 1314 - 1314 1312
Cleaning & Environmental Services Note 3 e - 4044 3841
Care 8 Custody Noted 1073 - 107.3 599
Catering Note 3 136.1 - 136.1 1371
Total for continuing operaticns 2,221.4 (79.6) 2,141.8 20306

The Group's disclosure of its order book is aimed to provide insight into its future revenue and performance. The Group's order book represents the
transaction price aloGated 1o the remaning performance obligations on its contracts with customers. This secured revenue cormesponds to fixed work
contracted with customers and exciudes the impact of any anticipated contract extensions, and New Corracts with custormers.

20‘::‘ 20(::
e
Orgarnx order book for continuing operations order book subsidiaries measnures) arder book
Segment
Engineering Services Note 3 1,802.7 - 1,802.7 20192
Security Note 3 71.5 (209.0) T62.5 6408
Prolessional Services Note 3 06.9 - 86.9 1449
Cleaning & Envircnmental Services Note 3 443,10 - 643.1 6563
Care & Custody Note 3 5066 - swes 670,
Catering Note 3 2.5 - 265 u7
Total for continuing operations 41423 (209.0) 3938 4,1860
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Net debt

The Group includes the carrying value of its dertvative financial instruments in its balance sheet in its performance net debt measure as this carmng value §_

represerts the fair value of cross-aurrency interest rate swaps on the US$ private placement notes which form part of the Group's financing liabilities. E

The table below shows the reconcifiation of statutory net debt to the performance net debt measure. ?
201y w8 §

Nat debi tm m

Cash and cash equnvalents Note 21 108.4 598

Finanaing liabilities Note 22 (265.5) (2594)

Net debt Stalutory measures (157.1) (199.6)

Denvative financal instruments hedging private placement notes Note 23 164 6

Net debt Performance measures (140.7) (193.5)

The Group uses an average net debt measure as this reflacts its finanding requirements throughout the period. The Group calculates its average net
debt based on the daily dosing figures, induding its foreign currency bank loans translated at the dosing exchange rate for the previous month end.
In line with the performance net debt measure, the average net debt includes the fair value of cross-cumrency interest rate swaps on the USS private
placernent notes. This performance measure shows average net debt of £302.0m for the year ended 3| March 2019, compared with £286.Im

for the year ended 3| March 2018,

Governance
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Shareholder information

Shareholder
iInformation

Overview

HY 19720 half_yearly resutts 21 November 2019

Dividends

FY 1819 interim dividend {1.33p pard) 12 February 2019

FY 18119 final dividend (2.67p proposed):

~ Ex-div date 27 june 2019

- Record date 28 june 2019

- Last date for receipt/revocation of

DRIP mandate 15 pdy 2019

— Payment date 9 August 2019

Annual General Masting

2019 Annual General Meeting 30 hiy 2019

Registered office
Mitie Group plc

35 Duchess Road
Rutherglen

G

G73 1AU

Telephone: 0117 970 8800

Email: info@mitie.com

Website: www.mitie.com

Registered in Scotland under company number: SC019230
Registrars

Link Asset Services

The ry

34 Beckenham Road

Backenham
Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone: 0871 664 0300*

Webste: www.mitie-shares.com

* calls cost 12p a minute plus network extras,
lines are open 900 am — 5.30 pm Mon - Fri,
exduding bank holidays.
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Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

Mitie has a dividend reinvestmerit plan (DRIP) to enable you te build
your shareholding by using your cash dmdends under a standing
election to buy additional shares in Mitie. If you would like to receive
further information, including details of how to apply, please call Link
Agset Services on 020 8639 3402 or contact them by sending an
email to: enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Mitie online share portal

Mitie has a portal where shareholders can register and can then

login to:

* Access information on shareholdings and movements;

= Update address details;

= View dividend payments received and register bank mandate
instructions;

+ Sell Mitie shares;

= Complete an onfine proxy voting form; and

* Register for e-communications allowing Mitie to notify
shareholders by email that certain documents are avaifable to view
on its website, This will further reduce Mitie's carbon footprint as
well as reduce costs.

If you wish to register, please sign up at
www.mitle-shares.com

Corporate website

This report can be downloaded in PDF from the Mitie website,
which also contains additional general information about Mitie.
Please visit www.mitie.com
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Cautionary statement
Certain statements contained in this document constitute or may
constitute “forward-looking statements’

In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by
the use of forward-looking terminalogy, including the terms ‘believes,
'estimates, ‘projects, ‘aims, 'plans|, ‘predicts) ‘prepares, ‘anticipates,
‘expects’, ‘intends, ‘may’, ‘will' or ‘should’ or, in each case, their
negative or other variations or comparabie terminology, or by
discussions of strategy, plans, objectives, goals, future events or
irtermions. Such forward-looking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause

the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to

be materially different from ary future results, performance or
achieverments expressed or implied by such forward-tooking
statements, Such forward-looking statements are based on
numerous assumptions regarding the Group's present and future
business strategies and the environment in which the Group will
operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only
as at the date of this document. Except as required by applicable

law, rule or regulation, the Group expressly disclaims any obligation
or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any
forward- looking statements cortained in this document to reflect
any change in its expectations with regard thereto or any change

in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement
is based. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks
and uncertainties because they relate to everits and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future or are beyond
the Group's control. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees
of future performance. Mitie's actual results of operations, financial
condition and the development of the business sector in which the
Group operates may differ materially from the expectations
disclosed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained

in this document. In addition, even if the Group's actual results

of operations, financial condition and the development of

the business sector in which the Group operates are consistent

with the forward-looking statements contained in this document,
those results or developments may not be indicative of results

or developments in subsequent periods. The forward-looking
statemerits contained in this document speak only as at the date

of this document.

Designed and produced by MerchantCantos
www.merchantcantos.com
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Registered Office
35 Duchess Road
Rutherglen
Glasgow

G73 1AU

UK

Head Office

The Shard

Level 12

32 London Bridge Street
Londen

SE1 95G

UK

T: +44 (0) 330 6780710
E: info@mitie.com
Registration number: 5C19230

More information

Visit our corporate wabsite.

Follow us on twitter:
@wearemitie

Visit ourLinkedin page:

‘Watch our latest content:
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